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OF THE

Conmomittee of Grievances.

HOUSE OF ASSEMBLY,

COMMITTEE RoOM,

FFednesday, 16th March, 1891.

PREsENT-Messrs. Bedard,. Neilson, Louis Bourdages, Duval, Labrie
and Hency.

Mr. BEDARD in the Chair:

Wy OUR COMMITEEE appointed to take into consideration and Report
their opinions and observations on all questionsvhich might arise in the

H-'-ouse and be referred to them, i. relating to Griev"aices and Petitions of Grie-
vances, and to whom were referred?4the Petitions of divers Inhabitants of the
City of Montreal,:complaining of:thè conduct of James Stuart Esquire, Attor.
ney General of this Province, presented to the House on -the eighteentih Marci
one thousand eight hundred -and thirty, and the Report of the Special Committee
'thereon, of, the twentieth day of the said nonth of March ; and other references:
have agreed to the fôllowing Report which they have the honor of submitting to
your Honourable House.

REPORT of Your Committee upon the Petition of divers Inhabitants of the
City of Montreal, complaining of the conduct of James Stuart, Esquire, At-
torney General for this Province; ..

Your Committee, sensible of the importance attached to the complaints p
ferred by that Petition, against a high Public Functionary, have given themi
most mature consideration ; and it now becomes the duty of Your Committee
state to your Honorable House, that the facts that have given rise to those cc
plaints, and of which the greater part being facts of public notoriety, forme
portion of the investigation made by a Committec of this House in 1829, h.
been anew veiified before your Committee.

It bas been proved that, without having any regard to the injustice of subje
ing individuals, before their trial to a longer detention than that to which ti
would have been sentenced upon being convicted of the crimes of which tI
were accused; without fearing to degrade the office he filled in the eyes of
public, by the suspicion vhich must fali upon him, of having been instigated in
performance of his duty by motives of self-interest of a pecuniary nature, instcac.
motives ofjustice ; the Attorney General lias, for several years, persisted in prose
ting before the Superior Criminal Courts ofthe Districtof Montreal, persons accu:
of minor offences, for which, in conformity with the practice followed at Queb



SECOND -RAPPORT
DU,

Comité des Griefs.

CHAMBRE D'ASSEMBLE'E,

CHIAMBRE DE COMITE,

Mercredi, 16 Mars 1831.

PRESE 's :-M M, Bedard, -'Veilson, Louis -Bourdages, Duval, Labrie,.
Hency.

Mr. BEDA RD au fauteuil.

T WOTRE COMITE' nommé pour prendre en considération et faire rapport de
V ses opinions et de ses observations sur toutes les questions qui pourraient

s'élever dans la chambre et qui pourraient lui être référées, relativement aux
griefs et aux pétitions contenant des griefs, et auquel avaient été référés la péti-
tion de divers habitans de la cité de Montréal se plaignant de la conduite de
James Stuart, écuyer, procureur-général de cette province; présentée à la
chambre le dix-huit mars mil-huit-cent-trente, et le rapport du comité spécial
sur icelle du vingtième jour du dit mois de mars, et autres références, est con-
venu du rapport suivant qu'il a T'honneur de soumettre à-votre honorable
chambre.

RAPPORT de votre comité sur la requête de divers habitans de la citéde
. . Montréal, se plaignant de la conduite de James Stuart, écuyer, pro-

cureur-général de cette province

-Votre comité sentant l'importance des plaintes articulées dans cette requête
contre un haut fonctionnaire public, leur a donné la plus sérieuse considération
et maintenant il est du devoir de votre comité d'informer votre honorable cham-
bre, que les faits qui ont donné lieu à ces plaintes, et dont la plupart étant de
notoriété publique, formèrent une partie de l'enquête d'un comité de cette chain
bre en milhuit-cent-vingt-neuf, ont été constatés de nouveau devant votre
comité. 4

Il a été établi que sans avoir égard à l'injustice de faire souffrir à des indivi-
dus, avant lëur procès, une détention plus longue que celle à laquelle la con-
viction des offenses dont on les accusait les aurait assujetti, sans craindre de
ravaler la dignité de sa charge aux yeux du public par le soupçon qui rejaillissait
sur lui d'être mue dans l'exécution de ses devoirs par des motifs d'intérêt pé-
-.uniaire au lieu de celui de la justice ; le procureur-général avait persisté, de-
puis nombre d'années, à poursuivre dans les cours supérieures criminelles. du
district de Montréal, des personnes prévenues d'offenses légères et pour les,-
quelles, d'après l'usage suivi à Québec et la jurisdiction qui appartient aux ses-
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and the Jurisdiction appertaining to :the' Quarter Sessions of the Peace, pro-
ceedings ought to have been taken-before the. last mentioned tribunal. This con-
duct in which the.Attorney Gencral lias.persevered, notwithstanding the reiterated
representations of several Grand Juries of the District of Montrea), must have
eontributed to occasion discontent and contempt, to take the place of the confi-
dence and respect which suçh a Public Functionary ouglit to cominand.

It has been established that, at the Election which took place at tuie Borotgh
of Sorel, in one thousand eight hundred and twenty-seven, the Attorney General
inade use of the influence deriveci fron his situation,, to intimidate by menaces
and acts of violence, those who voted against him, which to the scandalization of
the Electors of the said Borough, were proofs of bis contempt of the freedom of
Election, and of.the laws which protect it. The support upon which lie public-
]y boasted lie relied ou that occasion, and which he in effect received, finom the
Earl of Dalhousie, who then resided at Sorel, would alone have been sufficient to
cause him to be justly considered as a devoted partizan¯df the Administration of
his Lordship, whilst, as Attbrney General, he ought riot to have belonged to any-
party, .nofto have had any friéUd but Justice, nor any enemy butcrime.

It has been a matter of public notoriety, that the Attorney General, with tle
view of gratifying his own personal sentiments of revenge, instituited criminal
proceedings that were partial and oppressive ; and it has not been without feelings
of deep regret, that your -Committee have listened to the proofs of it. It bas been
proved thatMhe has prosecuted for peijury a man named Hus dit Cournoyer, and
one named Buckner, who voted against imai at'the Sorel Election, on the ground
of those individuals having taken the usual oaths on such.-occasions, without be-
ing possessed of the qualifications required ; whilst he refused to prosecute other
persons-who had voted for him, although they were not botter qualified than those
two individuals, and alth'ough the affidavits put into his hands prove that they had
taken the saie oaths. The Attoraey General'followed up these prosecutions, af.
ter they had been twice rejected by Grand Juries, and it was not till after they
had sustained considerable pecuniary loss, and .that they had severely suffered
during twolongyears that intervened, before the delays which the Attorney General
had created by bis illegal proceedings were terminated, that their trials could take
place, ànd that these iidividuals were acquitted upon the ground that thev were
led into error by the Attorney Generat himself, who had publicly told a mani
naned St. Germain, that he had a right to vote, altiough lie was no better qual-
iied than those individuals. The partiality shewn by the Attorney General
that occasion, and bis persecution of those individuals, could not fail to degi a

I. and bring into contempt the administration of Justice in criminal matters, in .t
eyes of the inhabitans of this Province. And when your Committee consider h<
necessary a due administration of Crininai Justice is for the welfare of every
vilized country, they cannot disguise from themselves that the state of degra
tion to which the Attorney General has reduced that important portion of t
Government of this Pr.ovince, nust infallibly produce the most disastrous effec·
if they be not speedily obviated.

It has ben proved that the Attorney Gederal, with the same partiality a
injustice, instituted similar criminal proceedings, founded upon similar fac'
against a nan named Aussant, against another named~ Louis Allard, a.
against another named Felix Lavallée, and others.

Hence it appears that it was not enough for the Attorney General to have p1
stituted the powers with which the Laiv invests him, to support the views of

administrati



de la paix, ces personnes auraient du être traduites devant ce dernier tribunal.
Cette conduite dans laquelle le procureur-général a persévéré, malgré les repré-
sentations'réitérées de plusieurs corps - des grands-jury du districte-de Montréal,
a dû contribuer à substituer le mécontentement et le mépris, espect et à- la
confiance dont ce fonctionnairc public devrait jouir.

Il a été prouvé qu'à l'élection qui eut lieu au bourg de Sorel, en mil-huit-cent-
vingt-sept, le procureur'général y employa l'influence que lui donnait sa charge
pour intimider ceux qui votaient contre lui, par des menaces et des actes de
violence qui, au scandale des électeurs du dit bourg, faisaient preuve de son
mépris pour les libertés électives et les lois qui les protègent. ' Le support dont
il s'appuyait publiquement en cette occasion, et q-u'il recevait eh effet du Comte
Dalhousie qui demeurait alors au dit lieu de Sorel, aurait seul été suffisant pour
le faire regarder, avec raison, comme le partisan dévoué de l'administration du
comte Dalhousie, tandis que comme procureur-général il ne devrait connaître
aucun parti, n'avoir d'ami que la justice et d'ennemi que le crime.

Il était de notoriété publique que dans le but d'assouvir des vengeances per-
sonnelles le procureuir-général avait intenté des poursuites. criminèlles, partiales
et persécutrices, et..cé'n'est pas sans en ressentir un regret profond que votre
comité a:pu en entendre la preuve. Il a"été prouvé qu'il avait poursuivi comme
parjures un nommé Hus dit Cournoyer et un nommé Buckner, qui votèrent con-
tre lui à l'élection de Sorel, arce que ces individus.avaient pris les sermens ordi-
naires en ces occasions sans- avoir les qualifications requises ; tandis qu'il s'est
refusé à poursuivre d'autres personnes qui votèrent pour lui, quoiqu'elles ne fùs-
sent pas mieux qualifiées que ces deux individus, et que les affidavits qu'on lui
remit constatassent qu'elles avaient pris les mêmes sermens. Le procureur-
général poursuivit ces 'accusations contre ces individus après qu'elles eurent été
rejetées deux fois par des grand-jury : et ce ne fit qu'après qu'ils eurent subi des
pertes considérables et qu'ils eurent été abreuvés, de souffrances pendant deux
longues années, que leur procès put avoir lieu ; et lorsqu'enfin il se soumirent
aux procédures illégales par lesquelles le procureur-général créait des délais, ils
furent acquittés, sur 'ce qu'ils avaient pu être induits en- erreur par le procureur-
général qui avait dit publiquement à un nommé Saint-Germain, qu'il avait le
droit de voter quoiqu'il ne fut pas mieux qualifié que ces deux individus. La par-
tialité dont le procureur-général s'est montré capable dans cette occasion, la per-
sécution qu'il a exercé coxtre ces individus n'ont pu que dégrader et avilir l'ad--
ministration de la justice criminelle dans l'esprit des habitans de cette province.
Et quand votre comité consid&a. combien 'une bonne administration de lajustice
criminelle ísti.xécessaire au bien-êtrede tout état civilisé, il ne peut se cacher que
l'état d'avilissement auquel le procureur-général a réduit cette branche impor-
.tante dugouvernement de ce pays, produirait nécessairement les plus funestes
effets si l'on ne se hâtait de les prévenir.

Il a été prouvé, qu'avec la même partialité et la mê me injustice le procureur-
général avait intenté une poursuite criminelle semblable, fondée sur les mêmes
»its, contre un nommé Aussant ; qu'il favait. porté une accusation de la même
ature contre un nommé Louis Allard, une autre contre un nommé Félix Laval-
.e et autres.

Ainsi ce n'était pas assez pour le procureur-général d'avoir asservi les potvoirs
dont la loi le revêt aux vues d'une administration que le pays détestait, en eràns.

ployant



administration which was detested by the people, by employing them to crush
those presses. which advocated the best interests of the Country, whilst he pro-
tected the unbounded license -of those Journals which calumniated the-Country
and its Representatives; but he must likewise make the administration of Justice,
the means and tool of bis personal revenge.

That inducement to the commission of a crime, the idea alone of which is re-
volting when itis predicated of him who bas been specially appointed by Law
and by the confidence of his Sovereign to watch over public morals; that subor-
nation of perjury of which the Attorney General has rendered himself gnilty, in:
the face of theélectors and oftlhe whole Country, has been substantiated before
Your Committee by precise and determinate evidence. • It las been prove'd that
at the Election which took place at Sorel in One thousand eight hundred and
twenty seven, the Attorney General persuaded one St. Germain who -lad not
the right of voting, (and which he himself declared lie had not, as hehad- made
a donation of his property to bis son.) to take the -proprietor's oath, in 'order
that lie might vote in his favor. He.said to that individual that, -in his quality
of Attorney General, he assured him that bis vote was a good one; that lie was
the Attorney General, and that it was he alone who could prosecute him for per-
jury. He even dared to take hishband and place it upon the Book of theEvange-
Jists, calling him his friend, and assuring[.him that he had nothing to fear ; whilst
he very well knew, that that individual lad no riglit to vote, since lie afterwaids
prosecuted persons for perjury %ho had no more riglt to vote than that indivi-
dual. Your Committee think it right to observe tlat on that occasion, St. Ger-
main did in fact take the proprietor's oath, and voted for the Attorney General,e:
and that lie was not the only person similarly situated to whom the Attorney
General promised impunity, and whose hand lie took hold of, to engage him.to
take the oath, usual on such occasions.

Your Committee do not hesitate to declare that as the fàcts which- have been
establislied by the proofs laid befdre them, are such as must deprive the Attor-
ney General of every species of es.teem and èonfidence in the minds of the Inha-
bitants of this Province,, it cannotbe without detriment to the administration of
Criminal Jtïstice, thatb e can be continuedin the exercise of the important office
with which lie is invested ; and that, if it be possible that, in this Country, a
public functionary of the elevated rank of Attorney General of this Province,
could be guilty of such gross faults, (not to call them such crimes,) without
tbeir beinga means of reaching and punishing him, we must foresee a dimuni
of the high opinion which the Inhabitants of this Province entertain of the (
stitution which they owe to the Justice of the Imperial Parliament.

Your Committee not having yet completed their investigation relative to s
ral other Petitions, which equally embrace matters of. lieavy complaint agE.
the Attorney General, have considered that they ought to.confine themselve

. this Report to the Petition ofthe Inhabitants-of the City of Montreal, -and a
the enquiries they have made relative thereto, and the serious consideration i
have bestowed thereon, have come to the following Resolutions:-

Resolved. 1. That it is the opinion of this Commi,ttee, that James Sti
Esquire, Attorney General of this Province, by persisting-in ýrosecuting be
the Superior Tribunals, persons accused of minor offences, which ought to i
been prosecuted at the Quarter Sessions of the Peace, has been guilty of mai
sation in his office, and this with the sord id vic w of encrcasing his emolume



ployant ses pouvoirs à écraser les presses qui soutenaient alors les-plus chers-inté-
rets-du pays, tandis qu'il protégait la licence effrénée des journaux qui calom.
niaient le pays et ses représentans, il fallait qu'il fit de l'administration de la jus-
tice criminelle l'instrument. de ses vengeances personnelles.

Cette invitation au crime dont l'idée seule révolte lorsqu'on la suppose dans
celui qui est preposé par la loi et la confiance de son souverain pour veiller à la
morale publique, cette subornation de parjure dont le procureur-général s'est,
rendu coupable à la face des électeurs et de tout le pays, a été constatée devant
votre comité par des témoignages précis et circonstanciés. Il a été prouvé qu'à
l'élection qui a eut lieu à. Sorel en mil-huit-cent-vingt-sept, le procureur-général
avait engagé un nommé Saint-Germain, qui n'avait pas le droit de voter, (et qui
avouait.lui-même qu'il n'avait pas ce droit, parce qu'il avait fait don de ses biens à
son fils,) a prêter le'serment comme propriétaire, afin qu'il votat en sa faveur. Il
dit à cet individu qu'en sa qualité de procureur général il lui assurait que:sa voix
était bonne; qu'il etait le procureur du Roi, qu'il n'y avait que lui qui put le
poursuivre pour parjure : il osa lui prendre la main et la lui mettre sur le livre
des évangiles, en l'appelant son ami et lui disant qu'il n'avait rien à craindre ;
tandis qu'il savoit bien que cet individu n'avait pas le droit de voter puisqu'il
a ensuite poursuivi pour.parjure des personnes qui n'avaient pas d'autres quali.
fications que cet individu ;- votre comité croit devoir observer que St. Germam

prit le serment comme propriétaire, et vota pour le procureur générai ; et qu'il
ne fut pas le seul anquel le procureur général- promit l'impunité et dont il prit.
la main pour l'engager à faire les sermens oidiniaires en ces occasions.

Votre comité n'hésite point à dire que les faits dont il a entendu la preuve, ayant
du priver le procureur général de toute espèce d'estime et de confiance dans l'esprit
des habitans de cette province, ce ne pourrait être qu'au détriment de l'adminis-
tration de la justice criminelle qu'il pourrait être continué dans l'exercise de la O
charge importante qu'il occupe ; et que s'il etait possible qu'en ce pays un fonc-
tionnaire public, aussi relevé que le procureur général put se rendre coupable de
fautes aussi graves, (pour ne pas dire de pareils crimes,). sans qu'il y eut un
moyen de l'atteindre et dc l'en punir, on verrait diminuer la haute opinion que
les habitans de cette province se sont formé de la constitution qu'ils doivent à la
justice du parlement impérial.

Votre comité n'ayant pas encore terminé son enquête sur plusieurs requêtes qui
contiennent aussi de graves sujets de plainte contre le pirocureur général, a du se
borner dans ce rapport à la requête des habitans de la cité de Montréal, et
après l'enquête qu'il a fait a ce sujet et la serieuse considération qu'il y a
donnéer votre comité a formé les résolutions suivantes:

1. Resolu, Que c'est l'opinion de ce comité, que James Stuart, ecuyer, pro-
areur général de cette province, en persistant à traduire devant les tribunaux su-

,périeurs des personnes prévenues d'offenses legères, et pour lesquelles elles au-
roient du être poursuivies dans les Sessions trimestrielles de la paix, s'est rendu
coupable de malversation et cela dans le but sordidc d'augmenter ses émolu-
mens.



vm".

20. That it is the opinion of this Committee, that the said James Stuart, Es-
q uire, Attorney General of this Province, in order to shew his attachment to the
Executive Government of the day, has been guilty of partialityand persecution,
in the execution of the duties.ofhis office, by instituting libel prosecutionsà. un-
just and ill founded, against divers persons ; and lias thereby rendered himself
unworthy of the confidence of His Majesty's Subjects in this Province.

3 0. That itis the opinion of this Committee, that the said James Stuart, Es-
quire, Attorney General of this Province, by making at the Election at Sorel, in
the year One thousand eiglt hundred and twenty seven, where he was one of
the Candidates, use of threats and acts of violence, to intimidate some of the
Electors of the said place, and by pronising inpnity to others, displayed his
contempt of the freedoin of Election, and has infringed the Laws which pro-
tect it.

4 0. That it is -the opinion of this'Committec, that the said James Stuart, Es-
puire, Attorney General of this Province, by prosecuting for perjury certain
Electors of Sorel, who had voted against him, and by refusing or nëglecting
to prosecute others whowere no better qualified, but who had voted in'his favor,
was actuated by motives of personal revenge, whiclh made him forget his duty,
and the oath he bas. taken as ilis Majesty's .Attorney General in this Pròvince.

5 O That it is the opinionof this Committee, that the said James Stuart, Es-
quire, Attorney General of this Province, by inducing, at the said Election of.
Sorel, certain Electors who were not qualified to take the oaths usual on such ce-.
casions, although lie knew that those individials were not qualified, has becat
guilty of subornation of perjury.

6 0. That it is the opinion of this Committee, that by this conduct, the said
James Stuart, Esquire, Attorney Generalof this Province, has brought the ad-
tministration of Criminal Justice in this Province into dishonor and contempt;
and that he has been guilty of high crimes and misdemeanors, and is unworthy of
the confidence of His Majesty's Government.

7 0. That it is the opinion ofi;his Committee, that for the reason3: before men-
tioned, it is expedient that the said James Stuart, Esquire, Attorney General of
this Province, be, as soon as may be, deprived of his office of Attorney Gei
in this Province, and that ho ought not to fill. any other office cf confid
therein.

8 0 . That it is the opinion of this Committee, that it is expedient that an 1:
ble address be presented to His Majesty, praying that it may please him to dis
the said James.Stuart, Esquire, from the office of Attorney General of this
vince, and thereafter not appoint him to any other office of trust therein,

9 0. That it is the opinion ofthis Committee, that it is expedient that an 1
ble address be presented to lis Excellency the Governor in Chief, -praying hiù
be pleased to suspend the said James Stuart, Esquire, Attorney General of this -
vince, from the said office, and the execution thereof, until the pleasure of
Majesty on'this subject shall be made known in this Province, and that the
address be accompanied by a copy of these Resolutions.

The whole nevertheless humbly submitted.

ISIDORE BEDARD,
President.



2. Résolu, Qde c'est l'opinion de ce comité, que le dit James Stuart, ecuyer,
procureur général de cette province, pour montrer son dévouement au gouverne-
ment exécutif d'alors, se rendit coupable de partialité et de persecution dans
l'exécution de ses devoirs, en instituant contre' divers individus- des poursuites
pour libelle, injustes et malfondées, et qu'en cela il s'est rendu indigne de la
confiance des sujets;dc sa majesté en cette province.

8. Résolu, Que c'est l'opinion de ce comité, que le dit James Stuart, ecuyer,
procureur général de cette province. en employant à l'election de Sorel, en mil
huit cent vingt sept, des menáces et des violences pour intimider une partie des
électeurs du dit lieu,. et en promettant l'impunité à d'autres, a fait preuve, de
son mépris pour les libertés électives, et a enfreint la loi qui les protege.

. 4. Résolu, Que c'est l'opinion de ce comité, que le dit James Stuart,~ecuye r,
procureur général de\cctte province, en poursuivant pour parjure certains élec-
teurs de Sorel, qui avoient voté contre'lui, tandis qu'il 'a refusé ou néýiêé d'eiî
poursuivre d'autres, qui. n'étaient pas inieux qualifiés mais qui avaient voté er
sa faveur, il a été mu par des motifs de vengeance personnelle, et qu'en cela 'il
a oublié ses devoirs et le serment qu'il a preté comme procureur général de
sa majesté en cette prdvince.

5. Résolu, Que ciest l'opinion de ce comité, qu'à la dite élection de Sorel,
le dit James Stuart, écuyer, procureur général de cette province, en engageant
certains électeurs qui i'étaient pas qualifiés à prendre les sermens ordiniires
en ces occasions, quoiqu'il sût que ces individus n'avaient pas le droit de
voter, s'est rendu coupable de subornation de parjure.

6. Résolu, Que c'est l'opinion de ce comité, que par toute cette conduite,
le dit James Stuart,. écuyer, procureur général de cette province, a attiré sur
ladministration de la justice criminelle en ce pays, le deshonneur et le mé-
pris, qu'il s'est rendu codpable de grands crimes et délits, et qu'il est indigne
de la confiance du gouvernement de sa majesté.

7. Résolu, Que c'est "opinion de ce comité, que pour ces causes il est ex-
pédient et nécessaire que lb dit James Stuart, écuyer, soit au plutot destitué
de la charge de procureur général de cette province, et qu'il ne puisse rem-
plir aucune place de confiance en icelle.

S. Résolu, Que c'est l'opinion de ce comité qu'une humble addresse soit
présentée à Sa Majesté, priant qu'il lui plaise destituer le dit James Stuart,
écuyer, de.sa charge de procureur général de cette province, et de nevou-
loir lui accorder à l'avenir aucune place de confiance on icelle.

9. Résolu, Que c'est l'opinion de ce comité, qu'un humble addresse soit
présentée à Son .Excellence le Gouverneur en Chef, le priant de vouloir sus-
pendre le dit James Stuart,- écuyer, de l'exercise de sa charge de procureur
général, jusqu'à ce que le plaisir de sa Majesté soit connu ; et queja dite ad-
dresse soit accompagnée d'une copie des résolutions ci-dessus.

Le tout néanmoins humblement soumis.

Is. BEDARD,
Président.
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V zID ELN CE.

HOUSE OF ASSEMBLY,

COMMITTEE Roor,

Tiursday, 17th February, 1831.

lsioonE Br.DanlD, Esquire, in the Chair.

lIeny Crebassa, Notary, of Sorel

i am a Notary, reriding in the Borotagli of Sorel, or Willian lenry, for thirty six years.
Were you prefnrt at the E'cason that took place at Sorel,for chooiîng a member of the Pro-

vincial Parliament,in July 1827 ?-Ye, I was prefent all the time in my quality of Returning
Oiicer for the said Elcalion.

Who werc the Candidates at that Election -The Hon. lames Stuart, Attorney General for
the Province, and Dr. Wolfred Nifon, of St. Denis.

Was th.at Election keenly contefted -- Yes, very keenly. It lafted from the 25ch July ta the
3ft of the same month.

Did yoii hear any thrcats uttered againfit feveral of the Electors who came to vote ?-Ycs, I
heard the Attorney GCeeriral vehemcntly threaten feveral of the elEtors who came ta vote for
Mr. Nellon, He to'd them,that he would prosecutc theni for perjury ; ifdthey voted that th-ry
fhould be put in -the pillory; and that Mr. NeLon could not relieve them frorn it.

Can you tell the n.mes of any perons who were fo threatened by the Attorney Gencral ?.
Yes ; one named Antoine Paul lus dit Cournoyer, and one narned Antoine Auffant.

Why did the Attorney General tell those persons that they were entitled to vote ?-Because
those two persans wcre fathers of families who had made donations of their pruperry to tieir
children.

Did Ccurnoyer and Atuflant offer thernselves ta vote, after an individual named St. Germain
lad voted for the Attorney General ?-Yes.

-lad the said St. Germain made a donation of his property ta one of his sons, in the fame
way as Cournover and Auffant had donc of thcir's --Yes ; and it was rayse!fwho maie out the'
deeds. None of them h:d anv more right ta vote than the others. If I had nul been Returi
ing Oflicer, I hould have told thei not to vote. Each of thLee individuals had rade donatior
of all their property ta their childrcn withlout my referve. I will produce copie> of their don;
tion deeds. ·

When St. Germain came forward ta vote for the Attorney General, did any one- Ooint our t
him that le had no right to vote ?-Yes ; Mr. Nelfon observed to him that lie had no right t
vote becanfe lie lad made a donation of his property, and he told hin he did not say so ta prc
vent hirx voting, but ho would do well ta consider of ir.

What did chc Attorney General then say to him ?-The Attorney Gcneral told him that h,
had -, rigit vote, and that his was a good vote.

What uid St. Germain then do ?-St. Germain thought it beft to retire and not ta take th
oaih.

Did St, Germain come forward a second time ?-Yes, ie came forward a fecond time at th
Presbytery, where the Poll was held.

Was it again objected ta him that he lad no right ta vote b-es, Mr. Nelfon again represent
cd to him, that as le had given away his property, lie could not vote, and that his fon had a!rea-
&!y voted in virtue of the same property.

Did St. Germain acknowledge the faEr, and admit that ie had made a donation of his proper.
:v -- Yes, le acknowledged it, and repeated levcral times I have given my properry to my
lon.

Wlat clid the Attorney Gencral thon say ?-Th Attorncy General told him not ta be afrait
o any thing, and that lie had a rigit to vote.



TEMI[NAGES.

CHAMBRE D'ASSEMBLE E.

Ci.nDtE DE CoMITE'

Jeudi, 17 Février 1831.

IsIDORE BrDAiD, Ecuyers à la Chaire.

Henry Crépassa, Notaire de Sorel:-

Je fuis notaire réfident au bourg de Sorel ou William Henry depuis trente fix ans.
Etiez-vous présent à l'élection qui eût lieu à Sorel pour élire -un membre du parlement pro-

vincial, en juillet 1827 -- Oui, j'y fus ptésent tout le temps en qualité d'offlicier-rapporteur de la
dite élection.

Quel, étaient les candidats à cette élection e-L'honorable James Stuart; procureur général de
cette province, et M. le docteur Wolfred Nelfon, de 6t. Denis.

Cette é'ection fut elle vivement conteftée ?-Oui très vivement, elle dura depuis le 25 juillet
jusqu'au trente-et-un du même mois.

Avez-vous entendu faire des menaces à plufieurs électeurs qui venaient voter ?-Oui, j'ai e i-
tendu M. le procureur général faire de fortes menaces à plufieurs électeurs qui venaient voter
pour M. Nelfon. Il leur ditait qu'il les pourfuivrait pour parjure s'ils votaient, qu'ils feraient
mis au pilori et que M. Nelfon ne pourrait pas les délivrer.

Pouvez-vous dire les noins de quelques perfonnes auxquelles le procureur général a fait ce,
menaces ?-Oui, à un nommé Antoine Paul Hus dit Cournoyer et à un nommé Antoine Auffant.

Pour quelles raifons le procureur gênéral difiait-il que ces personnes ne devaient pas voter ?-
Parceque ce:, deux personnes étaient des pères de familles qui avaient fait donation de !eur.,
biens à leurs enfans.

Cournoyer et- Aufrant se présentèrent-ils pour voter après qu'un nommé St. Germain eût voté
pour le procureur général ?-Oui.

Ce nommé St. Germain avait-Il fait donation de ses biens à un de fes fils de la même manière,
que Cournoyer et Aufírnt avaientf ait donation aux leurs ?-Oui, et c'est moi-même qui ai paffé
leurs actes. ils n'avaient pas plus de droit de voter les uns que les autres. Si je n'euffe pas éts
officier-rapporteur, je leur aurais dit de ne point voter. Chacun de ces individus avait donné tout
fes biens à leurs enfants fans aucunex réfervcs. Je produirai copies de ces donations.

Lorsque St. Germain se préfenta pour voter pour le procureur général, quelqu'un lui fit-il ob-
server qu'il n'avait pas le droit de voter ?-Oui, M.' Nelfon lui obferva qu'il n'avait pas le droit
de voter, parce qu'il avait fait donation de fes bien, ; qu'il ne lui disait pas cela pour l'empêcher
de voter, mais qu'il ferait bien de se confulter.

Que lui dit alors le procureur du Roi ?-Le procureur du Roi lui dit qu'il avait le droit de
voter; que son vote était bon.

Que fit alors St. Germain ?-St. Germain crut devoir se retirer et ne pas prendre le ser-
rent.

St Germain se pré.enta-t-il une seconde fois ?-Ousà il se présenta une seconde foi;à la mai-
son presbyzériale où se tenait le poll,

Lui objecta-t-on encore qu'il n'avait pas le droit de voter ?-Oui, M. Nelson lui répeta encore
qu'ayant donné ses biens, il ne pouvait pas voter, et que fon fils avait déjà voté sur ses biens là.

St. Germain convint-il du fait et dit-il qu'il avait fait donation de ses biens .?-Oui il en cou-
vint et il répeta plufieurs fois, j'ai donné.nes biens à mon fils.

Que dit alors le procureur général ?-Le procureur général Ini dit de ne rien craindre, qu'il
avait le droit de voter.

Alors



D:d Mr. Nelfon :hen require that St. Germain shankl take the proprictor's oath ?-Yes.
What i:npression did the assertion of the Attorncy Generail, that he had nothing to fear,

malce upon your mind .- I thoughit th.at St. Germain could or takl the oath withzout perjuring
himself, but that never:heles.s he wou|d not be pro,ecutted by the Attorney General, the wordi
that lie lad ritiiing to fear being a kind cf inducement, not only to St. Gernain, but to octher.,
in sirelair situLtion., to vote in his favor ; and I believe that it was this which engaged Aufilnt
and Courneyer to cone to vote.

Dic St. Germ:ain :.iow any reluctance to take :he oath ?-Yes, and if I had th>ught I could
hiave fpoken, 1 >hould have told him not to take the oath.

What did the Attorney Geieral then do ?-The A:torney Gencra! then .-a id to him, thar, in
his. quaiity of Attorney General, lie told him that lie lad a riglt to vote ; vote, vote, yin friend,
you have nothing to fear, and he tock his hand, and put .ir uponà the Eangelifr. St. Germain
then took the oath aia a proprietor, and voted for Mr. Stuart.

What is the age and character of St. Germain Ï-HIe is a respectable old maan.
You toid u> ilia 1lis dit Cournoyer and Aucimt did not give their votes tiil after St

0 Cermain had voted for Mir. etuart ; was it objected to then that tliey had made donations of.
their propcrty -Yes, the Attornev Gcneraltold the:i that they had .no right to vote, becatufe
they had given away their property, and that if tLey would vote, thcy nuli take the proprie-
tor' oatih.; and to me be said, c let tiem. swai.ow a:m the oath.."

What did Cournoyer anid Aufilnt then say ?-They said they had'as miuclh riglt to vote ai
St. Germain, who had given away his property a, they had theirs ; and tiat the %ttornev Gene-
rai had made St. Germain vote ; and thereupon they took the proprietor.' cadi, and voted for
Mr. Nelon.

AIid.e? Glarkenegr, refiding at Matkinonge, exanined:

Were you prefent at the election whichi took p!ace at Sorel in Ju'y 1827 ?-Yes, I was pre-
sent there aIl the time, in my quality'of Clerk of the Poll.

Who were the candidates at that election ?-Jr. Jamc4 Stuart the .4 ttorrey General, and
Wolfred Nel5on, Esqr. of St. Denis

Was that election keenly contefted '-Ys, very koenly, and it l2fted a Icng white.
Is it within your knowledge that the Attorney General made uwe of thre.t to tho.,e who came

to vote for Mstr. Neison ?-Very often, and almost to all. He sid to sorme thiat if they voted,
lie vould prosecute tercm for perjury ; iha: they would bc put to pillory, and îthat MIr. Nelon
would not go and put himseif in their place.

Did he make use of thof'e threats to one naned Paul Hus dit Cournoeer, and to once nained
Antoine Außint -Ye,.

Did the Attorney General tell those irdividual;. tiat they hîad no right to vote, because thev
had made donations of teicir property to their clhildren ?..-Yes, and that their children had
voted in virtue of that propert -v.

Did Cournover and Auffiant carne forward to vote, after ore St. Germain had voted for the
Attorney GencaI ?-Yes, aftcrwards.

When St. Germain caine forward to vote, did any one observe to him that he had no riglt
to vote ?-.Yes, 'Mr. Ne;son ob5 erved to him thaut he had made donation of his property ; liat
lie did not say this to him to prevent him froi voting, but that he wou:d do wvell to get the advice
of well informed persons before voting ; ht hi >on iad already voted upon the >ame property,
and tlat he would advi>e him to con>ider veil of it.

Did the Attorney General then tcll St. icrnain that he had a right to vote ?-Yes, lie le-
peared to him severail time that lie had a right to vote, although Le had given away bis pro-
perty ; and tiat his vote was a good one.

What did St Germain then do ?-St Germain then.retired, without taking thc catih, he-
caufe he had given away li> propcrty to lis son, and that he lad becen informiied that that de-
prived hin of hi, right of voting.

Did St. Germain caine forward a second time to vote ?--Yes.
Was it again objected to him, that lie had nor a riglht co vote ?-Ye.., Mr. Nehon made the

fame objections to him, las he had donc thefirit timie ; nanely th'at he had made a donation of
his property, and that li son lad aiready voted on that property.

vhiat dia the Attorney Gencral tlcn say tu him ?..--'he tlttoiney Gencral told him that he
iad



Alors M. Nelson exigea-til que St. Germain prit le serment comme propriétaire p -Oui.
Quelle impreffion cette affertion du procureur genéral, qu'il n'avaitvrien à craindre, fit-elle

sur votre efprit .- Je penfai que St. Germain ne pouvait pas prendre le serment sans fe parjurer
et qu'en le faifant toute fois ilne serait pas pourfuivi par le procureur; ces mots qu'il n'avait rien
à craindre étant une afpèce d'encouragement non feulement à St. Germain, mais encore à d'au-
tres sous de semblables circonstances, de venir voter en fa faveur s et je pepfe que c'eft ce qui a
engagé Auffant et Cournoyer à venir voter.

St. Germain montra-t-il alorsquelque répugnance à prendre le serment ?-Oui, et sij'eufTe cru
pouvoir parler,je lui aurais dit de ne pas prendre le serment.

Que fit alors le procureur général ?-Alors le pr umur g&néralluidit qu'en sa qualité de procu-
reur général, il lui difait qu'il avait le droit de voter-: votez ! votez I mon amis vous n'av.ez rien
rien à craindre, il lui prit la main et la lui mit sur le livre d'Evangile alors St. Germain prit le
ferment comme propriétaire, et vota pour M. Sttfart.

Quel eft l'àge et le caractère de St. Germain ·-Ceft unhonéte vieillard.
Vous avez dit que Heu dit Cournoyer et Aùfant de votèrent qu'après que St. Germain eût

voté pour M. Stuart leur objecta-t-on qu'ils avaient fait donation de leurs biens ?-oui, le pro-
cureur général leur dit qu'ils n'avaient pas le droit de voter, parce qu'ils avaient donné leurs

biens, et que s'ils voulaient voter, il fallait qu'ils priffent.le serment comme propriétaires, et il
me dit à moi, elet them swallow al lhe oaths ".

Que dirent alors Cournoyer et Auffant ?-Ils dirent qu'il avaient autant de droit de voter que
St. Germain, quiavait donné ses biens comme eux, et qui le procureur général avait fait voter
St. Germain, et là-deffus ils prirent le ferment comnme propriétaires et votèrent pour M. Nelfon

Michel Glackneer, réfident à Maskinongé

Etiez-vous présent à Yélection qui eut lieu à Sorel en juillet 1827 ?-Oui j'y fus préfent tout
le temps, en qualité de clerc du poll.

Quel étaient les candidats à cette élection ?-M. James Stuart le procureur général, et M.
Woltred Nelfon, écuyer, de St Denis.

Cette élection fut-elle vivement contestée ?-Oui très vivement, et elle a duré long-temps.
Avez-vous connaissance que le procureur général ait fait des menaces a ceux qui venaient vo-

ter pour M. Nelfon ?-Très fouvent et presqu'à 'tous, il a dit à quelques uns que s'ils votaient,
il les poursuivrait pour parjure ; qu'ils seraient mis au pilori, et que M. Nelson n'irait pas se met-
tre à leurs places.

A-il fait ces menaces là à un nommé Paul Hus dit Cournoyer et à un nommé Antoine Auf-
fant --Oui.

Le procureur général disait-il à ces individus qu'ils n'avait pas le droit de voter parce qu'ils
avaient fait donation de leurs biens à leurs enfans ?-Oui, et que leurs enfans avaient-voté sur
ces biens là.

Cournoyer et Aufiant se présentèrent-il pour voter après qu'un nommé St. Germain eût voté
pour le procureur général ?--Oui.

Lorsque St. Germain se préfenta pour voter quelqu'un.lui obferva-t-il qu'il n'avait pas le droit
de voter ?-Oui M. Nelfon lui obferva qu'il avait fait donation de ces biens, qu'il ne lui disait pas
cela pour l'empêcher de voter, mais qu'il ferait bien de se confulter à des gens sages avant que
de voter, que ion fils avait déjà voter sur la même propriété, que c'était pour cela qu'il lui re-
commandait de bien fe confultér.

Le procureur du roi dit-il alors à St. Germain qu'il avait le droit de voter ?--Oui, il lui ré-
peta plufieurs fois qu'il avait le droit de voter, quoiquil eut donné fes biens, que sa voix était
bonne.

Que fit alors St. Germain ?-.S. Germain se retira alors sans Vouloir prendre le serment, en
disant qu'il ne pouvait pas confentir à prendre le serment parce qu'il avait donné ses à fon fils,
et qu'il avait été informé que cela lui otait son droit de voter.

St. Germain se préenta-t-il une setonde fois pour voter ?-Oi
Lui objecta-t-on encore qu'il n'avait pas le droit de voter ;--Oui, M. Nelfon lui fit les mêmes

objections qu'il avait faites la première fois, c'eft-à-dire qu'il avait fait donation de ses biens et
que ion fils avait déjà voté fur ces bien là.

Que lui dit alors le procureur du roi ?-Le procureur général lui dit qul avait droit de voter,
que



had a ritrlt te vote, that bis voec wasq a good one, and that, in his quality of jittorney Generl!,
bc zzid Ïo him thit bce bad the right of voting.

Did AMi. Nelfon theon rcquite thkt st. Germain shovid talce the proprictor,9 Cath ?-ycs*
Did St. Gcrmzin.Shew anyl 3'elucrance ro take the oath ?-Ycs, the cinotion ho feck secined

to agitate hlm and lac repeatcd fieveral timcs, 1 have given my property to ry ton.

Wvhac did the Attotney Gencral then do *--The Attoriley General teck St. Germn',%-5 hand
and placed it upon the Evangelit.,, saying ta himn, votes vote. my dear friend ; yeu have a right
to vote ; 1 tell you in rny quality of Attorney Gener-il that: you ha1w nothing to féar; it wilI mot
be M~r. NcIhon who wil . have to picad your caulè. St. Gerinain then teck the proprictor's Cath,
and "oted for MIr. Stuart.

%Vbat ii~' the age and character of St. Gernuin ?-H~e ii an old man of in irreproachable cha-
raccer.

You liave told us that H-us dit Cournoyer, and Antoine Aufiant gave thcir votes, after St.-
Germain hadi voted for Mr. Stuart- wasç li objectcd ta them, that they had made donations of
their propenty eý.2Yes, the Atorýey General told thein, a.; 1 hav.e bcforc said, that rhey had not
tlie riglu: of voting, and thatifË tbhc dîd vote thev 'vould bt put in the pillory; and that M1r. Net"
Ion would not put IiinfiIf in ther place : and acd.relling the Returning O1ficcr, ho said ta him,
«s ic hirn fwallow -,11 the caths'

ýjliat did Cournoyer and '~~tsal at that time :r-Thcy sazd their cafu was the rime as Sc-
Germain>,, and that, since thue Attorney General had considered bis vote as Cood for him;
t1ieir's ought alro to, be good ; and thercupon, thcy took the proprietor's Cath, and -Voted for mr.
Neltii.

F riday, I8kFZrat 8

lIsioiti. )JEDout, Esquire, in the Chair.

Wolfred .N'elsor, 1-fcjuire, Physicianj, residing nt St. Denis:

'Wére you one of the Candidates at the Elcciort chat teok place -t Sorel in July, 1827 îf-
Yen;- and the other Candidntc was James Stuiart, the Ittorney Gencral fch. Province.

Wav2, chant Elc£tion keenly contefred ?-Yes.
Did NIr. Stuart fi-equenci y thrcacen iliobe who came forwarci ta vote igainfr him '-Almoi-c

cvery voter wio was igimn5t Jin; ccnd to féveral of thern lie sad thar. if tue>- voted, hc would
Pro5ecutc tliemvfor pcrjury ; tiant chey would 'be putc in the pillory-, and th.-- Doccar Nelbor.
would not put bit; neck îici Rendflc.

Did hc utter fimilar clireats te; Man. nanicd Huns dit Cournoyer, and to ane xuamed Antoinc
Auitnt -Y .

ta he objc£~cion mnade by ldr. Stuart againfr: tho.-e individuals as voters, becau.ze they hae
made donations cf their property te their chuldreu ?---Ts.

DiÛ thosc twa individual,. mot voe iLi your favor, until aftcr a man niemed Sc. Germain, whic
had equally inade a donation ofhii property, had voted for Mr. Stuarr ?--Ye,;.

Whcbn the id St. Germain offered liimscif to vote for INr. Stuart, was the objeccron rac
ta him tliat liebad nmade a donatioit of luii praperty to bis son ?-Y, ; I obscrved to him thar.
-à 4 ol lied madle rdonation of his property te his ïCou> 1 bclieved lie zad.n rue rlh te, vote, anc:

ht it would bc painful to sec a n2an of bis age and respectabilityg tike an oclt whicli ho u-ghc
not ta rakc; chat, howev-ct, 1 did not 42y tlui, te pr.-vent hlm frein vetitug ; but that 1 f1rongly
recounmieuded him to, confider well beïore bc deciclod.

What did the zittorn.-y Gerucral then fay to luire ?-The iltorney General s2id, fè2r nothing,
gnv friend, 1 ariure yen you h'ave a righrt to vote. M~r. Ne!--on may bc: a goud .Doctor, but ho is
,not .1 lawyeVr; ic i~ net: hli Who will Iave ta prc.:ecul:c you.

Did St. Germain admi t he fâcr ini qucftiou, and d*id lie scr, chat. ho bcad indced ral* a dona-
dion



que sa voix êtait bonne ; qu'en sa qualit& de procureur du roi, il lui disait qu'il avait le droit
de voter.

M. Ne;fon exigea-t-il alors que St. Germain prit le serment comme propriétaire ?-.Oui.
St. Germain montra-t-il quelque répugnance à prendre le serment ?-Oui, et l'emotion qu'il

éprouvait paraiffait le faire trembler ; et il répeta plusieurs, fois, j'ai donné mes biens à men
fils.

Que fit alors le procureur général ?-Le procureur général prit la main de St. Germain et la
lui mit sur l'Evangile, en lui disant, votez, votez mon cher ami ; vous avez droit de voter, je
vous dis en ma qualité de procureur du roi que vous n'avez rien à craindre; ce n'eft pas II. Ne-
son qui plaidera votre cause. St. Germain prits alors le serment comme propriétaire et voai
pour M. Stuart.

Quel eft 'age et le caractère de St. Germain ?-St. Gerrain eft un vieillard d'un caractère ir-
réproacliable.

Vous avez dit que lus dit Cournoyer et Antoine Auffant votèrent aorès que St. Germain
eût voté pour M. Stuart ; leur objecta-t-on qu'ils avaient fait donation de leus biens ?-Oui, le
procureur général leur dit commeje l'ai déjà mentionné ci-deffus qu'ils n'avaient pas le droit de
voter, et que sils votaient ils seraient mis au pilori, et que M. Nelfon ne prendrait pas leurs placen;
et en -;'adreiant h l'oilicier rapporteur il lui dit « Let him steallow all the oatis."

Que dirent dans ce moment Cournoyer et Anitifant ?-ls dirent qu'i2 étaient dans le mêrme
cas que St. Germain, et que puisque le procureur général avait trouvé sa voix bonne pour lui,
la leur devait être bonne aufli; c: là-dcfiùs ils prirent le serment comme propriétais. et votèrent
pour M. Nel.on.

Vendredi, 1q Février 183I.

Is oi. Br .in», Ecuver, à la Chaire.

WFolfred Neson, écuyer, médecin, demeurant à Saint-Denis:-

Vous étiez un des candidats à 'é'ectior qui eut lieu à Sorel en juillet 18' ?--Oui, et l'autre
candidat était Sames Stuart le Procureur Général de cette Province.

Cette élection fût-elle vivement conte(lée ?-Oui.
M. Stuart fefiit-it fou-ent des menaces à ceux qui venaient voter contre lui ?-Preque A cia-

que électeur qui lui était oppofé ; il a dit à plufieurs que s'is votaient il les pourfuivrait pour par-
jure ; qu'ils feraient mis au pilori, et que le Docteur Nelfon ne mettrait pa son col à leur
place.

A-t-il fait de fermblab'es mcnaces à un nommé lus dit Cournoyer et a un nommé tintoine
Auifint ?-Oui.

L'objection que faisait M. Stuart à la reception de ces individus comme voteurs, était.elle qu'ils
avaient fait donation de leurs biens à leurs enfans ?-Oui.

Ces deux individus ne votèrent-ils en votre faveur, qu'après qu'un nommé St. Germain, qui
avait pareillement fait donation de les biens, eût veté pour M. Stuart '-Oui.

Lorsque Saint Germain fe présenta pour voter en faveur de M. Stuart, lui objecta-t-on qu'il
avait fait donation de fes biens à fon fils ?--Oui, je lui obferv-i qu'ayant fait donation de fes biens
à fon fils, je croyai., qu'il n'avait pas le droit de voter, et qu'il ferait pénible de voir un lomme
de fon âge et de fa refpectabilité faire un ferment qu'il ne devrait pas faire ; que toute-fois je ne
lui difait pas cela pour le priver de voter, mai- je lui recommandais fortement de fie consulter avant
de ce décider.

Que lui dit alor:, le procureur du roi ?---Le procureur du roi dit, ne craignez point mon ani,
je vous affure que vous avez le droit de voter ; M. Nelfon peut-re bon médecin, nais il n'eft
pas avocat ; ce n'eft pas lui qui vous pourfuivra.

Saint-Germain convenait-il du fait dont il -'agifait, et dit il, qu'en efflet il avait fait donation
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'ion of lits proparty ?YCs ; lie ockr.owledgad it, and.he rcpeated fiéveraI 1times that lie Isaci given
away hîi..; property ta ils Ion; and lie lhewcd a relué&ance ta vote.

What did thc Attorney Caneri thciî do ?-1-a tood sc.* Gcrrnain's hand, and pla ced it upozi
tise EvangeIits, faying ro hinim vote, vote, my friand, your vote is a oil ane - 1 tell y'ou, i
mfy quality of Attorzsav Gecrai that youi fava a righit to vote ; you hava nothing ta feur ; thiî
-%as the fubfta.nce of what ho'_ raid, -and the words lie ured had cxagFly the fâme fenfe.

M'hat did St; Germain ihart do ?ý-He took thea proprietor's cath and voccd for INr. Stuart.
Do vols recollect wçhothler St. Geran ofiiýrcd himielf twicc ta vote î'-I do not nt prot'ca:

recollc&, but 1 ain certins that tMr. Stu:.irt lid ta hini thofe thinge chast 1 lhave repeiied, %Yhen
lie camne farward ta vote, and that, in fact, lie did vote foi- Mr. Stuirt.

Wn ' St. Gernaja clic onov one, xvhofe lmnd .Mr Stuasrt took.ni)d placed on the Engu:Ctst,
in arder èta ke hias takce theý cadli, -.nd vole in his favour ?No ; hio did thse faine ching co-
iwards one naidJeai 13te. Mantt, 10isa %vm gener.t!v fàýd flot ta bc c1ualified, and wlio hal :one
rLepugnaflce ta taze clic oith.

Did , l-ou 3senr Mr. Stcar: say tisha 1 -e -ieao perfon who cotsld profecure choie who
vated w:Isoiîthadn ý i ilt ta do fa for pt rjry l'-Yes - lie ý,aid fo a wfeveral perionis, whonî

I did t- be,-ieve ware 2n~iid, nc whorn i' rc.quirez to talce tisa oath, bcfcre they vorod ; zu1

iitg chat zhosc per<Oss-, hi notls.r.g tofbar.
)7o11 have faid that 1-lus dit (orsv~adAntoire dîdan nlcfo-. vote, enti. -sfier St. Ger-

atanin isad votcd for M1r. Stuarz wz%" sc der (cj cd ta thern flar tliev Ihd made Jonastior of
ilerpraperty t heir chljdren ?Ye4 . i1r Gener.al iàîd t.xcy idfnrvýtvtf e

Cau1k they llad given dheir propez.L. ta :orc1sî41rcf..
~'Vlat did Cosurnover atic' 0,rn!It i ,:tv --'F8v fi.i.1 t1lait their votes ivere a- goodj2 St.

Ceranin- otd -- die ,%.ttrcv Getrcrzi lisd diecrlkat St. Geraain'. vote w.s- a gond cue
lorxin, i r ongit cO je geoOd far - àr- 1Ne!bn ; nind t1sey ::dc hnt dte-; )sad maore rigiat ta

'VOt thnn St. (;er -sa'ni.
Di)d thse .~trsvGenera, require r!seos to t-%;; -th-e isoprietor'., cadi ?-Yeý.

Ddht shiss wakaz a-e 0& '.ie ex fos o it w;iiow, aý, tise oadls<ir canfnot eay
%vlictlIcr- he nK!de Vs;s of t!ce xprellios~ ;ch tIs. l dm , blut 'lifeqesl sna.dz use ci' thern on
oflier occa-,,on4s if lie eli not o «it,

Did Cour:soycr and ,%uFi«.r.,- take tha prclr-.ictor's onlh -ind di they vote for o

Did MNr. .Stu.-.rt açail of ,is orltvc At-oriey Gcneral, ta intinliclae the vvter,, or infisi-
etice the e!lctio1, urîder ocher circumlirance.; ' chan ilhase 1)(I*jr-e ran-ndWienever atn- onea
cair.e ta vote ior me, :lftL'r _Mr. Stuzrt LA. obecred ta ihis vo:e, loie ueise c;%'ieid ., nsas:

rsasne Wjmno, Siocms:e, ne n naitici Gore a Con'. on board a Stasilont, 21VJ zOld
henta go ail lèa wv1e, er the property of the iisdividun h sdjutvcdwsswrhfv

Tona hise nien iiien -ver.t ta enquire, anid camne back .e fisy chat-ÎEÎï nor ivorils fis.:
pousnci ; ar.d it is within niy kilovcdge tha-, insnsc.'diately thereupon, a mnan narcI Gay, L
U3aili, wo-ýnt and took utr ~ vcstere, at:d carrit.d clicrn before Mr. VOIX lfui;ànd, a Jilftice ot tdie

i>cace, wilo field theni ta bail ta appcasr 'aciare the Court of Kitg'>. Beinch, ior peritiry.

Jean Ddisir, Efquire, Clerk cf thse Crown and of clic Pence, iii and for tile Difirict of

Is it witlsin vour knawledge, tliat Jarne. Stuart, ELquire, hi afys Attorney General foi
tis Province lis ver taiken proccding.p ini tha Crinisiiii Court of King's Ben ch, .lg.lllll pcr-
lits -. ccq.led of minor offience-, who nisiglit hanvc been proceed igasinft in tise Quarter Seflioa,

of clic Ilcace e-1 anýý,wvr yes. Tsait occurrcd i fievcral teriu,ý.
Cusn you ipccify any of thofe calets ?-[ cannot ý.pecity any oftisase particul2r cas;e., axceptihg

thaý;c in ariTr aIof which 1 have producud tise iiidiýimcaîcs at clic rccjucl't af the Coci-
rnittee ; but, if miore time bc 1 ivan nie, 1 couid eswind thi-i flatessient ta seraa af the p-ecedirsg

tarix, and 1 will do fal, if dia Co.nm:itte require it, by refcrring ta tihe different indictillents
wliers I rcturn ta Montreal.

State, if vou pieafc, tise diffétrent cafes of tisat kirsd, which toak place in clic said March
Tcrmn ?-I l. The indictmcnti No. '27, 28 and 29 prcfçrrod agaitift clic £une nuan, F rançois

Fourrici,



de fes bicui ?-Oui, il en convenait ; il repeta plufieuri foi. qu'il avait donnd fi bleu à fon fi;5,
e: il manifefla de la repugnance à voter.

Que fit alors de Procureur Général ?-U prit la main de St. Germain, et la lui mit sur 1'tvan-
gile, en lui dizant, voter, voter mon ami, votre voix eft bonne, je vous dis en ia qualité de Pro-
cureur du Roi, que vus avez le droit de voter, vous n'avez rien à craindre ; c'eft là ce qu'il dit
en fubitance, et les mots dont il he servait avaient exactement ce sens.

Que fit alor., St. Germain ?-1l prit le serment comme propriétaire et vota pour Mr. Stuart..
Vous rappelez-vous si St. G.rmain fe préfenta deux fois pour voter ?-Je ne m'en rappelle pas

en ce moment, maii je fuit-certain que Mr. Suart lui dit les choses que j'ai répetées lorsqu'il -c
prefenta pour voter, et qu'il vota en effet pour Mr Stuart.

St. Germain Dit-il le seul dont Mr. Stuart ait pris la main, et la lui ait mis fur l'Evangile pour
l'engager i faire ferment et à voter en La faveur ?--bNon, il en a agi aini envers un nommé Jean'
lte. Matt, qu'on difait bien généralement n'être pas qualifié, et qui avait quelque répugnance à
faire ferment

Avez-vous entendu dire à Mr. Stuart qu'il était le feul qui put pourzuivre pour parjure ceux
qui votcraient 'an:, avoir le droit ?-Oui, il a dit cela a plusieurs perfonnes que je ne croyais pas
qualifiées, et dont j'éxigeais le ferment avant qu'elles votaffent, et ajoutant que ces personnes
n'avaient rien à craindre.

Vous avez dit que Hus dit Cournoyer et Antoine Auffant ne votèrent qu'après que St. Ger-
main eut voté pour Mr. Stuart ; leur objecta-t-on alors qu'il avaient fait donation de leurs bien à
leurs enfants -- Oei, le Procureur du Roi dit qu'ils n'avaient pas le droit de voter par ce qu'ils
avaient donné leurt biens à leurs enfants.

Que dirent alors Cournoyer et Aufflant ?-Ils dirent que leur voix étaientaume bonnes que
celles de St. Germain, et que puisque le Procureur du Roi avait décidé que la voix de St. Ger-
main était bonne pour lui, la leur devait être bonne pour M. Nelfon, et ils ajoutèrent qu'ils avai-
ent plus de droit de voter que S.. Germain.

Le Precureur du Roi exigeait-i', qu'il prient le serment comme propriétaires ?-Oui.
Se servit-il alors de ces exprernons " Let him swallo ail lite oaths ?"-Je ne puis pas dire,

qu'il se soit fervi de ce, expreflions en ce moment ; mais il en a fréquemment fait uage dans
d'autres occafions, si non dans cclle-ci.

Cournoyer et Auflnt prirent-ils le ferment comme propriétaires, et votèrent-ils pour vous
Oui.

Mr. Stuart 'eft-il servi de a qualité de Procureur du Roi, pour intimider les voteursou influer
sur l'E!ection, en d'autres cir connances que celles ci defuL mentionnéec?-Lorsque quelqu'un vo-
tait pour moi aprèe que %Ir. Stuart avait objecté à fon vote, il appelait auffitôt un romnié Wit-
rnot, cordonnier, et un cuifinier d'un Steamb:at, nommé George, et leur disait allez voir si la pro-
priété de l'individu qui vient de voter vaut cinq loui., aors ces hommes allaient s'enquérir et
revenaient dire qu'ele ne valait pas cinq louis, et il eft à ma connaiffance qu'auflitôt un nom-
mé Trigsnne, Huifmier, allait fe faiir de ces voteurs, et le conduisait devant le Juge de Paix
Von Ilfiand, qui les mettait sous caution pour comparaitre devant la Cuur du Banc du Roi pour
parjure.

Jean Delisle, Ecuyer, Greffier de la Couronne et Juge de paix pour le diarict de
Montréal.

ER-il à votre connoi..-ance que James Stuart écuyer procureur du Roi dans ce:te Province, ait
jamais traduit devant la cour criminelle du Banc du Roi des personnes accu4ées d'ofienfes mineu-
re,, qui auraient pe être traduites devant les sellions de la paix ?-Je réponds qui oui ; cela Dft
arrivé dans plusieur .terrnet.

Pourriez-vous Fpécifier ancuns de ces cas ?--Je ne puis specifier aucuns cas particuliers, ex-
cepté ceux du terme de Mars dernierdont j'ai produit les indictemens sur requisiiion du Comité ;
rais avec plus de tems je pourrais étendre ce relevé i plusieurs des termes antérieurs, et je le
ferai, si le comité l'éxige, en référant aux indictemens lorsque je serais de retour i Montréal.

Mentionnez, s'il vous plait les aifférens cas de cette cfpèce, qui ont en lieu dans Ic sufdit terme
de mars ?-j o Les indictemens No- 27, 28, 29, produit contre le même François Fournel pour
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Fairnel, for Ixaving paf1til on the same .days. anid to the sarne perion, tbrce Cawterfeit rcnch

.!d.aTh Cra nditn N'. Se againft Thomnas Pibblc, Cor ftealiug foui, articles, va' ucd in the

indi.c-rnent, aitagetiher 2t four f xdllings und nine pence.
3d. The indictrnent No ,againft 1. Bte. I31ondinà for ftca)ing a Bank Bilà of one dollar.

4th. The indictmnent No. 11, againft Pierre ad Timothée Gizertin, for ftealing two bufhoeis
cf ryc, -v'tt.ucd ac ive shillings Ilerling for the two. 1

5;h. The indi&rnent No 18% againft J. Bte. r-ournel, and Richard b12cginnis, for ft<.iling two
riar offnal pincC~ er alued at ane flilling for the twa, aad-a liarnier of tU;.c value of fixperc,.,

GtIx. The indictmezat XLO. 2+» againLt ChzriQý Charpenticr1 for, fieuling a t-.bicloth, valued ut
cighîccen fhillingi fterfing.

7th. The inditent zigainft Dzvid Cody for ftealing three pair cf woollen socks valued at
t-vo Iihuiling< llerling, a pair of woolen ftockings of tlicvalucof five flifllàlgi a pair of cctton
gr'ovei nt the value ofone sdtilling, being goods belonging to two difrercrit persons, and in ait

Can yon tell ws whether the witncetes in thof,: cafe.s wvcre pai ?-Tiofe xvho reficlc in the City
arc not pui, -. tose who corne frorn the counitry -arc pi, if thwe prove that they arc poor,
anîd vzaable to bear tise expenfes of thejourney.

How much doci the Attorney General recive for cach inclictrnenr ?.Ta the beib of rnr}
icnowledgc. hc rccives twvo pourxds Rerling for evctj indixtrnent, lid before the Grand Jury,
ahid five pounds five shillingî ftcrlipg, for evcry c2!e ,.ubmitted to a Petty Jury. N. B.-In the
ninc caufes rnentianed abovc, hie got sixty-fivc pounds five %shillingi.

1-ow tuuch would 1ioSe îndiccnnts, and the proccedinÈii thercon have cof, bail they been
carried beibre thc Quarter Seffioni ?-For tach' indiciment lanid bcfore the Grand Jury of the
Quarter Seffions.-, the Province pays Os. 8d1 currency. and IS.4.for the case whcn it cornes on.

Arc thse wfrneffes of the Crown paid for :lxo,, mnatters which'are carried before the Quarter
S-llions -?-They have nor, ta My kiovlcdgek.been ever pdido as long as 1 have bean Clerk rf
the Pcace, that i., ta say about %jxteen ycars. 1

mecs there in your opinion -any advanrage ta public juftice. arise frorn procecding 0gainfi those
-ninor offienccs in the Court of Kirg's Benchx, inftead of at the Quarter Seffions of the Peace ?
1 do zîot kncw of any.

Do flot tlic accu:ed individuais suffer froro this orcler ci things ?-Thcy arc expok-ed to beig
longer dct-ained in prifori, us there are four ternis in the yeur for the Quarter sellionis, Trhile
therc ire only two terms in the Crirnin2l Court cf lKing's Dench. Ir b.spipens 2Lýo soneri mes
thxerefore that they are kept in prifbrx for several monzhs %vaitin,, for the Crirninal Terni., whilfr in
n-ixiv, casc.. tlicy inîght perfiaps flot be scutenced uroni cozlvictiont ta a longer petiod CE iroprisoS.
=:cni thian one imonclh, and possibly leis.

Friday, 1811& Febr-ia>:, 1SS1.

* .Moitis, Esquire, ini the Chair.

Aola Deide, Esfq. agaiti excaminced

The Cornnittec have bienz infornîed thiat Presentmcents bsave betil M.-ice bv the Grand
.hîrv for the district ofM~ontrecal, thant relitte ta che practicc oif carryii±r ca.scs betùre tho

Sîîerir Curt cfJuî~tic, hie oglit to bave been carried befnbrc the Quarter Ses
sieons; can voe produce tîteni e-1 prod'aen live: I. Or thCe iOth Iarcli 182> ; 2M. One
of the lJioIlifis of Augtist aixd Septcxnbler I8'2<; 3d. Onu of the monti of Augst189
4th, Onîe of tlic rnioitth of March 1&iO ; rind 5tlh. Onie of the niunth of âpril IWO0. (Sec

~pjtndix) jEcsides



avoir fait paferre même jour, à la mnme perfonne, trois faux écs. Français.

20. L'indictmentN\o. 99 contre rhomas Pibble, pour vol de quatre articles e.timns dans l'in-
.dictement ensemble . quartre chlins et neuf, pence.

3 O. L'ir.dictement No. 2 contre J. Bte..alondin pour -vol d'un -billet de banque d'une pian-
tre.

4. . L'indictement No. 11, pour vol de deux.mino's de seigle de la vaieur de cinq chelins
ifterling ks deux minots par Pierre Timoth1ê Guertin.

5 0. L'indictemient No. 18, contre J. Bre. Fournel et Richard Macginnis, pour vol de deux
pairs de petites pincettes estimées à un chelin le3 deux, et un marteux de la valeur de douze
co1k.

6 *. L'indictemuent No..24 contre Charles. Charpentier, pour vol d'une aappe estimée a 18
chelin flerling.

7 O* L'indicternent contre David Cody, pour vol dle trois paires de chauffons de laine eftirns
Z2 chelins fterling, une paire de ba2 de laine de cinq chelins, une paire de gants de coton de
la valeur d'un chelin fterling, dea effets appartenans deux -difecrentes personnes, et valan en tout
huit chelins.

Pourriez.vous nous dire si les témoins dans ces causes ont été pavés ?-Le témoins de.la ville
ne font pas payés, naisceux de la campagne le font, lorsqu'ils juftifient qu'il font pauvre, et inca.
pables de supporter les-dépenfes du voyage.

Combien le procureur reçoit-il par chaque indictement ?-Au meilleur de ma connaiffllnce, il
reçoit-deux louis terling pour chaque indictenent soumis au grand jury, et cinq louis cinq che-
lins fterling par chaque procès devant le- petit jury. (N. B.-Dans les»neuf caiues ci-delfu,-il a
tu ,G5 5s.)

Combien les indictemens sufdits et les procès auraient ils couté s'il euitnt été portés aux
fiffions de quartier ?--Pour chaque indicternent soumis au grand jury des seflions de quartierla
Province paye Gs. 8d. courant et 1 3s. 4d. pour le procès. lorsqu'il a lieu.

Les témoins de la Couronne sont ils payés dans les affaires portés dans les fefflons de quar.
tiér ?-A mn connoiffance ils ne l'ont jamais dté depuis que je fis GrefHier de la paix, c'cf-a.-dire
depuis environ feize ans.

De la pourfuite de ces délits mineurs dans la Cour du Banc du Roi au lieu de la fellion de quar-
tier, résulte-t-il à votre avis aucun avantage pour la juflice publique ? -Je n'en connais aucun.

Le. individus accufés ne rouffient-ils pas de cet ordre de chofes ?-Il les expose a être p1us lorg
tems détenus en prion, car il y a quatre termes par année pour les fLfilons de quartier, au lieu
qu'il n'y en a que deux pour les Cours criminelles.

Il résulte encore qu'il sont quelque foi& détenus plusieurs mois en prison .pour attendre le termne
criminel, tandis que dans bien des cab, ils n'euffent peut être été condemné après conviction qu'à
un noi, et pof!iblement moins de détention.

Vendredi, IS Février, 1831.

Acu. N. Monts, écuyer, à la cliaire.

John, Delisle, .Ecuyer,.cxaminé de. nouveau .-

Le Comité a.été informué qu'il y a eu des présentements du Grand. Jury du, district de
31ontréal, qui ont trait à la pratique.de traduire.devant les cours de jurisdiction supéri.
cure des acensations qui auraient dû ttre portées. devant les sessions (le 'frimestre, pon-
.ez vous les produire ?-J'en produis cinq : li du 10 de nars' 1825. 2. un des mois
d'aoft et septembre 1826. 3, un du mois:d'août 1829. 4, un du mois de mars .1830.
5, un du mois d'avril 1830. (Voir Appendice.)
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I3csdestheinditnîatsou ave pioluèced, as liaving been retitrned truc bis by thé.
Grand' Jury îni !eIarch 'rcrm Iaist, lwere t.here -others ,whîch., wejre, tbrown out ?-Ycs
th'r:e~ ne,ý 0f which I 'producecerti'fed éopies.

Aogthese 1ntiCtzn»ts,ý ýWI4 'wére ,for winor' offences ?Jt h nitnu o
9,aais PereMleand l>er ahne o tcln 5pucsc ld copper, .va.,,

luci ut, 129., sterling.
28.. The indictment No. -7, ageinst,. William Bokfrasltanibtry

* 3d. Th'e *indicetme2t, No. 6,.,against ýJuiàa Donohue, frseln oa> on a
'hie WCM en

W tbe te ýpoRitions UPon oàtb r 'tike before the Chftirnian ofthe Sessions forý'
Offexices which might hav'é been taken before that-:Couret,, a'nd ,Wbien, the, accused wvere:
adni ttd to bail, eeoewa or eeté bie t per- amxot sa, s

-lid -o:i»gtedo with, the' Police oilce, iat as the eepositiozxs wecineitely,
l'andd by' the ýCbairiiantc, Ifhe Àttorney Gnrl

Wbýýo took b.Ail iA* those cae -aIwu tke at te police ýOmfce.
'Wben, the accused wer. net, admitteti to' 'baln uicssf mieffences, for

ivhat 'Court' were the wçitiessies subPoenaed ? -1, cannot, tell.
DirLycü reeive anuy ordera front the Excecutivc >relative, to th" -prosçcution, of mxiner

offevçCes ?-Yes; a, short tizÏebefore ,the départure 'of 'Sir Jamnes Rempt, i 7receiveti an
,order 'u oii beai t rosecute ail mnin,ofeesefrth Quarter, Scssions. Jl

wallproihice, te thé Conunittee,,a copy. of. the letter , ,'received, bi that subject..
lat didthat order contain ?-'fhe letter contained, amongst other niattcr, au injune-

tien' 80 te. proceed àgainst persous accùsed of thbeQ, 'as far, asfive "poundâ1-.
Did yeno conforr- te that'ordcr 'c;but Ouiy i% those:Case l .h' I, could

* pocure wiîtnesses, ithiout xenefor bae zqiuds at ,dspsi for that object.
Are not certin Ansiposed ut the Quarter Sessions, ain'd'the Weeltly Sesons paid

inte, your,, baudq;' an& do younfotbeliýve thaùt-it.would bc;advanta'geousthat those sums,
shouid be, madebus of.ý to, dcfraiy tu epnses, of ýacesitous -witnes'es;?-Yes; te h
a]on ofaot.1O er 'oeo es ,n 'think'tbat moncy woà1d be umply

* slfiiento:ay he vinese f tat our ;b'ut I Lbave ýnot as yet baidit'inmy ,power'
to make' usé'of them ýfor that p'u'rosc,,asthe laýw does net authorise nieted .

These fiBnes bave' 'a1y b paid by 'me ito the. bands ôf -tbe,' Ator»ey eer
whereby, 1 h*adi~ n so sboacîng' wines a adistance frovi the City,' so:that

Mnn prons ivere. mot prseuted.

r Saturdoy, I 9th Febrziory, 1,8 1,l

S ACQuEs LAnJE EsquiriteChr. -. *

Wo(fe lesc, Esq e agin examinied Î.,

'Were',there'severai persons taken up at the, pol,' as - ou lastly nlmen tloed inyoi
e,~iuiatinofeserdayý? ?-Yes,- two at Jeast' an sd A her h ttoruey -Gene'

* raiseveral.ticaes' sa' speaking' ,publicly 'at ýthe'hustings, that le w o uld,la. his:
* quality rcf Attorney GerL prosecèute cértain indviduals who voted'against'hlm,

wVhi1st. he assured those .who voted lu. his favour'that they, hadnothing t6 ýfear, as
ho alone as .Attorney General, had the'right pfprosecut", hIem ni d.b*
_ne asrac C ih whc h ecae this, 1k., indue'd seveial persoris to,.vote for,-

*ing the property, necessary, to entitle thein to vote.-
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Outré les ,indictemeLta que ous avezproduits comme ayant été rapportés vrais par le
Grand Jury au ternie de mars dernier, y en a-t-il.qui ont ét rejetés --Oui, il y en a neuf

e produis des 'copies eertilées.
Parmi 'ces indictements qu'avait-il pour des offense mideurs?--Ilndictemeat No

9 contré Pierre Millet et Pierre Lachance, pour vol de 15ylivres devieux uivre, évalue
12 chelinsä terling.

2. L'indictement No contrc Wilia m Brock, pour assault et batterie.
30 .,L'indictemnent No. 6 contre Julia Doiohue, pour vol.d'une robe defemme, de

'a. aleur de 9 /chelins.
Lorsque des déclarations sous serment: étaient faites devant le président des sessions

pot deien seds qú cuti araient pÜ être portées devant: cette cour> et qu les accusés
aie ascution d'vant q ulle cour les obligent-on comparaître ?Z-Je ne puis

ee jen'avais rie fire avec le bureau de police; et que les'déclarations
étaient. directement remises* parle président au procureur général.

Qui ,recevaient les cautionneiens dans ces cas ---Ils étaient reçus au bureaude
Police,

Lorsque les acçuss n'étaient ps admis a caution dans les mêmes cas de délits mineurs,
pour quelle cour assignait-on .les témoins -Je, ne puis le dire.

Avezivous reçu de l'éxecutif quelqu'ordre Télatif à la poursuite des offenses ineres
Oni:;peu de tems,avantle départ de Sir'James Kenpt, je reçu ordre de sa part de

oursuivre toutes les,. offenses mineures devant les sessions de quartier ; je produirai au
comité une copie de la lettre Û. ce sujet.

En quoi consistait cet ordre e-La lettre cntenait entr'autres une injonction d'y pour-
suivre les personnes acusées de vol "usqu'àcinqlivres.

Vous-êtesvous conformé à cet ordre ?-Oui ;dans touts les cas seulement ott j'ai pu
rne procurer des témoins sans frais carje n'ai aucun fonds a ma disposition pour cet
objet.

Ne verse t-n-pas dans vos mais certaines amendes imposées par les sessions de quar-
tier et les sessions bebdomadaires ; croye vous qu'il serait avantageux que Ces soinme
fussent employé- à défrayer les témoins nécessiteu:x. -Oui; au montant.d'environ £100
par an plus ou moins, et je pense que, ces deniers suffiraient amplement pour défraver
les témoins de cette: cour; mais je' nii' point pu jusqu'ici lesy employer,' la loi ne
m'y autorisant pas' .Ces amendes ont toujours été payées par moi dans les mains du
Procureur Général; ce' qui fait qu'il ne me restait aucun moyen d'assigner des té-
Yàoins des endroits éloignés de k ville, de manière que plusieurs n'ont pu e1tre pour-
suivís.:

Samedi, 19 Fétrier,,183.

'JAcc~tJEsLABRIE, écuyer, an fauteuilý

Wfred Nelson, écuyer, examiné de nouveau

Y a-t-il eu plusieurs personnes arrêtèes au'poll, ainsi que vous l'avez mention-
né en dernier lied dans.votre examen d'hier ?-Oui, . deux. aunmoins; et j'ai en-
tendu dire au Proctireur-Général à plusieurs reprises en parlant publiquement
au hustings, qu'en, sa qualité de Procureur Général il poursuivraient certains in-'
dividus qui votaient contre lui, tandis qu'il assurait à ceux quîi votaient en sa
faveur qu'il n'avaient rien à craindre, lui seul comme Procureur Général, ayant
le droit de les poursuivre, et par i'assurancé avec laquelle il aflrmait ces.'choses
il a engagé plusieurs personnes à votre pour lui, lorsque par .Ja commune renou-
mée ces individus 'passaient pour n'avoir pas les propriétés nécessau·es pour avoir
droit de voter.

/ v.'
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Did'Mr. Stuart roquire 4li ithoso whom be'stipposed to bc inclined to vote for
you to 'take 'thec oath ?Gcirlyhddtellini- tho Returning Otllccr -to inake
thern swallow aill»te tlirec oaths; and evcn ivent so'far as tO require old nien.
-tvhiosç hair -was %vioIy.greLy, to.tale thecatx of.,b'ig of' agc. -

Did ho prosecutc the persans whom lie hart thus threntened, ?-Yes; and lie
Izept thcmr'frorn'teinn to terni fýr-more-than two-yeurs, exacting heavy'bail from
ileni ; -Whist lie dia not prosetito anly -of those -who liad 'voted fbr himseli, and
ta whomn ho hQcl said, they had nothing to fear.

Is it flot vitliin .your krniwlcige that in the.course of the said Electiori, the
Attorney General, Iulcyanonthe hus" traee .K els sr

týatirhedidiiotmaIc.gýaterexe tot forward tle clectiori,» lie would repot
hir ta the Governor Y~ies; onccat ieast, and perhaps'twice, and Iliat ivas doncl
111, a iiôIeht ad 0lvery, impérative mian ner.

Did not Mr2 Stuart, 'liaving got one or two. persons tu promise to vote fbrl'iim,
whom lesupposed-to be incélinecito do su', whon those persons votcd against
hlm, prosecute themn' ?--Yes.

wJlo nday, '2 1 st rFebruary, 1831.

J.iQu~'LÀuurxi, 'Esquire, in the -Chair.

M-r. Irinry Crebassa, .again examined:

Is it, within -your kriowledge, that in the n'onth of M1eardli last, a persan namhed
Schiller, who is a bail iff of the Court of King's Bencli, camie tuo you at Sorel. with
somne depositions that wcrc ready prepared, one of whichi was addrcsscd ta ou Pe
-Yes ; 1 saw onc addrcssed ta mc, one addresscd to Mr.- Jones, one to Mvr. Von
.lflarid, and another, 1 believe to Mr. Glackcmeycr, Clerk of' the Poi, at the trne
of the said Elcction. It appcarcdtd ËIe that they wcre in the band- %riting of the.
Attorney General.

Do you knowv the contents of thosc depositions ?-Thcy purported that during
the EJection-âa- whiéh Mr.Siiiart had oficred himiself in op;position te Dr. WVolfred
Neclson, he hiad not acted %vith that violence wvhich had been ascribcd ta Ilim, and
which had becn proved'«iu' thê jireëéiling -"tèi 4rn' ofý thé Crirninai Cou rt ; that lie
liad ixot in any way persuadcd or solicitcd St. Germain to make Onthl that lie was
qualified to dt c in-reipëct of propiýrty ;atid thathe 'had nbt. uised any threats, tu
aoy, Electors that lie would .prosccutc them, cevcn wvhen thcy votcd fur Mr.

,can yoli procuT 0 oY' of'ône"é offhoseaffidâvits fort1à. Comnittec ?--ba'hve
mot-ond'h«re ;but 1 bc ieve 1 can g-et'one, iînd- hd'itto'you;wc I:g:hoinc.

'~hofildat the- said1 Elcion, r.Stator'r.NesnItwas. the

'Wc&pôè&ixs foîr'pcrjiry takLen agrdibnsfthase'who had votedý nt that, Elec-
tn»,rmaDis'mr,-.1.Mtornej ~3I'icraf ?-JY5 ;I I believeuinhst.six or-seven.



Mr. Stîart exigeait-il le serment de tous çeux qu'il suppodi' disposés à vote
pour vous ?-Gééraledent çIdisauta' POficier Ra.porteur de leur faire avar

stroi sermenS, et ilalla eéme jus u' exigei e sruient d Ago £ des e-
lards qui avient les chevëux tous blancs

Atit poursuivi les porsotes qu'ifavai ainsi menacé ?.--ui, et les a tran
de terme en terme, perdant puse deux ans, et on exigeait de forts cautionne-

ens, tandis qu'il n à poursuiviiatcun de ceux qui avaient vot. pour lui et auxquels
il avait dit q4u'ils n'avaient rien: à crain dre..

2 West.il pas a votre connaissance 'que~ dans le Co y de l'élection susdite, M. le
ProGurur Général ait menacépbliqueent au ings J. K Welles, Ecuyer, de
e rapporter au Gouvernour sil ne t.sait p îs p utd'efforts pour sotenii son

électiQn ?-Oui, une fois aumoins, et peut' tre deuet, ela d'une nière violente'
et très impérative.

M. Stuart n'a-til pas engage à voter one ou deux personnes, qu'il croyait
disposées a voter poue li,, et ces deux pessonnes ayapt voté contre lui ne les

'til pas it poursuivre Oui.

Lndi, 21 F er, 31.

Jacqcs LAan3tïc, écuyer, as fauteuiÈ'

Henr Crebassa, examiné dO nouveàu "

Est- il à votre connaissance que dans le mois de iars dernier, le vomméS iller
Iuisgier de la Cotr du Banc', du Ro, sosoit présenté cheZ-vous à Sorel avec des
dépositions toutes dressées, dont une'était'« votre addresse ?-Ou, j'en ai vP une
à mon adresse, une à Padresse de M. Joues, une à celle de M. 'Sn0 Iffiand, et
uné autre je crois pour M.Glackemeyer, Clere du Poli, lors de la dite3ëctio
Il me semble qu'elles étaient de l'écdtug de M, le Procureur-Général.

Connaissez-vous le contenu de cs dépositions ? Ells allaient à dire qhie peu.
dant 1'électiou o6 M. Jamies Stuar se présentait e opposition au Dr. Wolfre
Nelson il n'avait pas agi avec la violence qu'on lui attribuait, ét qui tv ait été
prouéé dansle terme précédent de la! Cour Criminelle; qu'il ü'avait aucqnement
engagé et sollicité St. Germuain à faire serment, qu'il était qualifiée 'voter sous le
iapport de tel propriété, aússi 'qu'il n'avait fahit à aucun électeur aujçpnes menaces
de les poursuivre, lors' même qu'ils votaienl t pour M. Nêlâon.

Pourriez-vous procurer au Comité uné copie defl'un de ces affidavits ? 'en
ai pas ici, mais je, crois pouvoir vous en envoyer une quand je serais de etour
chez-moi. (Le témoins a depuis transmis' l'affidavit à lui adressé: voir I 'Appen
dice (N -.) à ce rapport.)

Léquel de M.' Stuart ou de M. Nelson, sucomba dans la susdite élection ?-Ce
fut M.le Procureur Üénéral.

Y a-t-il e' des poursuites poutpan -reo étre ec 4eui avaient voté 4 cette
n-contre .ailocurerGénra1 ?-ui, je crois qu'il y en a eu six otd

sept.



Were there any proceedings for perjury taken against such as had voted for
Mr. Attorney General ?-Not to my knowledg' ; although Mr. Wolfred Nelson
caused several persons to be apprehended, upon depositions. under gath; before
Magistrates ; and I am sure that, with respect to 11r. St. Uermain, he was not
prosecuted.

Mr. Michel Glackmeyer, again examined:

What was the impression made on your mind, when you heifrd the Attorney
General tell the voters that they had nothing to fear ?-I thouglit that Mr. At-
torney made use of those expressions in order to get people to vote for hiin, and
take away all fear of being prosecuted, from such as voted -without being conscious
of being qualified' with regard to property.

Who was it.that filed at that Election ?-It was:Mr. Attorney General.
Do you know thlat the Attorney General[prosecuted for perjtîidy some of those

who had voted at the said Eleétion before the Criminal Court ?-Yes ; he prose-
cuted five or six persons of those who lad voted against him; but I have no know-
Iedge, of his having prosecuted any of those who had voteJfor him, although,
according to common report, several had been arrested, in vidue of depositions
made before Magistrates.

During the time of the polJ, did you hear the Attorney General order any one
to go direcif iind Iook at the property of those who lad voted against him, in
order to ascertain whether it was worth £à ?-Yes; ie.caled to 'Triganne, and to
a man named George,, who was a servant on board a steam-boat, and when they
came back and told'iim it was not worth £5, lie told them to go and take thern
up, and carry them before a Magistrate, and I heard some body say ihat two of
them had been put under bail to .appear' at the Crinminal Court of King's
Bench.

Did you see the Attorney General threaten Mr. Welles, agent for the Seigniory
of Sorel, belonging 'to the Ciown ?-Yes ; I heard hi several times reproacli Mr.
Welles, because lie did not exert himself enough with himat the poll, andg-once lie
vent so far as to say that if he did not support him with greater activity, he would
report him to the Governor.

Was an affidavit ready drawn un, ofered to you in March 1830, with a requgst
that you would swear to t ?--In March 1880, towards the close of the term of tùî
CriminalCourt, Mr. Attorney General asked me at Montreal at Rasco's, whether
I hadany knowledge that lie [ãd said at the polL at Sorel, thathê alone, as Attor.
ney' General had a right to prosecute those who might vote for him at the Elec-
tion. Upon 'which I told himi that I did not recollect at the timoment whether he
had said so or not; ihat I did riot say whether he had said so or not said so, but
that I did nfot recollect having hegrd it ; upon this he prepared ab affidavit, in
xny absence, which he afterwards presented to me, and which 1 afterwards signed
and swore to, without reading it myself, Mr, Stuart having himself read it to me.
As he ,ahted" to alter something in it whilst he was reading it, I requested him to
be very'particutar in not mentioning any thing but what I had said. The affidavit
as it was read ta me by the Attorney General, did not contain aày thing but what
I have mentioned iIn the beginning of this answer. It was at the Police Ofilce,
before Mr. Gale that I sawore to that aflidavit, which was not read ovei-agaiîn ta me
by Mr, Gale. I kept no copy of it, and I do not know what h4s become of it, as
the Clerk ofthé Attorney Geerai put it in hislpocket.



Y a:t-il eu des poursuites pour parjure contre ceux qui avaient voté pour M. le
Procureur du Roi ?-Non, à ma connaissance, quoique M. Wolfred Nelson en
eut fàit appréhender plusieurssur-des-dépositions-fttes-sojs-serment devant-des------
Magistrat-et-esisi é que pour M. St. Germain il ne l'a pas été.

M. Michel Glackemeyer, examiné de nouveau :-

Quelle était votre impression lorsque vous entendiez M. le Procureur-Général
dire aux voteurs qu'ils n'avaient rien à craindre P-Je pensais que M. le Procureur
tenait ce langage pour engager les gens à voter pour lui, et à ôter les craintes d'è-
tre poursuivis à ceux qui votaient sans se sentir qualifiés sous le rapport de la pro.
priété.

Qui a succ'ombé dans cette élection ?-M. le Procureur-Général.
Avez-vous connaissance que M. le Procureur-Général ait poursuivi à la Cour

Criminelle pour parjure quelques.uns de ceux qui avaient vot.é dans la susdite élec-
tion ?-Oui, il a poursuivi cinq à six personnes de celles qui avaient voté contre
lui ; mais je n'ai point connaissance qu'il ait poursuivi aucun de ceux qni avaient
voté pour lui, quoique souvent la commune renommée il en ait été arrêté plu-
sieurs .en vertu de dépositions faites devant des Magistrats.

Pendant la tenue du Poli avez-vou. entendu le Procureur-Général ordonner à
quelqu'un d'aller de suite exanmjcer la propriété de ceux qui avaient voté contre
lui afin de s'assurer si elle valait cinq livres ?-Oui, il appelait Triganne et le nom-
mé George, serviteur d'un des Steam Boats, et lorsque de retour ils lui disaient
qu'elle ne valait pas cinq livres, il leur disait de les prendre et de les conduire chez
.un Magistrat, et j'ai entendu dire à quelqu'un d'eux qu'ils avaient été mis sous
caution pour comparaître à la Cour Criminelle du Banc du Roi.

Avez-vous vu le Procureur-Général menacer M. Welles, Agent de la Seigneurie
de Sorel appartenant à la Couronne ?-Oui, je lai plusieurs fois entendu repro-
cher à M. Welles.:qu'il ne se tenait pas assez assidu avec lui au Poli, et une fois il
alla jusqu'à lui dire que s'il ne soutenait pas plus activement son élection (he wrould
report him to the Governor,) qu'il s'en plaindrait au Gouverneur.

Vous a-t-on présenté en mars 1880, un affidavit tout dressée, en vous priant de
l'affirmer sous/serment ?-En mars 1830, vers la fin du terme de la Cour Crimi-
nelle, M. le -rocureur-Général me demanda -à Montréal, chez Rasco, si j'avais
connaissance qu'il eut dit au PolI à Sorel, que lui seul comme Procureur-Général
avait le droit de poursuivre ceux qui voteraient pour lui à l'élection; je lui dis la-
dessus ie je ne me rappelait pas dans le moment s'il l'ava:t dit ou noa;
que je ne disais pas qu'il l'eût dit ou qu'il ne l'eût pas dit, mais. que
je ne me- rappelait pas de l'avoir entendu. Là-dessus il a dressé en
mon -absence un affidavit qu'il m'a présenté après, et que j'ai signé et
affirmé sans le lire moi-même, lecture m'en ayant été faite par M. Stuart
lui-même. Comme il voulut changer quelque chose en le lisant je lui dis d'être bien
particulier à ne mentionner que ce je disait. Tel, que cet aftidavit m'a été lu par
le Procureur-Général, il ne contenait rien autre chose que ce quej'ai mentionné
au commencement'de cette réponse.. C'est devant M. Gale, au Bureau de Police
que j'ai affirmé cet affidavit, qui ne me fut pas lu de nouveau par M. Gale, je nl'en
ai pas gardé copie, et j'ignore ce qu'il est devenu, le Clerc du Procureur-Général
l'ayant mis dans sa poche.

A4.d: J



18.

Andrd Amable LavallJc, Carter, of the Borough of Sorel:

Are you an elector for theBorougli of William H-enry ?-Yes, I am an clector
and a proprietor.

Were you present at the Eluetion which took place there in 1827 ?-Yes; I
iças present for the greatest part of the time.

Did you lcar the Attorney General say at the hustings, that lie alone, as
Attornev Gencral, had a right to prosecute those who voted for him at that
election, and that they had nothing to fear ?-Yes; several times ; I cannot sav
how often.

Did he on the other hand say to such as voted for Mr. Nelson, that lie irould
have themi put in the pillory ?--Yes ; severalt imes. He spoke to them in a most
violent ianner; saying to thern, " Take care what vou are going to do, if you

have not a good riglht to vote, I will punish you, and I wiill have you put in
the pillory ; and M r Nelson for .whon vou vote, will not put his neck in,
your place there. It is I that aa the Attorney General.'
Do you know that some of the Electors who lad voted for M1r. Nelson. werc

direetly tak-en up, and by whose orders ?-The Attorney General several times
sent different individuals toaenquire respecting thle propertiesof thevoters. Upon
theirreport he caused sevcral of Mr. Nelson's Electors tobe taken up, & faken
before a Magistrate, vhere thev were leld to bail to appear at the Court of
King's Bench.

Do you know that since the election,afidavts have been made against several
of the electors who voted for the Attorney General, as being guilty of perjurv ?-
Yes, I know that suci affidavits have been made, and that those personslhave
been held to bail ; but they have never been prosecuted.

Do you know whether those aflidavits were put into the hands of the Attorney
Gencral ?-That is what I can not tell.

Antoine Paul lus dit Cournoyer, of the Parish of Sorel, Labourer

Wcre you present at the Sorel Election in 1827 ?-Yes.
Wcre you there when the Attorney General took St. Germain's band & placed

it on the book, telling him that lie could vote, and hiad niothîing to fear ?-Yes, I
was there, and I heard the Attorney Gencral say to St. Germain, who was expres-
sing to him his reluctance to take the oath, because lie haad given away his pro-
perty to lais children, & putting his hand himself upon the book " dont be afraid,

I will be answürable that your's is a good vote; I should be very happy to have
" twenty such.'

Did you yourself vote at that Election ?-Yes.
HIad you not, however, given your property to yor chi)ldren ?-Yes, Sir;--and

they pay me good interest for it : and if 1 did vote it was on accouit of what
I had Ieard the Attorney General say to St. Germain. I thought that if St.
Germtin, who had given away all his property, had a riglt to vote, the greater
reason there was that I should have the saine right, as I iad made.a reserve of a
piece of land, on which there vas a small bouse.

Did not Mr. Stuart thon threaten vou that he would have you put in the stocks?
--Yes, when I gave my vote, he threatencd me in a vcry violent tone, that he would
prosecute me, and would have me put in pi isona, in the stocks and in the pillory.

Did he put his threCts into execution ?-Ycs, some time after the Election, he
caused me to b eapprehîended, and Ibr two vears at least, i have not ccased, along
with others, to be cragged from Term to 'Éerr, from Sorel to Montreal, to pass
the whole Terni there, vithout having ny case tried.



André Amablc Lav allée, Charretier du Bourg de Sorel

Etes-vous électeurs du Bourg de William Henry ?-Oui, je suis électeur et pro-
priétaire.

Etiez-vous présent à l'élection qui y eut lieu en 1827 ?-Oui, j'a été présent la
plus grande partie du tems.

Avez-vous entendu dire au Procureur-Général sur le H-ustings, que lui seul
avait le droit de poursuivre comme Procureur-Général, ceux qui voteraient pour
lui à cette élection et qu'ils n'avaient rien à craindre ?-Oui, plusieurs fbis, je ne
puis dire combien.

A-t-il au contraire dit à ceux qui votaient pour M. Nelson qu,'ils les feraient
mettre au pilori ?-Oui, plusieurs fois ; il leur parlait d'une manière tout à fàit
violente, leur disant "Prenez garde à ce que vous all'z faire, si vous n'avez pas
" bon droit de voter, je vous punirai etje vous férai mettre au pilori ; et 1. Nelson
- pour qui vous votez ne mettra pas son cou à votre place ; je .suis te Procureur-
" Général, moi."

Avez-vous connaissance que des électeurs qui votaient pour M. Nelson aient
été immédiatement arrêtés, et Upar quel ordre ?-Le Procureur-Général envoy-
ait plusieurs fois divers individus s'enquerir des propriétés des voteurs ; sur leur
rapport il a fait arrêter divers électeurs de M. Nelson, pour les faire conduire chez
un magistrat, où ils étaient mis sous caution pour comparaItreç à la Cour du Banc
du Roi.

Avez-vous connaissance que depuis l'élection, des afidavits aient été faitçontre
divers électeurs qui avaient voté pour le Procureur-Général, comme coupables de
parjure ?-Oui,je sais que de tels affidavits ont été faits et que ces personnes ont
été mises sous caution, mais elles n'ont jamais été poursuivies.

Savez-vous si ces affidavits ont été remis au Procureur-Géndral ?-C'est ce que
je ne puis dire.

Antoine Paul Hus dit-Cournoyer, laboureur, de la paroisse de Sorcl.

Etiez-vous présent à l'Election de Sorel ci 1827?-
Etiez-vous là lorsque M. le Procureur-Général a pris la main de St. Germain et

la lui a mise sur le livre, en lui disant qu'il n'avait rien à craindre et pouvait vo-
ter ?--Oui j'y étais, etj'ai-entendu le Procureur-Général dire à St. Germain qui lui
exprimait sa répugnance à faire le serment, parce qu'il avait cédé ses biens à ses
enfans,!en lui mettant lui.même la main sur le livre ; ne craignez point, je vous ré-
ponds de votre voix, elle est bonne, je serais un homme heureux d'en avoir vingt
comme la vôtre.

Avez- vous-vous même voté à cette Election ?-Oui.
Mais n'aviez-vous pas cependant donné vos biens à vos enfans ?-Oui, Mon.

sieur, et ils me payent une bonne rente ; mais si j'ai voté, c'est en conséquence de
ce quej'avais cntendu'direà St. Germain par le Procureur du Roi ; je pensais que
si St. Germain qui avait donné tous ses biens avait le droit <le voter, à plus forte
raison devais-je avoir le même droit, ayant fait une réserve d'une pièce de terre
sur laquelle il y avait une petite maison.

M. Stuart ne vous menaça t.il pas alors de vous faire mettre au carcan ?-Oui,
lorsque je donnai ma voix il me menaça d'un ton très-violent, qu'il nie poursuivrait
.me ferait mettre en prison, au carcan, et au pilori.

A-t-il mit ses menaces en exécution ?-Oui, quelquîe tems après l'Election il
m'a fait appréhender et pendant deux ans au moins, je n'ai pas cessé d'être, ainsi
que d'autres, trainé de terme en termes de Sorel à Montréal, pour y passer tous le
terme sans que l'on m'ait fait mon procès.

Ets-
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Is it within your knowledge that any who voted for Mr. Stuart, have been pro-
secuted for perjury ?-T have no knowledge of it; and I verily believe that not
one of them has been prosecuted.

Aezis Paul Hus dit Cournoyer, son of the preceding witness, farmer, of Sorel: -

Were you present at the Election which took place at Sorel in 1827 ?--Yes, I
remained there almost the whole time of the Poil.

Who were the Candidates, and which of them .failed at that Election?-The
Candidates were Dr. Wolfred Nelson, and the Attorney General, Mr. James
Stuart. It vas the last who failed in his election.

Did Mr. Stuart avail of his quality as Attorney General, to encourage someof
the Electors who shewed reluctance to take the qualification oath as proprietors?-
Yes, several times .towards those whomi he knew were inclined to vote for him,
and among others, towards one François Gazaille dit St. Germain.

Did St. Germain offer himself twice to vote ?-ies, the first tinie, he went back,

upon Dr. Nelson's remarking to hin, that as he had given his property to his son,
he had no longer any riglit to vote upon it, adding, " Listen, Père St. Germain,

step aside, and make enquiry from persons of information, whether you have a
«riglit to vote or not; for my part I tell you, you have not any riglit to vote.»
Then some one of St. Germain's f riends took him aside in the pudlic square,
where the. Poil was held. The Poli was then.transferred to the Presbytery; and
in the mean time, Mr. Stuart went and spoke to St. Germain; and the moment
after St. Germain came forward towards the Poll, with the apparent intention.of
voting, but without saying any thing. The Returning Officer asked him whether
he came to vote. He answered that he did come to vote. Mr. Nelson observed
to hin for the second time that he had no right to vote. Whereupon Mr. Stuart
told him that- lie had nothing to fear ; that Mr. Nelson was a good Doctor, but
was not acquainted with the law. I then perceived St. Germain draw back, as if
lie was afraid of voting; but the Attorney General then went towards hlim, took
hold of his hand, and put it on the Evangelist, and said to him, ' Dont listen to
"that, take the oath and give your vote; I am. the Attorney General, and I alone
"have the right of prosecuting.' Upon this St. Germain took the three oaths
and voted for Mr. Stuart.

Did the Attorney General, (James Stuart,) during the duration of the Poll, of.
ten make use of the express:ons, " Dont be afraid, 1 am the only one % ho, as At-
torney General, can prosecute you," or words tothat effect, towards those
whom lie supposed, were inclined to vote for him ?-Yes,,Sir, I heard him make
use of those expressions, several ti m*es, and particularly towards one named Adama,
to one named-Maney, and to others whose names -I do not recollect.

Did Mr. Stuart at times make use of threats toivards those who voted against
him, that he would prosecute them for perjury?-Yes, and that very often. He
told them lie would prosecute them; that lie would have them put in prison and
placed in the pillory, and that Mr. Nelson would not put his neck there instead
of theirs.

What do you believe Mr. -Stuart said all those things for ?-To prevent those
who were inclined to vote for MIr. Nelson, from doing so.

Did he put all his threats into execution ?-He prosecuted several perscns, and
particularlynyfather, who was dragged up to the Criminal Court, for six Terms,
without at any time having his trial.

Was there during the Election, any person taken up, and held to bail, by order
of



Est-il à votre connaissance qu'il ait été poursuivi pour parjure -quelqu'un de
ceux qui avaient voté pour M. Stuart ?-Je n'en ai pas de connaissance, etje crois
bien qu'il n'y en a pas eu de poursuivi.

Alexis Paul Hus dit Cournoyer, fils du précédent, cultivateur de Sorel

Etiez-vous présent à l'Election qui eut lieu à Sorel en 1827 ?-Oui, j'y suis de.
mneuré presque tout le tems du polil.

Quels étaient les Candidats et quel est celui qui succomba dans cette Election?
-Les Candidats étaient Messrs. le Dr. Wolfred Nelson et le Procureur-Général,
M. James Stuart ; ce fut ce dernier qui succomba.

M. Stuart usa t-il de sa qualité de Procureur du Roi pour rassurer quelques-uns
des Electeurs qui avaient de la répugnance.à faire le serment de qualification sous
le rapport de la propriété ?--Oui, et à plusieurs reprises envers ceux qu'il- savait
être disposés à voter pour lui, et entr'autres envers le nommé François Gazaille
dit St. Germain.

St. Germain s'est il présenté deux fois pour voter ?-Oui.- la première fois il se
retira sur ce que le Dr. Nelson lui remarqua qu'ayant donné ses biens à son fils, il
navait-plus le droit de voter, ajoutant « tenez Pierre St. Germain, retirez vous à
l'écart, informez vous à des gens sages qui vous diront si vous avez, ou si vous n'a-
vez pas le droit, de voter, moi, je vous dis que vous ne l'avez pas :" Alors
quelqu'un des amis de St. Germain le tira à -l'écart sur la place publique où se te-
nait le poli. Là dessus le pol. fut transferré au Presbytère, pendant quoi, M.
Stuart alla parler à St. Germain, et l'instant d'après ce dernier s'avança anf poll
dans l'intention apparente de voter, mais sans rien dire. L'officier Rapporteur
lui demanda s'il venait voter. Il répondit qu'il venait voter. M. Nelson lui ob-
serva pour la seconde fois qu'il n'en avait pas le droit. Surquoi M. Stuart lui dit
qu'il n'avait-rien à craindre, que M. Nelson, était bon médecin, mais qu'il ne con-
naissait pas les lois. J'apperçu alors St. Germain se retirer en arrière comme-s'il eut
craint de voter; mais M. le Procureur du Roi s'avan'ca alors vers lui, lui prend la
main, la lui.met sur l'Evangile, en lui disant, «e n'écoutez point, prenez le ser-
ment et donnez votre voix, je suis le Procureur du Roi, moi séul j'ai le droit de
poursuivre." Sur quoi St. Germain prit les trois sermens et vota pour -M.
Stuart.

M. le Procureur, du Roi (James Stuart) a-t il souvent fait usage pendaht la te.
nu du poll, de ces expressions: Ne craignez point,je suis le seul qui comme Pro-
cureur du Roi puisse poursuivre, et autres mots semblables, envers ceux qu'il
croyait disposés à voter pour lui ?-Oui, Monsieur, je l'ai entendu faire usage de
ces expressions plusieurs fois notamment envers les nommés Adams, Bonhomme
Meney, et d'autres encore dont je ne me rappelle pas les noms.

M. Stuart a-t-il quelques fois menacé ceux qui votaient contre lui de les pour-
suivre pour parjure ?-Oui, et très souvent, Il leur disait qu'il les poursuivrait,
les ferait mettre en prison etconduire au pilori, et que ce n'est pas M. Nelson qui
irait mettre son cou à leur place.

Pourquoi pensez-vous que M. Stuart disait toutes ces choses ?-Pour détourner
de voter pour M. Nelson ceux qui auraient été disposés à le faire.

A-t-il mis à exéçution toutes ces menaces ?-l en a poursuivis plusieurs et no-'
tamment mon père, qui a été traîné à la cour criminelle pendant six termes, sans
toute fois que son procès eut lieu.

Y a.t-il eu pendant l'Election même, quelque personne d'arrêtée et de mise sous
caution



of Mr. Stuart ?-Yes, several were, after giving their votes; and anongst otlcr3,
Louis Allard and Joseph Buckner.

How did that happen with respect to Allard ?-As soon as he had voted,
Mr. Stuart ordered Dr. Anthony Von Iffland, to niake out a warrant, and
take up Allard, which was forthwiti done. I was myself asked to be one of
his bail, but others having done so before me, I was hindered from doing him
that service.

Did not Mr. Stuart aiso threateu %Ir. Welles, the Agent for the Seigniory of
Sorel, belonging to the Crown, that lie would complain of him to the Governor if
he did not exert himself more for the success of his clection ?-Yes, that was said
in my presence.

Did A-Ir. Stuart prosecute any one of those who voted for liim, although it was
well known that several of them had taken the oath and voted without being qua-
lified ?-I have no kiowledge that lie prosecuted any.

Tuesdoy, 22d Februrry, 1881.

JACQU'Es LABR[E, Esquire, in the Chair.

Anthony Von Ifland, Esquire, residing in the horough of Sorel

How long ago is it since you have censed to act as Justice of the Peace?
-Since the new Commissions of the Peace, which were issued about the first of
November last, and in which I was included ; but I did not take the oaths re-
quired.

Were you at Sorel, at the period of the contested Election between the Attor-
ney Gencral.and Mr. Wolfred Nelson in 1827 ?-Yes.

Wcre you then an acting Justice of the Peace ?-I was.
Had you opportunities of being often at the Poll, during the Election ?-Very

often.
Was that election Iceenly contested ?-Very warmly contested.
During the poll, did it appear to you tha' somne electors came forward who

shewed a reluctance to take the proprictor's oath ?-.- Maiy.

Was not one Gazaille dit Germain, one of them ?-Yes, lie was one of that
number.

Did not Mr. Attorney Generai encourage that man to take the oath, telling
him, " Vote ry friend, your vote is a good one ; I wish I had twenty such," or
words to that effect P-1 do not believe that I was there at the tine, but I heard
several persons mention it shortly afterwards.

Do you not think that such expressions fror Mr. Stuart, as Attorneçy.Gencral,
induced other persons, not better qualified than St. Gerinain, to vote at that ele-
tion ?-Without doubt, if such expressions were used by shim.

Did not Mr. Stuart oftcn thrcaten to prosecute those who voted against him
for perjury ?-Those whom lie conceived unqualified, he threatened to prosecute
them fbr perjury.

Did he not say on those occasions, that lie would prosecute them, would put
them in prison, and have theim placed in the pillory or in th~õk,ô~t~dfhichî
Mr. Nelson would not deliver them ?-!le frcquently observed to persons whom

lie



caution par les ordres de M. Stuart ?-Oui, il y en a eu plusieurs, après avoir
donné leur vote, et entr'autres Louis Allard et Joseph Buckner.

Comment cela s'est-il passé relativement à Allard ?-Aussitôt qu'il eut vôté M.
Stuart ordonna au Dr. Anthony Von Iffland d'aller dresser un warrant et de faire
prendre Allard, ce qui fut exécuté sur le champ; j'avais été moi-mème requis de
lui servir de caution, mais d'autres se trouvèrent près avant moi, et je fus ainsi
privé de lui rendre ce service.

M. Stuart n'a-t-il pas aussi menacé M. Welles, l'agent de la seigneurie de Sorel,
qui appartient i la Couronne, de porter plainte contre lui au Gouverneur, s'il ne
prenait pas plus de peine pour soutenir son élection ?-Oui, cela s'est dit en ma
présence.

M. Stuart a-t-il poursuivi quelqu'un de ceux qui ont voté pour lui, quoiqu'il fut
notoire que plusieurs d'entr'eux avaient pris le serment et avaient voté sans être
qualifiés ?-Je n'ai pas connaissance qu'il en ait poursuivi.

.Iardi, 20 Février 1831.

JAcCEs LABRIE, Ecuyer, au Fauteuil.

4nthony Von )1Jland, Ecuyer, résidant au Bourg de Sorel

Depuis quand avez-vous cessé d'agir comme Juge de Paix ?- Depuis la Nou-
velle Commission de la Paix vers le premier de Décembre, où j'ai été compris,
mais je n'ai point pris les sermens nécessaires.

Etiez-vous à Sorel lors de l'élection contestée etre le Procureur-Général et
Wolfred Nelson, en 1827 ?-Oui.

Etiez-vous alors Juge de Paix en exercice ?-Oui.
Avez-vous eu occasion de vous tenir souvent au poll pendant l'élection ?--Bien

souvent.
Lélectiou a-t-elle été chaudement contestée ?-Très-chaudenent contestée.
Vous est.il apparu durant la tenue du poll qu'il s'y étaient présentés des élec-

teurs qui aient montré quelque répugnance à prendre le serment de qualification
sous le rapport de la propriété ?-Plusieurs.

Le nommé Gazaille <lit St. Germain n'a-t-il pas été de ce nombre ?-Oui, il était
de ce nombre.

N'est-ce pas M. le Procureur-général qui a encouragé cet homme a prêter le
serment, en lui disant, < votez mon ami, votre voix est bonne ; je voudrais en
avoii' vingt de semblables," ou autres expressions de la même teneur?-Je ne
crois pas que je fusse présent au moment même ; maisje l'ai entendu dire à plu-
sieurs personnes l'instant après.

Ne pensez-vous pas que ces expressions de M. Stuart comme Procureur-général,
aient pu engager d'autres personnes non mieux qualifiées que St. Germain, à
voter dans cette élection ?--Sans doute, s'il s'est servi de ces expressions.

M. Stuart n'a-t-il pas souvent menacé ceux qui votaient contre lui, de les pour-
suivre pour parjure ?-Ceux qu'il croyait n'être pas qualifiés; il les menaçait de
les poursuivre pour parjure.

Ne leur disait-il pas en ces occasions qu'il les poursuivrait, les ferait mettre en
urison et conduire au pilori ou au carcan, d'où M. Nelson ne les retirerait pas?-
fl fit remarquer fréquemment aux personnes qu'il croyait n'être pas qualifiées,

qu'elles



hie conceived unqualified, that they should be prosecuted for perjury, and explain.
ed the law touching the penalties, such as imprisonment and pillory.

Did he act in that way, without distinction, both towards those who voted for
hirn, as those who voted for Mr. Nelson P-No.

Vhose votes then did he so threaten ?-Those of the ôpposing candidate.
Were there any amo«st those. who voted against Mr. Stuart at that election,

who were arrested an Jeld to bail, immediately after having voted ?-There
were several, about five or six, who were arrested during the election, imme-
diately after having>o)€d.

Did you yourselfgr_'nt any warrants ofarrest ?-Of course, upon the deposition
of two persans, limmediately issued the warrants.

Were hot voters taken before you under arrest, before you had issued, the "war-
rants ?-I cannot recollect, except issuing the warrants upon the' depositions.

Did you hold them t ó~bail, to appear at-th'.Cour't. of King's Bench ?-Of
course. - - •

Were al of then prosecutcd ?-They were prosecuted.
Were you present at the poll when one Alard voted ?-I was.
When lie voted, did not the Attorney Gencrai order you to apprehend him in

yVour quality as magistrate ?-He did not command me to do so, but said that I
being a nagistrate, lie would send two persons to depose before me. Then I
went along with these two persons to my bouse, and received the depositions.

Did the Attorney Gendral, to votr knowledge, threaten any public function-
aries, to complain to the Governor, if Lhey did not actively promote his election ?
-Yes, he did one public functi.nuary, Mr. J, K. Welles, agent of bis Majesty's
scigniory, and barrack-mnaster.

Did it not appear that M1r. Stuart, by sucli a threat, gave it to be understood,
that the then administration, desired and were favorable to his election ?-That
is very natural, of course when a public functionary is threatened.

Did you not sometimes hear Mr. Stuart, pending the duration ofthe poll, say
to one named Triganne, a bailiff, andito two others, named Wilmot and George,
to go directly and value the property bfsuch as had just voted ûgainst him ; and
do you know, that on their report, that.the property vas mot worth £3, he caused
them to be arrested ?-1 cannot recollect the nanes, but I remember perfectly
well that he sent two persons to estimate the property of Allard. It is on the re-
port of these persons that lie was arrested.

Do you know that depositiôns werc made against-some of the electors, who
were supposed to be unqualified, who liad voted for the Attorney General P-
believe there were two or three, but I was not the magistrate who received
them.

Were those depositions put into the hands of the Attorney General ?-I do not
know. I believe the magistrate was Mr. Douaire Bondy ; lie muust, no doubt have
sent the deposition to the Clerk of the Crown. I remember now, and I desire ta
state, that in one of these cases, Mr. Douaire Bondy, having ordered in the war.

. rant, against one Edward Manning, who had voted for the Attorney Generai,
that he should be brought before him or any other Magistrate; the said Manning
was brought before me ; I received the recognizance, and sent it to the proper
officer. :'

Were Mr. Stuart's voters who were thus apprehended, proceeded against, and
did they take their trials ?-No.

In point of fact, is it within your knowledge that since the present Attorney
General is' in office, he is in the habit of prosecnting alone for criminal offences,
and that the Solicitor General does not even interfere with the prosecutions?
-The Solicitor General has not, to my knowledge, interfered with the prosecu-
tion since the Attorney Gencral is in office.

Did



qu'elles seraient poursuivies pour parjure, et il expliquait quelle était la loi rela-
tivement au parjure comme 'emprisonnement et le pilori.

En a-t-il agi indistinctement envers ceux qui votaient pour lui ou pour M.
Nelson ?-Non.

Quels voteurs menaçait-il donc ainsi ?--Ceux du Candidat opposé.
Y a-t-il eu quelqu'un de ceux qui ont voté contre M. Stuart dans cette élection

d'arrêté et de mis sous caution immédiatement après avoir voté ?-Plusieurs;
environ cinq ou. six ont été arrêtés pendant l'lection, immédiatement après
avoir voté.

Avez-vous' ous. même doné des 'varrants d'arrestation ?-Crtainement, sur
la déposition de deux personnes, j'éuninai aussitôt les warrants.

N'a-t-on pas conduit devant vous des voteurs en état d'arrestation, avant que
vous eussiez émané les warrants ?-Tout ce que je me rappelle c'est d'avoir émané
des warrants.

Les avez-vous admis à caution pour comparaître à la Cour du Banc du Roi?
Certainement.

Tous ont-ils été poursuivis ?-Ils ont été poursuivis.
Etiez-vous présent au po lorsque le nommé Allard alla voter ?-J'y étais.
Lorsqu'il eut vôté, le Procureur.Général ne vous ordonna-t-il -paï de le faire

appréhender en votre qualité de magistrat ? Il ne me commanda pas de le faire
mais il dit que, comme j'étais magistrat, il enverrait deux personnes faire leurs
dépositions devant moi; je me rendis alors chez-moi avec deux personnes, et je
reçus leurs dépositions.

M. le Procureur-Général a-t-il à votre connaissance menacé quelque fonction-
naires publics de se plaindre d'eux au Gouverneur, sils ne favorisaient pas active-
ment son élection ?-Il a ainsi menacé ti fonctionnaire public, M. J. K. Wells,
ag«ent de la seigneurie de Sa Majesté, et Intendant des Casernes.

il. parait par cette menace que M. Stuart donnait à entendre qjue l'administra-
tion d'alors désirait et favorisait son élection ?-C'est une supposition toute natu-
relle, lorsque c'est un fonctionnaire public quiest menacé.

Avez-vous quelques fois entendu M. Stuart pendant la tenue du poil, dire à un
nommé Triganne, Huissier, et aux nommés Wilmot et George, d'aller de suite
estimer la propriété de çeux qui venaient de voter contre lui, et avez-vous con-
naissance que sur leur rapport que la propriété ne valaitas'£5, il les fit arrêter
-Je ne puis me rappeler leurs noms; mais je me souviens parfaitempent bien, qu'il
envoya deux personnes estimer la propriété d'Allard ; ce fut sur le rapport de
ces personnes qu'il fut arrèté.

Est-il à votre connaissance qu'il y ait eu des dépositions de faites contre que!-
ques-uns des électeurs supposés non qualifiés qui avaient voté pour M. le Procu-
reur-général ?-Je crois qu'il y en eu deuk ou trois ; niais je ne fus pas le magis-
trat qui les reçut.

Ces dépositions ont-elles été remises au Procureur:Général ?-Je ne sais pas;
je crois que le magistrat qui les reçut fut M. Douaire Bondy 'il n'aura pasulanqué
sans doute de les transmettre au Greffier de la Couronne : Je me rappelle mainte-
nant et je désire dire que dans un de ces cas, M. Douai-e Bondy, ayant ordonné,
dans un warrant contre un nommé Edward Manning qui.avait voté pour le Pro.
cureur-général, qu'il fut amené devant lui ou devant quelqu'autre magistrat, le
dit Manning fut amené devant moi. Je reçus le cautionnement etje l'envoyai ;à
l'officier à qui il appartient.

Les voteurs de M. Stuart qui ont été ainsi arrêtés, ont-ils été poursuivis et leur
a-t-on fait leür procès ?- Non.

En poilît de fait, est-il à votre connaissance que depuis que le présent Procu-
reur-général est en ofice, il a pour habitude ce poursuivre seul pour les offences
criminelles, et que le Solliciteur-général rie se mêle pas même des pourstites?
Le Solliciteur-général à ma connaissance, ne s'est pas mêlé des poursuites crimi-
nelles, depuis que leprésent Piocureur-gênéral est en office.

Dans



Did not, in the nonth of Marci last, at the close of the Criminal Term, or at
any other time, the'Attorney General send a man iamed Schiller, a bailiff of the
Court of King's Bench, or some other person, to Sorel, with ready written aflida-
vits to be sworn to by such persons as were disposed to do so ?-I can not recollect
the time, but it is within my knowledge that a man of the name of Schiller came
down to Sorel, for the purposes mentioned in the question.

.Did you see those affidavits?-I have.
What did they contain ? -I believe that there are some at Sorel in my posses-

sion. I can produce one or two, or probably three. They are very different fron
each other; but they all tended, more or less, to exculpate the Attorney General
frorn thevarious accusations which had been laid against him.

What were the chief accusations from which he endeavoured to exculpate him-
self?-That of having used language at the hustings that he, as Attorney General,
was the only person who had a right.to prosecute cases of perjury.- I can not re.
collect as to the.rest. I believe lie pi-etended.also, that lie had not used violence
in the Election. There was another deposition addressed to. St. Germain, the con-
tents of which I do not recollect.

Did these depositions state that he had not threatened the Electors who had
voted rgainst him at the Election ?-They merely stated that lie had not employ-
ed any words which went to say that he ,was, as Attorney General, the only person
who could prosecute them.

Did you swear to the depositions that were addrcsed to you ?-Yes with al-
terations.

Whose are the depositions. of that nature which you said you had in your pos-
session ?-They are those of persons vlo refused .to swear upon them. That of
St. Germain was never sent to him, he residing at a great distance.

Will you produce them to the Committee ?-If I can lay my hands npon them,
I shall transmit them to the Committee.

Do you know if those depositions were in the hand'writing of- the Attorney
Generai ?-I believe some of them were; that of Mr. Crebassa was cer-
tainly.

What was the general impression at Sorel, as to the effect which the threats
ofthe Attorney Gencral, and the influence of the administration had upon the
freedom of-the Election ?-They had not that effect, because the voters seemed
very deternined; but it tended very much to restrict the freedom of the
election.

Did not the then Governor in Chief, Lord Dalhousie, residé at William Henry
during the said election ?-Yes, he lived in the Borough.

Do you know if the Governor. interfered in the said election ?-I have a knoV-
ledge that some-letters.passed between the Curé and the Governor, or his'atten-'
dants, respecting the election.

Did Mr. Schiller tell. you that it was the Attorney General who iad givenhi m
the depositions of which you have spoken ?-I think ho did.

Did not Mr. Schiller say any thing also to you on the same subject, as coring
from the Attorney General ?-I do not recollect.

Did not the Attorney General,. during the Election, thrcaten the Returning
Officer, Mr. Crebassa, saying that if he did not take care of himself, he would
cause him to lose certain advantages of which ho had the enjoyment under Go-
vernment?-I do not recollect that he ever said that; but lie often said to the Re.
turning Officer that lie was a stupid fellow, and did not know his duty, or some
such other abusive words.



Dans le mois de Mars dernier, à l'issue du terme criminel, ou en aucun autre
tems M. le-Procureur-Général n'a t-il pas envoyé le nommé Schiller, huissier de la
Cour du Banc duIRoi, ou une autre personne, à Sorel, avec des dépositions écrites,
pour étre affirmé 'sous serment par telles personnes qui seraient disposées -à le
faire ?-Je ne me rappele pas le téms, mais il est à ma connaissance qu'un nommé
Scliiller, est venu à Sorel, pour l'objet mentionné dans cette -question.

Avez-vous vu ces dépositions ?-Jé les ai vues.
Que contenaient.elles ?-Je crois que j'en ai quelques-unes chez-moi à Sorel

j'en puis produire une ou deux et probablement trois ; elles étaient bien diffé..
-rentes des unes avec 'des autres mais elles tendaient toutes plus ou moins à discul.
per le Procureur Général. des accusations diverses qui avaient été portées con-
tre lui.

-Quelles étaient les principales accusations dont il cherchait à se disculper ?-
Celle d'avoir dit au Hustings, que lui comme Procureur-Géneral était la seule per-
sonne qui avait droit de poursuivre les cas de parjure. Je ne me rappele pas le-
restant ; je crois qu'il prétendait aussi qu'il n'avait pas usé de violence. pendant
l'Election. Il y avait une autre déposition adressée à St. Germain, dontje ne me
rappelle pas le contenu. £

Ces depositions exposaient-t-elles qu'il n'avait pas fait des menaces aux Elec.
teurs qui avaient voté'contre lui aux élections ?-Elles exposaient simplement qu il
n'avait fait usage d'aucune parole tendant à dire qu'il était comme Procureur Gé-
néral, la seule personne qui pût les poursuivre.

Avez vous affirmé sous serment la déposition qui vous était adressée ?-Oui, en
y faisant des altérations.

De qui sont les dépositions de cette nature que vous dites avoir en votre posses-
sion ?-Elles sont des personnes qui ont refusé d'y jurer ; celles -de St. Germain,
ne-lui -a jamais été envoyée a cause qu'il résidait à une grande distance.

Les produirez-vous au Comité ?-Si je puis mettre la main dessus, je les trans-
mettrai au Comité.

Savez-vous si ces dépositions étaient écrites.de la main du Procureur-Général ?
-Je crois que quelqu'unes l'étaient. Celle de M. Crébassa l'était assurément.

Quelle était l'impression générale à Sorel, quant aux effets que 'les.menaces du
Procureur-Général, et l'influence de l'administration ont eues sur la liberté de
l'Election ?-Elles n'ont pas eu cet effet, parceque les voteurs paraissaient bien
déterminés ; mais cela tendait beaucoup à gener la liberté de l'élection.

Le Gouverneur en Chef Lord Dalhousie, ne restait-il pas alors à William
Henry ?-Oui, il demeurait dans le Bourg.

Savez-vous si le Gouverneur intervint dans la dite élection ?-.J'ai eu connais.
!ance de quelques lettres que se sont écrit le Curé et le Gouverneur, ou les per.
sonnes qui étaient auprès de lui au sujet de l'élection.

M. Schiller vous a-t-il dit que c'était le' 'Procureur-Général qui lui avait remis
les dépositions dont vous avez parlé ?-Je crois qu'il me l'a dit.

M. Schiller ne vous a-t-il pas dit'quelqu'autre chose sur le même sujet comme
venant de la part du Procureur-Général ?-Je ne me rappelle pas.

Le Procureur-Général n'a-t-il pas pendant la durée de l'élection menacé l'Offi-
cier-rapporteur M. Crébassa, et dit que s'il ne' prenait pas garde à lui il lui. ferait
perdre quelques avantages dont il jouissait 'sous le Gduvernement ?-Je ne me
rappelle pas qu'il ait jamais dit cela-; mais il a souvent dit à l'Officier-rapporteur
qu'il était un imbécile, et qu'il ne connaissait pas son devoir, ou quelques autres
paroles offensantes de cette nature.

Croyez.
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Do you think that those words had a tendency to intimidate the Returning
Oticer?-It might have-had that tende>ncy.

Wednesday, 23d February, 1831.

JACQUES LABRIE, Esquire, in the Chair.

Jacques Viger, of Montreal, Esquire.

Were you one of the members of the Grand Jury of Montreal, in the month of
March 1880?-Yes, I was one of then.

Could yoi produce to the Committee a list of the members who composed that
.Jury ?-Yes, 1 produce a ist of the Jurors who wert sworn in ; Messrs. T. A.
Turner, Chairman, Francois Languedoc, Jacques Viger, Pierre Letourneux, Ré-
bert Armour, Alexis Laframubcise, Charles Courteau, Lawrence G. Brown, Joseph
deja 3roqueric, Norman Bcthuine, Joseph T. Barrett, Norbert Vigneau, Gode-
froi Beaudet, E. B..Frnchere, Hercule .Olivier, Thomas Busby, J. B. Constan-
tin, Horatio Gates and-Thonas Rarron.

Werc any bills laid before you which you considered such as should not have
bicen brouight before the Grand Jury of thc Crimainal Vourt of King's Bench, and
did you make any presentments o that subject?-Yes, on the last day of the
Terni, under that persuasion, we made a prcsentrnent, wlhereby.we represented,
that, in the course of that Term, a nuinberof' bills of indictnent for miior offenes
hid been laid before us, which in our opinion, ought tp have been carried before
the Quarter Sessions in the months of Octobei and January preceding. .The
dury likewise complained -that severail separate bills of indictmnent were laid be-
fore us, against the sanie persons, whici might and ought to have been included
in one sancand sole bill of indictment:

Can you bring forward any proof in confirmation of what you statc?-I wiMl
state such bills as gave rise to those representations,

1st. On the first of' March, against Louis Martel, a domestic servant, for having
obtained from a Boot and Shoe maker, in the name of his master, a pair of Boots
of the value cf3os. sterling. The arrest took plaec on the 17th of December

sd9, and the Jury were of opinion that this man ought to have been tried at the
Quarter Sessions in the month of January 1830.

23nd. A bill against Jf. B. Blondin, for stealing a Bank-bill of »the value cf 4s.

fd. sterling. le had been taken tip ou the 17th December, and conse-
quently he otight to have been tried at the Quarter Sessions ii the muomh of
Janiuary.

;trd. Two bills against Michel Blais dit Perry, and Jean Maric Turgeon dit Des-
jardins, for stealing a Mare belonging to a man naicd Macumber, and a (clding
belonging.to an Indiati. The Jury considered that the Attorney Genceral ought
to have prescnted but one bill of indictrnent, since both the horses had becn stolen
it the sarme day, and froi the sane inclosuire and of the same person who had

then if) possession, as it will be seen lie did with respect to other indictments, et
wvhich mention *will bc made hercafter.

4ti. A bill against John Burbage, for haîing atteniptcd to steat a bag ol
FlIour,



Croyez-vous que.ces paroles eussent la tendance d'intimider l'Officier.rapporteur î
-Elles auraient pu avoir cette tendance.

Jercredi, t18d Fé-rier, i83i1.

JACQUE.s LABRtE, écuyer, au fauteuil..

Jacques Viger, écuyer, de Montréal:-

Etiez-vous un des membres du grand-jury de Montréal dans le mois de mars 1830 ?
-- Oui, j'en étais un.

Pouvez-vous produire à ce comité une liste des membres de ce jury'?--Oui. je pro-
duis celle des jurés qui ont été assermentés ; M.M. T. A. Turner, président, François
Languedoc, Jacques Vîger, Pierre Létourneu%, Robert Armour, Alexis Lafran-
boise, Charles /Courteau, .awrence G. Brown, Joseph de la Broquerie, Norman
Bethune, Joseph T. Barret, Norbert Vigneau, Godefroi Beaudet, J. B, Fran.
chère, Hercule Olivier, Thomas Busby, J. Ete. Constantin, Horatio Gates et
Thomas Barron.

Vous fut-il présenté alors, des bills que vous considérites comme n'ayant pas dû
être portés devant le grand-jury de la cour criminelle du banc du roi ; et fites-
vous un présentment à cet égard ?-Oui, le dernier jour du terme nous fimes
dans cette conviction un presentment, au. moyen duquel noùs représentions que
durant ce terme même, il nous avait été soumis un nombre d'accusations, (bills of
indictlent,) pour offenses ñiineures, qui, suivant nous auraient dû être portées
dans lcs sessions trimestrielles des mois d'octobre et de janvier précédens. Le
jury se plaignait encore de ce qu'on lui avait soumis contre les mêmes personnes
plusieurs actes d'accusation qui auraient pu et du être renfermés dans un seul et
même act d'accusation.

Pouvez-vous prcduire aucune preuve à l'appui de ces allégués ?-Je citerai les
bills-qui-ont donné lieu à ces représentations :

1 0. Le 1er mars, un bill contre Louis Martel, domestique, pour avoir obtenu
sous le nom de son maître, chez un cordonniér, une paire de -bottes de la valeur
de 30s. sterling. - Larrestation avait eu lieu le-17 décembre 1829, et le jury fut
d'avis que cet accusé aurait du être traduit aux sessions trimestriellcs du mois de
janvier 1830.

2 0. Un bill contre J. Bte. Blondin, pour vol d'un billet de banque de la va-
leur d 4s. Gd. sterling. Il avait été arrêté le 17 décembre, et aurait par con-
séquent dû être traduit aux sessions trimestrielles du mois de janvier.

• 3l . Deux bills contre Michel Biais dit Perry, et Jean-Marie Turgeon dit Des-
jardins, pour vol d'une jument appartenant à un nommé Macunber, et d'un
cheval coupé appartenant à un Sauvage. Le jury trouva que le procureur-g(-
n ral n'aurait dû présenter qu'une seule accusation, Vû que ces deux animaux
avaient été volés le même jour, du même parc, et de la même personne qui les
avaient en possession, comme on verra qu'il l'a fait par rapport à d'autres accu-
sations dont il sera ci-après parlé.

4. Un bill contre J. Burbage, pour tentative dc voler une poche de farine,



Flour, beonging to the King, at Sorel. He was arrested on the .28th of December,
1829, and the Jury were of opinion chat he might.have been tried at the..Quarter Ses-

sions in January 1830.
5th. A bill against Pierre Guertin, and Tinothé Guertin, for stealing two

bushels of Rye of the value of âs. sterling. Pierre Guerrin,-who was the only
one taken, had been apprchended on the 1lth of October 1829. Compare this
case with those of Bernard and Codey. The trial might have taken place in
October 1829, or in January 1830, at the Quarter Sessiois in those two
ritonths.

6th. A single bill presented against Noël Bertrand, for stealing tools of the
value of £2 16s. sterling, the property of thrce different persons. The arrest took
place on the 1I h of November 1829.

7th. Two bills against Joseph Champagne dit Godère, for stealing fourteen sheep,
of which eight belonged to Albert Beaucaire, and six to Marie Robert, but these last
were let out to» Beaucaire, and in his -possession. The Jury were of opinion that
only one bill of indictment ought to have been brought in', against Champagne,
as the theft was committed on the sanie day, from the. saine inclosure and from
the same person. e

8th. 3d March :-A bill against J. B. Fournelle and Richard McGinnis, for stealing
two pincers and'a hammer of the value. of Is; 6d. sterling. Arrest on the 18th Sep-
tember 1829. This indictnent might have been preferred before the Quarter Sessions
in October 1829 or in January 1830. '

9th. A bill against John Carrol, for. an attempt. to steal goods, the propérty of
one Dver. The accused was arrested on the 7th December 1829.

1 Ot. A bill against Charles Charpentier, for steal ing a. table cloth of the value of
. 18s., arrest on the Sd December 182- ; Quarter Sessions in January 1830.

lIth. Three-bills of indictinent against François Fournel, for having passed three
counterfeit -French half Crowns. The Jury thought that only one bi of indictment
ought to have been presented against the said Fournel,, because these three half
Crowns had been passed to the sane person, namely, Jean B. Sicard, on the sanie
day, -and.in the short space of nearly half an hout ; chat the sole entire recital of
these thrce acts of the said Fournel was reqnisite to establish the criminality of one,
and that morcover the witnesses to be examined upon the three bills of indictment
were the same. This offence ought beside-, iu the opinion of the Jury, to have been
carried before the Quarter Sessions of the month of January 1 830, the imprisonment
of the arrested dating from the 2d of December J829.

12th. 4th March :-A single bill against David Codey, for stealing sundry articles,
the property of two different persons, value ss.

Indiciments thrown out ly the Jury.

1st. A bill against William Brock, for assault and battery. Arrest -on the Gth of
December, 1829.

2d. A bill against Pierre Millet, and Pierre Lachance, for stealing copper to
the value of 12s. Pierre Millet was alone arrested on the 2d March 1830, (returned

,ignoramus.)
0 Is it besides within your knowledge that trials took place in the same term, which,

considering the nature of the indictment, might, and ought · to, have been held before
the Quýangr Sessions of the Peace ?-I ans-wer, yes. I was in Court, when on the
first day of March term, the trial of Duncan Macnaughten for libel came on. He
pleadëd guilty ; (arrest in the. nonth of September, 1828.) It was for writing an
abusive letter to a Commissioner for Small Causes.

2d. That of.':John Olivier, which took place on the 5th of March, upon-an indict-
ment



la propriété du Roi, à Sorel. Arrestation le 28 décembre 1829. Il aurait pu
suivant le jury être traduit à la session trimestrielle de janvier 1830.

5 0. Un bill contre Pierre Guertin et Thimothée Guertin, pour vol de- deux
minots de seigle de la valeur de 5s. sterling. Pierre Guertin seul appréhendé,
l'avait été le Il octobre 1829. Contrastez ce cas avec ceux de Bertrand et de
Codey. .Le procès aurait pu être fait en octobre 1829, ou en janvier 1880, dans
les.sessions trimestrielles de ces deux mois.

6 0. Un seul bill présenté contre Noël Bertrand, -pour vol d'outils appartenant
à trois personnes dif'érentes, valeur £2 16s. sterling; arrestation du 11 novem-
bre 1829.

7 O. Deux bills contre Joseph Champagne dit Godère, pour vol de quatorze
moutons, dont huit appartenant à Albert Beaucaire, et six à Marie Robert, mais
ils étaient affermés à Beaucaire et en sa possession ; le jury fut d'avis qu'il n'eût
di étre¯portée qu'une seule accusation contre Champagne, vû que le vol avait été
fait le même jour, du même parc et sur la même personne.

8 O. S mars :-Un bill contre J. Bte. Fournelle et Richard Macginr.is, pour vol
de deux pincettes et d'un marteau de la valeur de Is. 6d. sterling ; arrestation
18 septembre 1829.J Cette accusation eut pu.étre portée aux sessions de quartier'
en octobre 1829 ou janvier 1830.

9 0. Un bill contre John Carrol pour tentative de vol d'effets appartenant à un
nommé Dyer ; l'arrestation de l'accusé est du7-décembre 1829.

10 0 . Un bill contre Charles Charpentier pour vol d'une nappe de valeur de
18s.; arrestation du 8 décembre 1829; sessions dle quartier en janvier 1830.

1 j0 . Trois bills d'indictement contre François Fournelle, pour avoir fait pas-
ser trois faux écus franças. Le jury pensa qu'il n'eût dû être présenté qu'un seul
acte d'accusation contre le dit Fournelle, parce qu'il avait passé ces trois écus à la
méme personne, c'est-à-dire, à Jean-Bte. Sicard, le. memejour, et dans le court
espace d'à-peu-près une demi-heure ; que le récit entier de ces trois actes du dit
Fournelle était nécessaire pour établir la. criminalité d'un seul, les trois témoins à
étre entendus sur les trois actes d'accusation étant d'ailleurs les mêmes ; le délit au.
rait du être en outre suivant le jury, porté devant la session trimestrielle du mois
de janvier 1880 ; lincarcération de l'accussé étant clu 2 de décembre 1829.

12 . 4 mars :-Un seul bill contre David Cod»e, pour vol d'effets apparte-
nant à deux différentes personnes, de la valeur de uit schelins.

Accusations rejcttées par le jury:

1 ©. Un bill contre Wm. Brock, pour assaut et batterie ; arrestation le 6 dé-
cembre 1829.

2 0. Un bill contre Pierre Millet et Pierre Lachance, pour vol de cuivre au
montant de 12s. ; Pierre Millet seul appréhendé le 2 mars 1830 ; (rapport igno-
ramus.).

'Serait-il à votre connaissance que dans le même terme, il fut fait des procès qui
vû la nature des accusations, auraient pu et dû être faits devant les sessions trimes-
trielles de la paix ?-Je réponds que oui ; j'étais en cour lorsque le lerjonic du
terme de mars le procès de Durican Macnaughten pour libelle fut fait ; il plaida
coupable, (arrestation du mois de septembre 1828;) c'était pour lettre injurieuse
écrite à un commissaire des petites causes.

2 0. Celui de John Oliver, fait le 5 mars, sur accusation d'avoir vendu de la
viande



ment of having sold unwIolesome meat. The bil fo Grandin September term 1829. Hiew und by the G dJurYiWas
3rd. That of William Covey, for intending to pass countereit money in his pos-session. True bill of the monti of Septem ber, 1829 Confeione in h1880.on the
Could you produce a statement of the proceedings of the Crimimonthi of March 1830, when you were one ot the GirandJuiry nal Court in the

It is niade up from notes taken by we no the Grand J b Yes.-here it is.
rect, (See Appendix P. yt.) believe.it to be cor.

Do you know whethlet before the montlh of March hast, representations werenmade by the Grand Juries of the Criminal Courts of Moàtrealprsains eretice of prosecuting persons accused of inor offences, before te courts of sppe-rior jurisdiction, instead of before the Qarter Sessions of the' Peace?-Y s,lknow that such representations iere made by the Grand Juries f the Court ofKing's Bench of February and Marci 1825, of the Courtof King's Bench of Au.gust and September, 1826;of the Court of Oyer and Terminer, of Au-gsty1829; and there was one also fron the Grand Jury of the Quarter sApril, 1830. r Šessions or

TlhursdIy 244h February, 3.
JACQUES LAURIE, Esquire, in the Chair.

Fr. X. .Perrault, Esquire.
Are you one of the Clirks of te teccecfoi the District of Quebec ?-Yes,since 18~3 anl have been iii tho office silice 1798.Can you state What kind of offences are broughit before and tried at the Quar-ter Sessions of the Pece ?-itie practice in that respect bas varied .fr.on the pe-

4 iociwhen Mr., J<'etcher presided at the ýSessions.- Ail offIcICS %vlîichi were notcapital, (perjury always excepted,) were indicted and tried thee;w ict some tinoeter, and even m Mr. Fletcher's time, the Maistrates refued to si tuponsuch serions cases, the practice was changcd, aavno other indictents cae be-fore the Sessions, thaî against persolis accuse osimpld assault and battetn ry; oassailts with intent to murder; ofassauits upon blie ofaicers an the execotionof their duty ; of simple thefts to the amount of tiveshillings- of simple grandlarceny under five pounds ; public nuisanes of ail kinds; ai mis.eneoi s sndbasobtain ng money ounder false pretences, utering countertb; t. mon y an d others.
cat iyo state ont of what funds, ail these d fferent kinds of offences are prose-cutes ?-Tccetsto1 11 l thtis s bsa)yct, lias not av y been the same. -Forncrly, thatis t sa"', about t e cà 18i() and 117, wt totk thê money required fbr the ro.sechitions thant ust be carricef on Po the expepse of the public, 'out of the fundsS uich were than caled police fonds, provided by the road-chest, out of which theStatute ofdtra 2 George L cap. 8, allowed the .urn of one hundred po:inds cur.rency to bo drawn r that parpose; sch ateast is the impression that reiains onuy ini or the practice at that the. At that period, the Executive Councilupon the repreqentàtiotis inade to thfm om the Magistrates, and by the Clerks oftle Peace, torked oo t ksriff nbwliel g r fees divhich obliged us froin that
tie oWard to keep bokl er to bc enabhed to akot-Iecous

which were to be laid before the xecutive eCourci to be taeoted. This being dône we received a&ord eon Ce Rceiver-Geneîal, who pays us

out



viande mal-saine; le bill trouvé par le grand-juré était du terme de septembre
1829; il fut acquitté.

S O. Celui de William Covey- pour inte.ntion de passer de faux. argent en sa
possession; vrai bill du mois de septembre .1829; confession: du 10 mars
1880. .

Pourriez-vous produire un tableau de la Cour Criminelle du mois de mars
1830, où vous étiez un des Grands-jurés ?-Oui, le voici ; il est fait sur des notes
prises par moi dans le tens, et je le crois exact.. (Pour le dit tableau voir l'Ap-
pendice P. P.)

Savez-vous s'il y a eu avant le mois de mars dernier des représent;ations faites
par le Grand-juré des cours criminelles de Montréal contre l'usage de traduire des
personnes accusées d'offenses mineures devant les cours dejurisdiction supérieure,
au lieu de les porter devant les sessions trimestrielles de la paix ?-Oui, jesais
qu'il y a eu de telles représentations par les Grands-jurés de la Cour du Banc du
Roide février et mars 1825, de celle du Banc du Roi d'août et septembre 1826,
et de la Cour d'Oyer et Terminer d'août 1829, et il y.en a aussi eu de la part du
Grand-juré de la Session Trimestrielle d'avril 1830.

Jcudi, 24 Février. 1831.

Jacotiss LADRIE, Ecuyer, au fauteuil.

F. X. Perrault, Ecuyer:-

Etes-vous un des Greffiers de la Paix du District de Québec ?-Oui, depuis
1815, et je suis dans ce Burèau depuis 1798.

Pourriéz-vous dire quelles espèces d'offenses sont portées et jugées devant-les
sessions trimestrielles de la paix ?-L'usagc à cet égard a varié du tems que M.
Fletcher. présidait les sessions ; on y indictait et.jugeait toutes les offenses qui
n'emportaient pas la peine de mort, à l'exception toute fois du parjure ; mais
quelques-tems après et même du teins de M. Fletcher les magistrats ayant refusé
<le siéger sur des cas aussi graves, la"pratique fut changée ét il ne fut plus indicté
devant les sessions que les personnes accusées d'assauts et batteries simples,
d'assauts avec intention de meurtre, d'assauts sur officiers publics dans l'exécution
de leurs devoirs, pour les vols simples jusqu'au montant de vingt schelins, et le
simple grand larcin au-dessous de cinq livres sterling, les nuisances publiques de
toute espèce, tous les délits (misdemeanors,) comme d'obtenir des effets sous de
faux prétextes, faire passer de la fausse monnaie et autres.

Pouvez-vous dire avec quels fonds toutes ces sortes d'offènses sont poursuivies ?
-Uusage à cct égard n'a pas toujours été le même ci-devant, c'est-à-direjusque
vers les années 1816 ou 17, nous prenions les deniers nécessaires pour les pour-
suites, qui doivent se faire aux dépens du public à même les fonds que l'on appe-
lait alors Policefunds, fournis par la caisse des chenins, d'où le Statut de la 42e.
G;eo. III. chap. 8, permettait que l'on tirât une somme de cent livres courant pour
cet objet, telle est au moins l'impression qui m'est restée de la pratique d'alors.
A cet époque le Conseil Exécutif sur les représentations à lui laites par les Magis.
trats et par les Greffiers de la Paix, fit un tarif qui-fixait nos honoraires, ce qui
nous obligea dès lors à tenir des livres, pour. être en état de faire des comptes
qui devaient être portés devant le Conseil pour y être examinés et réglés. Cela
fait on nous donna un ordre sur le Receveur-Général qui nous paye sur les fonds

appropriés



out of the funds appropriated by the Legislaturé towards that object. This prac-
tice still continues.

Is it not within yout knowledge, that the Legislature has voted certain.sunis of
money to defray the conitingenit expenses of the Office of the Peace, and also the
unavoidable expenses incurred in the execution of your duties as Cleris?-Yes;
and the first act of that nature which I am acquainted with, is that of 3d Geo.
IV..cap. 88.

HIow much was appropriated towards that purpose by that Act ?-It appropri-
ated for that purpose, two hundred pounds sterling for Quebec, and as much for
Montreal, and directed that those sumas should be applied to defray the ex-
penses incurred by the apprehension and imprisonment of criminals, by order of
the Chairman of the Quarter Sessions in those Cities, including the- expenses
of the Police-office, and the services of the Clerks of the Peace out of Ses.
sion.

Please look over the stateinent (P. P.) of the proceedings of the Criminal
.Court of King's Bench for the District of Montrea, in March 1880, and tell us
ivhich of the indictments included in that statement would have been brought be-
fore the Quarter Sessions at Quebec ?-Numbers, 1, 2, 10, 11, 14, ]8, 19, 20, 24,
26, 27, 28, 29, 31, 32, 35, 39, 47. 48, 49, 50.

Do you still prosecute at your Quarter Sessions at Quebec, cases of libel, of the
sale of putrid and unwholesome meat, of intent to utter counterfeit money, and of
perjury ?-The three first mentioned cases may be brought before and tried there.
Cases of perjury may yet by the comnion law, and especially under the 8th of
Elizabeth, be tried there ; but the Court is not in the practice of trying them,
but they only submit the indictments to the Grand Jury, in order to be afterwards
reuoved to the Criminal Court of King's Bench, in: case the Grand Jury return
true bills*..

You have said that the E ecutive Council, had given you a tariff, by which you
were obliged to make out your accounts, in order to get paid ; can you produce
that tarifr?-HIere it is. I fyle a copy of it.

[Tariffby the Executive Counciljor the Clerks of the Peace ;]

Deposition, - -
Warrant and Recogiizance, 3s.
Examination of Prisoner, - 2%. 6d.
Dmwing an Indictment, - Os. 8d.
Proceedings before Petty Jury, 13s. 4d.
Original Subpæna, - s.
Copy,: - - Is.
Bench Warrant, -5s.
'Precept to the Sheriff, i ~is. 8d.

Does the prosecution of an accuised person in yur Sessions, cost much less to
the Province in consequence of this tariff, thal ina the Criminal Court of King's
Bench ?--I.reply that the expenses incurred by Government for prosecationsupon
aty crimital ibdictment, until conviction, or the discharge cf tihe prisoner, at the
Quarter Sessions, including affidavits, warrants, examinations of the prisoner, bill
of indictment, subpænas, charge to the Petty Jury, judgment, and copy f6r the
geoleÎrs generally amouint to thirty-seven shillings and sipence currency; whilst
to the best of my knowledge, in the Criminal Court of King's Bench, if a bill is
returned:a truc bill by the Grand Jury, ànd submitted to a Petty Jury, and the
trial takes place, the Attorney-General alone does not receive less thari seven
pounds five shillings currency for his fees, exclusive of the cost of the processes

issued



appropriés par la Législature pour cet objet ; cet usage se continue encore, (Voir
l'Appendice O. o.)

N'est-il-pas à votre connaissance que la Législature ait voté certaines sommes
d'argent pour défiayer les dépenses. contingentes du Bureau de la Paix et les
dépenses inévitables dans l'exécution de vos devoirs comme Greffiers?-Oui, .et
le-premier Acte de cette espèce que je connaisse est celui de la Se. Geo. IV.
Chap. 38.

Combien cette loi appropriait&elle pour cet objet?,-Elle appropriait pour cet
objet deux cent livres sterling pour Québec et autant pour Montréal, et enjoi-
gnait de les appliquer aux dépenses encourues dans l'arrestation et emprisonne-
ment des crimimels par ordre du Président des Sessions de Quartier dans ces villes,
y compris les dépenses. du Bureau ,de Police etservices rendus par les Greffiers
de la Paix. hors des Sessions.

Veuillez jetter la vue sur le tableau (P. P.--Voir l'Appendice marqué de ces
Lettres) des procédés»de la Cour Criminelle du Banc du Roi pour le District de
iMontréal en Mars 1-830, et nous dire quelles des accusations portées dans.ce ta-
bleau, auraient été portées devant les Sessions de Quartier â Québec?-Les Nos.
1, 2, 10, 11, 14, 18, 19, 20, 24, 26, 27, 28, 29, 81, 82, 35, 39, 47, 48,.
49, 50.

Traduiriez-vous encore dans vos sessiops trimestrielles à Québec lde as de libelle,
de vente de viande corrompue et malsaine, d'intention de passer de la fausse nôn-
naie et de parjure?,--Les trois premiers cas peuvent y être portés et jugés et ce-
lui de paijure par la loi commune.et particulièrement par la 8e. Elizabeth, pour-
rait encore y être porté, mais la Cour n'est pas dans l'usage de les y juger,
seulement de soumettre l'accusation aux grands jurés pour être ensuite poité à la
Cour Criminelle du Banc du Roi, lorsque ces grands jurés ont trouvé qu'il y a ma-
tière à procès.

Vous.avez dit que le Conseil Exécutif vous a donné un tarif d'après lequel
vous êtes obligés de dresser vos Comptes pour en être payés, pourriez-vous pro-
duive ce tariP-Lè voici j'en file une Copie.

(7arifpar le Conseil Erécutf; pour ks Greffiers de la Paix.3

Déposition, Ss.
Warrant et Recognizance, 5s.
Examination of Prisoner, 2s. 6d.
Drawing an Indictment, 6s. 9d.
Proceedings before Petit Jury, 1.3s. 4d.
Original Subpoena, 3s.
Copy, .s.

Bencli Warrant, .s.
Preçept to tbe Sieriff Ils. 8d.

En vertu de ce tsrif le prçcès d'un accusé dans vps Sessions conte t%- à l Pro-
vipce beaucoup moins chère qu'a la Cour Criminelle du eant4 Roi ?-Je ré-
popds que les dépepses ençoarues par le Gouveroement pour prçcédures .d'aucune
accusation Çrimiqellç, jusqu'à-a convietion ou décharge du prisonnier, y çm-
pris les dépositions, warrants, examens du prisonnier, bill d'indictrnent, ,ubpwnas,
l'instruçtion aux petits jurés, lç jugement et la copie pour le geglier, se .montent
généralement à treatp-sept hchelins -et demi courant, dans les sessions trimestriel-
les; pendantqiî'aureilleyr4d maconnaissançe 5i un bill rappgrté yrei par lgzand
jury est porté devant le petit jury, et qu'il y 4it procès dans la Çou Crimile
du Banc du Roi, le Procureur du Roi seul ne reçoit pas rmoins dç sept louis çinq
sclielins courant pour ses honoraires, exclusivement des mandats émanés durant



issued during the proccedings, nanely, subpænas, benci warrants, and personni
arrests, and of'their service, and other necessary matters.

Did you ever dr-aw any of those sums?-Vc receive our contingencies, by means
cf thc accounts I have ncntioncd before. .Last year the account amounted to

YU77 13s. 4d.
By what precedes, it appears you have never been in the want of means for

carrying on the prosecutions which are cognizable at the Quarter Sessions?-Cer-
taiily net. Our contingenciès arc always paid to us; but I do not think that we
are su:ticiently rem-unerated for our trouble: this, howcver, does not arise fron
the want offuands, but fron the control exercised by the Executive Council over
oir accounts.

You have befbre spoken of prosecutions.that are to be carried on at the expense
of the public ; are there any that arc carried onwat the expense of individuals?
Yes, all the cases of assault and battery alonc.

-.lave you ever received any instructions to serve for your guide as to the selc-
-tion of offences. which ought to be tried at the Quarter Sessions ?-Yc, li 1822,
we received, in the month of.July, instructions from the Governur in Chief; and
alo on the 16th August 1830 fron Sir James Kempt.

What ivas tic purport of these instructions ?-In order to make known the pur-
port of them, I produce a certified copy. (Q. a.)

Did the ast instructiouts you received contradict in any way the otbers ?-On
thie contrary, they confirn the, and enjoin us strictly to conforn to thcm, and to
prove this I prod uce another certified copy. (R. ia.)

Wcrc there, to your knowlcdge, any other instructions, in the interval between
SS2'2 and iSS)?-No.

Do vou fiithfully lbilow the instructions of 1S22 and 1830 ?-As much as it has
becn in our power to do so.

When tic Magistratcs for the District of Quebec,admit persons who arc charged
witih oiences, prosecutable ac tihcQuarter Sessions to .bail, do they bind themn
Iv ticir recognizan ces,-to appear beforc the said Court of Sessions or before the
Cou:t cf King's Bench?-In sucih cases they hold them to bail to appear before
the Court of Quarter Scssions.

Saturday9.6th February, 1831.

Jaccuns Lanar c, Esquire, in the Chair.

iiam Greenz, E squire.-

Are you onc of ti Clerks of the Peace for the District of Quebec? -Ycs,
since the vear 181L.

From what funds are the expenses incurred by the prosecutions before the
Quarter Sessions, defrayed ?-To this question I make the same reply as Mr.
iPerrault ; and moreover, that during a certain period the money was taken from
certain· funds-called " Police funids," but the Magistrates being of opinion that
tlose ftnds ouglit not ta be made use of but for improvements in the city, and

not for prosecutions, we ceased to be paid ont of those funds. We therefore ad.
dressedt ourselves to the Executive, who did not hesitate to cause us to be paid,
according to the tariff, duriig a certain period, af-er which they gave us a tariff on
a reduced scale, in conformity with which we bave continued to be paid, every
six mnonths, till this day.



le procès c'est-à dire des subpenas, benci earrants et contraintespar corps, de
leur signification et autres choses nécessaires.

Avez-vous jamais retiré aucune de ces sommes ?-Nous touchons nos contii-
gens, au moyen de compte ; comme je l'ai dit ci-dessus, l'année dernière ce
compte se monta à £!77 1.3s. -id.

De ce qui précède il paraît que vous n'avez donc jamais manqué de moyens

1:our faire les poursuites, qui sont du ressort des sessions trimestrielles ? --Assu-
rénent non ; nos contingens nous ont toujours été payés, rais je ne crois pas que p
nous soyions suffisamment rémunérés de nos peines ; mais cela ne vient pas du
manque de fonds, mais bien du contrôle exercé par le conseil sur nos comptes.

Vous avez parlé ci-dessus de poursuites qui doivent se faire aux dépens du pub-
lic~; en est-il qui se font aux frais des particuliers ?-Oui, tous les cas d'assauts
et batteries seulement.

Avez-vous jamais reçu aucune instruction pour vous guider dans le choix des
ffenises qui doivent être jugées devant les sessions trimestrielles ?-Oui ; en 1822

dans le mois dejuillet, nous en avons reçu de la part du Gouverneur-en-Chef, et
aussi le 16 août I SSO de la part de Sir James Rempt.

Quelle était la teneur des premières instructions ?-Pour en faire connaître la
teneur j'en produis une copie certifiée. (Voir l'Appiendice Q. Q.)

Les dernières instruétions que vous avez reçus contredisent-elles sur aucun point
les premières ?-Au contraire elles les confirment et nous enjoignent strictement
de nous v conformer, et pour le prouver j'en produis aussi une copie certifiée.
(Voir l'Appendice R. n.)

Y a-t-il eu à votre connaissance dans l'intervalle de 1822 à 1830 d'autres ins-
tructions ?-Non.

Observez-vous fidèlement les instructions de 1822 et de 180 ?-Autant qu'il
a été en notre pouvoir dele faire.

Lorsque les Magistrats du district de Québec admettent à caution les personnes
prévenues d'oflnse qui doivent être poursuivies aux Sessions de Quartier les
obligent-ils dans leur reconnaissance à comparaître devant la Cour des dites Ses-
sions ou devant la Cour du Banc du Roi ?-Dans ce cas ils les obligent toujours
à comparaître devant la Cour des Sessions de Quartier.

Samedi, 26 Frévrier 1831.

JcQr.s LainEn, Ecuyer, au Fauteuil.

William Gren, Ecuyer.

Etcs-vous un des Greifiers de la P'aix du district de Québec ?--Oui, depuis
l'année 18112.

Quels fonds servent a défrayer les frais encourus dans les poursuites devant
les Sessians de Quartier ?--A cette demande, je fais la même réponse que M.
Perrault, et en outre que pendant un certain tems on prenait ces deniers sur
certuins fonds appelés " Police funds " mais les Magistrats étant d'avis que ces
fonds-ne devaicnt être employés que pour lamélioration de la ville et non pour
les poursuites, ont cessù de nous faire payer a mûme ces fonds là. C'est pour-
quoi nous nous adressames A i'Exécutif, qui n'hesita pas a nous faire payer sui-
vant notre tarif pendant un certain tems, après lequel il nous a donné un tarif
reduit, conforrnénent auquel nous avons continué d'être payés par semestre
jusqu'à ce jour.
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Wcre any offences of such a nature as to be proseuted at the Quarter Sessions
that were niot so prosecuted, from the want offunds for the purpose?-No, never.

Who received the noney that was voted by the Legislature for that purpose ?
-hie Chairman of the Quarter Sessions. Until the last year they were autho-
rized thercto by law; but in the last Session, the House determoined by its reso-
lutions, thiat the money should be paid into the hands of the Clerks of each dis-
trict to be made use of for that purpose, but under the direction of the Ma-
gistrates. Nevertholess those monies bave never been paid into our hands.

Look at the Tariff marked [O. o.] and say if it is correct ?-Ycs ; it is car-
reet ; and the expenses incurred for the prosecution of an accused person be-
fore the Court of Quarter Sessions may amount to fron 80s. to. 40s.

Look at the papers narked (Q. Q.) & (R. P.) & say whether those are the in..
structions by which you are guided in the selection of prosecutions ta be brought
before the Court of Quarter, Sessions ?-Yes, & we have always conforned to
them.

When the Magistrates of Quebec admit persuns to bail who are eharged
with offences of a nature to.be prosecuted at the Quarter Sessions, do thev-
bind them -over to appear at the said Sessions, or nt the Court of King's
Bench.?-Always before the Court of said.Sessions.

Do you know whether the instructions of 1822, mnarked (Q. a.) vas address-
cd to all the Magistrates of each District ?-I believe so.

Jacques Figer, Esquire.

- Have vou any knowledge that before the vear 18-22, & under date 29th July
a Circular or Letter of Instruction simuilar to that narked.kQ. q.) which the
commnlittee exhibit to you, was addressed to the Mlagistrates of the different
Districts ?-Yes ; and I can:even furinisi the French edition of it, (sec French
copy,) having reccived it last year from the hands of a publie functionary. who,
when he gave it to me, told me that that circular had at that time been ad-
dressed to the Magistrates, in the French and English languages.

Tuesday, let March, -1831.

[I.DoE E BEDA RD, Efquire, in the Chair.

Piem Louis Delegalle. Bailiff.

Where do you refide ?-.-I have refided at Sorel for fix-ycars.
Were you prefent at the Election that took place at Sorel, in July 1827 ?-Yes ; I vas pre-

fent au the tune as Conniable of the Poil.
Who were the Candidates at that Election ?-Mlr. James Stuar, Attorney General of this Pro-

vince, and Dr. Wolfred Nelson.
Was that Election keenly contefied P-Tes, very keenly.
Did you hear the Attorney General threaten fuch as came to vote for Mr. Nelson ?-Tes;

lie said to mnoft of those who came to vote for Mr. Nelson: c If you take the oath, I will have
you fent to Montreal ; you lhall be put in prifon ; I wili proecute you for perjury ; and I will
make an example of you in the pillory."

Did be utterthofe threats to a mn named Antoine Anfant, ani toone named Hus dt Cour-
noyer ?--f9es ; he used those threats to them, and he told them they could not vote because
they had made donations of their property.

•)id a man naned St. Germain, who had alfo made a donation of his property, offer himfelf
to vote for Mir. Stuart P-That St. Germain came forward to vôte, and le faid lie had made a

donation
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Y a-t-il en quelque offense de nature a être poùrsuivic aux Sessions de Quar-
tier, qui ne l'ait pas été en conséquence du manque, de fonds »pour cet objet ?
-Non, jamais.

Qui a retiré les argens votés par la Législature pour cet objet ?-Ce sont les
Présidens des Sessions de Quartier. Jusqu'à l'année dernière ils y étaient autori-
sés par la loi, mais dans la dernière Session, la Chambre décida dans les résolutions
que ces deniers seraient versés dans les mains des Grefliers de chaque district
pour être -employés à cet objet, mais sous la direction des magistrats. Cependant
ces acquits n'ont pas été versés dans nos mains.

Examinez le tarif marqué (O. o.) et dites s'il est exact?-Oui, il est exact et
les frais encourus pour le procès d'un accusé devant la Cour des Sessions de
Quartier peuvent se monter de Sos. à 40s.

Examinez les papiers marqués (Q. o. R. it.) et dites si ce sont là les instructions
en vertu des quelles vous vous guidez dans le choix des poursuites à être portées
devant la Cour des Sessions de Quartier ?-Oui, et nous nous y sommes toujours
conformés.

Lorsque les Magistrats de Québec admettent à caution, des personnes préve-
nues d'offenses de nature à être poursuivies aux Sessions de Quartier, les obligent-
ils à comparaître devant les dites Sessions ou devant la Cour du Banc du Roi ?
-Toujours devant la Cour des dites Sessions.

Est il à votre connaissance que les instructions de 1822, marquées (Q. c.)
aient été addressés à tous les Magistrats de chaque district ?.. Je le crois.

Jacques Viger, écuyer.

Avez-vous ou connaissance que durant l'année 1822 sous date .de 29 de Juil-
Jet, il fut addressé au Magistrats des différens districts une Circulaire ou let-
tre d'instruction semblable à celle marqué (Q. Q.) que le Comité vous soumets?
-- Oui, et j'en puis même fournir l'édition Française l'ayant reçu l'an dernier
des main mémes d'un officier pùblic, qui me dit, en mne la donnant, que cette
circulaire avait été adressée alors aux Magistrats dans les langues Française
iet Anglaise.

Mardi, 1er Mars 1831.

IsDOn BBnanRn, Ecuyer, au Fautenil.

Pierre Louis Deiepl21e, H-uifier :-

Où réfidez-vous ?-Je réside à Sorel depuis fix ans.
Etiez-vous ,présent à l'êlecton qui eut lieu -à Sorel en juillet à27 --i-Oui, j'y fus prifent tous

le temps en qualité d'Huissier du poll.
Que[s.étaient les candidats à cette élection ?-M J. Stuart le Procureur G6n6ral de cette

Province et M. Wolfred Nelson, médecin. :
Cette élection fut-elle vivement conteftée -- Oui, tr:s vivement.
Avez-vous eutendn le Procureur Général fLire des menaces à ceux qui venaient voter pour

M. Nelfon ?-Oui, il disait-à la plupart de ceux qui venaient voter pour M. Nelfon, fi vous pre-
nez le £.frment, je vous.ferai conduire à Montréal, -vous «ferez mis en prifon, je-vous pourfuivrez
.pour parjure et je ferai un exemple de vous fur le:pilori.

Fit-il ces menaccs là à un nommé Antoine Au flnt, et .à un -nommé -Hus-dit Cournoyer ?-
Oui, il leur fit ces menaces et il dirait qu'il ne pouvaient voter parce qu'ils avaient fait donation
de leurs biens.

Un nonuné Saint-Germain qui avait aussi fait donation de ses biens, fe pri!senta-t-il pour voter
pour M. Stuart ?-Ce nommé saint-Germain se préfenta pour voter, et il dit qu'il avait fait do-

nation
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donation of his property, whereupon Mr. Nelfoi told him that he had no right to vote, and that
lie ought ta .ger advice before he took the oath.

What did the Attorney Cencral thon fay and do ?-He said to him ; «Vote, -vote, ly
friend, your vote is good; fear nothing ; I tell you, in my quality as Attorney General, thar you
have a right to vote. I aim the Attorney Gencral. It is only I who can profecute you ; do not
fear ary thing." Upon this, hc tool St. Germain's hand and placed it upon the Evangelifts.
St. Germain thon toolc the Proprietor's'oatiwith reluctance, and voted for Mr. Stuart.

Did the Attorney Gencrai often repeat, that lie was the Attorney General, and that it was
lie alone who could profecute for perjury ?-Yes ; he said so to almuoft ail the perfons who came
to vote for imt, and who had any doubts as to their right of voting.

Do you know whether.Antoine Aussant, and Hus dit Cournayer, whom you poke of before,
werc 'prosecuted for perjury, as the Attorney Generat had told them they shoild be ?-Yes '
they were; and it was I who toolk Hus dit Cournoyer inta cuflody, as well as Buckner, and the
widow S4s Michel, who had alfo'voted againft Mr. Attorney Gencral.

Did the Attorney General make you sign any aflidavit ?-The day after the close of the Polil,
Dr. Von Iffland came to tl me that the Attorney General wanted nie, and delired me to go to
him at George Wilmot's, the Tavern Kceper, where the Attorney, General lodged. Whon I
got there, the Attorney Gencral offered ne an affidavit ready drawrn, which. went to certify that
a man named Jofeph Claprood, wiho hiad voted againaf the Atiornicy.General was not qualißed ; I

- obferved to the Attorney General that I could not agn that aildavit, as I was'not certain of the
truth of the facts whicl it contained. Whereupo. h. said to me, Wil yon fign it, 'yes or no "
wanting to make sotie remonilrances ta him, he f aid to me, «If you d6 not fign this paper in-
frantly you shall have caufe to remember me." I thon figned it ; but I-have ever fince that time
rememnbered him ;I remember hum ev<:n stit this day, as my family does roo, and I shall remnenl-
ber him a long while.

Who swore you when .you bad signed that afildavit ?-Dr. Von Iofand.
Do you know whether fomne Ekctors who had voted againft the Attorney Generail were ar.

refted immediately after having voted, and by 'vh6fe order ?-The Attorney General told me.
on the fourth day of Election to go to Dr. Von If and, a MagiCIrate, residing at *Sorel, and lei
him, from hlim, to make ouit blank warrants upon charges of perjury ;- and he bid me anike
haste, and tel'him to do sa- too. I then went to the Doctor's, and on my recurn, I told the At-
torney General, I had not found him ; upon which he said-to me that I had not sought Iimin. Af-
tel wards I found him, and 1 told him to make out blank warrants inmxmediately, as the Attorney
General wanted them. The Doctor then went with me to the Attorney General. I do not
know what passed between them. On the saine day the At orey Ceneral said to him at the
Poll in French, e Make halle," and after that time I did not sec the Doctor at the Poll.

Do you know whether there were any Eieaors wlo were immediately arrefted after having
voted for Mr. Neifon ? -Yes ; directly : there were Buckner, Auiant, Claprood, Hus dit Cour-
noyer, and the Widov St. Michel. It was I who alfo arreaed Buckner, Hus dit Cournoyer,
and the Widow St. Miche), duringhe period of the Election, in virtue of a warrant from Mr.
Von Iffland. I heard the Attorney General give orders to Dr. Von Iffland, ta cause those per-
sons to be arrefted. Se veral persons who had voted for Mr. Nelson, were arrefted during the
time of the Poli.

Do you- know wbether any perfon who had voted for the Attorney General was profecuted ?-
No, not to my knowledge ; and as I reside at Sorel, I rnuft certainly bave known of it, had it
been the case.

You have said that you would remenber the Attorney General for a long while; did lie do
any harn ta you ?--Since the Sorel Elcaon i have loit almoit ail my cuftomi as a Bailiff, and I
can only attribute it to the influence of the Attorney General. At Montreal, I went ta take to
him an account of what was due to me, as Bailiff for arrelling Hus dit Cournoyer, the Widow
St. Michel and Buckner. The Attorney General told me he would not pay me, becaufe I had
not supported himht his Eleaion at Sorel, and that I rnight go and get Mr. Nelson to pay me.
This was at the Mansion House, and he repeated to me that I fhould have reason to remember
him ; and then he put me out of doors. I have feverai other claims upon Government ; amongft
others, one forhaving conveyed frôm Sorel, Abraham Paradis, Jos. Charbonneau, Catherine
Gagnon, and Jofeph Bellerose, whom I had arrefted upon warrants that had been sent to me..
I had laid out money. My accourints amounted to thirty pounds ; .and I have loft tbe whole, bc-
caafe the Attorney General would never sign them.



nation de ses biens, fur qdoi-M. Ne'fon lui dit qu'il n'avait pas le droit de voter et qu'il devrait
fe consulter avant que q prendre le serment.

Que dit et que fit aloai le Procureur Général ?-Il lui dit, «É votez, votez non ami votre vote
est bon," ne craignez-rien, je vous dis en ma qualité de Procureur du Roi que vous avez droit
de voter. Je fuis le Procureur du Roi; il n'y a que moi qui puiffe vous pourfuivre, ne craignez
rien; et là deffus, il prit la main de Saint-Germain et la lui mit sur l'Evangile. Saint-Germain
prit alors avec répugnance le serment comme propriétaire, et vota pour M. Stuart. .

M. le Procureur du Roi a-t-il souvent répété qu'il était le Procureur du Roi, et qu'il n'y avait
que lui qui pouvait.poursuivre pour parjure ?-Oui, il l'a dit à prefque toutes les personnes qui
venaient voter pour lui et qui avaient quelques doutes fur leur droit de voter.

Savez-vous fi 'le nommé Antoine Auffant et Hus dit Cournoyer dont vous avez parlé plus haut,
ont été pourf uivi pour parjure comme leur avait dit le Procureur Général ?-Oui, ils l'ont été,
et c'est moi-même qui ai pris Hus dit Cournoyer, ainsi que Buckner et la Veuve Saintliche!,
qui avaient aussi voté contre M. le Procureur Général.

Le Procureur Général vous a-t-il fait signer quelque affidavit ?-Le lendemain après la clô-
ture du Poil, le Docteur Von-Iffland vint me dire que le Procureur du Roi me demandait, et d'al-
ler le trouver chez George Wilrnot, aubergiste, chez lequet le Procureur Général se retirait.
Lorsque je fus arrivé M. le Procureur Général. me présenta un affidavit tout dreffé, qui allait à
c:rtifier qu'un nommé Joseph Claprood qui avait voté contre le Procureur . Général, n'était pas
qualifié; j'observai au Procureur Général que je ne pouvait signer cet affidavit, parce que je n'é-
tait pas.certain de la vérité des faits qu'il contenait. Il me dit Là-deffus, voulez-ious figner, oui,
ou non ; sur quelques repréfentations que je voulujui faire, il me dit, si vous ne lignez pas ce
papier h l'inflant, vous vous resouviendrez de moi. .Alorsje l'ai figné, mais je me fuis toujours refrou-
venu de lui depuis ce temps, je m'en souviens encore aujourd'hui ainsi que ma famille, et je m'en
souviendrai longtemps.

Qui vous a afernenté lorsque vous avez signé cet affidavit ?-Le Docteur Von-Iffland.
Avez-vous eu connaiffance que des électeurs qui avaient -voté contre le Procureur Général

aient été arrêtés immédiatement après avoir vité, et par l'ordre de qui ?-Le Procureur Géné-
ral ina dit, le quatrième jour de l'élection, d'aller trouver le Docteur Von-Iffland, magiftrar,
rêfidant à Sorel, et de lui dire de sa part de préparer des Warrants en bJanc pour accufrition de
parjure, et de me 'dépècher et lui aussi.- Alors je suis allé chez le Docteur, et étant de retour,
j'ai dit au Procureur Gériéral que je ne l'avais pastrouvé, sur quoi il m'a dit que je ne l'avais pas
cherché. Je le trouvai enfuite, et je lui dit de préparer immédiatement des warrants en blanc, car
le Procureur Général en avait befoin: Alors le Docteur eft venu avec moi trouver le Procu-
reur Général ; j'ignore ce qui s'est paffé entre eux. Le même jour le Procureur Général lui a
dit au PolI, en français . " faites diligence," et depuis on n'a plus revu le Docteur au-
Poli.

Avez-vous connaiffance que des électeurs aient été immédiatement arrêtés après avoir voté
cri faveur de M. Nelfon ?-Oui, -tout de fuite, Buckner, Auffant, (laprood, Hus dit Cour-
noyer, la Veuve Saint-Michel ; c'est moi qui ai arrêté Buckner, Hus dit Cournoyer et la Veuve
Saint-Michel, pendant la durée de l'élection, d'après un Warrant de M. Von-Iffland. J'ai en-
tendu le Procureur Général donner ordre au Docteur Von-Iffland de faire arrêter ces perfonnes
là. Plufieurs perfonne5 qui avaient voté pour M. Nelfon, furent arrêtées pendant 'la durée
du Polil.

Avez-vous eu connaifflance qu'aucune personne qui avait voté pour le Procureur Général, ait
été pourfuivie ?-Non, pas à ma connaiffance; et réfidant à Sorel, j'en aurais certainement eu
connaiflrnce si c'eut été le cas.

Vous-avez dit que vous vous souviendriez longtemps du Procureur Général, vous a-t-il caufé-
quelque tort ?-Depuis l'élection de Sorel j'ai perdu prefque toute ma pratique comme huifier,
et je ne puis attribuer cela qu'à l'influence du Procureur Général; à Montréal j'allait lui porter
le compte de ce qui m'était dû' comme huissier, pour avoir arrêté Hus dit Cournoyer, la Veuve
Saint-Michel et Buckner ; le Procureur Général me dit qu'il né me payerait pas parce que je ne
l'avais pas supporté à son élection de Sorel, et d'aller me faire payer par M. Nelfon; Cela se
passa dans la Mansion Ilouse, où il me répéta encore que je me reffouviendrais de lui, et enfuite
il me mit à la porte ; j'avais plusieurs' autres réclamations contre le gouvernement, entr'autres
pour avoir conduit de Sorel Abraham Paradis, Jos. Charbonneau, Catherine Gagnon, Joseph
Bellerofe, que j'avais arrêté pour exécuter des Warrants qui m'avaient été remis. J'ai débourfé
de l'argent ; mes comptes fe montaient à trente louis, et j'ai tout perdu, parce que le Procureur
Général n'a jamais voulu figner mes comptes.'
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(At the requifition of the Committee, the wit'ness delivered in the following Warrant.)

6th Auguft, 1827.

Warrant to apprchend Antoine Paul Hus dit Cournoyer.

Diftrict of
Montreal.

Anthony Von Iffland, Esquire, one of His Majeily's Jufticcs for the Dit·rict aforesaiti.

To

And to al] and singular the Peace Officers in and for the Diiarict, jointly and feverally,
Grecting :-

Wherea3 Antoine Paul Hus dit Cournoyer, of the Borough of Willian Henry, ntands charged
before me on oath with perjury, in liaving on the thirticth day of Juily initant, at the Borougli
of William Henry aforefaid, at the lea ion then and there held for eleving a Memberto-erve
in thi Affembly of this Province, made a falfe oath, and sworn fal(ely before Henry Crebàaa
Esquire, Returning Oflicer fur the said Borouglh, touching and refpeEing his qùalification- on
whiclh he the said -Antoine Paul Hus dit Cournoyer, then and chere claimed the .right of voting
for a Menber ta serve in the said AfrTmbly -for the faid Borough. -'iefe are therefore in His
Majefty's niame to require and command you forthwith ta apprelhcnd the body of the said An-
toine Paul lIlus dit Cournoyer, and him bring before mc, to be dealt with according to law.
fail not, at your Peril.

Given under my hand and seal at the Borough of William letry aforefaid, this sixth
· day of August, in the year of our Lord, 1827, and in the cighth year of His Majesty's

Reign.
(Signed,) A. VON IFFLANb, 1. P. (L. S.)

Mr. Louis Marcou., of Yamaska;

Where do you live ?-At St. Michel d'Yamaska.
Were you prefent at the Election that took place at Sorel in July, 1827 ?-Tes; I was prefent

all- the tine ; I went there every day; I was then a shopkeeper at that place.
Who were the Candidates at that Election ?-Mr. James Stuart, theAttorney General of this

Province, and Dr. Wolfred Nelfon, of St. Denis.
Was that Elcction keenly cortested ?-Yes ; and I believe that it liasted seven days.
Have you any knowledge that the Attornley'General threatened those who came to vote

for M. Nelfon?-.Yes; he made ufe of violent threats towards aliTost all who came to vote
against him. He told thcm that if they voted without having the right ta do so, ha would have
them taken ta Montreal, where lie would have them prosecuted for perjury ; that they should be
put in the pilory, and that Doctor Nelfon would not put himfelf in their place; that he was the
Attorney General, and that he alone had the right of prosecuting. He ujed such threats to me,
myself.,

Did he make ufe of fucli threats.to a man named Hus dit Cournoyer, and to one named Art.
toine Auffant ?-Tes.

Arc you quite certain that the Attorney General faid that, in his quality of Attorney Gaenera,
he was the only one who had the right of prosecuting for perjury - I. ai very certain that
hie said to feveral voters, whofe qualifications were doubtful, 99 fear nothing, I am the Attorney
General, and I amn the only one wha can prosecute you for perjury."

Were you prefent when a man narned St. Germain prefented himfelf ta vote ?-Tes.
Did any one object ta his right ta vote ?--es; Mr. Nclfon told him that as he had made a

donation of his property, he had no right to vote.
Dit St. Germain admit the fact ?-Yes ; lie repeated feveral times, I have given my property

to my fon.
What did the Attorney General then say and do ?-The Attorney General said to hinr, « Vote

. my friend, your vote is a good one, I tell you in my quality of Attorney General that you have a
ryht ta vote. Yon have nothing tofear; it is only I who can prosecute you." Notwithianding

. thi, St. Germain appcarcd as if he was rcluctant to give his vote, and the Attorney Geterail
then



.4-3

(Sur la r6quifitioû du comité le témioin a alors remis le Mandat qui suit.)

6 août 18ý7.

Ordre d'arrêter Antoine Paul HXus dit Cournoyer. -

Diftrict de I

Montréal.

Antoine Von-Iffland, dcuyer, 'un àes Juges de Paix de Sa Majefté pour le Difarict susdit,

Tous et chacun of$ciers de paix dans et pour le diftrict, conjointement et %éparcment, salut

VW que Antoine Hus dit Cournoyer, du Bourg de William Henry, eft accuré sous cerment
devant moi le parjure, ayant le trenti'me jour de juillet courant, au bourg de William Henry
susdif, à l'dle&ion qui c. tenait là et alors, à l'efret d'élire un membre pour servir dans l'afemblée
de cette Province, fait un faux fermiént et juré faufenent devant Henry Crebassa, écuyer, l'of-
ficier rapporteur pour le dit bourg, 'touchant et relativementà la qualification reclamée -par le dit
Antoinfef Jaul IIus dit Cournoyer, du droit de. voter pour l'élection d'un membre pour reprd-
.enter le dit bourg dans la dite afirmblée ; Ces prélentes font donc pour vous requérir ct vous
commander au nom de Sa Majefté, d'arrêter la personne du dit Antoine Faul Ilus dit Cour-
noyer, et Pamener devant moi afin qu'clte soit traitée suivant .la 'loi; et n''y manquez Éas sôs.les
peine de droit,

Vonné rous mon seing etsceau. au Bourg de William Henry susdit, je sixième jour d'août,
dans l'année de Notre Seigneur 1827, et dans la huitième année du règne de Sa

(Signé,) A. VON-IFFLAND, J. P, (L. S.)

M, «ouis Afarcou.z, de Yamaska:-

Où rlidez...vous ?-A St. Michel d'Yamaska.
Etiez-vous présentà l'éection qui eut lieu à Sorel en juillet 1827 ?-Oui,j'y fus préfent tout

le temps, j'y affiffai tous les iours, j'était alors marchand dans l'endroit.
Quels étaient les candidats.i cet élection ?-MdJames Stuart. le Procureur Général de cette

Province, et le Doacur Wolfred Nelfon de St. Denis.
"Cette élection fut-:le vivement contenée .?-Oui, et je crois qu'elle dura sept jours.
Ayez-vous eu connaifince que le Procureur Général ait fait des menacci à ceux qui venaient

voter pour M. Nelson ?-Oui, il faifait des fortes menaces -prefquetous ceux qui venaient-voter .
contre lui, ils leur disait que s'ils votaient sans en avoir le droit, il les ferait conduire à Montréal,
.qu'ils feraient poursuivis pour parjure, qu'ils feraient mis au pilori, et que M.Nelson n'irait pas
se mettre à leur place, qu'il était procureur du roi, et qu'il était le seul qui avait le droit de
poursuivre. Il m'a fait de femblables menaces à moi-nême.

A-t-il fait ces menaces à un nommén :Hus dit Cournoyer et. à un nommén Antoine Aufeant ?-
Oui.

Etes-vous bien certain que le Procureur Général ait dit qu'en fa qualité de Procureur Général
il était le seul qui avait le droit de poursuivre pour pajure ?-Oui, je suis très certain qu'il a dit
à'pluieurs voteurs dont les qualifications étaient douteuses, ne craignez rien, je suis le Procureur
du Roi, il-.n'y a que moi qui pisse vous poursuivre pour parjure.

. tsez-vous présent lorsqu'un nommé St. Germain se préfenta pour voter ?--Oui.*
Quelqu'un objecta-t-il à son droit de voter ?-Oui, M. Nelfon lui. dit qu'ayant fait donation

de ses biens, il n'avait pas le droit de voter.
Saint-Germain convenait-il. du fait?-Oui, il répéta plufieurs fois j'ai donné mes biens à

Dion fils.. a
Que fit et dit alors le Procureur Général ?-Le Procureur G&éêral lui dit, « votez mon ami,

votre vote eft bon, je vous dit en ma qualité de Procureur du Roi, que vous avez le droit de
voter, vous n'avez rien à craindre, il n'y a que moi qui puiffe vous poursuivre." Malgré cela
5:.Germain montrait commc de la répugnance à voter, et le Procureur du Roi lui prit la. main

et
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then took bis hand, and laid it on the EvangeliftR, saying to him, «vote, vote, My friend,
you have nothing to fear.'" St. Germain then took the proprietor's oath, and voted for Mr.
Stuart.

Are you quite certain that the Attorney General said on diat occafion todSt, Germain, « yow,
have nothing to fear ;- I am the Attorney General, and itis only 1 that can profecute you ?"-Yes ;
I am very certain of it, %1 was sitting at a window, a very fhort diftance fçoin the Attorney Ge.
neral, and I .a certain that the Attorney General then made ufe of those expressions when he
fpoke to St. Ge'rmain.

Do you know that Hus dit Cournoyer, and Antoite Auflant were prosecuted for perjury by
the Attorney General, on accouit of the oaths they had talcen at the Election of 'orel ?-Yes,
and ali the Electors of Soiel know it. -They were dragged from term to term for two years,
a, ivelil as feveral othërs who were profecuted on the fame account by the Attorney Ge-
neral.

Was St. Germain profecuted for perjury ?-No ; St. Germain was arrefted as well as feveral
others who had votedsfor the Attorney General, without having any more right to do so, than
Hus dit Cournoyer and Aussant, But the Attorney General did not prosecute any of those
perLons.

Who were the Magiftrates who signed the Warrants for the appiehension of thofe-perfons ?_

lInvas Mr. Bondy, a Magifirate for Berthier ; and I was prefent when he signed the Warrant
for the arreft of Sr Germain, and -of eight other perfons, I myfeif carried the affidavits to
Montreal. I delivered them myfelf to Mr., John Delisle, C!erk of the Crown ; and none of
thote person were profecuted, exçept one naned JeIan Cameraire, of sorel, again(twhonm the
erand Jury did not find any Bill. It was known that thisÇneraire, had not taken theoéath
béfore voting.

Do you, k now that reveral perfons who voted for Mr. Nelfon were forthwith arrefted, almost
as foon as they had voted ?-Yes, imnediately aftet wards. In t828, I gave M r. Nelfon an affi-
davit which contains the particula-s refpecting this*filýject. I give it in now, as part of my
evidence, in answer to the laft quenion that has been made ta me.

(Which affidavit is as follows :-)

ouig Marcoux, of the Borough of Willian Henry, Dealer, after having been duly fworn be-
fore the undersigried Magiftrate, deposth and faith That in July, in the year one thoufind
eight hundred and twenty--feven, lie wa prelent at the Election wich took place at tie fid Bo..
rougih for the purpofe of electing a Member to ferve in the enfuing Provincial Parliament for the
faid Borough ; thàt Jame. Stuart, fqiquire, Attorney General, and Wolfred NelIn, Etil, were
the Candidates; that ie, the faid JaLmieStuart, m»ade ufe of every poilible nieans, both by promis.
es and threats to enfure hi, own Election, bchaving in the groffest mianner towards certain persons
who voted for the faid Woifred Nelffn ; telling then that he, the laid Jaies Stuart, as Attorney
General would lhave them put in the pillory, and that the laid Wolfred Nelfon would not put his
neck in the place of theirs, with nsry other expreffions of the famne tenor ; that lie the said
James Stuart cmployed two individuak, of low character, both as related to tlcir knowledge,
and to the repute in which they were held, to value the properties of feveral Electors who had
iuft voted for the laid Wolfred Nelon, and that as soon as they made a report that such pro-
perties were not worth five pounds flerliig, he, the faid James Stuart, caufed theni to be imme-
diately arrefneu, within siglt of many other perfons prefent at the Lid Llection, and that upon'
a warrant issued by Anthony Von IffHand, Ef 1ikiire, one of -is Majefy's Junices, wio kept con-
flantly at the faid Election, together with the otler Magifrate wYho wcre very zealous in pro.
moting the Election of the faid James Stuart, and whose conduct could not fail to have a great
influence upon the Electors, fo nucli so as to encourage feverai perfons to vote for the faid
James Stuart, and to intimnidatc and prevent many others from exercising their rightçabcitizens ;
that hie, the laid James Stuart, even affhred thote who carne to vote for him, that they had no.
thîing to fear. he, the faid James Stuart, in his quality of Attorney General, having the foLie righut
of profecuting such a, againf wlhom conplaints might be nade ; or certainily assurance:, as
ftrong as thofe ; that lie, the faid James Stuart, went evein fo far, as to take the hand of a man
nramed Jean Baptiae Matte, and placed it 'upon the Holy Evangclifts, although lie, the said
J. B. Marte, appeared very loath ta fAvear to thë validity of his vote ; and that, in truth, he lad
nowis the right to vote, as the faid deponent verily believes ; and the faid J. Bte. Matte, at the
infligation of the faid James Stu t, confented to take the oath in order to bc able to vote for
him ; that morcover the faid J mes Stuart, objected to almost all of thoSe who voted for the

faid
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et la lui mit fur l'évangile en lui difant s votez, votez mon ami, vous n'avez rien à craindre;"
alors St. Germain prêta le ferment comme propriétaires et vota pour M. James Stuart.

Etes-vo'us certain que M. le procureur général ait dit en cette circonflance h St. Germain,
vous n'avez rien à craindre, je fuis le procureur du roi, et il n'y a que noi qui puiffe vous pour-
fuivre ?-Oui, j'en fuis très certain, j'était fur une fenêtre à une très petite di(bancé du procureur
du roi, étje fuis certain que le procureur du roi fit alors ufaie de ces expreffions en parlanta St.
Germain.

Avez-vous eu connaiffunce que Hus dit Cournoyer et Antoine Auffant aient été pourfuivis pour
parjure par le procureur du roi, pour le ferment qu'ils avaient pris à lélection de Sorel ?-Oui,
et tous les éle&eurs de Sorel en ont eu connaiffance, ils ont été trainés de terme en terme pen-
dant deux ans, ainfi que plufieurs autres qui ont été pourfuivis par le procureur du roi pour la
même chofe.

St. Germain a-t-il été pourfuivie pour parjure ?-Non, St Germain fur arrêté ainfi que plu-
fieurs perfonnes qui avaient voté pour le procureur du roi fans avoir plus de droit de le faire que
Hus dit Cournoyer et Aufflant, mais le procureur du roi n'a pourruivi aucune de ces perfonnes.

Quel eft le nagiftrat qu'a figné les warrants pour Pappréhenfion de ces perfonnes r-C'efIM.
Bondy; magiftrat de Berthier, et j'étais préfent lorsqu'il a fign'é les warrant pour l'arrefttion de
Saint-Germtin et de huit autret perfonnes; j'ai pcrté moi-même ces dépofitions à Mpntréal. Je
les ai mo-même remis à M. John Delifle, greffier de- la couronne, et aucunes de ces perfonnes
n'a été poutfuivi, excepté un nommé' Jeân Cameraire, de Sorel, contre lequet le grand jury n'a
pas trouvé bill, on favait que ce Cameraire 'avait pas prêté le ferment avant que de voter.

Savez-vousý fi'plufleurs perfonnes qui votèrent pour M. Nelson furent arrêtées sur le champ
presqu'aufitôt après qu'ils eurent voté ?--Oui, immédiatement après. En: 1828 j'ai donné à M.
Nelson ut affidavit qui contient les détails à ce fujet ; je le donne maintenant comme partie dé
mon témoignage en réponse à la dernière question qui vient de m'être faite,

(Lequel affidavit e&t comme fuit.)

]Loui's MaÊcoux, commherçant du bourg de William Henry, après avoir été duement affer-
menté devant le ragifûrat foulligné, dépose et dit, qu'en juillet de l'année mil huit cent vingt
sept" ilavait éëé présent à l'élection, qui eut lieu au dit bourg à l'effet d'élire un membre pour
représenter le fuedit' bourg au prochain parlement provincial; que James Stuart, écuyer, procu-
reur du roiiet Wolfred Nelson, écuyer, étaient les cândidats; que lui le dit James Stuart avait
fait usage de tous les moyens pofllbles, tant par promefeie que par menaces pour affurer fa propre
éleétioù,-en traitant d'une maniere groflère certaines perfonnes, qui votaient pour le dit Wol-
fred Nelson, en leur difant, que lui, le dit James Stuart, comme procureur du roi, les ferait
mettre au pilori, et que le dit Wolfred Nelfon n'irait point y mettre son cou à leur place, et en
bien d'autres expreflions de pareille fignification ; que lui le dit James Stuart emp'oya deux indi-
vidus très obfcurs, tant par leur peu de connaissance, que par leur renommée, pour eftimer les
propriétés de plufieurs éleàeurs; qui venaient de voter pour le ødit Wolfred Nelfon . et qu'auffitôt
qu'ils avaient fait rapport que leépropriétés ne valaient point cinq livres nferling; lui le dit James
Stuart les faisaient immédiatement arrêter, à la vue de bien d'autres personnes ýrésentes à la dite
çlection, et ce sit un warrarít éman 'dé la part de Anthony Von lffland, écuyer> un des magis-
trats de Sa Majeflé, qui se tenait cont'amment à la dite éleion avec dear%,utres magiftratt très
:elés à supporter l'élection du dit James Stuart, et dont la conduite ne pouvait point manquer
que d'influer;extrêmement fur, les éleâeurs, au point que d'encourager plufieurs à voter pour le!
dit James Stuart et d'intimider et d'empêcher beaucoup, d'autres d'exerter leur droit de citoyen,
Que même lui ledit James Stuart afiurait à ceux qui venaient voter pour lui, qu'ils n'avaient rien
à craindre, ayant lui, le dit James Stuart, en qualité de procureur du roi, feulle droit de pour-
suivre ceux' contre qu l'on pourrait se plaindre ou certainement des aff'rantes guffi fortes; que
lui le dit James Stuart fut même, au point, que de prendre la maiai à un nommé Jean Bapte.
Matte, et la mit sur les Saints Evangiles, quoique lui le dit J te, Matte parut bien op'posé à
assermenter la validité de fa voix, et qu'à la vérité il n'en eut nullement le droit, ce que crbit
fermement le dit dépofant; niais le dit J, Ete. Matte confentit à l'insigation du dit Janes
Stuart à le faire afin de pouvoir voter pour lui. Que de plus le dit Jamnes $tuart objeCtait à pres.
que tous ceux qui votaient pour le dit Wolfred Nelson, nonobRant q4'ils! euf'ent voté aux élec-

tions

ýÎ .
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said Wolfred Nelson, notwithftanding they had votedl at the preceding-Elections, arid that in the
positive opinion ofhim, the said Deponent, they were fully qualified.

St. Ours, 12th November, 1828.

LOUIS MARCOUI.
Sworn before me,

the J 2th November, 1 828.

F. Sr. ONGs, J. P.

Carmer le Noblet, of St. Ours.

Where do you reide ?-Y reside atSt. Ours, where I pratice as a Notary, since 1826.
Were you presett at the Election which, took p:ace at the borough of Sorel, in July 1827 ?

-I was present there for âlve or six days.

Do you know that the Attorney General used threats to such ais came to vote for Mr. Nel-
fon, and encouraged those who wished to vote for himself, and who were afraid to do it, because
they believed thiemselves not to be qualified, by telling them@b fear nathing, that he was the'
Attorney General, and that he alone could prosecute them for perjtry ?--Yes ; the Attorney
General used violent threats towards those who came to vote for Mé. Nelson, saying that he
Would lave them put in the pillory ; he made ule of those threats to persons who, he said, had
no right to vote, becauqe they had made donations of their property ; and he told thofe who
wished to vote for him to vote without fcaring any thing, as le wa, the Attorney General, and
thathe alone could pro.ecute thcm for perjury. In 1828, I gave Mr.' Nelfon an aîidavit which
contains some particular. relative to this matter. I offer it as part of my cvidence;

(Which affidavit is as flUows :-)
D)istrict of
Montreal. f

Crmer Le Noblet, Notary Public, residing at St. Ours, in the County of Richelieu, in the
aforesaid diftrict, after being fwora upon the Holy Evangelists, deposeth and saith That about
the end of the month of July, in the ýyear one thoufand cight hundred and twenty.seven, at the
borough of William Henry, in the country and district aforesaid, being preshnt for several days at
the Poll, which was held there and then, for the purpose of electing a nember to represent the
burgesses of that borough in the ensuing Parliament of the Province of Lower.Canada, where
JamesStuattEsqr , Attorney General, and Wo'fied Nelson, Esquite, were the Candidates, he
the said Deponent did see and hear the said James Stuart, Esq'uire, say to one of the Electors
who voted for him, and to whom the said Wolfred Nelfon, Esquire, had objected, $&Do not
be afraid, nothing shall be done to you, I will be anwerable for ail." , Deponent further
declares that he saw and heard the said James Utuart, Esquire, several timnes, insuit and abuse
the Electors who camse-to vote for the said Wolfred Nelson, Esquire, that he the ,aid Jamues
Stuart, Ztquire, with passion and vehenence, declared to the Electors who voted against him,
#ai lie, the said James Stuat, squire, in his quality as Attorney General, would punish them,
and would have themà put in prison and in the pillory ; and one day addrebsing one of the llectorm
Who came to give his vote for the said Wolfred Nelson, Esquire, the said James Stuart, said tu
him, Il lîvili have yöni taken up and sent ta prison," and tliat, in effect, as soon as he had given his
vote for the -said Wolfred Nelson, Esquire, he procured on the instant, a warrant froi one of the
Magistrates of Sorel, and caused the Elector to he taken up, who being surrounded and carried
of bythe « Gendarieri" of the ttorrney Gencral, deponent los.t siglht of hlim ; which, de-
ponent firsly believes, induced several of tie Electors to vote for the said James Stuart, aud
others, aithough well disposed not ta vote, in order not to be sent to prison by the Attorney
General.

St. Ours, 17th November, 1828.

LE NOBLET.
Swrorn before me, the undersigned Justice of the Peace.

St. Ours, îlth Nov. 1898.
F. Sr. OkB, J.. Are
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tions précédentes,. et que fuivant la ferme opinion de lui le dit dépofant ils en ful'ent vraiment

qualilles. .St. Ours, 12 novembre 1828.

LOUIS MARCOUX.
Aflirmé devant moi, le

12 novembre 1828,.

FaS. ST. ONCE, J. P.

Carmer Le Noblet, Notaire, de St. Ours.

Où réfidez-vous"?-Je réfide à St. Ours où j'exerce comme notaire depuis 1826.
Etiez-vous préfent à l'élection qui eut lieu au bourg de Sorel en juillet 1827 ?-J'y fus préfent

pendant cinq ou fix jours.
Savez-vous si M. le procureur du roi fit des menaces à ceux qui venaient voter pour M. Nelson,

et s'il raffurait ceux qui défirant voter pour lui et qui n'ofaient le faire parce qu'ils ne fe croyaient
pas qualifiés, en leur difant de ne rien :raindre, qu'il était le procureur du roi, qu'il n'y avait que
lui feul qui.put les pourfuivre pour parjure ?-Oui, le procureur général faifait de fortes menaces
à ceux qui venaient voter pour M, Neffon, leur difant qu'il le's ferait mettre au pilori. Il a fait ces
menaces à des perfonnes qui, difait-il, n'avaient pas le droit de voter parce qu'elles 'avaient fait
donation de leurs biens, et il difait à ceux qui voulaient voter pour lui de voter lans rien craindre,
qu'il était le procureur du roi, et qu'il était le feul qui pouvait les pourfuivre pour parjure. En
3828 j'ai donné à M. Nelfon un. aflidavit qui contient quelques détails à ce fujet, je l'offre
comme partie de mon témoignage:

(Lequel affidavit eft comme suit.)

Diairiia del)
Montréal.J -. -

Carmer Le Noblet, notaire public, réfidant à St. Ours dans le comté de Richelieu, dans le dis -
tri& fufdit, après ferment par lui prêté sur les Saints Evangiles dépose et dit, que s'étant trouvé
vers la fin du mois de juillet de l'année mil huit cent vingt (ept dans le bourg de William Henry,
dans le comté et diari& fufdits, préfent pendant plufieurs jours au pôle qui fe tenait là et alors
aux fins d'élire un membre pour repréfenter lcs bourgeois du .dit bourg au prochain parlement
de la province du Bas-Canada, où James Stuart, écuyer, procureur général, et Wolfred Nelfon,
écuyer, étalent les candidats, lui le dic dépofant vu a et entendu le dit James Stuart, écuyer, dire
à un des éleaeurs qui votait pour lui et que le dit Wolfred Nelson, écuyer, objcait; le dit James
Stuart, écuyer, lui dit ne craignez pas, il ne vous fera rien fait, je répond de tout; déclare de plus
avoir vû et entendu plusieurs fois le dit James Stuart, écuyer, infulter et maltraiter les électeurs
qui venaient voter pour le dit ,Wolfred Nelson, écuyer, que lui le dit James Stuart, écuyer, avec
paffion et véhémence affurait ceux des électeurs qui votaient contee lui que lui le dit James Stuart,'
écuyer, en fa qualité de procureur général les punirait, les ferait mettre en prifon et au pilori, et
qu'un jour (s'adreffant à un des éleéteurs -qui venait donner son vote au dit Wolfred Nelfon, ê-
cuyer,) le dit JaniýeScuart lui dit, je vais vous faire prendre et conduire en prifon, et qu'effeaive-
aient auffitôt qu'il eut donné fon vote au dit Wolfred Nelfon, écuyer, il obtint à l'inftant d'un des
magiftrats de Sorel un warrant et fit prendre l'électeur, qui alors fut environné et emmené par la
gendarmerie du procureur général, difparu de la vue du dépofant, ce qui engageait, crois ferme-
ment le dit dépofant, plufieurs des électeurs à voter pour le dit James Stuart, écuyer, et d'autres
i ne point voter quoique bien difpofé, pour ne pas être écroué par le procureur général.

St. Ours, le 17 novembre 1828.

LE NOBLET
Affirmé devant moi
Juge de paix souffigné.

St. Ours, le 17 novembre 1828.>

.4. S-r. OMGE, J. P.



eArc you quite sure that the Attorney Gencral said ta the persons who wanted to vote, that he
was the Attorney Genéral, and that in that quality, he was the only one who iad a right to
profecute for perjury ?-Yes ; I am very fure of it.

(The following affidavit was then laid before the Committee:)

Deposition of Pierre Bourgeois, this day, November 18, 1828:-In the year one thousand cight
hundred and twenty eight, on the cightcenth day of Novembre, before me Pierre Grisé, Esqui-
re, one of I-lis Majestv's Juftices of the P>cace for the diftrit of Montreal, appeared Pierre Bour-
geois, Tavern-Keeper, of the village of St. Denis, in the county of Richelieu, in the said diftrict,
who, alter being sworn on the Holy Evangclists depoicth and saith, that being toward:, the end
of the month of July in the year one thousand eight hundred and twenty seven, at the borough.
of William Henry in the said difrict, lie was for several days prcsent at the Poli, which was
then and there held, for the purpose of electing a member ta reprefent the citizens of the saii
borough in the ensuing Parliament of the Province of Lower Canada, where James ,tuart, es-
quire, and Wolfred Nelfon, esquire, werc candidates, lie the said deponent saw and heard the
faid James Stuart, one of the said candidates, several times, insult and abuse the electors who
came to vote for the said Wolfred NeIçon, and that he, the said James Stuart, declared with paf-
sion and vehemence, to those of the electors who voted againý,t him, that he. the said James
Stuart, in his quality of Attorney General, would punih them, and would have thlem put in the
pillory, or words ta that effect; and the said deponent further declares that when the said Vol-
fred Nelson objected to the votes of certain electors, who the said Wolfred Nelorn did not be-
lieve were qualified ta vote, he, the said James Stuart affured them, nearly in these termes 'ethat
c in voting for hirm they had nothing ta fear, since it was only he, the said James Stuart, in his
fi said quality cf Attorney General, who had a right ta prosecute such offences " which induced,
as the said deponent firmly believeq, many of the electors thus objected to, to vote, although
they had been publicly warned they had no right to do so. And the said deponent further de-
clares, that, along with several others who were present at the said Poli, and in consequence o
all the circumstances of which he has liad personal knowledge, lie firmly believes, that the me-
nacing conduct, and the proceedings of the said James Stuart, had the efFect, not alone of inti-
nidating, but of turning away several of the elecors who appeared disposed to vote for the faid

Wolfred Ne!fon. And the deponent saith nothing further; and has das.-d that the prefent de-
poition contains the truth, and that he perbists thercin,

PIERRE BOURGEOIS.
Sworn belore me the day above said,

P. GRISE', J. P.

Friday, 41t March 1831.

IDontc BCDARD, Esquire, in the Chair,

Come Seraphin Cherrier, Esquire, Attorney, of Montrcal ;-

Are you an Attorney practising at Montreal ?-Yes.
Do you know that indictments for perjury were preferred by the Attorney General, at the

term of the Criminal Court of King's lench at Montreal, held in September 1827, againft cer-
tain individuals who had voted againfrt hin at the Sorel clection, which took place in July
1827 ?-I know there were.

Can you say who those individuals were ?-In the term of September 1827, bills of indict-
ment were preferred by the Attorney General againit Antoine Auffant, Antoine Paul Hus dit
Cournoyer, Nico:as Buckner and Joseph Claprood, for perjury alleged ta have been committed
at the said clection at Sorel; which bills were thrown out by the grand jury.

Do you know that new indictmens, for the same offnce were preferred by the Attorney Ge-
nerai
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Ete,&-vous bien certain que le procureur général ait dit à des perfonnes qui voulaient voter,
qu'il était le procureur général et qu'en cette qualité il était le feul qui avait le droit de pour-
aûivre pour parjure ?-Oui j'en fuis très certain.

(L'affidavir fuivant a été alors mis devant le comité,)

Dépofition de Pierre Bourgeois-aujourd'hui, novembre (18) 182S.

L'an mil huit cent vingt huit le dixhuitième jour de novembre, devant moi Pierre Grif', E-
cuver, un des juges de paix de Sa. Majeftr pour le difrri& de Montréal, eft comparu Pierre Rour-
geois, ravernier lu village de St. Denis dans le comté de Richelieu dans le fufdit diftrict, lequef
:Lprès :,erment prêté fùr les Saints Evangiles dépose et dit que s'étant trouvé vers la fin du mois de
juillet de l'année mil huit cent vingt fept au bourg de William Iienry dans le fufdit diftri&, pré-
-ent pendant p.ufleurs jours au piple qui fe tenait là alors aux fin, d'élire un membre pour repri-
.enter les citoyen, du dit bourg au prochain parlement de la province du Ba -Canada, ou James
Stuart, écuyer, procureur généra!, et Wolfred Nelf'on, écuyer, étaient candidats ; lui le dit dé-
pofnt a vu et entendu a plusieurs foi, le dit James Stuart un des candidati fusdits, inluitr et
maltraiter les électeurs qui venaient voter pour le dit Wolfred Nelfon, et que lui le dit James
S.uart avec pafiion et véhémence affurait à ceux des électeurs qui votaient contre lui, que lui ;e
d:t James Sturrt Ci fa qua'ité de procureur ginérai,.le, punirait, les ferait mettre au pilori, ou des
mots ù cet e.%t,. et le dit dépolit déclare de plus que, quand le dit Wolfred Nelfon objectait à
la voix de certains électeurs, que le dit Wolfred Neifon ne croyait point qualinés à voter, lui
le dit James Stuart leur assurait à peu prés en ce, termes,- qu'en votant pour lui-même
i:, n'avaient rien à craindre, vu qu'i! n'y avait que lui, le dit James Stuart, en Fà qualité de
Procureur Général, (lui eut seul le droit de poursuivre telles offenfes, ce qui avait engagé,
croit fermemenltle dit dépof.mt, à voter plusieurs des électeurs ain:si objecté., quoiqu'ils euicit
é:é ouvertement avertis qu'ils n'en avaient nullement le droit : Et le dit déporant déclare en-
suite que d'après toutes les circonstance, dont il a eu perfonnellemen: connaifiance, ainsi que p:u-
sieurs autres préleits au dit Poll, il croit fermement que la conduite menaçante et les dénrches
du dit Jame> Stuar:, avaient l'effet non seuiement d'intimider, mais encore de détourner plu-
sieurs des électeur, qui paraifflaient disposés à voter pour le dit Wolfred Nelson, et le dit dépo-
an. ne dit rien de piu:, a déclaré que la présente dépa.,ition contenait la vérité, et y persite..

PIERRE BOURGEOIS.
Afiirmé devant moi-le jour susdit.

P. GRISE', J. P.

Vendredi Il Mars 1831.

lsrnootE BE.niR, écuyer, au Fauteuil.

Côine Séraphin-CIerrier écuyer, avocat; de-Montréali

Etes-vous Avocat partiquant à Montéal%?-On.
Avez vous connaillance que dans le-terme-db la Cour criminelle du'Banc- du Roi- à Montréal-

tenue-en Septembre 1827, des-accusatiors pourparjure, aient ét-éporte'. par le Procureur Ge'é,
ai contre- des individus qui" avaient voté contre lui à l'élection de Sorel qui eut lieu en Juillet
1827 ?J'en ai connaifiance.

Pouvezvous dire' quels étaient'ce3 individU.; ?-Dans le- terme de-Septernbre 1· 27 des bils-
d'Indietemens furent soumis par le- Procareur -Général contre' Antoire Auffint; Antoine Paul
Huadit Cournoyer ; Nicolas Buclneret-Jose.ph Capruod, et:ce-pour parjure alléga.- çvoir é tG
commis à la dite élection '-le Sorel. Et cer bills ont été rejettis par le grandjurr.

Avez-ious connaiffince que de nvuveaurindictemns- pour la-muêe- offlrace"aent'ét- founi-;
par
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neral, in any fub.;equent cout ts, againft the fame individuals, and alfo againft fome others, who
hiad voted againfthim, the said Attorney General ?-at the Sefiion of the Court of Oyer and
Terminer, which took place in November 1827, the said James Stuart, Attorney General, did
prefer fresh indicmcents for perjury, againft the saine individuals, and aho againft feveral others
who had voted againft him ar the faid clection, the names of whom as weil as I can recollect arc :
Jean Baptifte Cantara, Louis Allard, Marguerite Neven and Fclix Lavallée ; thefe two lafi bills
were thrown out by the grand jury. As ta Auffant, the fecond bill preferred againft hi, was
alfo thrown out by the grand jury, but a third indicrment which was preferred againft him for
tie fame offence, was returned a true bill by the grand jury at the faid Court of Oyer and rer-
miner. Fmnally, in a fubsequent term, another bill of in dictment for perjury was preferred
againft a maxi named François Vandal, who had alfo voted againft the Attorney General at the
said election.

Were you not engaged as Attorney in the defence of several of thoe individuals ?-Yes ; to
wit, two whofe trials did take place, namely Antoine Auffant and Nicolas Buckner ; as to Clap-
rood I did not conduct his defence. ,

When did the trials of Auffiant and Bucknertake place ?-In March 1830.
Can you frate the reason why thofe trials did not take place at an earlier period ?-The at-

tempt which the Attorney General made to cause feveral of thefe trials for perjury to take place
before fpecialjuries, drawn from the lift prepared under ti ordinance of 1785, chapter two,
for civil cases ;. and the objections made by the accused agamrft the legality of fuch proceedings,
occasioned discuflions which caused delays in those trials.

What was the decifion of the Court oi the objections raised by :he accused on that fubject ?-
The Court dccided that jurors drawn fromi the lit prepared under the rsaid ordinance, could not
ferve incriminal cases, that if being alone intended for civil cases; and the objections raifed by
the accufed were thus maintained.

What were the reafons which induced the accused to object to those jurors .-
Those whose trials were souglit to be brought before the special juries who had been nomi-
inated and chofen in September 1828, had the greateft intereft ta get thofc juries set aide, in-
a;much as the greater part of theni entertaired and had warmly profefed political opi-
nions, which were diametrically opposcd to.tho.e which had induced the acculed to vote againft
the Attorney General. It was a matter of public notoricy that those juries were under the
influence-of violent prejudices againft the accued ; who had moreover the more reafon to fear
the effecrs of that iniluence, as political excitemer.t in the Province, was, at that.period, carried
to a great height.

Do you think that if those trials had taken place before a ufual petty jury, those delays would
havetaken place ?-if the:e trial, had been had before a commnon jurv. as al profecutions for
perjury have always invariablv been, thofe discufiioris would not have arifen, and the accused
miglt have had their trials muhIcii sooner. They would have :.ubmitred to them with perfect con-
fidence before a common jury.

Do you know :hat in Marci 180, the court set afide the speciail juries, before whom Buck-
ner aid Auffint were to have had their trials ?-Thcourt did fet thofe juries afide. The ac-
cu.ed, amongfr other objectionrs, had maintained as one that the nomination of the special juries
had been made by the c! erk of the Crownî, without cither they or thcir Counsel being prefent ;
and the court itfelf, declarng that to lie the case, in confequence fet afide the nomination that
iad been made by the clerk of the Crown, and the body ofjuror, whiclh reftilted froni that no-
rnination were equl:ly fet afide. Nevertheless, the di.fendants who had, for a long time, been
defirous of taking tlicir trials, were willing that they should take place before that body of ju-
rors, which was diiferent fromi thofe that hiad becn iýiected in Septenber 1828.

What was the defence made by Auffant ?-The defence was fourideu on the following facts.
Some days before he voted a: the faid clection for Sorel, a mran. named François Gazaille dit St.
Germain, who, like the faid Auffant, lad made a donation of his property, had voted for the
Attorney Gencral. When Wo!fred Nelfbn, the oppofing candidate to the Attorney General,
objected to ci vote of the laid St. Germain, on accourir of his having given away bis propercy;
the Attorney Gencral then said to tie said St. Gernain, that.he could vote, and induced hirm
to qualify as a proprietor by taking the oath required by the law; and the faid Antoine AuTant,
who till then hiad deciined ta vote, being informed of the opinion given by the Attorney Gene-
ral to the faid St. Germain, conceived hat lie had a riglt to vote as well as the faid St. Germain.
Thefe are the facts which werc brought forward in defence of the said Auffant ; I muft remark
that I iad nd perfonal knowledge of then, not having been prefent a: chat election ; but they
were: atisfactorily proved at the trial, and Auilant was acquitted.



par le Procureur Général dans aucune cours subscquente contre les mêmes individus aufli
contre quelques autres. qui avaient voté contre lui à la dire élection ?-Dans la feflion de la Cour
d'Oyer et Terminer qui eut lieu Qn Novembre 1827 le dit James Stuart Procureur Général fournit
de nouveaux Indictemens pour parjure contre les mêmes individus, et au (i contre quelques autres
qui avaient voté contre lui à la dite élection, et dont les noms font autant que je puis m'en rap-
peler, Jean Bte.Cantara, Louis Allard, Marguerite Neven et Félix Lavallé, ces deux derniers bills
ont été rejetés par les grand Jurés. Quant à Aufilnt le second bill préfenté contre lui fut auffi re-
jeté par les grands jurés, niais un trosième Indicternent suumis pour la même offenfe fut rap-
porté comme vrai par les grands jurés dans la dite felion d'Oyer et Terminer. Enfin dans un
terme fubléquent un autre bill d'Indictement pour parjure fut soumais contre un nommé "Fran-
çois Vandal, qui avait également voté contre le Procureur Général à la dite élection.

Avez-vous été employé comme avocat pour défendre pînfieurs de ces individu5 ?-Oui ; et
nommément deux dont les procês ont eu lieu savoir, Antoine Aufiant et Nicolas Buckner;
quant à Claprood ce n'est pas moi qui l'eft défendu.

Dans quel tens les procès d'Antoine Aussant et de Buckner ont-ils eut lieu 3-En Mars 1ss0.
Pourriez-vous dire quelle eft la raifon pour laquelle ces procès n'ont pas eut lieu plutôt ;-La

tentative que le Procureur Général fit pour que pluficurs des procès pour parjures eufient lieu
devant des jurés spéciaux tirés de la Lifte faite en vertu de l'ordonnance de 1785, chapitre 2
pour caufes civileý, et l'objection des accufés contre la légalité de ces procédés occafionèrent des
difcuflions qui ont apporté des retards à ces procès.

Quel a été le jugement de la Cour sur l'objection des accufés à cet égard ?-La Cour a déci-
dé que les jurés tirés de la Lifte faire en vertu de la dite ordonnance ne pouvait fervir dans ies
caufes criminelles, cette Lifte n'étant deftinée que pour les causes civiles et elle a maintenu kS
objections de. accusés à cet égard.

Quels étaient les motifs des accu,és en objectant à ce juré ?-Ceux dont on a voulu faire le
procès devant les jurés spéciaux tels qu'ils avaient été nommés et choisis en Septembre 1828 a-
vaient l'intérêt le plus prefant à faire mettre de côté ces jurés, qui pour la pluspart avaient em-
braffé et professé, avec chaleur des opinions politiques diamétralment oppofées à celles qui avaient
engagé lesaccufés à votr contre le Procureur Général. Il était de notorieté publique que ces jurés
étaient sous l'influence de préjugés violens contre les accufés, qui avaient d'autant plus de motifs
d'en redouter l'iafluence qu'à cette époque 'iritation politique était porté à un haut degré dans la
Province.

Croyez-vous que di le., procès avaient été faits devant un petit juré ordinaire ces retardemens
auraient eu lieu ?-Si ces procès uuffent été faits devant un juré ordinaire ainfi que les procès
pour parjure l'on toujours été invariablement, ces difcufflons ne seraient point élevé et le, accufés
auraient pu subir leur procès beaucoup plutôt. Ils l'eufient subi avec une entière confiance de-
vant un juré ordinaire.

Avez-vous connaifiànce qu'en mars 1830 la cour ait mis de côté les jurés spéciaux, devant les-
quels les accusés, Iucicner et Aufflant devaient fubir leur procès ?-La cour mit ce, jurés de côté ;
e, accufés, entre-autres objectionsavaient prétendu que la nomination (the nomination) des
juré fpéciaux ayant été faite par le clerc de la couronne hors de leur préfence et de celle de leur

confeil, et la cour elle même la déclarant telle, en conféquence elle mit de côté la nomination
oui avait été faite par le clerc de la couronne, et les corps de juré& qui étaient résultés de cette
nomination furent également mis de côté, cependant les défendeurs cui depuis longtemps dési-
raient que leur procè fut fait, voulurent bien a ce qu'il eut lieu devant ces mêmes corps de jurés
qui étaient différens de ceux qui avaient été chxoifis en Septembre 1828.

Quelle a été la défenfè d'A uflànt ?-La défense repofàit fur les faits suivans : Quelques jours
avant qu'il eut voté à la dite élection de borel, un nommé Francois Gazaille dit St. Germain, (lui
avait comme le dit Auffant fait donation de fes biens, avait voté pour le Procureur Général ;
fur l'objection qui avait été faite par Wo:fred Ne!fon, candi:!a: opp'e. Procureur Général à la
réception de la voix du dit St. Germain à ran de ce qu'i :wait dcnné es biens. Le Procureur
Gcnéral dit alors. au dit St. Germain qu'il pouvait voter, et L'engagea même a se qualifier comme
propriétaire, en prêtant le ferment requis par la loi ; le dit Antoine Auflant qui jusqu'alors avoit
refui? de voter, ayant été informé de l'opinion que le Procureur Général avait donné au dit Si.
Germain, fe persuada qu'il avait le droit de voter auffi bien que le di: St. Germain ; tels bnt
les faits sur le.ýquels a roulé la défenso du dit Auffant ; je dois remarquer que je n'en ai eu aucune
connaiiance perfonnelle, n'ayant point afiift6 à cette élection, ma.s ils furent prouvés lors du
procès d'une manière fatiifactoire et Auffant fut acquitté.

Avez



Doyvo' know vrether the laid St. Germain was paofccutcd ,-.IHC Was fot.
What bcame of the iridictnets iigaiaft the other idividualIs wborn you bave znentioned ~

,%frcr Autlint and Buclaier had been acluittedg the Attorney General did not take uni ukte.
rior proccedings upon the. other indittmen3; nor did hc reqjuire thole perfons who wcre Iunclcr
blil Co rcnew their recognizances.

li it within your knowledgc, txit affEdavits wCre put intO the liand& of thc Attorney Gcrieral,
wk.ich cliarged pe.fonu »Who had voted for hivà ut the faid clection, with pcrjury- ?-When the
triais of Aulliiot and Buàçkncr took place, thei Aturzcy Gecral admitted that affidavits, ac-
c u-ing om of the ~n~iubwhohbad Voted itL hL favoura of pctiury, had been put into his
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Avez-vous connaliance que le dit St. Germain nit été pourfuivi ?-Il ne l'a pas été.
Que font devenues les accusations contre les autres individu; dont vous wvez parlé ?..Aprés

qu'Aufant et Buckner ont été acquittés, le Procureur Général n'a pas procédé ultérieurement sur
les autres accusations, et il n'a pas exigé de ceux qui étaient alors ous caution, le renouvelle-
mient du cautionnement.

Eft-il a votre connaifance qu'il ait été remie au Procureur Général des affdavits qui accufhient
de parjure, des per.onnes qui avaient voté pour lui à la dite élection ?-Lors des procès qui ont
eu lieu contre Auflint et liuckner, le Procureur Genéral a admis que des aindaviti 411i attueaient
cie parjute quelques individus qui avaient voté en sa favcur, lui avaient été remis.



The Committc tien considered the Evidence laid befure the Special Commitiee of

the House of 4Assembly, on thte Petitions conplaining oj Gricrances in the Session

.f 1828-9 ; which Evidence taken from Ite Appendix (E. E.) of the printed

Journal of this Housefor 1S29, is asfollowetlt:

The Reverend J, B. Xe/y, Priest, Curate of Sorel, appeared before the Commit-
nitee, and was examined as follows:-

Iow many years have vou been Curate ofthe parisb ofSorel ?--Eleven.
bo you reside in the Borough of William Henry, (Sorel) and have you always

lived there since vou have been Curate of the said parish ?--Yes.
Did the then dovernor, the-Earl of Dalhousie, pass the Summer of 1827, in

ie bouse belonging to Government, in the said parish ?-Yes, lie passed the Sumn-
ncr there.

Did the Governor (Lord Dalhousie) reside there during the time of the last
ciieral Election, and particularly during the time the Election was going on in

the Borough of William lenry, of a member to represent the said Borough ?--
Yes, le was then living there.

Was the said Election warnly contested ?-Very warmly.
bid you receive fron the then Governor, any communication relative to the

Electioi, before or during the tinie it was going on ?--I reccived none from the
Governor himself; but MIr. Welles comnunicated to nie a Note, which had beenî
written to him by the'Go-crnor's order, by one ofhbis Aides-de-Camp, and wlich
31r. Welles had orders to comnmunicate to me : this was whilc the Eilection was go-
ing on.

What is Mr. Welles, and whbat post does lie lold at William Henry ?-IIe is
Agent for the Seigniory, and Barrack Maister.

W1'hat was the nature of the communication you have just spoken of?-A threat
of conplaint to the Bishop, and even to the Minister of State in England, if I did
niot stop ond ofthe members of my famnily from interfering at the said Election.

Who was the said member of your fànil ?--My Father.
IDid Mr. Welles communicate~to you the letter in question ?-IIe showeid it to

me: I do not remember whether I iead it inyself, or wletler he read it to me.
Frorn whom did this letter come ?-From Capt. Maiulc, the Governor's Ne-

phcw and Aide-de-Camp.
Who werc the Candidates?--Thc Candidates were Messrs. James Stuart, (the

Attornev Gencral) and Wolfred Nelson.
For wçhiclh of' the two Candidates lad your father interested himself?---For

3Mr. Wolfyed Nelson.
What answer did you give Ir. Welles?-That I was entirely unacquainted with·

rny F'ather's proccedings; that I had, not even lcard then spoken of; and thaît
it being my principle not to intcrferc in the Election, it was absolutely against
mny intentions that lie hadl so acted.

IVas your father an Elector for the Borouglh ?-No.
ilad you afterwards an interview with the Governor hîinself, and some conver-

sation with him on the same subject ?-Ycs.
Was this while the Election was going on ?-Yes.
Canyou say what was the nature of th3at conversation, and on what it turncd?--

The conversation turned on the procecdings imputed to ny Fatier witli regard to
the Election , His Excellency alledging, that the sentiments nanifestcd by my Fa-
ther at the Election must of necessity be mine, since lie lived in iny house, adding
that lie could not believe it was otherwise, and that he had been told that a cabal
had long been forned against the views of Governiment, with regard to the said
Election.

What



I.e Conild a alors procédé d prendrc en considération les témoignages reçus deVant

le Comité Spécial de la Chambre d'Assembléc sur les pétitions se plaignant de

Griefi durant la Session de 1828.9. Lcsqucls témoignages de l'.Appcndicc

(E. E.) dans le Journal de 1829, sont comme suit :-

Messire J. B. Kelly, Ptre. curé de Sorel, a comparu devant le comité et a été
examiné comme suit:

Depuis combien d'années étes vous curé de cette paroisse ?-Depuis onze ans.
Demeurez-vous au bourg dle William Henry et avez-vous toujours demeuré

depuis que vous êtes curé de la paroisse P-Oui.
Le Gouverneur comte Dalhousie a-t.il passé l'été de mil huit-cent vingt-sept

dans la maison appartenant au gouvernement dans la paroisse ?-Oui il y a
passé l'été.

Le gouverneur comte. Dalhousic y demeurait-il pendant le temps de la dernière
élection générale et notamment pendant qu'elle se faisait clans le bourg de William
Henry pour l'élection d'un membre pour représenter le bourg ?-Oui il. y
demeurait.

Cette élection fut-elle vivement contestée ?-Très vivement.
Reçutes vous du gouverneur alors quelques communications relativement à

P'élection, avant ou pendant qu'on y procédait ?-Je ne reçus pas du gouverneur
lui-mme, mais j'eus conmnunication par -M. Welles d'un billet qui lui avait été
écrit par ordre du gouverneur, par mi de ses aides ie camp, et que 1. Welles
avait eu ordre de me communiquer; c'était pendant que l'on procédait à l'élection.

Quel est ce M. Welles et quelle fonction remplit-il à William Henry ?--Il est
agent ie la scigneurie et maitre des cazernes (barrack master.)

Quelle était la nature de la communication dont vous venez de parler ?-Une
menace de porter plainte à l'évêque et même au ministre d'état en Angleterre, si
je n'arrétais pas un mcmbre de ma filunille de se méler de l'élection.

Quelle était ce membre de votre femille P-iIont Père.
M, Welles vous communiqua-t-il la lettre en question ?- Il me Fa montrée,

mais je ne me rappelle pas si je l'ai ILI moi-méme ou s'il nie la lu.
De qui était cette lettre ?-Du capitaine Maule, neveu et .aide-de-camp du

gouverneur.
Quels étaient les candidats ?-Le% candidats étaient Messieurs James Stuart,

Procureur Général, et Wolfred Nelson.
Pour le quel de ces deux candidats, M. votre pére s'était-il intéressé ?-Pour

M. Wolfred Nelson.
Quelle fut votre réponse à M. Welles ?- Que j'ignorais absolument les procé-

dés ce mon père, que je n'en avais pas méme entendu parler ; et qu'ayant pour.
principe de ne pas me méler moi-même d'élection, c'était absolument contre mes
intentions qu'il avait agi ainsi.

Votre père était-t-il électeur dans le bourg ?--on.
Avez-vous eu depuis une entrevue avec le gouverneur lui-même et quelqu'en-

tretien avec lui sur le même sujet ?-Oui.
Etait-ce pendant que l'on procédait a l'élection ?-Oui.
ÀPouvez-vous dire quel flut la nature de cet entretien, et sur quoi il roula ?-La

conversation roula sur les démarches que l'on imputait îi mon père relativement-
à l'élection; Son Excellence alléguant que les sentimens que mon père avait
montré dans cette élection, devait 'tre absolument les miens, puis qu'il restait
dansina maison, et ajouta qu'il ne pouvait pas croire qu'il/ en fut autrement ; et
qu'on lui avait dit qu'il y avait eu une cabale formxuée depuis long-tems contre les
vues du gouvernement dans cette élection.

Quelle



What reinarks did vou tilcn no2ke on this subýjcct ? -1 remarhed ta the Go,
vernor, thazt.iltlhou!,hI 1 did not mnysel interfixrc in the Election, or even witl pso,
lities, I wa'i always giatl ta -Dow %hat %vas gon' ; :snd that 1 could assure 1 fis

E-'xcellctscy tilat ill inuzabitants of the Bu3o0gl "IlWlim1c ,bdnti

issanncr been for a long titxk caballin- wvthl reEpect ta this Ulctii(în ; tlhat it wzis
the Iusiness of- thse momnent, tat tiîc lsad no %visi ta do wlhat iisilit be ofMnsive
j() inself* or to the Goverrmest, anîd titaL the~ opposition was ta MX r. Stuatier.t'

solually, who at that very til c,%mî SI àbtising all who carne bo ote aga in i.
Did vou visit the Govcrnor in couscquence of thse Commnications MNr- ef

li.td in.üde 10 vou ?-Yes.
L)id you tlici spcakc to l:im, and did yoentesLr ifLtoSOm'ýe explaisation witli hirn

belbre the couni jellit of: thcj con vesat ion ?-1 told isn ,thlzt 1 camne in ecnse,
quence of' a letter written by bis Iidc-de-C.iiip to >1r. Welles, inculp.sting ine in
tie b,~sesor the Elecuoni.

Did v'or atL.2r tiat tille iL'ccivc aliv DCw Cohll]Lmficatiofl firoiri the (jovernor,.o,
the, sainc SI)jCCL ?-Ye3.

Wliat ivas the, nature of titis commuinnicatioti?-AfLer the lilection 1. went to the
Governior'e lise, to cal! on1 liiii,, as 1 ww;~ irn thse habit of dloing ftusii tiso t ime;

bisgspoken to orle ofiuis Aides-de-Camip, lie told miellat 11k Excellencv bein-
busy, could not stec n1c; 1 replied to thse A ide. de- Cainpf, thaï it 'vas tile same ting,.ý
:suîd that 1 %Çould coulse am'air atiotier tUrne ; two holurs aflerwards, 1 receiveci a~
note ftoin capt. H-ope, orle of the Cover-nor's Aidlcs-dIe-C.-mp), and %%ritten by bis
Order3, ilufortniuig nie tllîat Ile was comnasn.ided by 1lis 1,"xcelleiîcv, to tel]i me, thtt
ili cosîseqicec of wvhat lizad happcnied at My bouge, jr> relation to the Etection,
IJls Excellcsucy con.ceived iL to bc corsîrary to b'is publie diity tD receive Mny visits
aey. toiigcr.

ifl %,t i prduce titis niote, or a cap>- aiit P-1 cansuot produce it asL titis ino-
lQn;and I begr to bc ailowccl until to-alorrow to (Io se.

Did you, in consc<îssnce of Luis letter, your.ielf* write to tire Govcrnor, the 1*1ri
of I)aihloUsi.?~-hUL 1 sentait answer to the Aide-cle-Cafap la-oin, whom 1 lsad
rcccived». tlie note.

J)id the Go,.crnor-scrs I answrYs
Cari yo u iay befire the Commnittee, the corresponclcnce wlsiclî pzsssed on this

st4ket- 'Cannot at. dUls moment; 1 beg te bc allowed. unti! to-Morrow to
doit.

D)o you. know %vi nd ré Laval lée, of Sorel ?-Ycr,.
-Docs lie enjo * a good character; and inay- his testimnony bc credlitcd; is lie a.

Proprietor»Of Mal propt2rty ili the Borougli oi' Williamir. Iienry-?--17es, lue is a sober
and hsorest mani ; and a proprietor in tihe JBorougi.

Ordcred, 'Ehat An d<ý Iavalléc be required te appear bof ore the- Conmittee te-
znorrow ut tell o'oclock.,

An~dré Laz'alid, of tise Pari] of'Soe, Voyagerir, was called beore the Co-
niittce, ansd cxarnirscd..tt foliews :

Arc you a piroprietor in thoe village of- Sorel ?-Ycs.
*Arc Vau ait EleIctor fior the Borougi of williamlin, spoitrY ,

I lidle . building lut, 'cniv,.aceniti) witia a hiouse and buildàissgs^ un it, snd". rLe-
side tiierc.

Do you ksaow ?vlr. S. Gale, of Mortrcal ; and- wlien did vou last~ sec- him ?-F-
dlo know liii». Thei last Lirne 1 saw iei, was ons the day befbre that on whicl the
lastj-'ekctiorî for the I3orobgls of M.ilialli IHensry was tolbegin, towards the end of

tihe.morit. of, .uly. 1*7. 1 drovc hitm un iliat day fiom Sorcit t.; Michet

119d YAU-crn.trIàS.OCC-aSion any arîd 'w-hat- conversation with him on the subjqct-
z of'



Quelles furent vos propres observations à ce sujet alors ?-.Je fis observer au
Gouverneur que quoique je ne me mélasse point d'lection, ni même de politique,
que j'ét'ais bien aise de savoir ce qui se passait, et que je pouvais assurer Son Ex-
cellence que les gens du Bourg de William ienry n'avait nullement, ni de longue
main, cabalé dans cette élection ; que c'était l'affaire du moment, et qu'ils n'en
voulaient nullement au gouvernement ni à lui même (lord Dalhousie) mais que
c'était contre l'individu M. Stuart, qui dans le moment même disait encore Cs
injures à tous Ceux qut venaient voter contre lui.

Avez-vous été voir le gouverneur en conséquence de la communication que M..
Welles vous avait faite ?-Oui.

Lui en parlates vous alors et lui fîtes vous quelques cxplications à ce sujet avant
de commencer l'entretien ?-Je lui dis que je venais en coneéqulence d'une lettre
écrite par son aide-de-camp à .1. Welles, qui m'inculpait dans 'allaire de l'élection.

Avez-vouà eu depuis quelques nouvelles communications de la part du gou-
verneur, sur le même sujet ?-Oui.

Quelle était la nature de cette communication ?--Apres l'é!ctioi j'allais à la
maison du Gouverneur pour lui faire une visite comme je le faisais de temsâà au-
tre, m'étant adresd a un de ses aides-de-camp, celui-ci vint me dlire qué Son
Excellence étant occupé, ne pouvait pas me voir; je répondis à l'aide-de-camp,
que c'était égal, que je reviendrais une autre fois; deux heures après. je reçus
une note du capitaine HIope, un des aides ce-camp du Gouverneur, écrite par
son ordre, par laquelle il m'infojrnait que Son Excellence lui avait ordonné de me
dire qu'en conséquence de ce qui é:ait arrivé chez moi, relativement à l'élection,
Son Excellence croyait qu'il était contre son devoir public de recevoir davantage
mes visites.

Pouvez-vous produire Let te note vu une copie ?-Je ne puis la produire daus ce
moment, et je (emanI2de d'ici à d na'n pour le faire.

Avez-vous en cons;quence de cette note, écrit vous méme au Gouverneur
comte Dalhousie ?-Nbn ; mais j'ai ré¡.ondu à laide-de-camp, de qui j'avais
reçu la note.

Le gouverneur a-t-il répondu ?-Oui.
Pouvez-vous mettre sous les yeux du comité la correspondance qui a eu lieu à

ce sujet ?--Je ne puis la produire dans ce moment, et je demande d'ici à demain
pour le faire.

Connaissez vous le nommé André Lavallée de Sorel ?-Oui.
Cet homme jouit-il d'une bonne r. putation, et peut-on ajouter foi à son témoi-

gnage, est-il propriétaire de fonds dans le Bourg de William Henry ?-Oui;
c'est un homme sobre et honnête, et propriétaire dans le bourg.

Ordonné. Qu'André Lavallée soit requis de comparaitre devant le comité
demain à dix heures.

André Lavalée, voyageur, de la Paroisse de Sorel, à été appellé devant le
comité, et examiné comme suit:

Etes-vous propriétaitre dans le yillage. de Sorel ?- -Oui.
Etes-vous électeur clais le bourg de William Henry ou Sorel, comme propri.

étaire ?-O.'i; j'ai un emplacement avec maison et bâtisse, t j'y demeure.
Connaissez.votis i. S. Gale, de Montréal, et quand l'avez-vous vu la dernière

fois ?-Je le connais ; la- dernière fois que je l'ai vu était' la veille du jour où
devait commencer la dernière élection pour le bourg de William Henry. vers le
mois de Juillet 1S27. Je l'ai mené ce jour-là de Sorel à St. Michel d'Yamaska.

Avez-vous cu avec lui dans cette occasion quelques convcrsations au sujet de la
dite



of tie said Election ?-Yes, ho began by asking me whether I was an Elector for'
tie B'oroigh of William Henry ; upon miy saying I was, lie asked me fbr whicl
of the two Candidates I intended voting ; I told him I did not krow, and that I
had not yet decided for whom I should vote: he thon put his hand into his poc-
het and drew it out fuil of moncy, as ià appeared to me, (there were several
pieces of moncy) saying to me, "if you vote for Mr. Stuart, I will give you what
I have got in miy hanc."

Wiat was your answer to this ?-I refused him, saying that I could vote with-
out being paid.

Did not this conversation také place at Sorel itself, when 31r. Gale spoke to you
on the subject ?-Yes, it began as we were starting fron Sorel. Mr. James Stu-
art, tlie Attorney General, and one of the Candidates at the Election, passed close
1 us, with Mr. Welles.and Dr. Von lflland, who werc canvassing for votes.---
Wlhen they saw us they bowed and signed to Lis to stop, but as I suspected thaL
tChey meant to solicit my vote, I paid no attention, and drove on. Mr. Gale thien
renarked to me, that he thouight Mr. Stuart was canvassing for votes, and. it was
thercupon that the conversation I hîad with Mr. Gale, as I have just related it,
conmenced.

Can you positively say that 'Mr. Gale offired you money to vote in favor of
Mr. Stuart ?-Yes.

Jean Crébassa, ofSorel, Shopkeeper. theni appearec before the Conmmittec, and
was examineci as follows:-

Do you know André Lavallée, of William Henry, the witness who has just
been examined ?-I amu well acquaintec with him ; he is a perfectlylhonest man..

Was lie an Elector for the iorou.I of William H-enry, at the tine of the last
Election in 1;827, as being proprietor ?-Yes, lie is proprietor of a building lot, a
house in which lie lives, and of buildings.

Were. you present .at te last Election hîeld at William Henry, in 1S27 ?-YCs,
I attended every day, but not continuîally.

Was.this Election warmly cortested?---Yes.
Do vou know Mr. Welles, of the said Borough of William Flenry ?-Yes. .
Do;s.he l hold any situation of a pûbbic nature in the place?-IlIe isthó&g-

vernmenît Agent for the Seigniory: I believe lie is also Barrack Master; and he
is a Justice of the Peace.

Wlo were tihe Candidates at the said last Election, inI 1S27?-James Stuart,
Esquire, Attorney General, and Ductor Wolfred Nelson, of St. Denis.

Did not Mr. Welles take a very active part at this Election, in fivor of the At-
torney General?- lc took an active piait in favor of the Attorney Gicral.

.Was là exposed to any threats on the part of either of the Candidates, on the
subject oftie said Election ? -IIe received sone from the A Ltorney Gencral.

What was the nature of these thrcar§ ?-Ah'. Stuart addrssed iim at the Poll,
during the E.ecion, and tlrcatened him, tiat if lie was not more active he would
report him to the Governior.

Vas the Governor, (Lord Dalhousie) at that tirne living in the neigibourhood
of the said Borough, in the parish of Sorel, and did he not pass the Sumner
tiere--Yes, lie passed a great ilart of the Summer there.

Were there nany persons present at the Poli when the thrcat you have just
spoken of was made to NIr. Welles? ---Yes, a great nanv.

Were there several Justices of the Peace ii the Borousgh of Williamn Henry at
tle time ofthe last Election, and what were thcir naies ?-The were, Messrs.

/5 Robert
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dite élection, et quelles ?-Oui; il m'a d'abord demandé si j'étais électeur pour
le bourg de -William Henry; sùr ma réponse, affirmative, il me demanda pour
lequel des, deux candidats je me proposais de voter; je lui dis que je ne savais
pas, que je n'étais pas encore décidé pour qui je voterais ; alors il mit la main
dans sa oéhe, et l'en retira pleine d argent à ce qu'il me parut, (il y avait plu-'
sieurs pieces d'argent) en nie disant; si-vous voulez voter pour M Stuart, je vais
vousdonner c',que j'ai dans la main.

Quelle fit vôtre réponse alors ?-Je le refusai,' lui disant que je pouvais voter
sans être payé.

Cette conversation n'a-t-elle pas eu lieu à Sorel même, lorsque M. Gale en
parIais avec vous ?-'-Oui ; elle a commencé comme nous partions de Sorel. M.
James Stuart, le Procureuri Général, et l'un des candidats à l'élection, passa près
de nous, avec M. Welles et le Dr. Von Iffland, qui cherchaient des voix, Lorsqu'ils
nous apperçurent, ils nous firent signe en nous saluant, d'arrêter, tnais comme je
doutais qne c'était dans Pintention de solliciter' ma voix, je n'y fis aucune at-
tentioný et continua non cleimin. Alors I. Gale me remarqua qu'd pensait que
M. Stuart cþ erchait des voix, et à cette occasion, la couversation que j'i eu avec
M; Gale; tèel que ci-dessus, commença.

Pouvez-vous dire positivement que M. Gale vons ait offert de l'argent pour
voter en fme°ur de M. J. Stuart ?-Oui,

Jan Crébassa, Ecuyer, Marchand de Sorel, a alors pru devant. le comité, et à
été examiné comme suit:

Connaissez-vous André Lavallé, de William lenry, le témoin qui vient d'étre
examiné?- Je le connais trés -bien, ett'dst un partait honnête 'homme.

Etait.il électeur au bourg de William Henry lors de la derniète élection, en mil
huit cent vingt.sept, à titre de propriétaise ?-Oui, il est propriétaire d'un em-
placement,' maison où il demeure, et bâtimens.

Etiez-vous présent à la dernière élection qui ,s*est fait à William Heiry, en
mil huit cent vingt-sept ?-Oui, j'y ai assisté tous les jours, mais ion pas conti-
nuellemlent.

Cette élection a-t-elle été vivement contesté ?-Qui.'
Connaisse-vous M. Welles, du dit bourg de WilliamHenry?-OuL
Remplit-il quelque charge 'ou fonction d'une nature publique dans l'endroit -

Il est agent de la seigneurie pour le gouvrt aussi
Da racl Matenr et il est juge de tass

Qui étaient les condidats à cet.te dernière élection, en mil huit cent vingt,
sept ?-James Stuart, écuyer, Procureur Général, et le Docteur Wolfred Nelson,
de St. Dênis,

M. elles n'a-t.il pas prsWune part très active dans cette élection, en faveur
de M. le Procureur Général?-Il apris une part active éi faveur de M. te Proéu-
reur Général.

été exposé à quelques menaces d, la part de 'un ou 'autre des dits can
didats au sujet de la dite élection ?-11 en a reca de la part du procureur général.

Quelle étaitla nature d ces menaces ?-M.Stuart s'adressa lui au Poll durant
l'élection, et le menaca s'il n'était pas plus actif qu'il le rapporterait au gou

Lé gouverneur, comte de' 1alhousie, demeuraitil alors dans le voisinâge du
dit bourg' 'dans la paroisse de Sorel, et n'y a-t-il "as passé lIté?,-Oui, "il y a
passé une grande partie de fété.

Y avait-il, beaucoup de nionde au POi quand la memîacc dont vous venez de
parler, a été faite' M. Welles ?-Oui un grand nombe

Y avàitil plusiewus juges de paix dans le boarg de W iliam llenry, lors de la
dernière
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Robert Joncs, John K. Welles, Henri Crebassa, Anthony Von Iffland and the
Rev. Mr. Jackson,. Minister of the English Episcopal Church.. With regard to
the last, I do not know whether ho has taken the outh in order to qualify himself
as Magistrate: I have never seen him act in that capacity.

Did they .ail interfere very actively in the Election, anc in whose favor did-thcy.
interest themselves?-They ail, with the exception of Mr. Jackson, and Mr.
Crebassa, (who was Returning Otlicer) took a very active part at the said Elec-
tion, in favor of the Attorney General.

Werc any of these Magistrates dismissed..-They were not.

The Rev. J. B. KellY, again appeared, and being- called upon to produce Cap-
tain Hope's note. and the correspondence mentioned in his exanination of yes-
terday, produced Captain Hope's note, wlich is as fbllows:

Mr. Hope is directed by Lord Dalhousie, to inform the Rev. Mr. Kelly, tlat
after what has passd ii his house on the subject of the last Election. His Ex-

"cellency does not believe it to be compatible with his public duty to reccive Nlr.
Kelly's visits for the future.

"Sorel, 14th August.'

Vednesda3, 411 February, 1S29.

Present :-Messrs. Viger, Ileiey, Lefèbvre, Leslie and Cvvillicr.

Mr. Viger in the Chair.

Mr. Pierre Triganne, of the Borougli or William Henry, Bailiff of the Court
of King's Bench, appeared befbre the Committee, and was examined, as
fullows

How long have you been resident at William Henry ?---For nearly two
ycars.

Was the clection for the choice of members to serve in tbc Provincial Parlia-
iment, in Juiy 1827, warmly contested in the Borough of William IIenry ?

-Yes.

Did you interest yourself about the clection-did you take a part in it, and in
whot-se Chvor ?-Yes, in favor of Wo7lf*red Nelson.

Were any threats used towards you abo.it punishing you, ;r causing you to
be punished lor having taken part in the said election ?---r. Von Iflland cane to
my house in the afternoon of th,- 2d or 3d day of the election ; lie told me to
take good care of myself, for that the Attorrey Gencral was angry with me, be-
cause it appeared that I took part in favor of' Mr. Nelson ; and that it might
lappen that he might do me mischief; as he haîd inuch influence with the Sheriff.
On the following morning, lie came to ask me on the part of the Attorney Gene-
ral, whom I was going to call on at Mr. Blrkes ; he said to me, " are you not a
public .omcer ?" On answering in the affirmative, he said to me, " it scms that

you
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dernière élection, et quels était leurs noms ?-.11y a MM. Wobert Joues, John K.
Welles, flenri Crébassa, Anthony Von Island et le Révérnd M. Jackson, minis.
tre de l'église épiscopale d'Angleterre. Quant à ce dernier, je ne sais pas s'il a
pris le serment pour se qualifier comme magistrat: je ne l'ai jamais vu agir en
cette qualité.

Se sont-ils mêlés de l'élection d'une maîlière très active, et en faveur de qui se
sont-ils intéressés ?--Tout l'éception de Monsr. Jackson et de Monsr. trébassa
qui était officier rapporteur, se sont mêlés de l'élection d'une manière très active
ci faveur du procureur général.

Aucun des magistrats a-t-il-été destitué?-Ils ne l'ont point été

Messire J. B. Kelly a part de nouveau, et étant requis de produire la note du
capitaine Hope, et la correspondance donit 'il est fait mention dans son examen
d'hier; a produit là note du capt. Hope laquelle sont comme suit :-

M. Hope est chargé par le lord Dalhousie d'informer, M. Kelly, que d'après
ce qui s'est passé dans sa maison au sujet de la dernière élection, Son Excel-

' lence ne croit pas qu'il soit compatible avec son devoir public de recevoir à
l'avenir les visites delM. Kelly.

Sorel, 14 Août.

Mercredi, 4 Février 1829.

PSNNS :-Messieurs Viger, Heney, Lefebvre, Leslie et Cuvillier

M. VxoEir au Fauteuil.

M. Pierre Triganne, du Bourg de William lenry, huissier de. la Cour du
a oomparu devant le Comité et à été examiné comme suit :- .

Depuis quand demeurez vous A William Henry ?-Depuis près de deux
ans.

La dernière élection pour (lire des membres du parlement provincial en Juillet
1827, a -elle été vivement contestée au Bourg de Williain Henry ?-Oui.

Volis.êtes vous mêlé de l'élection, et y avez vous pris une part et eni faveur de
qui ?-Oui, en faveur de M. Wolfred Nelsofi.

Vous a-t on fait quelques menaces de vous punir ou vous faire punir d'avoir
pris part dans cette IecLoni ?-Le Dr. Von lffland est venu chez moi I après
midi, le premier ou deuxième jour de Félection ; il me dit de bien prendre garde
à mo-, parcequle Proenreur-Général était faché contre môi, parcequ'il paraissait
que je prenais la part de M. Nelson, et qu'il pourrait arriver qu'il rne nuirait, par-
cequ'il avait beaucoup d'influence auprès du Shdrif ; le lendemain on vint me de-
mander de la part diu Proueur-Général, que' j'allai trouver chez M. Burke; il
me dit, n'êtes vous pas unofficiér publié; sur mia réponse aflirmative ile dit ;il
parait que vous avez fait beaucoup d'éfforts contre moi. Je lui dis, il mes parai

que



vou are making grcat exertions against me." I said to hin, " it appears you
are prejudiced against me." Ie asked me, if I had a vote to give, for whon
I should give it ; I told him 1 did not come there to flatter hii, and that if 1
lad a vote, I shooid give it to whon I pleased.

Did you hcar thircats used at the poll towards the clectors who came to give
thcir votes, and, by whon and to wlat electors were they used ?-I hcard the
Attorncy General say to several persons who appeared to have come for the pur-
pose of voting for Nir. Nelson, and who afterwards voted for him, " take good
" care of yourselves, for if afer you have taken the oath, it appears that you have

no riglit to vote, I shall prosecute you ; and ifyou «ive a falso vote, you will be
"guilty of perjury, and will be put in the pillory ; :ir. Nelson won't take your
"place for you."

Was 3Ir. Von IfHland whaom you have nentioned above, a magistrate in thie
.Borough of William Henry, and is lie so stili ?-He was so at that tine, and I be-
lieve he still is.

Vas he a warn partizan ; and in whose favor ?- 1-le appeared to bc a warn:
partizan of' the Attorney General.

,Tarcisse Crebassa, Esquire, of William Henrv, Student atLaw, iwas then, called
in, and examined, -as follows

Do you reside at the Borougli of William lenry, and Iow long have you done
so ?-I was born there, and i an twenty-fouîr years of age.

Was the last election ofMembcrs to serve in) the Provincial Parliarneat, in, 18 7,
warmly contested in the Borough of 'William I-lenry ?-Ycs.

Did you attend at the poil during the continuance of the said election ?--Yes,
the greater pai t of the time.

D)o you know that threats were frequiently used towards the electors wio caime
to vote ?--Yes ; on the part of one candidate, Mr. Stuart, the Attorncv Gene-
ral,) towards inany of the electors, who came to vote for Mr. Volfred elsoi,
tlie other candidate.

What werc these thîreats ?-e said to many of the clectors who came to vote
fbr Mr. Nelson, that ther had nor ighît to vote - and that if they voted without being,
very sure that ticy had a right to vote, he was Attorney General, thiat he woula
prosecute them, and cause them to be put in the pillory - And whcn 31r. Nelsoni
assured then that they had a right to vote, Mr. Stuart told theni to take good
care ; that Mr. Nelson would not put himself in thcir places, tiat he might be
a good doctor, but that he did not understanid the law ; imany were intimnidaced by
these specche, and did not vote till sone time, afterwards,-

Werc not several clectors arrested and put under bail d.uring the course of the
clection ? .- bchievc seven or eigrht.

Do vou know that a nan of the naine of A. Germain, the elder, voted at the
said election, and in whose favor ?-He voted for the Attorney Geieral.

Had this A. Germain, to your knowledge, any rel property belonaging to
himlu ?- No ; lie had malde a donation of a!l his property miany years before.,
and had onlv a life rent, a circunstance which lie hinsclit explained at the poll,
before he voted.

W'as mtiucli opposition made to his vote beinig receivied, and was there mucl
discussion made on..this subject ; and what passed at, that tiime ?--Mr. Nelsoni
remarked to him, thiat ha m ng made a donation of all his property lie had no right

to
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que vous êtes prévenu contre moi. Il me demanda si j'avais une voix à donner,
pour qui je la donnerais ; je lui dis que je n'étais pas venu la pour le fiatter, que
si j'en avais une, je la donnerais à qui bon me semblerait.

Avez-vous entendu au poli faire des menaces aux électeurs qui venaient voter,
et par qui et à quels électeurs étaient-elles fait ?-J'ai entendu M. le Procureur-
Général dire plusieurs fIis aux électeurs qui paraissaient venir voter pour M. Nel-
son et qui ont voté ensuite pour lui, prenez bien garde à vous, car si après avoir
prèté serment, il parait que vous n'avez pas le droit de voter, c'est moi qui vous
poursuivrai, et si donnez une mauvaise voix, vous serez coupable de paijure, et
vous serez mis au pilori; M. Nelson ne se mettra pas à votre place.

M. Von Ifdland dont vous avez parlé phis haut était-il magristrat dans le Bourg
de William Henry, et l'est-il encore ?--11 l'était dans le teis, etje crois qu'il est
encore.

Etait-il un chaud partisan dans l'élection, et pour qui ?-Il paraissait un chaud
partisan du Procureur-Général.

Yarciçsse Crebassa, Ecuy-er, étudiant en droit, de William -enry, à ensuite
été appelléet examiné comme suit:-

Demeurez-vous au Bourg de William Heînry depuis long teins ?- J'y suis ié, et
J ai vingt-quatre ans.

La dernière élection des nembrcs pourle parlement provincial dans-le Bourg dc
William Hlenry en 182, a-t-elle été vivement contestée ?-Oui.

Avez-vous assisté au poli pendant la durcé de 'élection ?-Oui, la plus grande
partie du teins.

Avez-vous connaissance qu'on ait souvent fait des menaces aux électeurs qui
venaient voter ?-Oui, de la part d'un candidat (M. Stuart, Procureur Général,)
ù plusieurs des électeurs qui venaient voter pour M. Wolfred Nelson l'autre can..
didat.

Quelles étaient ces menaces ?-Il disait à plusicuirs des électeurs de M. Nelsoa
qui venaient pour voter, qu'ils n'avait pas le droit de voter ; et que s'il votaient
saIs être bien certainsd'avoir le droit de le faire, qui lui il était Procureur Général,
et qu'il les poursnivrait pour paijure, et qu'il les ferait mettre au pilori ; et lors-
que M. Nelson, leur assurait qu'ils avaient droit de voter, _M. Stuait leur disait
de bien prendre garde, queM. Nelson nîese mettrait pas à leur place; qu'il pouvait
être boni docteur, mais qu'il n'entendait pas la loi ; il y cri a plusieurs qui ont été
intimidés par ces discours, et qui n'ont voté quelque tems après.

Plusieurs des électeurs le .M. Nelson n'ont-ils pas été arrêtés et mis sous caution
pendant le cours de l'élection ?-Oui, sept ou huit je crois.

Avez-vous connaissance qu'un nommé St. Germain, père, ait votéà cette éJc-
tion, et en faveur de qui ?-Oui, il a voté pour le Procureur Général-'

Ce St. Germain avait-il à votre connaissance aucune propriété fbncière a lui ap-
partenant ?---Non, il avait fàit donation de tous ses biens plusieurs années au-
paravant, et n'avait qu'une rente viagère ; ce qu'il a expliqué lui même au pol,
avant (le voter.

Y eut-il beaucoup d'opposition à la réception de sa voix et des disenssions
cet égard, et qlue se passa-t-il alors ?-M. NelsoL lui remarqua qu'ayant fait do-
nation de ses biens il n'avait pas le droit de voter, et de bien prendre garde à, ce

qu'il



to vote, and told him to take good care of what -lie was about to do : on which
A. Germain showed some repugnance to taking the oath. The Attorney General
said], that in his qual ity of Attorney General, he told him he had a right to vote,
aInd bade him Icar nothing. The Attorney General restored his courage by
taking his hand and putting it on the Testament fbr him ; he then took the
oath as a proprictor, and voted for Mr. Stuart.

Do you know that many other persons in the same situatio.n as A. Germain,
ioted in consequence of the opinion the Attorney General pronounced with re-
spect to Germain ?-,.After Nir. Germain had given his vote, two persons, one
iamed Aussant, and the other Hus dit Cournoyer,vho also made donations of their
property, voted for 31r. Neilson : when they offered to vote, the Attorney Ge-
nieral objected to theim,. saying, that having made donations of their property,
they had no right to vote, and that he would prosecute them for perjury ; upon
which several persons, and the-nen themselves, observed that Mr. Germain hav.
ing voted, anc being in the samesituation, tlcy had a right to do so; and they
did vote, after having taken the oti on the requisition of the Attorney Ge-
neral.

Were Aussant and Cournoyer, of whom you have spokzen, indicted for pejury
at the Court of King's Bencli for criminal matters at Montreal ?-Yes.

WVas Germain himself prosecuted in the Court of King's 3ench ?--No.

Were there several otier clectors, whose votes wcre objected to by Mr.
Nelson, as those of persons who had no real property, and who did not pay a
sufficient rent to quîalify them ?--Thre were several.

Did sevcral of these persons talke the oath to qualify them as proprietors or
telnlnts ?-Yes, several.

Were any of the electors who voted for Mr. Stuart, at the said election, pro-
secuted befbre the Court of King's Bench ?-- Several were indicted for perjury.
arrested in consequerce, and put under bail ; but I do not know that the prose-
cutions were carried on.

Did the Attorney General prosecute several of the electors who voted fbr Mr.
Nelson, at the Ci iminal L ourt ?-Yes; he prosecuted several.

John Dclis.l,!, Esquire, again appeared and bis examination was continued

Were there manvindictments fbr perjury laid before the Grand Jury at the
Crininal Term of'September 1827 ?-There were five, of whiclh fbur were tlhrowni
out and one fouind-

Wlat were the names ofthe persons indicted ? -The four first indictments were
ag!inst Antoine Paul Cournoyer, Nicholas Buckner, Antoie Aussant, and Jo-
>oph Claprooi ; the one that was fbund was against Joseph Allard.

oid not these indictmnents relate to perjuries alleged to have been committed at
tle c!cetion whiclh took place in the courâe (f the summer for the Borouglh of
William Henrv ?-Yes.

Wasit not publicly rotorious that the Attornev General had b.,en a Candidate
at the said election ? -Yes.

Was it not equally notoriouis that lie hiad lost his election?-Yes.
Were fresh indictments brought against th L sane persons & for the same ofln-

ses, at the Court of Oyer and Terminer lield in the month of November ofi the
sainI2



qu'il allait faire; sur quoi St. Germain témoignant quelque réqugnance à prèter
serment : M. le Procureur-Général lui dit qu'en sa qualité de Procureur-Général
il lui disait qu'il avait droit de voter, et de ne rien craindre. Le Procureur-Géné-
ral, le rassura en lui prendre la main, et la lui mit sur lë livre d'évangile; il prit
alors les sermens comme propriétaire, et vota pour 31. Stuart.

Est-il à votre connaisance que d'autres personnes dansle même cas que St. Ger-
main aient voté, en conséquence de l'opinion que M. le Procureur-Général avait-
mise au jour relativement à St. Germain ? -Après que M. St. Germain a eu donné
sa voix, deux personnes, l'une nommée Aussant et l'autre Ilus dit Courno)er, qui
avaient aussi fait donation de leîtr% biens, ont voté pour M. Nelson ; lorsqu'ils se
présentèrent pour voter, M. le Procu reur-Général objecta en leur disant qu'ayant
fait donation de leurs biens, ils n'avait pas le droit de voter, et qu'il les poursui-
vrait pour parjure ; sur quoi plusieurs personnes, et eux-mêmes, remarquèrent que
St. Germain ayant voté, et qu'étant dans la même situation, ils avaient droit de le
faire; et ils ont voté après avoir prêté le serineni, à la demande du Procxreur-Gé-
léral.

Les nommés Aussant et Cournover dont vous avez parlé ont-ils été depuis ae-
cusés de parjure devant le Cour du Banc du Roi de Montréal pour les matières
criminelles ?--Oui.

Le nommé St. Germain a-t-il été lui même poursuivi devant le Cour du Banc
du Roi ?---Non.

Y a-t-il eu plusieurs autres électeurs aux votes desquels 3M. Nelson s'est opposé
comme n'ayant aucune propriété foncière, ou ne payant un loyer souflisant pour
les qualifier ?...Il y ren a plusieurs.

Plusieurs de ceux ci ont-ils prétéle serment requis pour les qualifier comme pro-
priétaires ou locataires ?--Oui, plusieurs.

Quelques-uns des électeurs qui ont voté en faveur de M. le Procureur-Général
dans cette (lection ont-ils été poursuivis devant la Cour du 3rne du Roi?-Plius-
ieurs ont été accusés de parjure, ont été arrêtes en conséquence, ont été mis sous
caution; mais je n'i pas connaissance qu'ils aient été poursuivis.

. le Procureur-Général a-t-il povrsuivi devant la ('our Criminelle plusieurs
des électeurs qui avaient voté en faveur de M. Nelson ?-Oui, il en a poursuivi
plusieurs.

John Delisle, E'cuyer, a comparu de nouveau et son examen a été continué.

Y-a-t-il eu plusieurs actes d'accusations (indictiments,) de parjure soumis aux
grands-jurés dans le terme de la cour criminelle de septembre 1827 ?-Il y en a
eu cinq te présentés, dont quatre ont été rejettés et un rapporté.

Quels sont les noms des personnes qui étaient accusées ?-Les quatre premiers
étaient contre Antoine Paul Cournoyer,Nicholas Buckner, Antoine Aussant,
Joseph Claprood ; celui trouvé était contre Joseph Allard.

Ces accusations n'étaient-elles pas relatives à des parjiures allégues avoir été
commis à l'élection qui avait eu lieu dans le cour de l'été au bourg de William
Henry ?-Oui,

M. le Procureur Général n'avait-il pas été, de notoriéte publique, candidat à
cette élection ?- Oui.

N'était-il pas aussi de notoriété publique qu'il avait perdu son élection ?-Oui.
De nouvelles accusations (indiciments) ont-elles été portées contre ces mêmes

personnes dans la cour d'oyer et terminer de Novembre de la méine année, pour
raisous



SaniC e air ?-Yes,, against the sanie persons ; and also a,,-ainst Jean Baptiste Can-
Uiîrî, iosLîlie Saint.Niclicl -and Louis Aliard, for pcrjury altegcd to have been
conîritted at the saine clcction, and tiiese ciglit bis wverefound. Anl indictinent
wvas also broticgbt against Louis Marcoux l'or subornation of perjury, and this bill

%V'ere the persons su indieted tried durin- the sitting of ilhe sa'd Court of Over
and , erminlcr ?-NotonLe oftlîm.

VéYcrc ail the persoris so indicted compelled to give security for thecir appeararîce
atM1arch 'rerin followin .--T the best ofmy kîiowledge tlîey werc ail obliged to

findc securi ty for tbieir appearance at the Crirninal Terni in blarchi Ibllowing.
M'crc thiey brou-lit to trial duriiug the said Tcrmn in blarcli ?--.No.
Wcîc tiuev araill obligd tog? cai --I think they tvcic,,fbr the Septeru-

ber Terni folowiing,.(i2.
%Verc tlîey brouglit to trial during the Iast September '[crin, (! "S. ---0îiil-

one orthein %Vas tried, Joseph Claprood, and lie wsas conviictcd.
WVerc thec otlher persouis so indietcd pot usider bail ?--.I. beiievc so, to ilie best of

li what inatiner dlid these irîdictiments corne beforc the Court of Kin-îs BLiieli?
-lhey vùwrc reinov-ed froin the Court of Ovcr anîd Terminer, by a Writ or

C&rliorari addressed tu the coin missi one.rs of' tue said Court of Oyer and Te'r-
Mi ner.

Werc uoct ail the Judgcs of the Couirt of Kin-%~ lenci iîîcltided ilu h uinber
oÊ the commissioners ci the saici Court of' Oi'er and Trir?.-t;andi ac-
corcling to the terms of' the codilirisbion, the Court could ûot; bc held witliout the
PrC.seflce of olie cf Lhecn.

W elle VOLI Clerk of' tiiese said Courts of Oyer and Terminer ?--eby virtue of
a l'Cil OlfliSoi ir cail of' the Said Courts.

%Verc iiitlictii ts fbr Libel brougi wgaainst ceriain E itors or Priinter.% of nîîb-
lic lletwslapoers during the sittiuîg of 1'the said Cotait of OyerandtiI1ei-àiner hc!d ili
Novidxîibel 1827 ?--u~gthe sittiiig of the saicl Couti tof Oycraîîdttlerminincrin

NomcrISQthe G r:uîd Jtury lo usîîd thi-ce indicrnents ; Oie ai:uumîist.Jocelyzui
'Waller and t.ugrDuvcînay; anothier against the.-saine pcrsodis, and aà third agiist
J aines Latîw.

Weî'c the [persOils so indicteci Efiors or Printers of' piubli ic wspip-,rs?-_-Yes.
M"ere further prc~ciîstaketà aôaitist the saidl persons bcforec e.aid Court ?

0o.
Were uhcey put limie'r bail, and %what was the :urnoilnt oftlie bail ?-lîwere

put uîîder bait ir tlîeir zt;-,Iearance iii the Marcli Terni fkollowiing. 8n8) 'auJ as
lâar as 1 cari recuIIect il ainount of the bail, %vas £ZOO Iir tite prinîcipal, £ , £Qo

foi, tl*.c two sccuirities un eacil iradietîjîcaîlt.
%Vere tlcv îîoi, at the saine time, ub1lùgek1 to Crive sccuirity for thc'ir good belia-

viour . ,-yeà,~ that was iticludecl in the bond.
M'cre Primeccilng. taken agaitist the sald pcrsolis, ili the Crimîiîîal 'crin of the

Couirt of cii's liî, liii March ?-oprocetdings %vcre taken alist
tileii, but tlmuy %%etre compellcd to gitvc frcsli sectirity fbr ilie jmont> of' sep.telliber

foJo~'ng.(lS28)aid duringr the cotg"~ ci* titis Terni iL was orderedl, on the ino-
iioii t,r ic Attorney C'encrai, that tlîey shlould be brcu.;ht to trial bcdii[e a Special.
.f!uîy, i the Scpt.?mur 'l'rin Iofwig ,

low didl tiiese indictrnns corne before the Court! of K iin's B1enclih Tc
wcrle r'C.noucd frorn the Court offlvûr ami. *lerrnivr to!the Cotirt of' King's Bencli
ini MJ:rclî, by a %vrit of Vci tiorayrè, ini the sanie maniner asthe otlhera of vhich 1
liave bcflorc spokel. ï

WVerc any furtiier p)rccccdiings taken oni these indctincnts, or on auiv of' them, in
thc Sel) en b erT'[rin lolwu?-Sîcljumrics l':d Lecul hâd ini ail the causes of'
whici 1 have befi.rc spoke.in ;a retturi l iîd betil mîade by thc Sliucil'oithe Special
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raisons des mêmes délits ?-Oui, contre les mêmes et en ôutre contre Jean Baptiste
Canitara, Rosalic Saint-Michel et Louis Allard, pour parjures, allégués avoir été
aussi commis à la même élecfion, et ces huit bills ont été trouvés. Il y a eu aussi
uin.bill contre.Louis Marcoux, accusé de subornation de parjure, (subornation of
parjury,) dans la même élection, et ce bill a été trouvé.

A-t-on fait le procès à ces accusés pendant la tenue de la dite cour d'oyer et
terminer ?-Non à aucun d'eux.
. Tous ces accusés ont ils été mis sous caution pour paraître dans le terme de
Mars suivant ?-Au meilleur de ma connaissance ils l'ont tous été pour le terme dle
cour oriminelle de Mars suivant.

Le procès de ces accusés a-t-il été fait dans le terme de Mars ?-Non.
Ont-ils de nouveau été mis sous caution ?-Je le crois pour le terme de Sep-

tembre suivant (1828.)
A-t-on fait le procès de ces accusés dans le terme dernier de Septembre 1828 ?

-On a fait le procès qu'à un seul, Josephi Claprood, qui a été convaincu.
Les autres accusés ont-ils été mis de nouveau sous caution ?-Je le crois au

meilleur de ma connaissance.
Comment ces actes d'accusations (indictments) ont-ils été mis devant la cour dIu

banc du roi ?-ls ont été rapportés de la cour d'oyer et terminer par un writ de
certiorari adressé aux commissaires de la dite cour d'oyer et terminer.

Tous les juges de la cour du banc du roi n'étaient-ils pas du nombre des com-
missaires de la dite cour d'oyer et terminer ?-Oui et la cour ne pouvait pas tenir
.eans l'un d'eux aux termes de la commission.

Etiez-vous le groller de ces cours d'oyer et terminer ?-Oui cri vertu d'une coin-
mission. spéciale pour chacune de ces cours.

Y-a-t-il eni des accusations (indictnents) pour libelles contre quelques Impri-
meurs ou Editeurs (le papiers publics dans la dite cour d'oyer et terminer tenue en
Novembre mil huit cent vingt-sept ?--Dans la cour d'over et terminer, tenue ei
Novembre il huit cent vingt-sept, les grands-jurés ont rapporté trois bills d'in-
dictements, (accusations) l'un contre Jocelyn Waller et Ludger Duvernay; un
second contre les mêmes ; et un troisième contre James Lane.

Ces accusés étaiant-ils (les éditeurs ou imprimeurs de papiers publics ?-Oui.
A-t-on procédé dans cette cour contre les accusés ?-Non.

Les a-t-on mis sous caution et quel était le montant des cautionnemens ?.-Ils
ont été mis a caution pour le terme de Mars suivant (1829) et autant que je puis
me rappeller le cautionnement était de £50D pour le principal, et £250 pour
chacun des deux cautions, et ce sur chaque accusation.

Ne les a-t-on pas aussi en même temps obligés à donner caution de bonne
condition ?---Ouîi, cela était compris dans le cautionnement.

A-t-ou procédé contre ces accusés clans le terme de la cour du banc du roi pour
les matières criminelles en Mars ?-Il n'a pas été procédé contre eux, mais on les
acontraints de donner de nouveau le mème cautionnement pour le mois de Sep-
t2mbre suivant (1828; et il a été ordonné clans ce terme, sur la motion du Procu-
reur du Roi, que ces procès auraient lieu dans le terme de Septembre suivant
devant un corps de jurés spéciaux.

Comment ces actes d'accusation (indictments) sont ils venus devant la cour du
banc du roi ?--Ils ont été apportés Cie la cour d'over et terminer à la cour du banle
du roi de mars, par un writ de certiorari de la même manière que les autres dont
j'ai déjà parlé.

Y a-t-il ei quelques procédés subséquens sur ces accusations (indictMents) ou
aucunes d'elles dens le terme dle Septembre suivant ?.-Il y avait eu des jurés spé-

CULUX



Jurors summoned on the indictments found against Joseph Constantineau, Eloi
Benêche, Augustin Loriau, John Woolscamp, Louis Dechantal and John Mc-
Donell. This Jury was dismissed at the instance of the personsindicted, and no
other proceedings took place on any of the indictnents of which I have spoken.

Were not the lists of Jîirors (of which that made by yourselfand the. Attorney
Gencral was one) taken from the list drawn up for the Courts of Civil Juris:iiction?
.- Yes.

Had a Special Jury ever been moved for in the Courts of Criminal Jurisdiction
before the period of whiclh you spoke ?--No.

By whom were you required to strike the Special Jury ?--.By the Attorney Ge-
neral.

Extract from the cvidence of Jacques Viger, Esquirc:

Do you know that several prosecutions for libel were brought before the Cri-
rainal Court at Muntreal, last year ?-Yes.

Were not those prosecutions'occasioned by certain writings published at Mont-
real, in the Canadian Spcctitor, La Miner've, and the Spectateur iCanadien ?--
Yes.

Have Vou, since March, 192j, observed writings or paragraphs extremely vio-
lent against the people of the country, their Representatives, or the louse of
Assemrbly, published in the Official Gazettes and other papers in the interest of
the adminirtration ?-Yes ; and sone of these writings were republished as pam-
phflets, and distributcd gratuitously, or at very low prices.

Arc vou aware that any of the -Editors or Printers of the said Gazettes wcrc
prosecuted for libel ?-They wcre fnot prosecutcd.

In your opinion, have not the said Cazettes frequently furnislhed matter as.
legitimate for prosecition fbr libcl, as the newspapers first inentioned ?--Most
certainly. .

Vas it not the general opinion that the said public papers would not be in.-
dicted, because they were on the side of the Administration ?-Yes.

Extract from the Evidcnce of A.,nry Grifin, Esquire.

Do you know whetler several prosecutions for libel were institutecd last ycar,
at Montrcal, in the Crimiinail Courts, or the Courts of Oyer and Terminer ?-I
have understood so.

Was it not a thing of public notoricty ?--It was.
Werc not the said prosecutions occasionel by certain vritings published in the
Canadiar. Spectator," La Minerve,' or the " Spectateur Canadien ?"-I believe

they werc.
Were those papers gencrally favorable to Lord Dalhousie's Administration ?
They have never been considered so.
IIave vou had occasion soneties to read tie .lontreal Herald, the Montrcal

Oiricial G;aacttc, the Quebec 0}icial Gazctic, or the Qucbcc Jicrcury, since March
134 ?-I have had occasion to read theu all, except the Quctcc 1crcury.

Did



ciaux pour toutes les causes dont j'ai parlé ci-dessus; un retour de sommation
der dits jurés spéciaux a été fait par le shérif sur l'accusation (indictnents) trouvé
contre Joseph Constantineau, Eloi Bénêche, Augustin Loriau, John Wool-
scamp, Louis Dechantal et Jolhn McDonell. CC juré a été mis de côté à l'ins-
tance des défendeurs, et il n'a été fait aucun autre procédé sur aucune des accu-
sations dont j'ai parlé.

Les listes, dont celle qui a été faite par vous et le Procureur Général, nétaient
elles pas formées à même'les listes lites pour les couirs de jurisdiction civile?
Oui

A vait-on jamais dans les cours de jurisdiction criminelle, dont vous avez parlé,
demandé un jury spécial avant cette époque ?-Non.

Par qui avez.vous éte requis de rayer (Io sirikc) les jurés spéciaux ?-Par le
Procureur du Roi.

Extraitdu témoignage de Jacques Viger, Ecuyer.

Avez-vous connaissance qu'il ait été intenté l'an dernier à Niontréal, plusieurs
poursuites pouir libelles devant lès cours criminelles ?-Oui.

Ces poursuites ne résultaient-elles pas de certains écrits publiés dans le Ca-
nadian Spectator, la .Minerve ou le Seetateur Canadien, à Montréal ?--Oui.

Avez-vous rermarqué depuis Mars 1827, des écrits ou p'aragraphes extrême-
ment violens contre le peuple du pays, ses représentans, ou la Chambre d'As-
semblé:,, publiés dans les gazettes fHicielles et autrcs papiers dans l'intérêt de
l'adninistration ?-Oui, et quceques-uns de ces écrits ont été républiés en bro-
chures et distribués gratuitement, ou à très bas prix.

Avez-vous connaissance qu'aucuns des Editeurs ou Imprimeurs de ces Ga-
zette's aient été poursuivis pour libelles ?-Ils n'ont pas été pnursuivis.

Dans votre opinion, ces Gazettes n'ont elles pas fourni fréquemment matière
aussi légitime à des poursuites pour libelles, que -les Gazettes mentionnées Ci
premiier lieu ? -Bien certainement.

Nétait-ce pas l'opinion générale que ces papiers publics ne s2raient pas in-
criminés par ce qu'ils étaient dans le sais de l'administration ?-Oui.

Extrait du Ténoignage de ienry Grj/in, Ecuyer.

Avez-vous connaissance qu'il y ait ci l'an dernier à Montréal plusieurs pour-
suites poir libelles portées devant les cours criminelles, ou les cours d'oyer et
terminer ?--J'ei ai entendu parler.

N'est ce pas une chose de notoriéte publique ?---Oui, cela était notoire.
Ces poirsulits ne résuiltaieit-elles pas de certains écrits publiés dlans le Cana-

dian Sptectator, la 31inerr o.. le Spcetateur Canadien à Montréal ?-Je crois que
oui. -

Ces papiers nouvellcs étaient-ils généralement favorables à l'administration du
Lord l)alhousie ?-On ne les a jamais considérés comme tels.

Avez-vous cu occasion de lire quelques Jois depuis Mars 1827, le Heraid de
Montréal, la Gazet.c oflicielle d1e Montréal, la Gazette oflicielle de Québec ou le
JIercuryi de la même ville ?.-J ai cu occasion de les lire tous, à l'exception du
Quebec Mercury. N'avez



Did -you observe in anv of the-said papers, writings or paragraphs extremely
violent against the pcoplcof this country, the Representatives, or the Ilouse of
Assemnbly ?-1 hai.ve renarked some violent paragralphs of that description, wlicl
no doubt arose fron similar paragraphs in the Spectalcur Canadien, Canadian Spec-
laieur and Minerve, against the Administration and its supporters.

Do you know whether âiny of the Editors or Printers of the said papers, the
.Ilontreal H-eraild, the .Montreal 0//iciail Gazette, or the Qucbcc Official Gazette
were prosecuted for libel ?-I an not aware of it.

Were the said papers last rnentioned, favorable to Lord Dalhousie's Adminis-
tration ?-Ycs.

Extract from the Evidence of Chailes Mondebt, Esqnire

Werc any prosecutions for libel instituted in the district of Three-Rivers ?-There
were no prosecutions at Thrcee- Rivers ; but there were at Quebec against imyself, al.
though I was constandy resident at Tiree-Rivers.
- Betweei the publication of the libel imputed ta you, and the time when the bill of

indictment against you was preferred at Quebec,'.was no Criminel Court hcld at
Three-Rivers, at w'hich such bill night have been preferred1 and proseçuted as effectu-
ally as in the capital ; and was there any thing remnarkabte in the manner in which
these prosecutions were commenced aid carried on against vou ?-The bills of
indictrment prefcrred against me by the Attorney General, vere so preferred in the
imonth of March last. The two articles attributed to me, were puiblished in the Que-
bec Gazette, the one, (a letter to Lord Dalhousie,) in November 1827, and the
other, (the proceedings of the Constitutional Committee of the district of Thrce-
Rivers. on the 25th February last,) on the 28th of the s:nie month. A Criminal
Court was held at Three-Rivers,which commenced on the [St li arch last, and which
bv law could take cognizance of criminal inatters on the first four juridicial days of
tie Tern of the Court of King's Biench. The Attorney Gcneral might have prose-
cted me there, and I remember that the public of Three-Llivers weret much as-
ronished that the. Attorney General lad not preferred a bill of indicrnent against
me at Three-1ivers, seeing that Mr. .Vezina!, cie of the King's Counsel, had openly
said, that wie (thc Comxiittec of the 28th February, of which I have beforc speken,)
would be there indicted for having held a seditious meetingç at Mr. Kinber's bouse.
Ir is true that in public, another reason m as assigned for the iittorney Gencral's
silence, that the respectability of the Grand Jury, which I believe, (though I an net
very certain of it,) lad beei surmmoned before the appearance of the proceedings oi"
the 25th February, offered, as it was said, no very flattering prospect to the Attorney
CGeneral. Such at lcasr were the opinions expressed in public. The circumstances
which gave rise to these prosecutions, were as follows :I have air.eady said. that by
thdè General Order of Militia, dated the 5th November, 1827, and. published in the
Quebec Oflicial Gazette, on the Sth of the sanie month, I was deprived of my rank
of Captain Aice-MAlajor of the heretofore division of Boucherville. On the I2th of
ti sane mronth, a letter addressed te Lord Dalhousie, appeared in the Quebec Ga-
zette. This letter was at the time attributed to me; I was then at Qucbec ; I
rernained there front the 9th until the 17th Noverber inclusively ; I was every dav
in the Court of Appeals: the Attorney Gencral and the Councillors saw me there ;
even pleaded before the said Court. The Attorney General did not cause nie ta be
detained ; there were at that time no procecdings against mue. In January followinp



N'avez-vous jamais remarqué dans aucuns de cas papiers des écrits, ou para-
graphes extrêmement violens contre le peuple di pays,-ses réprésentans ou la
chambre d'assemblée ?-Jai remarqud quelques par agraphes violens de cette des-
cription, qui sans doute puJeraient de semblables paragraphes dans le Sp)ccta-
teur, le Canadian Spectator et la Minerve contre l'administration, et ceux qui la

Avez voUs connaissance qu'aucuns les Editeurs ou Imprimeurs de ces Ga-
zettes, le Herald de Montréal, la Gazette odicielle de .\ontréal, la Gazette offi-
cielle de Québcc, aient été poursuivis pour libelles ?-Je n'en ai pas connais-
sance.

Ces papiers étaient-ils en faveur de l'administration du Lord Dalhousie ?-Oui.

Extrait du témoignage de Charles2 Mondelêt, Ecu yer.

Quelques poursuites pour libelles ont-elles eu lieu dans le District des Trois-
Rivières ?.-J i ny a -as eu de poursuites aux Trois-Rivières, mais il y en a eu à
QuiCbec, contre moi, quoique je sois domicilié aux 'lrois.R<ivières.

- Entre la publication diu libelle que l'on vous a imputé et Placcusation portée
contre vous à Québec, ne s'est-il tenue aucune cour criminelle aux Trois-Riviéres,
devant laquelle cette accusation aurait pi être portée et suivie avec amant d'eii-
cacité que dans la capitale ; et y eat il quelque chose de remarquable dans la ma-
uiére dont ces poursÂites ont étL intentées et poursuivies contre vous ?-Les accu-
sations portées à Qu: bec par le Procureur-Général, contre moi, l'ont été en mars
dernier. Les deux écrits. que l'on m'attribuait avit ·té publiés dans la G zette
de Québec, Fun (une lettre au Lord Dalhousie) cin novembre 1827, et I autre,
(les procélés du comité constitutionnel du dist: ict des Trois.1Rivivres. du 25
février dernier,) le 12- du même mois. Il s&est tenu aux- Trois-Riviéres une cour
criminelle, qui a commencée ie 1d( de mars dernier, et qui par la loi-prend con-
naissance des inati-res crimiinelles les quatre premiers jou:s juridiques de la cour
du banc di, roi. Le l>îocu&reur.Général aurait pu iml'y poursuivre, et je me rap-

elle que le public des Trois Rivières fut très étonné- de ce que le Procureur-
Général n'avait pas porté d'accuisitions.contre moi aux Trois-Rivières, vu que
'M. Vézina, conseil de la couronne, avait dit -hautement qoe nous, c'est.à-dire
le comité du 25 février, dont j*ai par-lé, V serions poursuivis, pour avoir tenu
une assemblèe séditieuse chez .\. Kimuber. Il est vrai que l*bn assigna dans le
public une autre raison-du silence du Procureur-Général, la respectabilité de la
majorité du Grand-Jurv, qui je 'crois, (quoique je n'en suis pas bien ertain,
avait été sommé avant l'a(paition des pro;:édlés du 25 iè.vrier, offrait, disait on,
une perspective peu flatteuse au Procureur-Général. Tels étaient au moins lès
propos dans le public.

Voici les circonstances qui ont donné lieu à ces roursuites
J'ai déj. dit que par un ordre ginéral le milice du . de novembre 1827, t.pu-

blié dans la Gazette o.ciellc e Québec, le 8 du inéme mois, je l's dcemis de
mon rang de cC taine-aide-majr u la ci-levant division de Boucheu ville. Le 112
dcl; méme mois il pau ut dans la Gazette de Quîébec, une lettre adressée an Lord
Dalhousie ; elle me fit attribuis alors ; j'étais alors à Quebec ; j'y demeurai de-
puis le 9 jusqu'au 17 d(e novembre inclusivement ; j'assistais tous les jours à la
cour d'appel, le Procureur-Général et les conseillers m'y voyaient; je plaidai
même devant la dLite cour. Le Procureur-Général ne me fit point arréter, il n'y
eut alors aucuns procédés contre moi. En janvier suivant je descendis à Québec

j 's-



I'went down to Quebec ; I was in the Court of Appeals ; 1 saw the Attorney Ge-
neral, and was seen by him there ; -I pleaded before the said Court ; no intimation
was given me that the letter to Lord Dalhousie; attributed to me, was looked upon
ns a libel. After the prorogation of Parliament inNovem'ber 1827, a general meet-
ing of the inhabitants of the district, was held in the town, of Three-Rivers, for the
purpose of adopting and laying before the King and the Imperial Parliarnent, resoli-
tions and petitions against Lord Dalhousie's administration. Messrs. Legendre and
« De Courval, of whoni I have before spoken, were the Deputy Chairmen. Since
that rime, they have zealously co-operated with their countrymen, and have continued
to encourage thepeople in their just remonstrances. Tho Quebec Official Gazette
annoutnced to the public that they had been deprived of their rank as Lieutenant
Colonels, and charged by Lord Dalhousie with " having shewn themselves theactive

agents of a party hostile tò His Majesty's Government.
As these gentlemen had always been remarkable for their loyalty, the public be-

Iievedthat their crime was that of having taken part in the deliberations of the people
against Lord Dalhousie'sadninistratiou. It was resolve4, that the public opinion'on
this subject should be expressed. A meeting was in consequence held at Mr. Kini-
ber's, at vhich resolutions and addresses to these two gentlemen, were adopted;
aind to these they returned answers. These proreedings, which were treated as crimes
by the Attorney General, are to be found in the No. 8830 of the Quebec Gazette,
and were published on the 28th February 1828. I have·already said that a Crininal
Court vas held at Three-'Rivers on the 13th March 1828.; I was there ; I acted as
an Advocate ; I was seen by thp Attorney General ; I had even occasion to 'come in
contact withhini in the discussion:of a point of law; but the A ttorney General did
not.8top there. On the 23d of March, five citizens of Three-Rivers, Mr. Kinber,
the late Dr. Talbot, and Messrs. P. A. Dumoulin, A. Z. Leblanc, and Wtn. Vonden-
velden, received subpænas commanding their attendance before the Grand Jury at
Quebec, o ithe 2sth of the sane month, ato prove evidence against me for a
xiisdeneanor.'

On the 2d April, 1828 I ,'as: arrested in my office ai, Three-Riivers. The
Provincial Court, which sits froin the I st to the 1 Oth April, was then sittiog. The
IIigli Constable, Mr. Aylwin, shewed me two warrants by which I learht that two
indictments, for libel, had been found.against me by the Grand Jury at Quebec:
after an hour's prpparation I was obliged to leave my family, and My busiess,
of which I had û great deal in the Aprit Teim, and go down to Quebec. The
roads were very bad, and the ice worse, tie son having at that tirne much pover.
I arrived at Quebec, on the 3d April, at 11 at tnight The next, day, (Good
FridayJ I vas obliged to give bail before the Chief Justice, in £500 on each of
the indictmehts, myself in £2 50, and each of my securities in £125, on each of
the indietments, for mny appeariance at the Criminal Terni of September following,
and for good beiviore in, the mean ime. I made pa opposition to those ýpro-
Ceedings, because I knew the Court had required bail frôni the other persons
indictedfoi lihel ; I considered it useless to try the question. A ieft Quebec on
the following day; travelling was then dangerous, the ice being bad. 1Indoru-
pliance withu the conditions of the bail bond, I was obliged to leave Three.Rivers
on the 3th ofSeptember last- The Court of Kingí'ï Bench vras then sitting, .
was obiliged toleave my business andI my clients to go down to Québec. 'On the
Ist day of the Criminal Tern at Quebec, I was called into Court by tie Clerk of
the Crown, but was not called upot to plead to the indictments. I was in Court
rrom day to day, (witl the exception oftwo or thrree days of sicknéss,) I shewed
snyself to the Attorney General ; I asked himi if lie intetgled to proceed ajpinst
me; hie ansWered me that he had inforned my Counsel, thàt if he wished to pro-
ceed against mnê, lie wQuld inform nie of it. In this mannerI was detained ini
Quebec for nine days without any proceedings. Øn the as day of the Tern,
the torney Geneî al addressed tlie Court, stated tiat the nmultiplicity of bu-
siuess h;d prevented his proceeding against të persons indicted for libels, and

requiring



j'assistai à la cour d'appel; j'y vis le Procureur-Général et fut. vu de lui ; je plaidai
devant cette cour ; l'on ne me fit nullement appercevoir que l'on regardât comme.
un libelle, la lettre au Lord Dalhousie, que l'on m'attribuait. Après la proro.
gation du parlement en novembre 1827, iTy eut dans la ville des Trois-Rivières,
le 22 décembre, une assemblée générale des habitans du district, aux fins d'a.
dopter et faire parvenir au Roi et au Parlement Impérial, des résolutions et, des
requêtes contre l'administration de Lord Dalhousie. , MM. Legendre et Courval
dont j'ai déjà parlé en fuient les vices-présidens. Depuis, ils se sont joints avec
zèle à leurs compatriotes, et ont contribué à encourager le petiple dans ses justes
réclamations. La Gazette officielle de Québec, du21 février 1828, apprit au
public, qu'ils étaient démis de leurs rangs de lieutenans-colonels, et taxés par
le Lord Dalhousie de 1' s'étre montrés les agens actifs d'un parti hostile au Gou-

vernement de Sa Majesté."
Ces.méssieurs ayant toujours été connus pour le' loyauté, le public crut que

leur crime était celui d'avoir pris part aux délibération du peuple contre l'admi-
nistration de Lord Dalhousie. Il fut résolu d'exprimer pinion du public à ce
sujet. Il y eut-en conséquence une assemblee du comité, hez M. Kimber; il y
fpt adopté des'rêsôlutions, des adresses aux deux messieurs démis; ils y répondi.
dirent : ces procédés qui ont été incrimin"s par le procureur-général, se trouvent
dans le n . 8830 de la Gazette de Québée, publiée le 128 février 1828. Pi' -

déjà dit qu'il se tint aux Trois-Rivières une cour criminelle le 13 de mars 1848;
j'y étais, je pratiquai comme avocat, je fus vu du procureur-général, j'eus même
occasion de venir en contacte avec lui dans la discussion d'une question légale
mais le procureur général n'en resta pas là. Le 13 de mars, .cinq citoyens des
Trois-Rivières, MM. Kirmber, feu docteur Talbot, P. E. Dumoulin, A. Z. Le-
blanc et Wm. Vondenvelden reçurent des subpameas qui leur ordonnaient de coi-
paraitre le 28 du même mois, devant le grand-juré à Québec, «pour rendre

témoignage contre moi, for a misdemeanor."

Le 2 avril 1828, je fàt appréhendé dans mon étude, aux Trois-Rivières; la
cour provinciale qui siége depuisle 1er; jusqu'au 10 avril, siégeait alors. Ï.
Aylwin, grandrconnétable de Québec, me montra deux warrasts par . lesquela
e vis que deux actes d'accusation avaient été rapportés contre moi, par le grand-

juré de Québec pour libelles ; après une heure de préparation, il me fallut laisser
tua famille et mes afEdres qui étaient très-multipliées dans le terme d'avril, et:
descendre 1 Québec.. Les chemins étaient très:mauvais, et les glaces l'étaient
encore d'avantage, le soleil ayant alors beaucoup de force. 'arrivai à Québec
le a d'avril, ù 11 heures du soir. Le lendemain, (vendredi saint.) l'on me força
de donner caution devant le juge en chef pour £500, sur chacun des indictemens,
savoir : moi-même pour £250 et chacun de:'mes cautions pour £125 sur chacun
des indictemens pour ma compatution au terme triminel de septembre snivant,
et pour bonite conduitë dans l'interim. Je ne m'opposai pas à ces lrocédvs, je savais
que la cour l'avait e xigé des autres accusés de libelle ; je considérais éomme inu-
tie de le tenter. Je laissai Québec le lendemain, il était dangéieux de voyager
les glaces étant mauvaises. Il me filut en obéissance à mes cautionnemens
laisser les Trois- Rivières le 120 septembre dernier. La cour du banc du roi siégeait -
ilfallut laisser affaires et cliens et descendre à Québec. , Le premier jour de 'la'
cour crimiuelle de Québec, je fus appelé erncour par le clp'c de la couronne';
je répondis ; mais il ne me fut pas demandé de plaider aux ,indictemens , D
jour en jour je me réndais en cour (à l'exception de deux ou trois jours de ma-
ladie,) je m inontrais au procureur-général, je lui demandais s'il entendait pro
céder contre moi ; il mde répondit qu'il avait inforn1fi moi avocat, que s'il voulait
procéder contre moi, il len avertirait. C'est ainsi que j'ai étêtetenu a Québec pen
dantneufjours sans aucunsprocédés. Le dernier jour du terme, le procureur-généat
s'adressa à la'eour, en disant que la multiplicité des affaires l'avait empêché de

por-



requiring that we should give fresli bail for our appearance at the next Marci
Termn, and I was obliged to do so, notwitlstanding the opposition I had made.
iefore I gave bail, I wished to except to the jurisdiction of the Court, the At-

torniey General, .in opposing this, said that 1 oughit to plead in writing ; the,
mnajority of the Court decided that I should plcad in wiiting. I am now tnder
bail for good beliaviour, and for my appearance at the next Marci Term ; the
bail was given for the sarne amount as in April last. I have since sent my plea
to the jurisdiction of the Court to Quebec, after having in September obtained
leave to file it.

What was the nature of the indictments brouglit against you ?-I took com-
muanication of the indictments brought ag-ainst me, "at the office of the Clerk of
the Crown. I am there indicted for seditious libels, as being tic cneny of ie Go-
vcrmcnnt, and other expressions of nearly 'the same nature, with relation to the
nisdcmcanors with whiclh I an chagced. In one of those indictnents, the letter to
Lord Dalhousie, of the 10ti Novenber, 1827, published as I have before said,
in the Quebec Gazette on the 12th of the same month, and which has becn atLri-
buted to me, is inserted at full length, and stvled a /ibel. The other indict-
ment is founded on the proceedings of the Constitutional Committee of the
1istrict of Tlhrce-Rivers, of the 2.)5th of February l28, the remarks, which
were attributed to me, included. I have already mentioried that the whole
mxay be found in No. 3830 of the Quebec Gazette, published on the 2Sth Fe-
bruary 1828.

lHave you paid any attention to the newspapers -which have been publishcd in
this Province for ncarly two years past, and which were in the interest of the
Administration during the time Lord Dalhousie was Governor of this Province ?
-Yes ; I have been in the habit of paying very close attention to the aflàirs or
the country,'and to the papers in the interest of Lord Dalhousie's administration,
as well as the others.

Have you observed wlether in the papers in the interest of the said administra-
tion productions wereinserted in whiclh the people and the represertatives of the
country, or the public men who opposed the administration, were instltcd ?--
Yes,'and very often. -

Could you point ot à some instances ?-Yes ; and I now produce the follow-
ing extracts from the " Quebee Mercury,' " The Quebcc Official Gazette," and
the " Montreal OffIcial Gazette," . These writings extend frorn the 4th Noven-
ber 1827, to the Sth September, 182S, inélusively. I night have produced rnany
others, but I confined myself to the imost striking. .Therc have been manv
others at the time the Parliament was prorogued. on the 7th March 1827, an;d
since that time.

Extract from the Quebec Mercury, speakinîg of the debates in the Assembly
on the question respecting the Speaker, (No. 96--241th Novenber, i827.

"<The present Provincial Parliament is now prorogued, and the Knights, Ci-
tizens and Burgesscs, in the Proclamation misnamedJàil/ùl, have forty days
to reflect on their miisdeeds'.

" What good can bc expected from a body who have exhiibited such a per.
" feet ignorance of their duty, sumch an utter contempt fbr all constitutionial
".:authiotity, and such blind obedienîce to an unprincipled leader, as have been
" shewn by the majority of the Assembly of the Provincial Parliament of Lower.

Canada, on thcir nemorable Session of threc days duration."



'I7

procéder contre les accusés de libelles, et il demanda que nous entrassions. en
reconnaissance de nouveau pour notre comparution au terme de mars prochain ;
ce que je fus obligé de faire malgré mon opposition. Avant -de donner mon
cautionnement je voulus excepter de la jurisdiction de la cour, le procureur-
général opposa que je devrais plaider par écrit ; la majorité de la cour décida que
je plaiderais par écrit. Je suis maintenant sous caution pour bonne conduite et
pour ma comparution au terme -de mars prochain ; les cautionnemens ont été
pour les mêmes sommes qu'en avril dernier. J'ai envoyé depuis à Québec mon
plaidoyer à la jurisdiction de la cour, après avoir eu en Septembre, la permission
de le filer.
- Quelle est la nature- des accusations (indictments) portées contre vous ?-J'ai

pris communication au bureau du greflier de la couronne des indictemens rap-
portés contre moi ; j'y suis accusé de libc!/cs séditieur, d'être ic'nneni du Gouver-
nement, et d'autres expressions à peu près de la même nature, relatifs aux accu-
sations mises à ma charge. L'un de ces indictemens renferme au long, et note de
libelle, une lettre au Lord Dallousie, le 10 nouvembre 1627, et publiée comme
je Pai déjà dit, dans le Gazette de.Q:ébec, du 12 (lu même mois, et qui m'a été
attribuée. L'autre indictement est fondé sur les procédés du comité constitu-
tionnel du district les Trois-Rivières, du 23 février 1SOS, (y comprises les re-
marques,) qui m'ont été attribuées. J'ai déjà meptionné que le tout su trouve
dans le numero 3880 de la Gazette de Québec, publiés le 23 février 182S.

Avez-vous donné quelqu'attention aux feuilles périodiques qui ont été imprimés
dans cette province depuis environ deux ans, et qui étaient dans l'intérêt de
l'administration pendant que le Lord Dalhousic était gouverneur en cette pro-
vince ?-Oui, j'ai eu Plhabitude de suivre (le bicn près les aflhires du pays, et les
feuilles périodiques dans Pintérèt de l'administration du Lord Daliousie aussi
bien que les autres.

Avez-vous remarqué si dans les feuilles qui étaient dans l'intérêt de cette ad-
ministration il se trouvait souvent des productions dans lesquelles on insultait le
peuple ou les représentans du .pays, ou les hommes publics qui se trouvaient cri
opposition à cette administration ?-Oui, et fort souvent.

Pouvez-vous en indiquer quelques-unes ?-Oui, et je produis les extraits sui-
vans, que j'ai faits " du Quebec Mercury, de la Gazette Officielle de Québec,

et de la Gazette oflicielle de Montréal." Ces écrits s'étendent depuis le 24
novembre 1827, jusqu'au S septembre 1828 inclusivement. J'aurais pu en pro.
duire beaucoup d'autres, mais je nie suis borné aux plus saillans. Il y en a eu
beaucoup d'autres à l'épqque et depuis la prorogation du parlement du 7 mars
1827. .,

Extrait du Mercure de Québec, en parlant des débats de-Passemblée sur la question
de lOrateur, numéro 9M.--21 novembre 1827.

" Le parlement provincial actuel est maintenant prorogé et les "chevaliers,
citoyens et bougeois" de la province qui sont faussemenmt qualifiés dans la
proclamation de fidé/es &c. ont quarante jours à réfléchir sur leurs méfaits,

" (misdeeds.)"
" Quel bien peut-on attendre des délibérations d'un corps qui a montré une
ignorance aussi parfaite de ses devoirs, un mépris aussi complet de toute
autorité constitutionnelle, et une obéissance aussi aveugle à un chef sans

" principes, que celle qu'à montrée la majorité de la chambre d'assemblée du
" parlement provincial du Bas-Canada, durant la session zrmémorable des trois

jours."............ Le.
. - " Les



76

" The Commons of Lower-Canada succeeded to the full, in rendering them-
" selves contemptible and ridiculous."

Extract from the Montreal Official Gazette of the 26th November. 1827, vol. 4,
No. 86.-Editorial Paragraph.

We arc. perfectly astonished at the phrenzy and delusion whicl charac-
terize the first acts of the House of .Assembly."

Extract fron the Quebec Official Gazelle, of the «26th November. 1827. Edi-
torial Paragrapli. Speaking of the conduct of the House, in persisting in
the election of 1r. Papineau, as Speaker, and of the prorogation of the Par-
liament :

Such for the present.has been the vinding up of a scene that nothing
could justify, and which, without the firmness shewn by the lead of the Ad-
ministration, would undoubteLdly have been followcd by a revolution in this
Province."

''he saine Gazette under the saime head:

"WC shouîld lot render justice to the small number of HIis Majesty's faithful
" and loyal subjccts, who formed the minority in this scandalous scene, if we clid

not not make them known to our readers."

Extract fron the .VJÛo-treal Official Gazette of the '29th November 1827, vol. 4,
No. -6.- Editorial Paragraph.

. Speaking ofa meeting held at Quebec, on the subject ofthe territory in dispute
between the United States and New-I3runswick, it supposes in the House of
Asscnbly the view which it attribut:s to the said meeting held ait Quebec,
those of revolutionizing the country: the paragraph is as follows, word for word

We think we can conjecture the object of those who convened the Que-
bec meeting, and who are so anxiousiv awake to the dignity and interests of
this Province. If we are not mistaken, they fancy they sec, in the present
position of the United States, a favorable opportunity for the accomplishment of
thieirdarinîg schemes. They imagine that the election of General Jackson to the

" Presidency is certain, and conceive from that event, assistance may be derived
to carry into execution, schemes of national independence and pcrsonal ar-

" grandiz;enciît. 'lie probability of this event may also have deternined theé
" -obstinacy of the House of Assenbly, and encouraged them to persist in their
" strange resistance. By alarming the British Governnenit on this point, by
:kcceping up a higli toned remonstrance, and by using all the common topics

io oppression, tzranny, cSc, thev flatter thenselves that their object wit] le-
" ceive .a more ready accomplishment, and that thiey may wrest fron alarm and

and apprehension, what a sense of justice would never concede to then. If
" these motives are the nainsprings which influence the conduct of the future

dignitaries of the " Nation Canadienne,' we humbly conjecture that they read
the signs of the times very badly. We hardly conceive the possibility of the
General's success, and stil! less the chance of his cntertaining the wild idea of
Caiadian conquest ; and that there is an infinitely less proportion of probabi-
lity in the idea of the British Governmcnt being influenced by such speculations

g to



· " Les communes du Bas-Canada ont complètement réussi à se rendre népri-
' sables et ridicules."

Extrait de la Gazette redzciclle de Montréal, du 26 novembre 1827, vol. 4, n O
86.--Paragraphe éditorial.

"Nous sommes tou--fiait étonnés de la frénésie et l'ignorance -qui caractérisent
les premiers actes de la chambre d'assemblée.'

Extrait de la Gaze!té oficicl.e de Québec, du 29 novembre 1827.-Paragraphe
editorial.

En parlant de la conduite de la chambre, pïrsistant dans l'élection de M. Pa.
pineau comme orateur, et de la prorogation du parlement

Tel jusqu'à présent, a été dénouement d'une scène que rien ne peut justifier,
" et qui sans la fermeté d-éplo 'ée par le chef de l'administration, aurait imman-
" quablement conduit à une révolution dans cette province."

La même Gazette sur le même sujet.

" Nous ne rendrions pasjustice au petit nombre de fidèles et loyaux sujets de sa
" Majesté qui ont conpos:: la minorite dans cette scène scandaleuse, si nous ne les
" faisions pas connaitre à nos lecteurs."

Extrait de la Gaz. tic eficiclle de Montré.a, du 29 novembre 1S27, vol. 4, n C
86.-Paragraphe éditorial.

En parlant d'une assemblée à Québec, au sujet du territoire en contestation,
entre les Etats-Unis et le Nouveau-Brunswick, il prête à la chambre d'assemblée
les vues qu'il met à la charge ie la dite assemblée tenue à Québec, celles de revo.
lutionnerle pays : voici mot pour mot cet écrit

"Nous croyons pouvoir deviner l'objet de ceux qui ont convoqué l'assemblée
de Québec, et qui sont si zlés pour la dignité et les int'rêts ce la province. Si
nous ne nous trompons pas, ils s'imagine voir dans'la position présente des
" Etats-Unis, une occasion favorable pour l'exécution de leur projet favori. Ils
imaginent que l'élection du général Jackson à la présidence est certaine,- et cal-
culent d'après cet événement, qu'ils peuvent avoir l'assistance pour effectuer
leurs plans d'indépendance nationale, . et d'aggrandissement personnel. La

"probabilité de cet événement peut avoir aussi déterminé l'obstination de la
chambre d'assemblée et avoir encouragée a persister dans son étrange résistance.
En alarmant le gouvernement britannique sur ce point, en continuant ses cla-
meurs et en employant tous les lieux communs d'oppression, de tyrannie, &c.
ils se flattent.d attendre plus aisément leur but, et d'arracher par la crainte, ce

" qu'un sentiment de justice ne leur concédrait jamais. Si tels sont les motifs
"qui Lispirent la conduite des dignitaires de la nation canadienne, nous ôsons con-
" jecturer qu'ils calculent mal le cours des événemens. Nous concevons à peine
" la possibilité qu'il y a que le Général réussisse, et encore moins qu'il ait l'idée
" étrange de la conquète du Canada, et qu'il y a infiniment moins de probabilité
"dans l'idée que le gouvernement britannique soit induit par de telles considéra-
" tions à làire aucunes concessions autres que celles qui pourraient étre attribuées
"à un sentiment dejustice. Dans ce cas les réclamations de l'assemblée doivent

4 toujours



to yield sny point, the concession of which could be attributed to any thing
but a sense ofjustice. In such a case, the claims of the Assembly must ever
be resisted, as neither justice, reason nor propriety, have any relation or con-
nexion with them."

Ixtract fromn the M1ontreal Official Geazette of the 29th -November, 1827, in a
Communication signed "A n Anglo Canadian :"

'•-But our political declaimers and would be definers of the British Constitution,
1would have it understood that British Liberty is alone concentrated withini
the walls of the House, whici bv its late measures las evinced itself to be
the Foru of Rcpublicanism.

Quebec Official Gazette, ISth Decenber, 1827. In a Communication, signed
C. ). E. ; speaking of the House of Asembly, and comparing it to Judas on
the subject of the question respecting the Speaker:)

" It bas no palliative to attenuiate the baseness of its treason"
mid further " this obstinacy in evil, which sacrifices every thing to the accom-
plishrment of crininal designs."* • " If such a conduct on their part
does -not justify the charge I bring against them of retcllion against the Mother
Country, and of treason against their constitients, I do not understand those
w'ords, and according to me they have no longer any neaning."

Quebec Oficial Gazette of the 1Oth January 182S, vol. 5, No. 11.

(Editorial Paragraph.)

" Ail the aggressions to bc traced to the former, (speaking of the flouse of
Assembly,) -s the late measures of the popular branch of the Legislature, are
of that unequivocal description ' • ' after so many vears of gradual
assumption, of secret hostility and undernining, it is rather, an improvement
in the rnethod of aggression su long acted on by the fàctious and discontented,
to lind that they now openly attack what before they covertly sought to
subvert."

Monftreal Officiai Gazette of the Qist January 1828, vol. 8.-No. 6.

(Editoi al Paragraph.)

Speaking of the meeting called for the 25th January 1828, at 31ontrcal, for the
choice of agents ; this paragraph is too long to be copied at full Jength, it pre-
sents some remarkable passages ; I extract a few

" At the period of political exciteient, whcn we perceive the object of a fac.
" tion which a long course of successful ambitioni lias urged to still more exten-

sive projects than those at which they have hitherto ai'ed ; when we see this
"samne fiction endeavoring ta excite and inflame the country into sedition, and

arranging preparations and prelimirnaries which might serve to be called into
treasonable cx ercise in times of open rebellion." • a' 1 • " 0 In this Assenbiy

<'of Deputies, we sec the embrVo of a NATIONAL CoNss-rrNo ; we sece a nect-
of departnental Dclegates from the diilerent Seigneuries, and clected in no

c constitutional form and for the purpose of treating of matters which arc not
"of trifling importance, or mere local improvements ; fbr their avowed objccts
" are to dictate to the 3ritish Governmnent to subvert the power of the Executive
" •• The N.rros. CoNvENrTloN, once met, will not casily dissolve itsclf

s after



« toujours étre refusées n'étant fondées ni sur la justice, ni sur la raison, ni sur la
"convenance."

.rtrait de la Gazette fficielle (le Montré<d, du 29 novembre 18Q7.
Communication signée -« .in Anglo Canadian."

" Mais nos déclamateurs politiques et soi-disans interprètes unique de la constitu-
"tion britannique, voudraient faire entendre que la liberté anglaise est concentrée
"dans l'enceinte des murs de la chambre, qui par ces dernières mesures a prouvé
"qu'elle était le forum du républicanisme."

Gazettc officielle de Québec, 31 décerbre 18i3-conmuuication C. D. E.

En parlant de la chambre d'assemblée, etla comparant à Judas, (au sujet de
laffaire de l'orateur.) " Elle n'a aucun palliatif pour atténuer la noirceur de sa
"trahison' * * a * * * plus loin il est dit* * * • " cette obstination dans le mal,

qui sacriâe tout pour l'accomplissement de ses desseins criminels."* * * 0 *
" Si une telle conduite de leur part ne justifie pas l'accusation que je porte con-
" tr'eux de rebellion envers la mère-patrie, et de trahison envers leurs commettans,
"je nc comprends rien à cet mots, et suivant moi, ils n'ont plus de signification."

Gazelte oficielle -de Qébcc, du 2 0janvier, tom. 5. n° . 11.

(Paragraphe éditorial.)

" Toutes les aggressions viennent de la première" (cn parlant de la chambre
d'assemblée, * * * * * "les mesures récentes de la branche populaire de la légis-
" lature sont de cette espèce non équivoque" * * • • * I " après plusieurs années
" d'impiétation graduelle, d'hostilité secrète et sourde, c'est plutôt une amélio-
e ration dans le mode d'agression si long temps mis en usage par les factieux et.
<'les mécontens, que de voir qu'ils attaquent maintenant d'une manière ouverte

ce que ci-devant ils essayaient de renverser sourdement."

Gazette aficielle de Montréul du 21janricr IS28, vol. 8.1., n . 6.

(Paragraphe éditorial.)

En parlant de l'assemblée convoquCe pour le 25 janvier 1828, à Montréal potir
le choix des agens, ce morceau est trop long pour être copié en entier; il offre des
passages remarquables en voici quelques-uns; '<à cette époque de trouble politi-

ques ou nous appercevons l'oLjet d'une fiction à qui une longue carrière d'an-
"'bition heureuse a fait concevoir des projets plus grands que ceux auxquels elle
"tendait jusqu'ici, où nous voyons cette mémne faction travailler à soulever ou à

exciter le pays à la sédition, et à faire des préparatifs dont on pourrait faire un
tun usage criminel dans le cas <le rebell*i"rbu*erte." * * " Nous voyons

" dans cette assemblée de députés élémens d'uneloNvxrioN NATIoNALE; nous
voyons une asseinlée de c.:lgués de département des différcntes seigneuries,

"élus d'une manière inconstitutionnelle, et pour traiter de matières qu- ne sont
pas de legère importance, ou relatives à des imnélioratiors purement locales ; car

"son objet avoué est de dicter au gouvernement britannique la subversion dit pou-
"voir de l'exécutif* * * Il * la cosvErioN xNTIoNaLE une fois assemblee ne se
"dissoudra pas facilemcrit, après avoir nommé des agens, mais continuera ses dé-

"libérations
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"after having named their agents ; but will continue its deliberations upon sub-
"jects of more importance to the future peace and tranquillity of this Province.

New objects for their ambition will be pointed out, new plans adopted, nxew
"campaigns arranged, and new difliculties devised, to impede the Government of
"the Province, and render nugatory the intentions of the Mother Country."

Quebec Qificial Gazette of the 31st January, 1828.

(Editorial Paragraph.)

" The contents of the Resolutions forming the basis of the charges which
the Montreal faction intend to lay at the foot of the Throne and before the
Imperial Parliament, against His Excellency the Governor in Chief, have also

" reached us. These charges - -- they are a mere tissue of falsehood and
" calumnies engendered by the malice of the factious, which are victoriously an-
1 swered by the contents of contrary addresses,-signed, and not marked with the
" seal † of ignorance. a

Extractsfiom tie Addresses to Lord -Dalhousic, and his answers tIhjcrco

Quebec Official Gazette of tie 10tli January 182S, vol. 5,-No. 11.

Address fi-om Threc-RèeCrs.

In Speaking of the claims of the House of Assembly:-

I That it is principally to the groundless pretensions and unparallelled usur-
pations on this subject, (nicaning the 14th Geo. III. chap. 88,) the civi! mis-
cries of this Province are originally to bc attributed ; and that unless spccdiiv
checked by the firm arin of the supreme authority ofthe IMother Country, wce
may yet live to record .and to lainent transactions the most dangerous to the

" welfàrc of our civil government and society, and scencs thc most disgraceful
to virtuous and loyal citizcns."

Anzswer.
Among other things-

I acknowledge that you have spoken in them (the Resolutions) the languiage
I of truth,-with the- boldness which becomes British subjects, %vhei chîimim

thcir rights."

Answer to thc Quebcc .lddress :

Quebec Official Gazette.

The following words are therc to be read :-

" In resisting the encraclime of TaTi in."

dnswrer to thc Moitrcal Address.

Quebec Official Gazette of the loth January 1S28.

In this Address you have traced nostjustly the mischievous tendency Ot
" the measures pursued, for past years, in the Provincial House of Asscmily."

"l Wlen
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" libérations sur-des sujets d'une plus grande importance pour la paix et la tian.
" quillité future de la province: on montrera de nouveaux objets à son ambition,
"on adoptera de nouveax plans, de nouvelles campagnes, -et l'on cherchera à
" jeter de nouvelles difficultés dans les mesures du gouvernement de la province,
"et pour faire paraliser les intentions généreuses de la mèreepatrie.

Gazette oflicielle de Québec, du 31janvier .1828.

(Paragraphe éditorial.)

Le contenu -des résolutions, base des accusations que la faction de Montréal
"se propose de mettre au pied du trône et devant le parlemnent impérial contre son
«Excellence le goiverneur-en.chef, nous est aussi parvenu. Ces accusations

* ce n'est qu'un tissu de faussetés et de calomnies engendrées par la ma-
lice des factieux,qui sont victorieusement repoussées par le contenu des adresses

" contraires sinées et non.rnarquées du sceau t de l'ignorance.".

Ex:raits des adresses au lord Dalliousic et de ses réponsc.

Gazette oflicielle de Québec, 10 janvier 1SS, tom, 5, n . Il.

Adresc des Trois-Ririeres.

En parlant des prétentions de la chambre d'assemblée :-

" Que c'est principalement à leurs prétentions sans lbndemncnt, et à leurs isnr-
pations sans exemple à cet égard c'est-à-dire 11 Geo. M. chap. SS) que le*
" al heurs civils de cette province doivent être surtout attribués, et qu'àmoinsque
l'autorité de la mère-patrie n'entervienne avec fermueté et promptitude, nonus
avons sujet d'apprdhender de vivre assez long -tenipi pour voir et regretter les
événemnens les plus funestes au bien être de notre gouvernement et de notre
société civile, et les scènes les plus douloureuses pour ses citoyens loyaux et ver-
tueux

-Réponse.
Entr'autres choses- -

" Je reconnais que vous y avez parlé (dans les rsolutions) le langage de la vé-
" riLé avec la hardiesse qui convient à des sujets britanniques cui récla[ment e
" droits."

Réi onse d adresse de Québcc.

Qazette oflicielle de Québe.

L'on v lit ces mots :-

En résistant aux emnpiétations d'une faction.'

Réponse à l'adresse dc .;iontréa/.

Gazette offIcielle de Québec, 10 janvier 182S.

" Dans cette adresse vous avez bien justement tracé la tendançe malihisante cies
" mesures que la Chambre d'assemblée provinciale, a poursuivie depuis nombre

" d.'ailné1. '
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Address from Compton.

Quebec Official-Gazette, 21st February 1828..

A want of respect to your Excellency -shiown by a party-acting
under the influence of a few factious men and to declare our un-
qualified approbation of the firmn and temperate measures which your Excellency
has pursued in resisting the atternpts which have been made to encroach on the
the rights of the Crown ------ Residing in a remote part of the Province, and
' virtually unrepresented in the Provincial Parliament, «we.have been forced to

" remain almost silent spectators of what has been passing in public affairs, tilt a
faction lias, by its -violent proceedings aüd most unjustifIable conduct, de-
veloped its views and principles, step by step- We attribute the
witholding of our just and lawful rights to no other cause than the selflish views
and narrow minded policy of a fey persons who lead the najority of the Lower
House.
" We beg leave to assure your Excellency that all we have in our power,

< may be relied upon in every exigency."

Compton,,lst February 1S28.

Answer (by IMr. Secy. Cochran,) Sti February 1828.

I.am directed, &à. that. you will convey his thanks to the Inhabitants of the
Township of Compton, for the expression of their sentiments contained in their
address -- and that you will assure thein that Dis Excellency is much
gratified in finding that their loyal and constitutional feelings are so general and
so decided in that part of the Province."

To A. Dl Bostwick, Esq.

. . -4ddressfromz William Henry.

Quebec Official Gazette, 8th-September 1828.

But we should be wanting in the knowledge we have obtained of the political
state of the Province, were we to fait in attributing the existing difference to
men, misled by private passions and views, and who -with a vaim desire for
personal popularity and aggrandizement, subvert and satiate the minds of an
uneducated people, by pretensions and assumptions not only inconsistent and
in direct opposition to constitutional principles, but (what is of great import-
ance) to the very happiness- and. prosperity of this promising appendage of the
British Empire."

Soth August 1828.

Answer.

STlie sentiments now expressed from them, in approbation of my ·conduct in
this Government, are highly acceptable."

sd. September 1828q.
Address



Adresse de Compton,

(Gazette officielle, de Québec, 521 février 1828.)

"Le manque de respéct qu'a iontré à votre excellence un parti agissant sous
l'influence de quelques factieux" . . . . et pour déclarer votre pleine et entière
approbation des mesures fermes et prudentes que votre excellence a poursuivies,

"pour repousser des desseins attentatoires aux, droité de la couronne." . .
Résidant dans une partie éloignée, de la province, et représentés virtuellement,,
dans le parlement Provincial, ,nous avonsetê forcés de demeurer presque spec;;

" tateurs silencieux de se qui s'est passé dans les affaires publiques, jusqu'au mo-
"nient où une faction a eti, par la violence de ses procédés et l'justice de sa con-
duite, découvert par dégrés ses vues et ses principes" ... . " Nois n'4ttri-
bons la privation où nous ,ommes de nos droits' justes et légitimes à d'aitre

"cause qu'à l'égoïsme et à la politique étroite d'un petit nombre qui commandent
la majorité de la chambre basse."
"Nous prenons la liberté d'assurer votre excellence que dans le moment du bc-

"soin, votre excellence peut compter sur tout ce que nous possédons."

Compton, 1 janvier, 1828. I

Réponse (par Cochran

8 février, 1828,

J'ai ordre"' . . . . .... . . . de présenter ses remercimens aux habitans
du township de Compton, pour les sentimens qu'ils lont exprimés dans cette
adresse" . . . I " et de les assurer que son Excellence est extrémement flattée
de voir que leurs sentimens et leurs dispositions loyales et constitutionnelles
sont si générales et si marquées dans cette partie de la province."

A G. D. Bostwick, écuyer.

/dres-s de William Henry.

(Gazette officielle, 8 septembre, 1S28ý

Mais ce serait manquer aux conhaissances que nous avons acquises sur l'état
politiqie de la province, que de ne pas attribuer les dificultés quexistent i des
hommes égarés par des passions et des vues intéressées, et qui d'ans leur soif de
la popularité et dans le désir de leur aggrandissemrent persônnel, excitent et
remplissent les esprit d'un peupleignorant,' par des prétentions et des etnpiéte,
mens non seulement incompatibles et en opposition directe aux principes de la
"onstitution, uais ce qui n'est pas de légère importance,' ai bonheur-même et

"à la prospérité deý cette dépendance florissante çe l'ermpire britannique."

30 août, 1828.

Réponse,

Je reçois avec le plus grand plaisir ce te expression de leurs sentimens en ap
probation de ma conduite dans l'admii istration de ce gouvernement"

septembre 1828
7 dresse
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g in endeavouring to subvert the blessings of our constitution, by repeatedly frus.

trating the liberal views of your Excelency, for the imnprovement of the insti.
" tutions and good government of the Province: and by. assuming rights not

vested in them, attempting to set aside the authority of our beloved and most
gracias Sovereign, and the Imperial Parlement, over this portion of the British

"Empire.
Deeply as we deplore the attempts of the late Assembly, we have to felici-

g tate. ourselves and the country, on the energy and wisdom which your Excel-
]ency has shewn, in supporting the just Prerogative of the Crown, by recently
rejecting as Speaker of the present House of Assembly, a person whose public
conduet rendered him unfit for -that high office ; and we pledge our lives and
properties to defend those rights whiëh your Excellency has so ably and con-
stitutionally supported." .

January 8th, 1828.

Answer (by Mr. Cochran, 27th February 1828.)

" And I am to request that you will assure them,. that Hi.s Excellency feels-
much gratified by their approbation of the conduct of government during the
period of his--Administration."

'To H. M. Blaiklock, Esq.

Addres from the 7ownsihips of Lochaber and Buckinghan.

Quebec Official Gazette, 21st February 1828.

It is with deep regret mingled with indignation we contemplate the systematic
" and continued opposition made to all your measures by a faction, who at once

arrogate to themselves the.power of Legislation, and the rights of the Crown."
-" We deprecate the attempts of these individuals, under the specious rnask

of patriotism, to excite discontent and distrust of- the Justice of His Majesty's
Government among a portion of the Canadians and we sincerely
hope -that their evil designs will soon.recoil upon thermselves with
merited disgrace."
" We applaud your Excellency for the firmness with which you have opposed
their anbitious schemes."

I1th February 1828.

Answer (by Mr. Secretary Cochran, 18th Felruary 1828.)

Quebec Official- Gazette, 28th February 1828.

Among other things:

" His Excellency requests that you will assure the Inhabitants of those Town.
ships, that he feels highly gratified by this address."

To Wm. M'Lean, Esq. Lochaber. Address
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"blée pour nous priver des avantages de notre constitution, en rendant inutiles à
«plusieurs reprises les intentions libérales de votre excellence pour l'avancement

des institutions et du bon gouvernement de cette province, et en s'arrogeant
"des droits qui ne lui appartiennent pas, s'efforçant dle mettre de côté l'autorité
"de n'otre bien-aimé et très-gracieux souverain et du parlement impérial, sur

cette partie de l'empiie britannique."
" Nous déplorons profondement les tentatives de la dernière assemblée ; nous
avons à féliciter, et le pays en même tems, de l'énergie et de la sagesse qu'a

"montrées votre excellence en supportant la juste prérogative de la couronne, en
"rejetant, comme orateur de la présente chambre d assemblée, une personne dont
"la conduite publique l'avait rendue incapable de remplir cette charge élevée, et-
"nous engageront notre vie et nos biens à défense des droits que votre excelleñce
"a si habilement et si constitutionnellement maintenus."

Janvier, 8, -1828.

Réponse (par M. Cochran, 27 février 1828.)

"Et j'ai à vous prier de les assurer que son Excellence se sent toutà-fait aise de
«leur approbation, sur la conduite du gouvernement, durant son administration."

A. H. Blaicklock, écuyer.

Adresse des townships de Luchebar et Buckingham.

(Gazette Officielle de Québec, 21 février 1828.)

"C'est avec un regret profond mêlé d'indignation que nous voyons l'opposition
"systématique' et 'continuelle présenté à toutes vos mesures par une faction
"qui s'arroge en même tems et le pouvoir de la législation et les droits de la cou-
" ronne." . . . . Nous réprouvons les tentatives que font ces personnes, sous
" le masque spécieux de patriotisme, pour exciter au mécontentement et à la mé-
" fiance envers hi justice du gouvernement de sa majesté, dans une partie des ca-
" nadiens" . . . . . et nous esprons sincèrement"- -.... que-leurs desseins
" pernicieux retomberont sur leurs têtes, avec la honte et la disgrace dont ils se
" sont rendus dignes."

...... " Nous applaudissons à la fermeté avec laquelle votre exceltence a résisté
à leurs projets ambitieux."

il février, 1828.

Réponse (par M. Cochran, 18 février, 1828.)

(Gazette officielle de Québec, 28 février 828.)

Entr'autres choses

...... Son excellence vous prie d'assurer les habitans de ces townships, qu'il a
reçu cette adresse avec satisfaction."

A. W. McLean, écuyer, Lochaber.
Adresse
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---- When compared with the recent more daring attempt to deny the
Royal Prerogative, indubitably and invariably- recognized."

dddress from the County of iarwick:

Quebrec Mercury, 26th January 1828.

We would likewise beg leave to state to your Excellency, that if the many
advantages that ought to have accrued in this Province from the wisdom of your
Excellency's Administration have not been realized, it may be attributed to
the univarrantable pretensions of the House of Assembly and their adherence
to a line of conduct opposed to the Prerogative of the Crown, and to the
character and dignity of their own body.

Answer.--Extract.

" I have had great satisfaction in seeing by the language of this address, as well
as of many recently ieceived, that the conduct of these factious leaders is
generally condemned and reprobated by every loyal and respectable man in
Canada.

Address fron the Inferior District of St, Franci. 

Qncbec Official Gazette, 21st February 1828, (on the subject of the conduct of
the House of Assemibly and the prorogation.)

[After having spoken ofthe hostility and prétended insuits received from Mr.
Papineau, and afier having lauded the conduct of Lord Dalhousie in refusing him
the address contains the following language:

c. Your Excellency's energetic decision has most providently furnished the oc-
casion for the display and detection of the real principles which influence the

" factious and their resistance to your Excellency's Government; in their
violence they have betrayed the enormity of their unconstitutional pretensions,
and in their -resolutions they have exposed the character and tendency of the
revolutionary propensities by which they are animated.
" His Majestv's fiithful subjects in this Province, must endure the mortification
of seeing the popular branch of the Leislature, made the tool of the uinhal-
lowed ambitions of designing Dcnzagogues, who, under the mask of royalty,
cherish the deepest hatred of the English name, and the most active animoaity
to 1-lis Majesty's Government."

Answer by A. W. Cochran, Secretary, lOth February 1S2.-Official Gazette
28th February 1S28.

1I an directed by Ris Excellency, &c. to acknowledge, &c.
and to convey to you His Excellency's assurance that the sentiments they have
expressed in their address, are in the. highest degree gratifying to I-lis Excel-
lency perso ly."
To WVm. Henry, Esq. Sherbrooke.

Iddrc;sfrom the Inhabitants ofihe Townships of' Leeds, Ireland, InCerness, and
Seigniory of/St. Giles, in th.cCoznty ofjBuckingham.

" We have seen with the deepest regret the conduct of the Ilouse of Assembly
in
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" d'années" • ** * C en comparaison avec la tentative récente cncore plus au-
" dacieuse de nier la prérogative royal indubitablement reconnue."

Adresse du comté de Warwick.

Mercure, 26janvier 1828.

" Nous voudrions aussi faire observer à votre Excellence, que-si -les avantages
' nombreux qui devaient revenir à cette province-de la sagesse de l'administration
"de votre Excellence, ne se sont pas réalisés, cela est dû aux prétentions insoute-
"nable de la chambre d'assemblée, .et de son obstination à suivre une ligne oppo-
"sée à la prérogative de la couronne, et à son- propre caractère et dignité."

Réponse.-Extrait.

"J'ai vu avec beaucoup de satisfaction, par la teneur de l'adresse, aussi bien
"que par beaucoup d'autres que j'ai reçues depuis peu, que la conduite de
"ces chefs factieux est généralement condamnée et réprouvée par tout homme
" loyal et respectable en Canada."

Adresse du district inférieur de St.-François.

Gazette officielle de Québec, 21 février 1828, (au sujet de -la conduite de l'assem-
semblée et de la prorogation.)

[Après avoir parlé de l'hostilité et des -insultes prétendues de M. Papineau et ap-
prouvé la conduite du lord Dalhousie, en le refusant, l'adresse renferme ce
qui suit:

" La fermeté énergiqué de votre excellence à très fort à «propos fourni une oc-
" casion de mettre enjeu et au graudjour les vrais principes qui font agir les fac-
" tieux ; dans leur opposition au gouvernement de votre excellence, ils ont dans
" leur violence laissé à découvert l'énormité de leurs prétentions inconstitution-
" nelles, et dans leurs résolutions ils ont fàit voir le caractère et la tendance des
"peiclians révolutionnaires qui les animent.

" Les sujets fidèles de sa majesté en cette province doivent endurer la mortificati-
on de voir la branche populaire de la législature, rendue l'instrument de l'ambition

"injuste de démagogues mal intentionnés, qui sous le masque de loyauté, 'cachent
"la haine la plus envenimée contre le nom anglais et l'animosité la plus active
" contre le gouvernement de sa majesté."

Réponse par A. W. Cochran, 10 février, 1828.- Gazette Officielle, 28
féviier, 1828.

" J'ai ordre de son excellence etc d'accuser etc. . . . . . . " et devons faire
parvenir l'assurance où est son excellence que les sentimens qu'ils ont exprimés

"dans leur adresse, donn'ent à son excellence la plus vraie satisfaction person-
nelle."

A. W. Henry, écuyer, Sherbrooke.

Adresses des habitans des townships de Leeds, Ireland, .nverness et seigneurie
de St. Giles, dans le -Comté de Buckingham..

" Nous avons vu avec le plus profond regret les efforts de la chambre d'assem-
"blée
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.Addressjron the .M1agistrates and Inhabitants of Quebec.

Quebec Official Gazette, Sth September 1828.

Alludes generally to the " differences in the Legislature" and adds, that " His
Excellency could not accede to the claim's of the House of Assembly."

Answer..

This address conveys their sentiments in terms highly acceptable and hon-
orable to me, and I shall retain it, as the- best answer to -be made to all the
calumnies and slanders which have proceded from a few malicious agitafors,
scarcely deserving notice."

Address fion Montrel.

Quebec Official Gazette, Sth September 1828.

The Province owes it to your Lordship that a disblution of the government
with consequent anarchy and ruin had not taken place, whicli must have hap.
pened] froin the popular branch proceeding to extremes, in order to enforce
submission to its will, without caring for the cvil, which such a course of con-
duct must necessary have produced, had not your Excellency, to avert such a
calainity.- and the Assembly in direct violation of the Royal Preroga-_
tive, persisted in the choice of a Speaker, after his approval by the King's
Representative had been refused one step more, and the Royal right of Pro-
rogation may be questioned and the concurrence of the Council, and the Royal.
assent to Bills, be considered as cmpty forms- -all wvho prefer a mixed
"governnent, administered upon British Constitutional principles, to the doe-
trines of those who deceive the unthinking, by false pretensions, in order to
promote their individual purposes."

14th August 182S.

Ansiwer.

For mvself I return the most grateful thanks for the open and steady-sup-
port I have received from Montreal. The opinons entertained there, have
"giveni me confidence in my path: and with the sentiments vhich vou now ex-
piess on my departure, I shall go forward, with the same firm purpose, unto the
" end and possessed of such testimonials as I carry with me fron th.
cnlightened and educated population of Canada."

Addressfrorn the 1agistrates and Inhabitants ofthe Tiwn (f Three Rivers.

Quebec Official Gazette, Sth September 1828.

" our Excellency bas fought the good fight of the constitution-
If yo.u have not been able to preserve it from insult and inroad, your Ex-
cellency. bas at least defended it from injury and destruction. Yoùr Excellenev

4 hasihad to contend witli the most powerful opponents in a frce state, popuhlr
clamour, ignorance and prejudicc"-" the prcdoninancy of which without
that check, which your Excellency by a constitutional exercise of your powers,
"o resolutely and seasonably applied to it in this Province, has ever been fol-
lowed by perpetual and irremediable anarchy. (The sequel to this address is

the grossest flatterv.) Answer



Adresse des magistrats et habitans de Qdiébec : .'

(Gazette officielle de Québec, *8 septembre, 1828.)

Fait allusion généralement aux " difficultés dans. la légisiaturé" et ajoute que
son excellence ne pouvait accéder aux prétensions de la chambre d'assemblée.

Réponse,

" Cette adresse renferme des sentimens exprimés en termes aussi agréables qu'.
"honorable à moi-même, etje la conserverai comme la meilleure réponse à faire à
" toutes les.cal6mnies et aux injures qui sont venues de quelques agitateurs, qui
" méritent à peine qu'on y fasse attention."

Adresse de Montréal.

(Gazette officielle de Québec, 8 septembre 1828.)

"ILa province est redevable à votre seigneurie, qu'un~e dissolution du gouver.
" nement, avecl'anarchie et les malheurs qui;doivent en résulter, n'ait pas eu
"lieu, ce qui n'aurait pas manqué de résulter des excès-auxquels la branche po.
"pulaire s'est portée pour amener de force l'accomplissement de sa volonté, sans

s'embarrasser des maux qu'une pareille ligne de conduite aurait nécessairement
«produit, si votre excellence, pour détourner l'orage n'avait" . .-. . . et l'assem-
"blée en violation directe de la prérogative royale, persista dans le choix d'un

orateur, après que le représentant du roi eût refusé son approbation; encore un
pas de plus, et la prérogative royale de proroger, peut-être mise en question, et

"<le concours du conseil législatif, et l'assentiment rayale aux bills, considérés
comme de vaines formalités" . . . . . " quiconque préfère un gouvernement

"mixte, administré d'après les principes constitutionnels d'Angleterre, aux doc-
"trines de ceux qui abusent une foule aveugle, par de faux prétextes pour arriver

à leurs fins."

14 août, 1828.

Réponse,

" Pour ioi je fais les remercîmens les plus vifs en retour du support franc et
et ferme quej'ai-reçu.de Montréal. . . ... les opinions qu'on y entretient m'ont

'<donné l'assurance dans la voie oùj'ai marché: et muni des sentimens dont vous
"couronnez mon départ, je marcherai vers le but avec la même fermeté et en pos.
"session de témoignages semblables à ceux que j'emporte avec moi de la popula-
"tion éclairée et instruite du Canada.'

Adresse des magistrats et habitant de la ville des Irois Rivières.

(Gazette officielle, 8 septembre, 1828.)

' Votre excellence a combattu pour la cause de la constitution." ., . . . Si
"votre excellence n'a put la mettre à l'abri de [insulte et de l'empiètement vo.
"tre Excellence fa au moins garantie de tout dommage et de la destruction.
" Votre excellence a eu à lutter, contre les adversaires les puissans dans un état i.
" bre, les clameurs populaires, l'ignorance et les plus préjugés" . . . . " dont le rè-
" gne, sans la repression que votre excellence y a appliqué en cette province d'une
" manière si ferme et si à tems par l'exercise constitutionnel de son pouvoir, a tou-
" jours été accompagné d'une anarchie perpétuelle et irrémédiable."

Réponse,



Answer.

The most flaitering tribute of approbation from the Magistrates and Inhabi-
tants of .the town of Three Rivers, would have been acceptable to me on any

" occasion, but it is infinitely more acceptable on the eve of my departure fromn
" this Country,* in all probability for ever.-~~---I ha've disregarded popular
" clamour, and the siander of wandering scribblers.-- My sense of' duty

i has never been influenced by such common wcapons, and I leave them behind
- me as utterly inoffensive. -- I can leave no better record to guide the
" young to a-close as honourable as this which you now testify to me.,»

Thc Commi(tce then took into consideration tie several E xtracts from lie Pre-
sentments !f Grand Juries, which foilows:

[No. 1.]

EXTRACT of the Presentment of the Grand Jury of the Court of King s Bencli
Bench for the District of Montreal-filed 9th Septemwber 1826.

The Grand Jury further present; That thepractice of bringing beforetiie
Court of King's Bencli numerous indictments for inferior crimes, is attended
with serious inconveniences. The practice embarasses the Court with more. bù-
siness that can well be dispatched notwithstanding the extension lately given
to the term, and the long and laborious sessions which take place. There be-
ing but two criminal terms of the Court of King's Bench in each year, such of
the accused who cannot have their trials during the first tern, are obliged to
remain a long space of time imprisoned waiting the next tern ; so that they are
frequently too severely punished by this long detention, even if guihy, and most
unjustly so, if innocent. In either case they are thus exposed to all the bad ef-
fects of idleness and of an involuntary confinement among dissolute and
abandoned characters.

(No. 2.]

EXTRACT ofthe presentment of the Grand Jury of the Court of Oyer an d
Terminer, and General Gaol delivery ofMontreal-filed Slst August 1829.

By a list of the Prisoners now in Gaol, various persons appear to be in con-
finement who were committed previous to the sittings of the last court of Quar-
ter Sessions, for offences cognizable by that court, but against whom no Bills of
indictment have been preferred. In one instance in Iparticular, the long im-
prisonment which the accused party has undergone, appears te the Jury even
more than adequate to the offence itself ; and the Grand Jury vould respcc-
tively submit that a proper investigation into the cause of those delays in bring-
ing Prisoners te trial, should be instituted.

A large portion of the time of the Grand Jury having been occupied in the
investigation uf accusations for very trivial offences, it appears to them .advisea.
ble that some power should be vested in Magistrates by the Legislature simi-
lar to those they possess ir England for the sumimary pu-nishment of small
offences.

[No. 3.]



91

Répbnse,

"Ce tribut très flatteur d'approbation de la part des magistrats et des habitans
"cde la ville des Trois-Rivières, m'aurait été agréable en tout téms, mais il l'est
"bien d'avantage sur le point de mon départ de ce pays, très probablement pour

n'y jamais revenir." . . . . "J'ai méprisé les elameurs populaires et les injures
de scribes vagabonds." . . . . . des armes aussi méprisables ne m'ont jamais

' détourné de la voie que jecroyais devoir suivre, et je les laisse derrière moi, sans
"en redouter les atteintes." . . . "Je ne puis laisser un meilleur example
" à suivre pour la jeunesse à une fin aussi honorable, que celle dont vous me don.
"nez aujourd'hui un témoingage si flatteur."

Le Comité a alors procédé"d prendre en considération les divers extraits des repré-
sentations des Grands-Jurés, qui suivent

[No.l.]

~E-X-TRAT de la représentation du grand-jury de la cour du banc du roi pour le
district de Montréal, filée le 9 septembre 1826:

Le grand-juré représente de plus : Que l'usage où l'on est d'amener devant la
cour du banc du roi de nombreuses accusations pour des crimes d'un grade infé-
rieur a donné lieu à beaucowp d'inconvéniegs. Cette.manière de procéder occupe
la cour avec beaucoup plus d'affaires qu'e le n'en peut expédier convenablement,
malgré Pextension que l'on a dernièreient accordé aux termes, et les sessions
longues etlaborieuses qui ont eu lieu. Comme il n'y a que deux termes pour
la cour criminelle du banc du roi, chaque année, ceux des accusés auxquels on
ne fait pas les procès durant le premier terme sont obligés de demeurer pendant
un long espace de temps en prison, en attendant le terme prochain ; de sorte
qu'ils sont fréqteument trop sévèrement punis par cette longue détention, lors
même qu'ils sont coupables et très injustement lorsqu'ils sont innocens. Dans
l'un ou l'autre cas ils sont de cette manière exposés à tous les mots que produi-
sent la fainéantise et à se voir détenus involontairement parmi des gens dépravés
et sans aucun caractère.

[No. 2]

EXTRAIT de la représentation du grand-juré de la cour d'oyer et terminer et de
délivrance générale des prisons pour Montréal, filée le 31 août .1829 :-

D'après un tableau des prisonniers qui sont inaintenant en prison, plusieurs
personnes paraissent y être détenues qui y avaient été envoyées avant les séances
de la dernière cour des sessions de trimestre, pour des offenses dont cette cour
pourrait prendre connaissance, mais contre lesquelles il n'a été présenté aucune
accusation. Dans un cas particulier la longue détention que la partie accusée
a subi paraît être au juré plus proportionnée à l'offense elle même; et le grand-
jure soumet respeètueusement la nécessité qu'il y aurait d'enquérir des causes
pourquoi on a retardé d'amener ces prisonniers à jugement.

Une grande portion du temps du grand-juré a été employé dans l'examen d'ac-
cusations pour des offenses bien triviales. Il leur paraîtrait à propos que les nia-
gistrats fussent revêtus par la législature de quelques pouvoirs semblables à ceux
qu'ils possèdent en Angleterre pour la punition sommaire des petites offenses.

[No .3]



[No. 3.]

EXTRACT of the Presentment of the Grand Jury of the Court of King's
Bench for the District of Montreal--filed 10th March 1830.

The Grand Jury further present ; That during the present term a number of
Bills of indictment have been laid befbre then for Petty offences, which might
have been tried in the Quarter Sessions in the months of October and January
last;

The Grand. Jury further present, that several indictrnents have been laid be-
fore them against the sanie individual for offenses which, in theopinion ofthe
Grand Jury, might have been embraced in one and the same indictment: but
they are not aware nor do .they give an opinion where the fault hdys.

[No. 4.]

EXTR ACTS of the Presentment of the Grand Jury of the Court of Quarter
Sessions in the city of Montreal-filed the 30th April 1830.

The Grand Jury have been retarded in their enquiries respecting the Bills of.
.indictment laid.before them by the defective attendànce of witnesses, and have
learned with regret that no money is alloved by His iMlajesty's Government to
pay witnesses attending on the part of the Crown. This is .a great and public
loss, as it causes many cases to be brought before the Court of King's Bencli
that might and should be tried before the Court of Quarter Sessions, which
renders such trials more expensive to the public, and prolongs in many instances
the confinement of persons committed for minor offences. The Grand Jury
present this" circumstance as -an unnecessary infringement of the liberty. of His
Majesty's .subjects, a waste and nisapplication of the public money, and an
unnecessary augmentation of the fees and emoluments of His Majestys Attor-
ney General.

[No. 5.]

EXTRACT of the Presentment of the Gran. Jury of the Court of King's
Bench for the District of Quebec-filed 3 1st March 1828.

In closing their labours, the Grand Jury notice with deep regret the intem-
perate language used in the public Papers by both of the political parties, into
which this otherwise happy country is divided ; and though acting under the
obligations of their oaths, they have not hesitated in finding Bills for libel against
the Printer of .a News-paper published in this district, they bave no less con-
cern in stating that the general conduct of other papers published and circulat-
cd in this district and entertaining other political opinions, is, in many cases
equally mischievous and deserving public reprobation.

IN. N.]



[No. S.]

EXTRAIT de la représentation du corps des grands-jurés de la cour du banc du
roi pour le district de. Montréal, filée le 10 mars 1:u

Les grands-jurés représentent en outre, que durant le présent terme un nom-
bre d'actes d'accusations a été mis devant-eux pour des petite!s offenses qui au-
raient pu êtrejugées devant les sêssions de trimestre dans les mois d'octubre et
de janvier dernier.

Legrand-juré représente de plus, que plusieurs accusations ont été mises de-
vanteux contre le même individu pour des offenses, qui, dans l'opinion du grand-
juré auraient pu être incorporées dans une seule et même accusation, inaisils ne.
peuvent dire et ils émettent non plus aucune opinion quant à la cause d'où vipnt-
ce mal;

[No. 4.]

EXTRAIT d'une représentation du grand-juré de la cour des sessions de trimes-
tre dans la cité de Montréal, filée le 80 avril 1830:-

Le grand jtiré a éprouvé dm retard dans ses enquêtes à l'égard des actes d'ac-
cusations qui leur ont été soumis, par le défaut de comparution de témoinsi. et il
apprend avec regret que le gouvernement de Sa Majesté n'accorde aucuns deniers
pour défrayer les témoins sommés de la part de la couronne. Ceci estune grande
perte pour le public, en ce que plusieurs affaires sont amenés devant la cour du
banc du roi, qui pourraient et devraient être amenées devant la cour des sessions
de trimestre, ce qui est cause que ces. procès coutent plus de frais au public et
prolonge dans bien des cas la détention des personnes qui sont renfermées pour
des offenses légères. Le grand-jurý représente cette circonstance comme étant
une violation non nécessaire de la liberté des sujets de Sa Majesté, occasionnant
un mauvais emploi et la dissipation des deniers publics, et un moyen d'augmenter
sans nécessité les honoraires etles émolumens du procureur-général de Sa Ma-
jesté.

[No. 5.]

EXTRAIT de la représentation du grand-juré de la cour du banc du roi, pour le
le district de Québec, filée le 31 mars 1828

En terminant ces travaux le grand-jure remarque. avec un profond regret le
langage violent qu'ont employé, dans les papiers publics, l'un et l'autre parti
politique, qui divisent ce pays d'ailleurs. si heureux ; et, quoiqu'agissant sous
l'obligation de son serment, il n'ait pas hésité à trouver bills pour libelles contre
l'imprimeur d'un papier-nouvelle de ce district, il n'est pas moins toucbé en dé-
clarant que la conduite générale des autres papiers publiés et en circulation dans
le district, et entretenant des opinions politiques différentes, est, en plusieurs
instances, également nuisible et digne de la réprobation publique. .

[N.s.]
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iretrul ljýd rûhofWi Îý

J-InrCr~.s~, Êqure*rsiing in t ie foog oc Wi li enry, lîvng bcen 'duly
~won ipn te -Ily v~gvift, cpset a;dsiitli ; thiat li lie fillcd the sittuatiotn of Returu

iîng Offier t the £-lce9itinwliich was hield in tlie aid I3orooglh, in the ilont h of July, one tllhu.-
banid eight-iundred "and twenity seven, in order to elcct zt Itcl)reseiit,.tive for tule ,aid 13o-
rougl%in lu th rvic Parliament. That cleponient, ini bis capacity a., ReLurning Oilicer a4
-ors id, idministëre ontlis''to thé 'persons, nam~ed,,Antoiie, AuIIants Anitoine J-In dit Couzr-

anoyer ai1oa , uknr d ?uçi 'uia, e Baptiste Cantara, aind others, 'before recciving
Iir votes at the Election. That at thé timel ho, sui.dabove sinntioned perýonsofee thein-

~.elves to give tîteir votes, J.imcns Stuairt, Esqoire>, one ' f tbe, C:andi4it:es, objected tci 'their, aU,
adimniffioxi, mi not receivable, for wxant'ofcluïlîficat on on : rpa ht the suid Je itr
rcq(ucstcd Deporient, to exp!ain ta thxe sàcl abave'ntimed persans tlieir wani of qualification, 'andi
the concquences to wvhikh tliy vonl4, expose ttbcnsetves by' aking thé' otirqitdn c1
cà,es ; whicli 1)cporicnt declined to do, eonéeÏinrx that his Jýttty'did not' require bim eo do more
ilan to adiniister thse said oath. TÈhut the iaid James Stuart, thereppo.n el:plained'to the zbove
namled perboris, as n-uch, a4 the oppoSition sÙudc to it; hy the 0pposing candidate', and bhis ,par-,
risaIn wÔuid- permi4 t, tlieir wvant ofthe right of voting, ancl' liiéwiseý' macle known ta theni 'the

pu1h-etowihte would, expose them'sclvcs by tikirigý a false .oatk but that ' the said
- Jamq Sart, on noue cf Uic s.id. occàlions, when thse saîd ebove ssamed 'persons 'or 1any other

"pèeons wvha.soever took the ofores3id oatho or atpny other tiine, dslring the said Eleçtion, ta, tlie
*knowIëdgo çfDoponcnùt, ýneither said, nor gave to understand that be, in his quality of Attorney

Generailhad'ýaone, thte rîgbt of prosecutinç s 'prona renderedi therrnsebves ýguilty c f per-,
Jury,; nor that thse ýwlofhiodld Votç gaiamft him would be:prosetuted,,whiilft thoge who, votçd,,
for hlmi hâd nothin*g to feur. ýDej pornnt frhrsihtahehsoknweg iadungthe
courisc of thel raid leèllon Sitnilar expreflion9, or any'expréMfoOs to whc uhaspCcndbc
giVei, wýre utteied or' Made use of by 'thé said lames 8ýuirtw TJat it.appnared to Deponent
that the said James Stuart by wlsiat li h oe sa s~da~~ente esno h cclsion of,

ilh'ei 'r taking the' oâths they' did, ut tise said'Election ,iejttapttxmoter udby Vp.
prisng hcr of thse penalties ta which tlsey wo'uld expose tt-eslc y~kn a8sots n

tiot ony thing elfe ; whilst the opposing, C-gncidAtc, ixsiâted on their right to take, the oath
ind o, vote, cncourâged' theni ta do sO, arid,» týaïd several of'therm, and particularly ta' the, sid

Atuffist end Bttckner,,thiat'he'wÔul g wsrante hmgi aU evil, conscquencps, if the y istedý
'upontaking the oath.

Sworniat

APPENDIX

Tariff by the Executive Co ,uncil f.orhe Clerks'of the Peace.'

DeOposbtont - 0 5 w
Warrant and Recognizance,ý -, 0.o

*Exumination ci Pýriscsner> ),2 t
*Draiving un Indirtmonts 0 O( 8
Pirocëedings befoile Petit Jury, - o 13
brigînal bubpoena, 0 3 0

Copy, - - - - - 01
Bencis Warrant, , - - 0
Precèpt to thse Shéri, - - - Oi

Certified,

-GREEW & PLRAUT

ClQrics of thse Peauce.
Quebec, 25th February, 1.831.



APPENDICE

Diftrict del[.s)
Montréal. J

lIenry Crehassa, écuyer, demeurant au bourg.de William Henry, ayant été affermenté sur
les Saints Evangiles, dépofe et dit qu'il a rempli la charge d'Oficier Rapporteur, à l'é lection qui
s'eft tenue au dit bourg, au mois de' juillet mil huit cent ving sept, pour y élire un repréfentant
pour le dit bourg dans le Parlement Provincial. Que le dépofant en fa qualité d'Oflicier Rap-
porteur comme fusdit, à fait prêter serment au nommés Antoine Auffiant, Antoine Hus dic
Cournoyer, Nicliolas Buckner, François Vandal, Jean Baptifte Cantara et autres, avantdc re.:
cevoir leurs votes à la dite élection, qu'au moment où les dites perfonnes fus-nommées se I*4ht
présentés pour donner leur voix, James Stuart, écuyer, un des candidats a objecté à la réception
d'icelles, comme n'étant pas recevables, faute de qualification de leur part, que le dit James Stuart
a prié le dépofant d'expliquer aux dites perfonnes fus-nommées leur défaut d e qualification, t
le-, conséquences auxquelles elles l'expoferaient en prêtant le ferment requis en tel cas, ce que
le déposant à déliné de faire, croyant que son devoir fe bornait à leur faire prêter le dit serment
et pas autre chofe. Que le dit James Stuart, là-deffus, en autant que l'oppiosition qu'y ont fait
le candidat adverfe et fes partifans le lui a permis, a expliqué aux dites perfonnes ci-deffus men..
tionnées, leur défaut de voter, et leur a auffi fait favoir la punition à laquelle ils s'expoferaient
en failant un faux ferment : mais que le dit James Stuart en aucune desoccasions susdites, où les
dite. perfonnes fus-nommées ou aucunes autres perfonnes quelconques, ont prêté ferment cormime
susdit, ou en aucun autre temps pendant la dite élection, à la connaiffance du dépofant, n'a dit
ni donner à entendre, qu'en sa qualité de Procureur Général il avait seul le droit de pourfuivre
les perfonnes qui se rendaient coupables de parjure, ni que ceux qui voteraient contre lui s'raient
poursuivis, tandis que ceux qui voteraient pour lui n'auraient rien à craindre. Et le dépo-
>ant dit de plus qu'il n'a aucune connaiffince que pendant le cours de la dite élection des exprec-
fions pareille-,, ni aucunes expreflions auxquelles on pourraient donner un tel sens, aient été pro-
férées ou employées par le dit James Stuart. Qu'il a paru au dépolant que le dit James Stuart,
en ce.qd'il a dit aux dites perln' ns fus-nommées à l'occafion des fermens qu'ils ont fait à la dirc
élection, :i voulu les m1ettre su K r garde en les prévenant des pénalités auxquelles elles s'expo-
feraient en faifant de faux sermens et pas autre chofe ; tandis que le candidat adverfe insista sur
leur droit de prêter le ferment et de voter, les a encouragé de ce faire, et à plufieurs d'entr'eux,
et nommément aux dits Aufant et Buckner, a dit qu'il les garantirait de toutes mauvaises suites
s'ils perfiftaient à prêter le ferment.

AfTermenté à

APPENDICE

[O. o.)

Tarif établi par le Conseil Exécutif pour les Greffiers de la Paix.

Dépofition, - - - - -

landat et cautionnement, • - -

Examen du prifonnier, - - .. 6
Dreffé de l'accufation, - - - - -

Procédures devant les Petits Jurés, 13 4
Subpæna original, - - - . ..
Copie, -- - . . -O

Mandat de prife de corps émané de la cour, 5 0
Précepte au Shérif, - - - - i

(Certifié,)

- GREEN et PERRAULT,

7 Quibec, 26 février 1831. Gefesd aPic
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APPENDIX [ q.
iCire.ular".

Cafile of St Lewis,
Quebec, 29th July, 1822.

Sir,

Ih purfuant of a Report of a Committee of the whole Executive Council, appro'ed by HisE elancy the Governor in Chief, I arm dire&ed'by His à!xcellency to recom.nend to .you, tobi#d over in future, and commit for trial at the next ensuing Quarter Sellions, ail persons who
be hereafter duly charged before you, with any or either of the following offences

1 ft. Misdemeanors and offences, below the digree of Felony and cognizable in the Courts ofQuarter Seflions,
2d. Petty Larcenies.
Sd. Simple Larcenies, where the value stolen is under five pounds.
And a]so to bind over or commit for trial all persons duly charged with greater ofoences tothe next ensuing Sellions of the Court of King's Bench, if you deeni it right so to do.
I transmit you herewith for your further information, copy of the opinion of the LawOfficers of the Crown, fhewing the several offences which come within the above descriptions.

I am further directed by His Excellency to recommend to. you to put ail persons -who <hallbe exammed before yqu as witnesses under recognizance for their appearance at the Court at
whi'chthe culprit is ta be tried, and for their attendance there trom day to day until difcharged,
and to put under recognizance in like manner allother persons whom the culprit fhall point out
as witneffes effential to his defence.

And I am also to desire that you will explain to each witnes the naturé ofhis recognizance, andmiake him underftand that he is to attend, in person in Court on the day mentioned in his recog-ruzance; and to continue in Court from aay to day until lie is authorized by the Court toleave it, on pain of forfeiting the penalty of his recognizance, and you are at the same time to in-form such witness that no other notice by Subpena or otherwise Will be given to him to at-tend.

I am further to desire that you will transmit ail depasitions, examinations and recognizances
talen before you, ta the Clerk of the Peace,.or to the Clerk of the Crown, (as-the case may re-quire) as soon after the comrnitment of every culprit for trial or bail given and if his appearance,
may be practicab:e.

lhave the honor to be,

Sir,

Your moft obedient Servant,

Signed . W.COCHRAN.
Cierks 'of the Peace, Quebec.

Extraa of a Letter froni the Attorney General to A. W. Cochran Esquire, Civil Secretaryp
dated lth July,. 822:-

In answer ta your letter ofthe 28th June, requiring iy opinion as to the several offencesc inwithin the defcription of>
1fr. lisdemçnars or offences below the degree af Felony and cognizablé in the Courts ofQuai ter Semoins;
2d. Petty Larcenies ;
d. Simple Larcenies where thevalue stolen is under the valte of five pounds.

t haave the honor ta iformx you for the information of His Excellency the Governor in Chiefthat ihejurisdiction of the Court of General Quarter Semions by 34 Ed. 3 Chap, 1, extends tothe tryig and dterminng all Felonies and Tresspasses. This power does not extend ta the
trial
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Circulaire. APPENDICE (Q. o:]

Chatéau St. Louis,
Québec, 29 Juillet, 1822.

Noncieur,

J'ai ordre de Son Excellence le Gouveneur en Chef, en consèquence d'un -rapport, de tout le
Counseil Exécutif, approuvé_parSo.n Excellence, de ,vous recommander d'a-dmettre à caution à
l'avenir ou-d é¯coiettre en..prison poursubir leur:procès à la seance alors prochaine de'la Cour de
Seflions-^généralei de la paix de qlairier, toutes personnes qui seront ci-après lêgalement accusées
devant vous de toutes ou chacune des offences suivantes.

- 1 o . MiAdemeanors (offenfes légercs) et toutes autres offenses d'un dégrés au deffous de Felonie,
et dont la Cour de Semions générales de quartier a droit de prendre connoissance.

2 o . Toutcs accusations pour le crime de petit-larcin.
3 o. Tous larcins simples où le montant ou valeur pris, ne monte pas à cinq-louis.
En outre d'admettre ou recevoir 'a caution, ou de commettre en prison pour subir leurs procès,

toutes personnes qui seront légalement accusées de crimes plus graves, a la Session alors prochaine
de la Cour du Banc du Roi, si vous le croyez bon être, et ce à votre diferétion.

Je vous transmets ci-inclus pour votre plus ample information, copie de l'opinion des OiHiciers
de la Couronne, indiquant les différentes offenses qui se rangent proprement for ces différentes
dercriptions.

Je suis de plus ordonné par Son Excellence de vous recommander de mettre toutes perfonnes
qui seront examinées devant vous comme témoins sous reconnoiffànce: pour leur comparution
devant la Cour où l'accusé doit subir son procès, ét d'aflis:er de jour en jour à telle cour jusqu'à
ce qu'elles soient déchargées par la Cour, -et de mettre sous reconnoiffances de la même maniére,
toutes autres personnes que l'accufé indiquera comme témoins nécelfaires pour sa défense.
. Je dois de plus vous prier d'inýtruire chaque témoin de la nature et de l'effet de sa reconnoi:

fance,et de lui faire comprendre di incre:mient qu'il do: se trouver en personne devant la Cour
le jour ainsi mentionné dan- sa reconnoiffince, et de refter en Cour de jour en jour jufqii'à ce qu'il
ait obtenu la permifllon de la Cour de s'en abfenter, sous peine de perdre la soiIe ou la
pénalité mentionnée dan:- f: reconnoiffance ; et vous devez en même tems informer les témoins,
qu'il; ne recevront point d'autres notices, soit par Subpoena ou autrement pour affurer leur Com-
parution.

J'ai en outre à vous prier de transmettre toutes les dépositions, examm, et reconnoiimnces pris
devant vous au Greflier de la Paix, ou de la Couronne (comme le cas pourra requerir) auiritôt
après :quc l'accusé sera admis à caution ou envoyé en pri.on pour subir son procès, et que les
circonftances le permettront.

J'ai l'honneur d'être,

Monsieur,

votre très-humble Serviteur,

(Signé) A. NV. COCHiRAN.

Juge de la Paix, Québec.

Extrait d'une lettre de M. le Procureur-Général Uniacke, datée à Québec le il juillet 1822, et
adrefsée à A. W. Cochran, écut er, Secrétaire Civil.

En réponfe à votre lettre du 28 juin, dé.irant avoir mon opinion à l'égard- des differentes of-
fenses qui fe rangent proprement sous les désignations -.

1. Des Misdemesnors et offenses au defFous le degré de Félonie et dont la Cour de Sefßions Gé-
nérales de Quartier a droit de prendre connoifsance

2. Des Petits Larcins
3. Des Larcins simplee, où la valeur prize ne monte pas ' cinq Louis.
J'ai l'honneur de vous observer pour l'information de de Son Excellence le Gouverneur en chef,

qu'en vertu du Statut 34, Ed. Il: C. 1, la Cour de Seffions Générales de Quartier a la jurisdic-
tion et Pautorité d'entendre et de déterminer tous Félonies et Délits.

.Cepen-.
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trial of new offences, created by A& of Parlianent unlefs the ftatute which makes or declares the

offence, gives the cognizance of it to the Juftices in Sffions, either direaly or by neceffary in-

ference.

It is laid down that though Juftices of the Peac6 bY force-of their commiffion may have a ge-

neral authority to hear and determine Felonies, yet as it has been usually thought not ad Ïqable

for them to proceed on crimes from. which the benefit of Clergy is taken away, and only i
iiferior offences as Petty Larciny, Misdemeanors and cases within Clergv, to bind over to the

Semlions, but this is merely a point of discretion and convenience, not because they have not ju-

risdiction of the crimes%

Under the firft head, the Sellions nay try Aiaults and Batteries, cheats or obtaining moncy

under fàlse pretences, cornbinatiohs, conspiracies, embezzlements, engroffings, extortion, forestall-

ing, gaming, larceny, lewdnefs, libels, nuisances and niots.

Under the seeond, to wit Petty Larceny, the Larceny muft be under the value of twenty

lhillings, not fron a dwelling House, nor from the person, nor from a navigable River.

'The third head, to wit: Simple Larceny are those Larcenies not from a dwelling house nor

fron the Ferson, nor upon a aavignble River.

I beg leave to state that I am of opinion that the affau]ts:of an aggravated nature such as affaults

upon officers in discharge of duty, affaults with intent to murder, and riots, ought not to be pro-

ecuted but before the superior tribunal, wheri the Courtof King's Bench or Gaol Delivery will

sit before a Quarter Sessions, the commitment ought to be made and the witnesses bound over

to the former tribunal, otherwise a prisoner in Gaol for a misdeneanor where he cannot find

bail, may be kept longer from his trial than those under accusation for Felony.

Certified,

GREEN & PERRAULT,

Clerks of the Peace.

APPENDIX [R. R.]
Caftle of St Lewis,

Quebec, 16th Auguft, i830.

Gentlemen,

The attention of His Excellency the Administrator of the Government having been

drawn to the circumflance of a number of cases in which persons charged vith offences properly

cognizable by the Court of Quarter Semions having been prosccuted in the Superior Criminal
Courts, i an comimanded by His Excellency to refer you to the circular letter addref'ed by order

of the late Goyernàr in Chief, to the Clerks of the Peace on the 29th July, 1822, in whici thxey

were recomrnended to bind over in future and commit for trial at the next ensuing Quarter

Sefions, ai persons charged with any or either of the fol]owing offences

flt. Misdemeanors, offences below the degree of Felony and cognizable in the Courts of

Quarter $efions.
2d. Petty Larcenies.
3d. Simple Larcenies where the value flolen is under £5.

The rëcommendation contained in the circular letter in queflion on there as well as on the

other pointa adverted to ira that cornmunicat on, His Excellency desires may be ftritly acted

upon, but h has at the sanie time direc:ed xe to observe to you, ihat as it is the auty of the
Clerk
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Cepe'ndant ce pouvoir ne s'étend pas faire le procès des personnes accusées de; offenfes nov-
vellement créées en vertu d'un acte de Parlement, à moins qùe le Statut par lequel rofene.a été
ainsi créée ou déclarée, ne donne soit directement ou par une implication- nécessaire tels pouvoirs
aux Juges de Paix dans leurs Sefion.

On trouve par des autorités en loi, que quoique les Juges de Paix en vertu dleur Comnißion
aient le'pouroir généralement d'entendre et de détérminer toutes espèces de Félonies, cependant
l'usage eft, qu'ils s'abtiennent de faire le procès des personnes accusées de crimes pour lesquels le
bénéfice du- Clergé ne leur eft pas accordé, et d'admettre à caution pour fubir leur procès devant
les Séflions, les perfonnes accusées des offeiifes d'un degré inférieur, telles que de Petits Larcins,
Délits et autres offenfes pour lesquelles le bénéfice de Clergé eft accordé ; mais celà épend en-
tièrement de leur discrétion et convenance, et point du tout parce qu'ils manquent la jurifdiction
nécessaire de procéder sur de tels crimes.

Sur le premier chef de référence, la Cour de Seflions Générales peut entendre et déterminer
des Afauts et Batteries, des Fraudes, de l'obtention de l'argent sur des faux prétextes, des Com-
plots, des Conspiracies, des Recèlemens, des Monopoles, des Extortions, dea Enlèvemens par
avance, des Jeuxî des Larcins, des Libertinages, des Libelles, des Nuiffances et des Emeutes.

Sur le second chef, savoir les Petits Larcins, il faut que le vol soit d'une valeur moindre que
20s. et qu'il ne soit spas commis, ni dans une maison habitée, ni de la personne, ni sur une rivière
navigable.

Le troisièmechef, savoir, Larcins simples, et .qui sont des Larcins commis ni dans une maison
habitée, ni de la personne, ni sur une rivière navigable.

Je prends la liberté d'ajouter que dans mon opinion tous afautsd'une nature agravée, tels que
des Afrauts sur des Officiers Publics dans lexêcution de leurs devoirs, des Aiauts faits avec l'in-
tention de commnettre le crime de Meurtre, et des Emeutes devraient être poursuivis devant les
Tribunaux Supérieurs ; et en outre, que lorsqu'une Seflion de la Cour du Banc du Roi ou de la
Cour des Délivrances générales des Prifons doit intervenir avant une Seffion Générale de Quar-
tier, emprisonnement devroit être fait et les témoins devroient être mis sous reconnoiffances de
paroître devant les tribunaux fufdits, autrement une perfonne emprifonnée pour un Misdemeanor,
lorsqu'elle ne peut pas trouver des cautions pour sa comparution peut être détenue plus longtems
avant son procès qu'une personne accufée même de Félonie.

Certifié

'GREEN & PERRAULT,

Griffiers de la Paix,

APPENDICE,

(R..)
Chateau St. Louis,

Québec 16 Aout 18830.

Messieurs)

L'attention de Son Excellence l'administrateur du Gouverne ment ayant été attirée sur la cir-
conftance, qu'un nombre de causes dans lesquelles des perfonnes font acculées Soffenseg qui
tombent convenablement fous la juridiction de la Cour des feflions de Trimestre, ont té pour-
suivies dans les Cours criminelles supérieures, j'ai reçu ordre de Son Excellence de vous renvo-
yer àla circulaire; adrefrée par lordre du ci-devant Gouverneur en Chef aux Greffieis de la Paix
le .29 de juillet 1822, dans laquelle il leur eft enjoint d'obliger à comparaitre à l'avenir ou d'en-
prifonner à' la fin de subir leur procès aux feflions de Trimefttre qui suivront, toutes les per-
fonnes prévenus de quelqu'une des offences auivahtes :-

A 0. Delits au deffous du degré de félonie et dont peuvent connaitre lesCours de femions de
Trimestre.

2 0. Petit Larin.
S O. Simples larcins dans les cas où la 5aleur ols ef au de'ous de .5.
Son Excellence désire qu'on fuive ftrictement la recomandation contenue dans la circulaire en

quefflon sur ces points. comrae sur les autres dont il eft fait riention dans cette communication
mais elle m'a enjoint en meme temps de vous faire observer que comme il eft du devoir du Gref-

fier
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Clerk of the Peace to prosecute -offences in the Quarter Seflions, the obje& in view cannot bc
obtained without an afliduous discharge of this duty on the part of that otlicer, aid he feels it
therefore necelary to convey to you his expeaation that you-will bring forward and prosecute ail
cases cognizable by that Court, wherever pra&icable at the next ensuingQuarter Seffions after che
committal of the offender.

' I have the honor to be,

Gentlemen,

Your oft obedient humble Servant,

(Signed,) C. YORKE, Secretary.

Certified,
GREEN & PERRAULT,

Clerks of the Peace.

After tchich, the Commiltee have also taken into consideration thefollowing two Docu-
ments, signed by James Stuart, .4ttorney General.

APPENDIX.

[8. s.]

Observations on a Petition signed by Louis Marcoux and others, dated 13th
Pebruary. 182.

In the institution of the Prosecutions referred ta in this P, tition, I have done
no more .than-my duty required The chargcs or perjury on which thesc prose-
cutions arc foided, vere exhibited in legal forrn, and accornpanied by evidence
ta satisfy me that the offence had been committed. Ti reje, tion of the bills
by the first Grand Jury, constituted no bar ta these prosecutions, and it is .well
known ta persor conversant with such proceedings, that a very snall minority
of a Grand Jurj'yil1 occasionally cause the rejection of bills which the Public
Justice of the country would requireslhould be thund. 'If a Grand Jury be com-
posed ofuthirteen, a minority of two may occasion the rejection of a bill. How
far the rejection of the bills by the first Grand Jury nay have depended on such
a circumstance, or on other circumstances, altogether distinct from the merits of
the case submitte.d ta them, it is not competcnt ta me to enquire or state. It was
sufficient for me that I was in possession -of evidence, not only sufficient for'finid-
ing bills, but for the actual conviction of the persans charged with these of.-
fences, to.make it my duty ta take the sense of another Grand Jury on the same
charges which I accordingly did. Tlitre is great hardihood in the Petitioners
in presuning in a Petition ta His lajesty's Representative, ta calumniate the
Grand Jury by which the bills were found, by calling them a corps de Juré choisi
d dessein, 4-c. This gratuitous aspersinn of Juries and of Courts, procceding from
the quarter from which this Petition comes, cannot be too severely reprehended.
If countenanced by authority, there can be no administration of Justice, and Go-
vernment itself must soon totter on its base. The rejection or the finding of the
bills by Grand Juries must be presumed ta have been done on suflicient grounds.
If the bills be found, it is by a trial before a Petit Jury that the sufficiency of the
cases of accusation is ta be determined. • The Petitioners seck ta evade this mode
of shewing their innocence, by criiinating the Grand Jury which has put them

On
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fier de la Paix de pourfulvre les offenses aux sessions de quartier, l'objet en vue ne peut être at-
teint 'à moins d'une exécution régulière de ce devoir par cet officier, et elle croit en conséquen-
ce qu'il est néccssaire de vous informer de l'espérance qu'elle a que vous porterez et poursuivrez
toute., les causes dont ·cette Cour peut connaitre, toutes les fois que la chose pourra se faire, aux
fefflons de Trimestr qui fuivront l'emprifonnement du prévenu.

J'ai l'honneur d'être, .

Messieùrs, -

Votre très-humble et obéissant serviteur,

. (Signé) C. YORKE, Se7crétaire.

Pour copie conforme.

GREEN & PERRAULT,

Grefliers de la Paix.

Après quoi le Comité a: aussi pris en considération les deux docamens qui.sui-
vent, signés James Stuart, procureur générale

APPENDICE,

[S. s.]

Observations sur une Pétition signée par Louis Marcoux et autres, en date du
1 février 1829 :-

En intentant les poursuites dont il est fait mention dans cette pétition, je n'ai fait
que ce que mon devoir exigeait de moi, et rien de plus. Les accusations de parjure
sur lesquelles sont fondées ces poursuites ont été portées en forme légale, et ac-
compagnées de témoignages d'une nature à me faire croire que l'offense avait
été commise. Le rejet des bills (actes d'accusation,) par le premier grand-jury
ne constituait pas la pérenption de ces poursuites, et il est bien connu de tous
ceux qui sont au fait de telles procédures, qu'une très petite mninorité d'un grand-
jury fera quelque fois rejeter des bills que la justice publique du pays demande-
rait à voir approuvés. Quant aux cas en question, le rejet des bills par le'pre-
miîier grand-jury peut avpir dépendu d'une pareille circonstance, ou d'autres cir-
constances tout-à-fait étrangères au mérite des matières qui lui ont été soumises,
qu'il m'appartient pas de rechercher ni de rapporter. Il était suffisant que je
fusse en possession de témoignages, non seulement pour donner lieu à des
nises*en accusation, mais aussi pour amener la conviction des personnes accu-

sées de ces offencs, pour qu'il fût de mon devoir de prendre le sentiment d'un
autre grand-jury sur lesnmémes accusations, et c'est ce que j'ai fait. C'est une
grande audace de la part des pétitionnaires, que d'ôser dans une pétition au
représentant de Sa Majesté, calomnier le grand-jury qui les a mis en accusation,
en l'appelant un corps de jurés choisi d dessein, etc. On ne peut sévir trop forte-
nient contre des imputations gratuites de cette 1 nature contre des jurys et les
cours, lorsqu'elles viennent du quartier d'où sort cette pétition. Si l'autorité les
contenance il ne peut y avoir d'administration de lajustice, et le gouvernement
lui-nmee-chancellera bientôt sur sa base. On doit supposer que des grand-jurés
ont eu des raisons suffisantes pour rejeter ou pour approuver des actes d'accusa-
tions. S'il y a mise en accusation, c'est il. un petit-jury à décider de la suffisance
des causes d'accusation. ' Les pétitionnaires chewchent à éviter ce moyen de
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on their trial, and by putting a stop to. the course of Justice. A strong pre-
sumption that this Grand Jury did its duty is derived from the fact that by the
trial and conviction of Claproad, it lias been proved that the bill which they fouind
against him rwas truc; and this is one of the bills which was rejected by the
Grand Jury in Septeimber 1827, on the sane evidence on which the subsequent
bill was found, and his conviction took place. I am charged in this Petition
with having acted partially in not prosecuting persons who had voted for me for
perjury, wlhile. I prosecuted those who voted against me. This charge is casily
repelled ; no private prosecutor ever appcared to desire that prosecutions shoulci
be carried on against the persons who voted for me. Some depositions charging
persons who voted for me with pcijury, reached me througlh the Police Office.-
Iut the persons mlaking these depositions, nor no other person ever rcquested me
to carry, on these prosecutions, nor gave me any explanations to satisly me that
the alledged perjuries had been. conimitted. Some of these charges rested«on the
oath of one person only, whereas the oath of two persons is rcquisitc to subtai-
tiate perjury; and they were all of then made by persons, ofa very low -station
in life, and withouti any responsibility to answer lor the' coisequences of such
chargcs. To confirm the caution with which it vas my duty to act in relation
to these charges ; 1 fbund that onc of theim vas imade against.a voter vhose vote
had been receivcd without objection, who had takeir no oath at ail, and who never-
thlec'ss was accused by one of the persons making -ihese charges, with having
commifiitted perjury by fltsely swcaring to a qualification. Uiler such circunstana-
ces, and on charges thus exhibited,-l could not witliout a gross breach of duty
have laid irdictments bcfore a Grand Jury. If a private Prosecutor hnd attend-
ed ne to explain and support these charges, I shouild have grounded prosccutions
on then sufliciently substantiated, or if not I should have left it to the priva te pro-
secutor to institute and carry them on himself, with such professional assistance
alc hemght choose'to Thiiply. This course I have adoptcd in other c:;ses where
charges of perjury have been made, and shoalcl not have departed fron it on the
occasion referrcd to.

With respect to any delay that lias occurred in bringing these prosecutions to
a conclusion, it lias been unavoidable, and it has in no degrce depended on me.
to prevent it. If required, a satisfactory statcrnent to this cffct will be fur-
nished.

(Signed,) J. STUA RT.

Quebec, Q6th February, 18'29.

- PPESNDIX..

(T. -r..

Observations on a'Petition of Alphroy Nelson and Louis Marcoux, dated Soth
Jaiuary, 1829.

Joseph Claprood, of whon mention is mnade in this Petition, at the time the
last Election was held at William lienry, was notoriously destitute of any quali-
fication to entitle him to vote at that Election. He inhabited a miserable hovel
hardly fit for the reception af cattle, much less for the habitation of human beings,
and this hovel, consisting of one smnall apartment, in which there was a Forge,
and which was also used as his dwelling, had' béen built by hlim on ground be-

longi ng
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prouver leur innocence, en incriminant le grand-jury qui les amis en accusation,
et en arrêtant le cours de la justice. - C'est une grande présomption que le grand-
jury a fait son devoir, quand on considère que le procès et la conviction de
Claprood ont prouvé qu'il avait ·été justement -mis en accusation-; et c'est un
les actes d'accusation qu'à rejetés le grand-jury de 18.7, sur les mêmes témoi-

gnages sur lesquels étaient basées sa. mise en accusation et sa conviction subsé-
quentes. Je suis accusé dans cette pétition d'avoir agi avec partialité,. en ne
poursuivant pas pour parjure les personnes qui avaient voté pour moi, tandisque
j'ai poursuivi celles qui avaient voté contre moi. Il m'est parvenu"par la voie
du bureau de police quelques dépositions, accusant de parjure des personnes qui
avaient voté pour moi, mais les personnes qui avaient fait ces dépositions ne m'ont
ja1îis demandé à procéder clans ces poursuites, ni ne m'ont donné aucune expli-
cation pour me faire croire quc les prétend us parjures avaient été commis. Quel-
ques-unes de ces accusations n'étaient fondées que -sur le témoignag d'une-seule
personne tandis qu'il faut le -témoignage de deux personnes pciur asseoir une
poursuite pour parjure ; et ces dépositions venaient toutes de personnes. d'une
classe très rabaissée dans la société, et n'ayant rien pour répondre des conséquen-
ces de telles accusations. Pour confirmer le soin avec lequel il était de mon de-
voir d'agir à l'égard de ces accusations, j'ai trouvé qu'une- d'elles était portée
contre un voteur, dont le vote avait été reçu sans objection, qui n'avait prêté au-
cun serment, et qui cependant était accusé pai une des personnes qui portaient
ces accusations;, d'avoir commis. un parj'ire, en jurant faussement d'être qualifiés.
Dans de telles circonstances, e sur des accusations.ainsiportées, jee Pouvais
sans manquer gros-sièrement a mon devoir, produire des actes d'accusajtion de-
vant un grand-jury. -Si une partie privée fût venue.rpe trouver pour m'expliquer
et appuyer ces accusations,'j'y aurais fondé des -poursuites suffisamment ap-
puyées, si non j'aurais laissé la partie privée intenter et poursuivre elle-même
ces -actions, avec l'aide des hommes de loi qu'ellé aurait voulu employer. C'est
la marche 'quej'ai Suivie dans les autres causes pour parjure, et je n'en aurais
pas dévié dans le cas.dont il est question.

Quant au délai à amener à fin ces diverses poursuites, il a été inévitable, et il
n'a nullement dépendu de moi.de l'empêcher. Si on demande un exposé satis-
faisant à cet égard, il sera fourni.

(Signé,) -J. STUART.

Quélec; '26 février 1829. : I

APPENDICE

[T. T.]

Observations sur une Pétition d'Alphroy Nelson et de Louis. Marcoux, en date
du 30 Janvier 1829.

Joseph Claprood dont il est fait mention dans cette pétition était, lors de la
dernière élection qui s'est faite ,ît William Henry, notoirement sans aucune des
qualificatiolns qui pouvaient lui donner doit de voter à cette élection. - Il habi-
tait une miscrable cahute, faite à peine pour mettre des bestiaux, encore moins
pour loger des êtres humains, et cette cahute, composée d'un petit apartement où
il-y avait une fbrge, et qui lui servait aussi d'habitation, avait été bâtie par lui

sur
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longing to his uncle, one Labrie, with materials partly furnished by the latter,
who, from motives of charity, permittèd him to occupy this hovel, but on the ex-
press condition that he should be removed from it if his uncle should be dissatis-
lied with his conduct; in fact his occupation of it was that of a tenant by suf-
ferance, and no person of common decency in life, except Claprood, would on
any terms have made it a place of abode. This description of Claprood's. pre-
tended property 'was.given by the witnesses examined on his trial for perjury in
September fast, and it was most manifest by the evidence then given, th at ie hid
not the shadow of a pretext for falsely swearing to a qualification to vote.- Any
extenuation of his conduct could only be found in the alledged weakness of his
understanding, and -in the importunity he experienced to induce him to vote,
which importunity, there is no reason to doubt proceeded from the two Petition.
ers named in this Petition, viz: Alphroy Nelson and Louis Marcoux, but princi.
pally from the latter. These men have thehardihood to assert in their Petition that
hdwas assured by one of His Majesty's Crown Officers, and two Magistrates, that
he had a right to vote: under the description of Crown Officer, it is to be pre-

. suimed that I am referred to. This assertion is of a piece with the other barefaced
falschoods proceeding from the same source". - I never saw the man tilt he was
brought up to vote at the close of the Election, never spoke to him in my life,
and never expressed any opinion as to his right of voting. On his trial for per-
jury, one of the two Magistrates referred to, Col. Jones, swore that'on an offer of
Claprood's vote, he had himself assured him that lie had no right to vote.

With respect to the forfeiture of Claprood's recognizance, it was- estreated in
the ordinary course of. Justice, together %with other recognizances forfeited in the
sanie Session, There is no reason to doubt that Claprood was put out of the
way to enable hini to escape the consequence of bis perjury; he was induced to
absent himself by going into the States, and in order to account for.his not ap-
pearing on his recognizance, it was at the time studiously given out that -he was
drowned. When-he came back afterwards, lie did not return to William Henry,
the place of bis abode, but found his way into a parish at a distance from. that
place, where he vas arrested. One of the Petitioners, Marcoux, was the most ac-
tive Partisan of Mr. Nelson at the Election, and now stands indicted for subor.
nation of perjury in having falsely procured the charge of perjury to be made
arainst one ot the voters at/the Election. He brought up to the Hustings for the
purpose of voting. ail or nearly ail the,persons againist whom Indictments for per-
jury have been fbund, fr ha"ving fàl'sely sworn to a qualification to enable them
to vote for Mr. Nólson, and'he was m'ainly instrumental in inducing them to take
the oath.

(Signed,) J. STUART.

Quebec, 26th February, 1829.

APPENDIX.

(U. u.]

Montrea,
To wit :

The Jurors for Our Lord the King upon their oath present, that heretofore,
to wit, on the twenty fifth day of July in the cighth ycar of the Reign of our

Sovereign
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sur un terrain appartenant à son oncle, un nommé Labrie, avec des matériaux en
partie fournis par ce dernier, qui, par charité, lui avait permis d'occuper cette ca-
hute, mais sous la condition expresse qu'elle en serait enîlevée si son onele n'était
pas satisfait de.sa conduite. En réalité l'occupation qu'il en ayait étiit celle d'un
possesseur par souffrance, et personne, autre que Claprood, sans avoir perdu tout
sentiment de décence commune, n'aurait voulu en fiire son ha.bitation. Cette
descriptiôn de la pretendue propriété de Claprood fut donné par les ténoins in-
terrogés pendant son procès pour parjure, dans le mois de Septembre dernier, et
il parut évidemment par les témoignages qui furent alors donnés, qu'il n'avait pas
même l'ombre d'un pretexte pour jurer faussement qu'il était qualifié à voter.
Sa conduite ne peut être excusée jusqu'à un certain point que par la ftiblesse ai-
légué de son esprit, et par l'importunité avec laquelle on l'a pressé de voter, la-
quelle importunité est venue, à n'en-pas douter, des deux pétitionnaires dénorm-
més dans cette pétition, savoir :-Alphroy Nelson .et Louis Marcoux, mais sur-
tout du dernier. Ces hommes ont le front. d'avancer dans leur pétition qu'un des
officiers de la couronne de Sa Majesté et deux Magistrats l'avait assuré qu'il
avait dioi: de voter: Il estià présumer que par oficiercela couronne, c'est à moi
quc l'on fait allusion. Cet avancé -sert de pendant aux autres mensonges impu-
dens qui sortent de la même source Je n avais jamais vu l'homme avant qu'il se
presenta pour voter à la clôture dç Pélection. je ne lui ai jamais parlé de ma vie,
et n'ai jamais emis d'opinion sur fe droit qu'il avait de voter. Lors de son pro-
cès par parjure, un des deux magistrats auxquels on fait allusion, le Col. Jones,
jura que sur l'offre du vote de Clapiood, il avait lui même déclaré, q2'il n'avait pas
le droit de voter.

Quant au cautionnement donné pour la comparution de Claprood, la peine pé-
cuniaire qui en est resulté a été imposée dans le cours ordinaire de lajustice, de
même que tous les cautionneinens qui ont été forlàits dans la m:ne session. Il n'y
a aucun lieu de douter qu'on a fait évader Claprood pour lui laire éviter les con-
séquences de son parjure ; on l'a induit à s'absenter en ullant dans les Etats Unis,
et pour rendre compte de son defaut de comparution d'a:rès son cautiOnnement,
on chercha dans le temps à répandre le bruit qu'il s'était nové. Lors revint
ensuite, il ne tetourna pas à William Henry, le lieu de s. résidence, mais il se ren-
dit dans une paroisse éloignée de l'endroit où il avait été arr't'. Un des pétition-
naires, Marcoux, fut un des partisans les plus actifs de M. Nelson, lors dc l'élec-
tion, et est maintenant sous accusation de subornation de parjure, en ayant faus-
semnent fait accuser de parjure un des voteurs de cette électiri. Il ainena aux lau-
tings pour les faire voter, tous ou presque tous ceux qui ont i té mis en accusation
pour parjure, pour avoir juré faussement être qualifiés, pour les fatire voter en fa-
veur de M. Nelson, et c'est lui qui a le plus contiibué à leur faire prêter le ser-
ment.

(Signé,) J. STUA RT.

Québec 26 Février. 18Q9.

APPENDICE.
[U. v.]

Montréal
Savoir:-

Les jurés pour notre Souverain Seigneur le Roi sous leur sermient représen-
tent, Que ci-devant,savoir, le vingt cinquième jour de juillet dans la hmutième an-

n e



11 2

Sovereign Lord George the Fourth by the Grace of God of the United Kingdom
of Great-Britain and Ireland King, Defender of the Faiti, at the Borough of
William Henry, in the Parish of St. Peter of Sorel in the County of Richelieu in
the District ot Montreal, an Election of one Burgess of the said IBorough to repre.
sent the said Borough in the Assembly of this Province, to be holden at the City
of Quebec, oii the twenty fifti day of August then next ensuing.-was duly had and
held by virtue of a certain writ of election, of our said Sovercign'. Lord the King
before then duly issued and directed to the Returning Officer of the said Borough
under and in pursuance of a certain instrument of our said Sovereign Lord the
King, under the Great Seat of this Province, beariig date at the Castle of Saint
Lewis in the City of Quebec the fifth day of July i the ycar of our Lord, one
thousand eight hundred and twenty seven, for summoning and calling together an
Assembly in and for this Province, at which said Election James Stuart and Wol-
fred Nelson were candidates to represent the said Borough as sucli Burgess as
aforesaid in the said Assembly, and a Poll for taking the votes of the Electors of
the said Borough for the purpose of electing such Burgess as aforesaid, was then
and'there duly granted and lield, and while the said Election was had and held as.
aforesaid, afterwards to wit, on the thirteenth day ofJuly in the eighth year afore-
said, to which said last mentioned day the said Poli, had been and was duly ad-
journed, Antoine Aussant, late ofthe Parish of St. Peter of Sorelin the County and
district aforesaid, Yeoman, appeared as a Freeholder at the said Election and Poll,
whereupon the said James Stuart, being'one of the said Candidates as aforesaid,
then and there demanded and required that the said Antoine Aussant before he
should be admitted to vote at the said Election for a Burgess to represent the said
Borough in. the said Assembly, should take the oath nuinber four prescribed in
an d by a certain Act of the Parliament of the Province of Lower Canada, made
and passed in the fifth year of the Reign of our said Sovereign Lord George the
Fourth, entituled " an Act torepeal certain Acts therein mentioned and to conso-

$late the laws relating to the election of members to serve in the Assembly of
" this Province, and to the duty of Returning Officiers and for other purposes,
and contained in the Schedule to the said Act subjoined. And the Jurcrs afore-
said, upon their oath aforcsaid, do further present, that the said Antoine Aussant
thereupon at the election and PoIl aforesaid was then aid there required by H-ef nry
Crebassa Esquire Returning Officier for the said Borough of William Henry to take
the said oath number four, befbre being admitt6d to vote as a Freeholder at the
said Election, and to entitle him the said Antoine Aussant to vote as such Frce-
holder, and the said Antoine Aussant.Nvas in due manner then and there duly
sworn upon the ioly Gospel of God, and did then and there take the said oath
.number four, before him .the said Hlenry Crebassa then and there being Returning
Oficer for-the said Borongh, lie the said Henry Crebassa then and there ha%ng
snificient an& conipetent power and authority to administer the said oath to the
said Antoine Aubsant in that behalf. And the Jurors afbresaid upon their oath
aforesaid do further present, that the said Antoine Aussant, being so sworn as
aforesaid, not having the fear of God before his eyes, but being ioved and se-
duced by the instigation of the Devil, and not regarding the laws of this Province,
nor the pains and pena!ties therein coàtained, but ineaning and intending the
due course of Election of Members to serve.in the Assembly of this Province, and
to catie and procure the said Wolfred Nelson to be wrongfully elected and chosen
at the said Election, to represent the said Borough of William Ienry, in the As-
sembly ofthis Province, did then and there, to wit, on the said thirtieth day of
July, in the cighth year aforesaid, at the Borough of William Henry aforesaid, in
the Parish àforesaid, in the County aforesaid, in the District albresaid upon and
in the oatii;iforesaid, so administered to and taken by him as aforesaid, and before
he was admitted to vote at the said Election, falsely, wickedly, maliciously, un-

lawfully
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née du règne de notre Souverain Seigneur George Quatre par la grâce de Dieu,.
Roi du Royaume-Uni de la Grande-Bretagne et d'Irlande, défenseur de la Foi,
ou Bourg de William Benri, dans la paroisse de Saint Pierre de Sorel, dans le
Comté de Richelieu, dans le district de Montréal, il fut légalement tenue une
élection à l'effet d'élire un bourgeois du dit Bourg pour représenter le bourg sus-
dit dans l'assemblée de cette province qui devait sièger en la cité de Québec, le
vingt-cinquième jour-d'Aout alors prochain, en vertu d'un certain Writ d'électi-
on de notre.dit souverain Seigneur le Roi duement émané avant ce tems et a-
dresé à l'officier rapporteur du dit Bourg en conformité à certaines lettres de
notre dit Seigneur le Roi, sons le grand sceau de cette Province, datées du Cha-
teau Saint Louis, en la-Cité de Québec, le cinquième jour de Juillet dans l'an-
née de notre Seigneur mil huit cent vingt sept, pour convoquer et réunir ensem-
ble une assemblée de et pour cette Province, à laquelle élection James Stuart et
Wolfred Nelson étaient candidats pour représenter le dit Bourg comme tel boùr-
geois comme susdit dans la dite assemblée, et qu'il IlTt alors et là légalement ac-
cordé et tenu un Poli pour prendre les votes des électeurs àu dit Bourg afin d'é-
lire le dit bourgeois comme susdit, et lors quela dite ý1Wction avait lieu et se te-
nait comme susdit,. ensuite savoir : le treizième jour/ie Juillet dans la. huitième
année susdite, auquel dit jour dernièrement mentionié le dit Poll avai.t été et était
duement ajourné, Antoine Aussant dernièrement de\la-arRisse de St. Pierre de -
Sorel dans le Comté susdit, dans -le district susdit cultivater, comparût coi m c
franc-tenancier à la.dite élection et au dit Poli, sur quoile di James Stueré irt
['u des dits candidats comme susdit, l. et alors deman 't exig eqe dit
Antoine Aussant avant d'être admis à voter à la ditel'u u geois pour
représenter le lit Bourg dans la dite assembléefut tenu ý,ie prèter i erment numé-
ro quatre prescrit par et en vertu d'un cerain acte du Parlemenít de la Province
du Bas-Canada, fait ct passé dans la cinqaième aimée du règne de notrre dit
Souverain Seigneur George Quaztre, intitulé " Acte pour abroger certains actes

" mentionné.s et pour réunir en un seul acre les lois concernant l'élection des
membres pour servir dans l'assemblée de de cette Province, et les devoirs des
officiers-rar-porteurs, et rotur d'autres objets et lequel est contenu dans la

cédule annexée au dlit acte.
Et les jurés susdit sous leur serment susdit- représentent de plus que sur .ce

le dit Antoine Aussant lors de.l'élection et le Pol] susdit fût là et alors requis par
Henry Crebassa, écuver.officier rapporteur pour pour le dit Bourg de Willian
Henîry de préter le dit sernent numéro quatre, avant d'être admis a voter com-
me un franc-tenancier à la d te élection, et pour donner au dit Antoine Aussant
le droit de voter comme tel franc-tenancier, et que le dit Antoine Aussant fut a- .
lors en forme légale assermenté sur les Saints Evangiles, et M et alors preta le dit
serment numi'ro quatre devant lui le dit Henry Crebassa étant lÈret alors officier-
rapi.orteur, pour le dit Bourg, li le dit Fenry Crebassa ayant là et alors le pouvoir
et l'autorit"é suffisante et compétente afin d'administrer le dit serment au dit An-
toine Aussant à cet égard. Et les Jurés susdits sous leur serinent susdit repré-
sentent de plus que le dit Antoine Aussant étant ainsi assermenté comme susdit,
n'ayant cas en vue la crainte de Dieu, mais étant mû et séduit par l'instigation
du démon, et n'ayant aucun égard aux lkis de cette Province ni au peines et pé-
nalités y ccnternues, et dans le dessein et l'intention à l'égard de l'élection des
membres pour servir dans l'asemblée de cette Province, et afin que le dit Wolfred
Nelson fût illégalement élu et choisis irla dite élection pour représenter le dit
Bourg Wlliam Hlenry dans l'assemblée de cette Province, là et alors, savoir :lors
du dit trentième jour de Juillet, dans la huitième année susdite, au Bourg de
William Ilenry susdit, dans la paroisse susdite, dans le comté susdit, dans le dis-
trict susdit, d'après et par le serment susdit, ainsi à lui administré et par lui prêté

comme



lawfully and corruptly, depose -and swear among other things; in subst ance as
follows, that is to say, that he the said Antoine Aussant, was really and bonde
proprietor, and possessed for his own proper use benefit and behoof, in vir-tue
of a legal title, of a lot of ground and dwelling House thereon, within the limits
of the said Borough of William Henry, adjoining on one side to one Vandal and
on the other to ungranted land, which said lot of ground and dwelling House so
belonging to him the said Antoine Aussant vas then of the yearly value of five
pounds sterling, that is to say five pounds eleven shillings and one penny farthing
currency, or more over a nd above all rents and charges payable out of or in respect
of the same. and that lie the said Antoine Aussant, had been in the actual posses.
sion thereof, or of the receipt ofthe rents and profits thereof. for his own use, for
six calehdar months and upwards'imrmediately preceding the said Election, and
that the saidlot of ground and dwelling House had notb ien granted or made
over to hilthe said Antoine Aussant, fradulently, or on purpose to qualify him the
said Antoine Aussant to vote at any-Election, and that he the sa.id Antoine Aus.-
sant had not already voted at the said Election. And the Jurors aforesaid, upon
tleir oath aforesaid,.do further present, that the said Antoine Aussant so meaniug
and intending as aforesaid, after he thesaid A ntoine Aîssant, had been so sworn,
and had taken the said oath as lastaforesaid, did at the said Election to wit, on the
saime day anrl year last aforesaid, at the Borough of William Henry aforesaid; in
the Parish aforesaid, in the County aforesaid. in the District aforesaid, poll and
give his vote for the said Wolfred Nelson ;-Whereas in truth and in fiet the said
Antoine Aussant wvas not at the time cf taking the said oath and swearing as
aforesaid, really o' hojfde proprietor and possessed for his own proper use bene-
fit or beboof; in virt ue o! a legal t.t e of the said lot of grcund and dwelling House
thereon, within the limits of the said Uorougl of William Hunry, ajoining on
one, side to oie Vandal, and on the other to ungranted Jand ; Ancl vhereas in
truth and iii fact the said Antoine Aussant was not at the time df takimig the said
oath, .and sw:eaîritg as aforesaid réally or bná fide, proprietor and possessed for his
own proper use, benefit or behalt in virtue of a legal title of a lot ,of groind and
dwelling Bouse thereon, within the limits of the said Boroigh of Willian fletnry
of the yearlyvaie of five pounis stedling, that is to say five poutids eleven slhil-
lings and one penny farthing curency or more over ani abo'e aIl rents and
charges payable out of or in respect of the saine; And whereas in truth and in
fact the said Aptoine Aussant was not at the tiine of taking the said oath, and
swearing as aforesaid; really or l>onafide proprietor and possessed for his own pro-
per use benelit, or behoof in virtue of a legal title of any lot ofgroun& iud dwel-
*ing Hlouse thereon whatever, within the limits of the said Borougl of William
Henry; And whereas in truth and in fact the said Antoine Aussant had noi beenî
in the actual j-ossession of the sai lot of ground and dwelling House théreon,
adjoining on one side to une Vandaland on the other to ungranted Jand or of the
receipt of the rents and profits thereof, for his osvn use fbr six caléndar months
and upwards immediately ireceding the sa'd Election; And whereas in truih ind
il] fact the said Antoine Aussant hadno been in the actual possessioi ofà alot of
ground and dwelling House thereorí, witin the limits of the said Borough of
William Henry of the yearly value of.five pounds sterling, that is to say five pounds
eleven shillings and one pern fartling currency, or more, over and above ail
rents and charges payalile out f and in respect of the same, or ofthe receipt of
the rents and profit- thereof forhis own use for six calendar, mon ths and upwards
immediately preceding\the said Election'; And lwhereas in truth and in 'het the
said Antoine Aussant Ëhd not beenin the actual possession of any lot of' groúnd
aud dwelling House thereon,,whatever, within the limitsof the. said Borough of
William HenPý of any value\ whatever or of the receipt. of thé 'rents and profits
thereof for his own use for six calendar months and upvwards, imm diately pre-
ceding the siTElction

And
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comme susdit, et avant qu'il eut été admis à voter à la dite élection, a faussement,
méchamment, malicieusement, ilIégaent et par corruption déposé et juré entre
autres choses, en substance comme su t savoir: Que lui le dit An ie Aussant
était réellement et de bonne foi propriétaire et possesseur Pour son propre usage
et avantage, en vertu d'un titre légal, d'un lot de terre et maison dessus cons.
truit, dans les limites du. dit Bourg de William Hinr ; joignant d'un côté'à un
nommé Vandal et de l'autre à des terres non.concédées lequel lot de ter-
re et maison ainsi appartenant ou dit Antoine Auïsant étaent alors de la
valeur annuelle de cinq livres sterling. c'est-à dire, cinq livres onze cie-
lins un denier et un quart couraht en sus de toutes rentes et charges
payalile-&. str ou par rapport à iceux; et que le dit- Antoine Aussant avait
été ei possession réelle d'iceux ou de la recette des rentes et prufits d'iceux,
à son propre usage, pendant six mois de calendrier et au- delà immédiatement
avant la dite élection ; et que le dit lot de terre et maison n'avaient pas été concé-
dés ou transportés au dit Ant ne Aussant frauduleusement ou pour lui danner
droit de voter à jcun4 élection et que lui le dit AntoineAussant n'avait pas déjà
voté à la dite élection,- 3tje jurés susdits sous leur serment susdit représen-
tent de plus qe le dit AùtJi'ne Aussant ayant ainsile dessein et Tintention sus-
dits, après que lui le dit Antoine Aussant eut été ainsi assermenté, et eut prêté
le dit serment comme il vient d'être dernièrement mentionné, lors de la dite élec-
tion, savoir : les ditsjours et an dernièrement mentionnés, ou Bourg de William
Haag ýsusdit>, en la paroisse susdite, dans le comté susdit, dans le distÉet susdit,
votaet donna son votepour ledit Wolfred Nelson ;.lorsque véritablementétde fait
le dit Antoine- Aussant nétait pas à l't poque le la prestation du dit serment et
déclaration sous serment comme susdit réellement ou de bonne foi propriétaire
et posseseur pour son propre usage et avantage, en vertu d'un titre légal; du
dit lot de terre et maison, dans les limites du dit Bourge de William Henry,
joignant d'un côté à un nommé Vandal, et de l'autre aux terres non concédées;
et lorsue véritablemeht et dé fait le dit Antoine Aussant nétait pas à l'éoque
de la prestation du dit, serment et déclaration sous serment. comné susdt-réeIe-
ment et de bonie foi propri taire et possesseur pour son propre usage et avantage
et vertu d'un titre légal d'un lot de ferre et maison sur icelui, dans les limites dt
dit Bourg de William Henir, de la valeur annuelle de cinq livres sterling, c est-
à-dire : cinq livres onze chelins et un denier etun huart- courant en sus de tou-
tes rentes et charges payables sur ou rar-port à icelui ; et lorsque véritablement
et de fait le dit Antoine Aussant n'était pas àX l'poque de la prestation du dit
serment etlors de sa déclaiation sous serment comme susdit réellement ou de bon-
ne foi propriétaire et possesseur pour son propre usage et avantage en vertu d'un ti-
tre légal d'aucun lot de terre et maison dessus construite qtîeIconqué dansles limii,
tes du dit Bourg WilliamrHery ; et lors que véritablement et de fait le dit Antoi-
ne Aussant n'avait pas été réellement en possession du ditlot de terre et maison
dessus construite joignant d un côté à un nommé Vandal et de l'autre aux terres
non-concédées, ou la recette des rentes et profits d'icelui, pour son propre usage
et avantage pendant six mois de calendrier immédiatement avant la dite élection ;
et lorsque véritablement et de fait le dit Antoine Ausant n'avait pas été réelle-
ment en posseàion d'un lot de terre et maison dessus construite dans les limites
du dit Bourg. William Henry de la valeur annuelle de cinq livres sterling, c'est-
à-dire cinq livres onze chelins et un denier et.un quart courant ou plus, en sus
de toutes rentes et charges payables sur et à l'égard d'iceux, ou de la recette
desrentes etuqage pendant six mois de calendrier et au delà immédiatenent avant
la dite élection -et lorsque véritablement et de fait le dit An toine Aussant n'avait

até réellement en possession dM e .rE quelconque et maison sur
icelui dans les limites du dit Bourg de WilliamHenry d'aucune valeur quelcon-
que ou de la recette des rentes et profits d'iceux à son propre usage pendant sir
mois de calendrier immdiatement avant la dite élection.

Et
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And so the Jurors aforesaid upon their oath aforesaid do say, that the said
Antoine Aussant on the said thirtieth day of J uly in the eighth year aforesalid at
the Borough of Willian Henry aforesaid, in the Parish aforesaid, in the County
aforesaid, in the District aforesaid, at the Election had and held.as aforesaid, be-
fbre the saidiHenry Crebassa, Returning Oflicer as aforesaid, then and there.hav-
ing competent power and authority to. administer the aforesaid oatlh to the said
Antoine Aussant, in that belialf, by his own act and consent, in manner and
form aforesaid, upcn his oath aforesaid, falsely,. wickedly, wiIfully, maliciously
and corruptly did commit wilfui and corrnpt Perjury to the great displeasure of
Alimighty God, to the evil example of ail others in the like case offending, agaist
fle form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of
our'said Lord the King His Crown and Dignity.

And the Jurors aforesaid upon their oath aforesaid do further present, that
on the said twenty-fifth day ofJuly in the eighth year aforesaid, at the Borough af
William Henry aforesaid, in the Parish aforesaid, in the County aforesaid, in the
District aforesaid, an Election of one Bugess of the said Borough to.represent
the said Borough in the Assembly of this Province to be holden at the City of
Quebec, on the twenty-fifth day of August then next ensuing, vas duly had and
held by virtue of a certain writ of clection of our said Soverci2n Lord the King,,
before7then duly issued and directed to the Returning Officier of the said Borough
under and in pursuance of. a certain instrument of outr said Sdvereign Lord the
King under the great Seal of this Province bearing date at the Castle
of Saint. Lewis in the City of Quebec the 5th day cf July in the year
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and twenty seven, and in the
eighth year aforesaid, for sumumoning and cailing together an Assembly
in and for ·the Province, at which said Election, James Stuart and
iolfred Nelson were Candidates to rcpresent the said Borough, for

the purpose of electing sucli Burgess as aforesaid in the said Assembly and a Poil
for taking the votes of the Electors of the said Borough for the purpose of electing
sucli Burgess as aforesaid, was tien and there duly granted and held; And while
the said Election was had and held as aforesaid, afterwards, to wit, on the thirtieth
day of July in the cighth year afbresaid, to whici said last mentioned day the said
Poil had been and was duly adjoni ued, the said Antoine Aussant appeared as a
Freeholder at the said El'ection and Poll, to wit. at the Borough of Willian Henry
aforesaid, and claimed a right to vote as such Frecholder, at tfl said Election and
Poil, whereupon the said James Stuart being one of the said Candidates as afore-
said, then and their demanded and requircd, that the said Antoine Aussant before
lie should be admitted to vote at the said Election for a Burgess to represent the
said Borough in the said Assembly, should take the oath number four prescribed
in and by a certain Act of the Parliaient of'this Province made and passed in the
fifth year of the Reign of our said Scvercign Lord George the Fourth, intitnled

an Act to repeul certain Acts thereirn mentioned, and to consolidate the laws
s relating to the election of Memnbers to serve in the Assembly of this Province,
C and to the dut) -of Returning Ollicers and for other purposes," and contained
in the Schedule to the said Act subjoirned; And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their
oath afbresaid do further present that the said Antoine Aussant thercupon at th1
Election and Pollaforesaid, was then and therc required by -lenry Crebassa Esquirc
Returning Officer for the said 'Borough of William Henry to take the said oath
numrber four before being alnitted t'o vote as a Frecholder at the said Election,
aid to entitle him the said Antoine Aussait, to vote as such Freeholder, and the
said Antoine Aussant was in due manner then and there sworn upoli the -Ioly
Gospel of God, and did then aud there take the said oath nuraiber four, before
him the said Henry Crebassa then and there being Returning Oflicier for the said
lorough, he the said lleury Crebassa then and there laving suficient and compe-
tent power and authority to adminiter the said la.st mentioned uath to the said
Antoine-Aussant irr-tlat-beablf'; -An d- the- Jurors-aforesaid-upan -their -oath-aforer

said,
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Et lesjurés susdits sous leur serment susdit disent en conséquence que le dit
Antoine Aussant, le dit trentième jour de juillet dans la huitième année susdite
au Bourg William feniy susdit, dans la paroisse susdite, dans le comté susdit,
dans le district susdit, lors de l'élection qni eût lieu et fut tenue comme susdit
devant le dit lenry Crébassa officier-rapporteur comme susdit, qui avait là et a-
lors le pouvoir et autorité compétente d'administrer le serment susdit au dit Antoi-
ne Aussantà cet égard, par son propre fait et consentement en la manière en
forme susdite sous son serment susdit a faussement malicieusement méchamment,
volontairement malicieussment et par corruption commis un parjure volontaire
et corrompu au grand déplaisir du Tout-Puisant,, au mauvais exempl2 de
tous autres contrevenans en pareil cas, contre la forme du statut fait et pouivu en
ce cas, et contre la paix de notre dit Seigneur le Roi Sa Courorne et Sa Dignité.

'Et les jurés susdits sous leur serment susdit représentent de plus que le dit
vingt-cinquième jour de juillet dans la huitième année susdit au Bourg ce Wil-
liam Hlenry susdit, en la paroisse susdite, dans le comté susdit, dans le district
susdit, il fut légalement tenu une électIon pour élire un bourgeois du dit Bourg
à l'effet de représenter le dit Bourg dans l'assemblée de cette province qui devait
siéger en la cité de Québec. le vingt cinquième jour d'août alors prochain, en ver-
tu d'un certain writ d'execution de notre dit Souverain Seigneur le Roi duement
émané avant ce tems et adressé à l'oricier-rapporteur du dit Bourg sous et en
vertu de certaines lettres de notre dit Souverain Seigneur le Roi sous le grand
sceau dé cette Province, daté duChateau Saint Louis, en la cité de Québec,. le cin-
quième jour de juillet, dans l'année de'notre Seigneur mil huit cent vingt sept, et
dans la huitième année susdite, à l'effet de convoquer et-d'appeler ensemble une
assemblée dans et pour la dite Province, à laquelle dite élection James Stuart et
Wolfred Nelson étaient candidats pour représenter le dit Bourg, à l'effet d'élire
un bourgeois comme susdit dans la dite assemblée, et là et alors il fut duernent
accordé et tenu un Poll. Et durant que la dite élection se tenait là et alors
comme susdit, ensuite, savoir : le trentième jour de juillet, dans la huitième année
susdite, auquel jour dernièrement mentionné le dit Poll avait été et était duement
ajourné, le dit Antoine Aussant parût comme franc-tenancier àla dite.élection et
au dit Poli, savoir: au Bourg de William Hinry susdit, et reclama le droit de
voter. comme franc-tenancier à la dite élection et au dit Poll. Sur quoi le dit
James Stuart étant l'un des dits candidats comme susdit, là et alors demanda et
exigea que le dit Antoine Aussant fut tenu, avant d'étrie admis à voter à la dite
élection pour un bourgeois à l'effet de représenter le dit Bourg dans la dite assem-
blée de prêter le serment numéro quatre prescrit en vertu et par un certain acte
du parlement de cette Province, fait et passé dans la cinquième année du règne
de notre dit Souverain Seigneur George Quatre, intitulé " acte pour abroger cer-

tains actes y mentionnés, et pour réunir en un seul acte les lois concernant l'é-
" lection des membres pour servir dans servir dans l'assemblée de cette Province,

et les devoirs des officiers-rapporteurs, et pour d'autres objets et contenu dans
la cédule annexée au dlit acte. Et les jurés susdits sous leur serment susdit re-
présentent en outre que sur ce le dit Antoine Aussant à l'élection et au Poil sus-
dits, fut là et alors requis et interpellé par Henry Crébassa, écuyer, officier-rap-
porteur pour le dit Bourg de William Henry de prêter le dit scrment numéro
quatre avant d'étre admis à voter comme franc-tenancier à la dite élection, et
pour donner au <lit Antoine Aussant le droit de voter comme tel franc-tenancier
et le dit Antoine Aussant fut en manière légale là et alors assermenté sur leu
Saints Evangiles, et là etalorsprêta le serment numéro quatredevant lui le dit len-
ry Crébassa étant là et alors officier-rapporteur pour le dlit Bourg, lui le dit Henry
Crébassa,. ayant là et alors les pouvoirs et une autorité suffisante et compétente
d'administrer à cet égard le dit serment mentionné en dernier lieu au dit Antoi-
ne Aussant, et les jurés susdits sous leur serment susdit représentent en outre que

le



said, do further present that the saidAntoinie Aussant being so swomn as aforesaid
not having the fear of God before his eyes, -but being noved and seduced by the
instigation ofthe Devil, and not regarding the laws ofthis Province, nor the pains
and penalties thdrein contain.ed, but ineaning and intending to pervért the due
course of Election of Meinbers to serve in the Assenibly- of this Province, and to
cause and procure the said Wolfred Nelson one of the Candidates aforesaid to be
wrongfully elected and chosen at the said last. nentioned Election to represent the
said Borough of William Henry in the said Assembly of this Province, did then
and there, to vit, on the said thirtieth day of Julv, in the eighth year aforesaid:
at the Borough of William Henry aferesaid, in the Parish aforesaid, in the County
afor:said, in the District aforcsaid, upon and in the oath afbresaid, so administered
to and taken by him as afbresaid, and before he ,vas adlmitted to vote at the said
Election, fàlsely, wickedly, maliciously, unlawfully, end corruptly depose and
swear. among other things, i substance as follows, that is to sav, that lie tihe.said
Antoine Aussant was really and bonciflde proprietor and poss.cssed for his own
proper use benefit and behoof, in virtue of a legal titie, ofa lot of ground and
dwelling Ilouse thereon, within the limits ofthe said Borough of William H-enry,
adjoinng on one side to one Vzsndal and on the other to ungianted l'and, which
said hist mcntioned lot of ground and dwelling Iomse, so bclo ,ging to him the said
Antoine Aussant, was then of the yearly value of five po.unds sterling, that is- to
say, ofive poinds eleven shillings and onc penny ftrthing currency, or more, over
an,! above all rents andi char'ges payable out of or in respect of' te same, and that
the sai.l Antoine Au-sant had been in the actual passession thercof, or of the re-
ceipt off lie rents anci profits thereof for his own use, for six calendar months and
upnwards, innediatel prcceding the said Election, or that the same came to liim
the said .\ ntoine Aussant, by descent or inlieritance, narriage, contract ofmarriage
or by devise, and ihatthe said lot ofgrouncd and dwelling buse, lad not been
granted or made over to hlim thé said Antoine Aussant, fradulently, or on purpose
to.qualfv hlim the said Antoine Autssnt to vote at anv lectioi, and that lie the
said An-oine Aussasnt, lad not already - tedat tIhe said Election ; And the J urors
aoresaid u1pon thelir oath aforesaid di fr r îpresent, that the said An:oine dlus-
sant so neaning and intending as aforesaid atter lie the said Antoine AuSsant had
been so sworn and had take i me said oath as last aforesaid. did.at the said Election,
to wit, on Lie same day and year last afor'saidut the Borough ot William llenrv
aforesaid, in the-Parish afbresaid, in the County \(bresaid, ii tie District af'tre-
said, Pol! and give his vote for the said Wolfred Nelson ; Whereas in truth and in
fact the said Antoine Aussant, .vas not at the time of takig the said oath and
swearing as aforesaid really or hondfide proprietor, and possessed for his own pro-
per use, benefit, or beloof in virtue of a legal title, of the said last mentioned lot of
grouînd and dwelling Houise thercon, within the limits of the said Borough io
William Henry, adjoining on one side to one Vandal and on the other to ungranted
land ; And whereas in truti and in fact the said Antoine Aussant vas not, at the
time of taking tIhe said oath and swearing as afbresaidreally or bond fide proprit tor,
and posessed for his own proper use bcnefit or beho ft in virtue of a leg.Jl title of
a lot of ground and dwelling Hlouse thereon. within the linits or the said Borough
of William Henry, ofithe yearly value of five pounds sterling, that is to say, five
pounds eleven shillings and one penny farthing currcncy, or more, over and above
ail rentsand charges payable out of or in respect of the saie; And whereas in
truth aud in fact the said Antoine Aussant, was not at the time of taking the said
last mnentioned oath and swearing as aforesaid, rcally or bonál*fide proprictor and
possessed for his own use, benefit or beloof, in virtue of a legal title of any lot of
ground and dwelling House thereon whatever, within the limits of the said
Borough f Villiam Henry ; And whereas in truth and in faet the said Antoine
Aus5ant had not been in the actual possession o the said lot of groutnd and dwel.

ling0jn
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le dit Antoine Aussant.étant ainsi sous serment comme susdit, n'ayant pas en
vue la crainte de Dien, mais étant m et séduit par l'instigation du démon, et
n'ayant aucun égard aux lóis de cette Province, ni aux peines et p:)nalités y cont-ce-
nies, mais dans le dessein etlintention d'empêcher le cours de l'election des mieim-
bres pour servir cLans.l'assenblée de cette Province, et afin que le dit Vlfred
Nelson fut illégalement et irjîemert élu et choisià ladite électon denièrement
mentionnée pour représe:ior la dii om: de Viliiain Ilenry dans la dite assen-
blée de cette Province, I ei o: , -av -i: le dit trentièmTe jour de juillet, dans la
huitième année susdit, au Bourg de TTi/liam Henry susdit, ci la paroisse susdit,
dans le comté sus:lit, dans le district susdit, sous le serment susdit à lui ansi ad-
minîistré et par lui prêté comme susdit, et avant qu'il eut été admis voter à la dite
élection, a falussement méchamment malicieusement, illealemet ar corrup-
tion dépose et juré, entre au'res choses,.en substance comme suit, cst-à-savoir
que lui le dit Antoine Aussant était réellement -et debonne foi prpriétaire et
posséda.t pour son propre usage et avantage, en vertu d'un titre légal, un lot deL
terre et maison dessus construite,- dans les limites dIi li Bourg de I(l :n
Ilenry, joignant d'un côté à un nommé Vandal et de l'autre à des terres non-

conc.dés, lequel lot de terre et ma;son m2ntionnés eu dernier lieu étaent. alor.
de la valeur annuelle de cinq livres sterling, c'est-à-dire cinq livrCs onze chelins
un denier et un quart courant, ou au delà en sus et outre de toutes rentes et
charges payables sur ou à l'égard d'iceux, et que le dit Antoine Aussant avait
été en possession réelle d'iceux, ou dle la recette les rentes et proits d'icsux
pour son propre usage pendant six mois de calendrier et au deLà i-mmnédatenenit
avant la dite élection, ou qu'iecux appartenaient au dit Antoinu .\ussant pour
les avoir eut par succession o i héritage par mariage, contra de mariage out par
legs, et que le dit lot de terre et maison n'avaient pas <té conc., d ou tramp'rté
.idit Auto'ne Aiussant fraduleusement ou pour lui donn droit d. voter .. au-
cine elee : ion, que lui le dit. Antoine Ausant n'avait pas dL:jà voté à la dite élec-
tion ; et les jur;-s susdits sous leur sermnent susdit représentent deplus ; que le dit
Antoine Aussant avec le desein et l'interion cunmme susdit ; après que lui le dit,
Altoine :Aussan.t eut été ainsi assermnrît » et cut prété le serme:ît tel que nenut:ornné
en dernier liei, à la dité lection, savo:r : les même jour et an que snsdits au
l3ourg de WFilliam Henry susdit, en la dite paroisse suîsite, dans le comté susdit
dans le disttict susdit, vota et donna son vote pour le dit Wolfred Nelson, lors.
-que véritablement et de fait le dit A moine Atssant n*îtait ras à l épo(ue de la
pretation du dit serinent et déclaration sous serment comme susdit.r;-eIlemenît on
de bonne foi propriétaire, en possession pour son propre uisage b néiice ou avan-
tage en vertî..d'un titre légal du dit lot de terre mentionné eti dernier lieu et de-
la maison b:tie sur icelui dans.les limites du dit Bouig d. W !/iam IIem, joi-
«rnant d'un cdté à un nommé Vaindal et de l'autre aux- terrcs nîon-concidées et
lorsque véritablement et de fait le dit A ntoine Aussant n'était pas : l'époque de
la prestation du dit serment et de L.i déclaration sous serment comme susdit réci-
lement ou de bonne foi propriétaire et en poss..ssioi pour son propre usage bén:--
fice ou avantage en vertud'un t.tre lédal d'un lot <le terre et maison dessus cons.
truite, dans les limites du dit Bourg de !illiam HIeInri, de :a valeur annuelle de cinq
livres sterling, c'est-à dire cinq livres onze chelinsuin deier et un quart Courant,
ou plus, en sus de toutes'rentes et charges payablv sur oui à gard d'iceux
lorsque véritablement et, de fait ledit Antoine Aussant n'était pas à l'époque
de la prestation du lit serinent mentionné en dernier lieu et du serment susdit,
réeltieet ou (le bonne fi propriétaire et en possesion pour son propre usage
bétiai -e ou avantage eu vertu d'un titre légal d'aucun lot de terre quelconqu
et maison dessus construite, danis -les limites du dit Bourg de iFilliam 1-e:nr, et
lorsque véritablemTent et de fait le dit Antoine Aussant n'avait pas été ei pos
session actuelic du ldit lot de terre, et maison sur icelui, joignant d'un côte à un
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ling House thereon adjoining on one side to one Vandal and on the other to un-
granted land, or of the receipt of the rents and profits thereof, for his
own use for six calendar imonths and upwards immediately preceding the said
Election, nor had the said fast mnentioned lot ofground and dwelling H-ouse
thereon cone to him the said Antoine Aussant by descent or-inheritance, miarriage.
contract of rnarriage or by devise ; And whereas in truth and in fact the said
Antoinc Aussant had not been in the .actual possession of a lot of ground and
dwelling House thereon, within the limits of the said Borough of William Henry
of the yearly value of five pounds sterling, that is to say, five pounds eleven shil-
lings and one penny farthing currency, or more, over and above all rents and
charges payable out of or in respect of the Same, or of the receipts of the rents and
profits thereof for his.own use, for six calendarmonthsand upwards immediately pre-
ceding the said Election, ror had anysuch last mentioned lot of ground and dwelling
House thereon come to himu the said Antoine Aussant, by descent or inheritance,
marriage, c.ontract of marriage or by devise: And whercas in truth and in fact the
said Antoine Aussant had not been in the actual possession of any lot of ground
and dwelling louse thereon whatever, with the limits of the said "Borough of
William Henry, or of the receipt of the rents and profits thereof for his own use
for six calendar months and upwards inimediately preceding the said Election,
nor had such last mentionec lot of ground and dwelling.H-fousethereon come to
himtle said Antoine Aussant by descent or inheritance, marriage, contract of
marriage or by devise ; And so the Jurors aforcsaid, upon-their oath aforesaid, do
say,thatthe said Antoine Aussant, on the said thirtieth day.ofJuly in the eighth
year aforesaid, at the 3orough of William Henry aforesaid, in the Parish afbre-
said, in the County aforesaid, in the District aforesaid, at, the Election had and
held as aforesaid, before the said lenry Crebassa Returning Oflicer as aforesaid,
then and tiiere having competent power and authority to administer the said last
nentioned oath to the said Antoine Aussant, in that behalf, by his own act and
consent in manner and fbrn aforesaid, upon his said last mentioned gath, falsely,
wickedly, wilfuly, ialiciously and corruptly, did commit wilful and corrupt
Perjury, to the great displeasure of Almiglty God, to the evil example of all
others in the like case offending, against the form of the Statute in such case made
and provided, and against the Peace cf our said Lord the King his Crown and
Dignity.

(Signed) J. STUART.

Attorney General.

(Signed) Jno. Delisle, Ck. O. & T. & Gl. Dy.

A true Copy,

Jno. Delisle, Ck. Cr.
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nommé Vandal, et de l'autre à des terres non concédées, ou de la recette des
rentes et profits d'icelui, pour son propre usage pendant six mois de calendrier
et au delà immediatement avant la dite election, et que le dit lot de terre der-
niièrement mentionné et la maison sur icelui n'était pas non plus avenus au
dit Antoine Aussant par succession où héritage, - par mariage, par contrat
de mariage ou par legs ; et lorsque véritablement et de fait le dit An-
toine Aussant n'avait pas été en possession réelle d'un lot de terre et mai-
son sur icelui, dans les limites du dit Bourg de William Henry, .de la valeur an-
nuelle de cinq livres sterling, c'est-à-dire, cinq livres onze chelins un denier et
un quart courant, ou plus, en sus de toutes ventes et charges payables sur ou à
l'égard d'icelui, ou de la recette des rentes et profits d'icelui, pendant six mois
de calendrier et au-delà immediatement avant la dite election, et qu'aucun tel
lot de terre et maison sur l'icelui tel que dernièrement mentionné n'étaient pas
non plus avenus au dit Antoine Aussant par succession ou héritage, par mariage,
contrat de mariage ou legs : et lorsque véritablement et de fait le dit Antoine
Aussant n'avait pas été iéellement en possession d'aucun lot de terre quelconque,
et maison sur icelui dans les limites du dit Bourg de William Henry, ou de la
recette des rentes et profits d'icelui pour son propre usage pendant six mois de
calendrier et au-delà immediatement avant la dite election, et que de même aua
cun tel lot de terre et maison sur icelui, tel que méntionné en dernier lieu n'é-
taient pas avenus au dit Antoine Aussant par succession ou héritage, par mari-
age, contrat de mariage ou par legs. Et en conséqu.ence les jurés sus dit sous
leur serment susdit disent que le dit Antoine A ussant, le dit trentièmejour de Juillet,
dans la huitième année susdit, au Bourg de William lenry susdit, dans la paroisse sus-
dite, dans le Comté susdit, dans le District susdit, à l'election qui entlieu et fit tenue
comme susdit devant le dit Henry Crebassa, Officier Rapporteur, comme susdit, là
et alors ayant l'autorité compétente et le pouvoir d'administrer le dit serment men-
tionné en dernier lieu au dit Antoine Aussant à cet égard, par son propre fait et
consentement en la manière et forme susdites, sous son serment mentionné en
dernier lieu, a faussement, méchamment, malicieusement et par corruption com-
mis un parjure volontaire et corrompu, au grand'deplaisir du Tout-Puissant, au
mauvais exemple de tous autre contrevenans en pareil cas,contre la forme du Statut
fait et pourvu en tel cas, et contre la paix de notre dit Seigneur le Roi, Sa Cou-
ronne et Sa Dignité.

(Signé) J. STUART.

Procureur-Général.

.Jno. Delise, Greffier, .O. & T. De. Term.

Jno. Delisle, Greffier Cr.
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COURT 0F KEGSBENCEÉI ONTREAL..

M1arch Tcrr,13.

No. I .- The King agst. Louis l- Mrtcl.--Itditmcflt for obtaininc Goods
under faisc prctences. ildlst Marcli, 1830, PIC& GuiIty

Witnesses Paschal Dubue, Pierre Auger.-A -truc B3ill.

Tzio3z4s A~. Teman, Foreman.'

No. 2.-The King agst. Jean l3te. Bioidin.-ndittment for Larceny.--
Filcd Ist March, 18,3O. 'Airaigned plea flot cguilty ; trial l'or 2d inst.-Verdic
guilty.

lVittocsses-Picrre Cafetain, Leon l3arrc.'A truc Bi.

(Signed) 'fiiomis Tu]î,Forenian.

No. S.-The King vs. Mitichel Blais otlbcrvise called £Michel Pcrry, -aÜd Jean
jMarie Turgeon, ot.herwisc called Jean. M. Dcs-jaris-nitctlrsel
a Lfare.-iied 2d March 1830,- Pica flot gi]ty.-.5th tricd-Verdict Michl
Mais guilLy and J. M. Tiirgèon not guilty.

Witniesss-Ignace J iasson> Jarv'is MC brJoseph Tliomfson.-A truc B3ill.

(Sig'ned,) Tnxos. A. Tuit-i:nr, Foreman.

No. 9.-The King agst. Michel Biais othcr-wise callic Michel Pcrry and Jean
Marie <fur-eon, otIierivise calied Jcau 11. Desjrdins.--nicitmetit for stcaling-
a GCirding.---Fiicd -2d M arch, 1~3.e n,) gruilty. 1 st. Sept iot g i t.

~Vite~ss-IgaccG asson, Thor01nas Sacowhial ctso, Josephi 'Thonip;so-
A trac Bill.

(Signed,) Tjý-os- A. Tuist-Lt IForcinan.

No. 1 O.-Mie Kiregagst. John Burbac.-Iiditret fo-1atn~tt ta

certain goods anid chiattels of otir Lord tuec 1in.-FIcd -2id Marcli, 1S31.-

Witiiesses e1 .L. 1-ay-den, S.Twpon f osiiju, Jos. D .ay- truc Bill.

(Sine,)Tiios. A. Tuuxiçj.:, Forcrnan.

N\o. 11.--The King agst. Picrrc Gucrtii and 'lFiriothÎc Guertin.-Tndict-
ment for Larccniy.--k'iled Qnd March, i0- canot, gu ilty. ,5Lh .Marclî
Plierre Gutertin tried -- Verdict îlot; guiiry. z

Wituesses-Randal, M'Donald, 6 uy llUcliards.-Ai truc Bill.

(Signedl) T1iics. A. Tut.xLit.i, Forci-nan.



APPENDICE [V. v.]

COUIL DU-BANC .DU ROI MONTREAL.

Terme de 'Mars, 1880.

No. 1.-Le Roi contre Louis Martel.- Accusation pour avoir obtenu des
eWfets sous de faux prétextes, filée 1 Mars 1830.-Pliidé coupable.

Témoins-Paschal Dubue, Pierre Auger.-Vrai Bill.

(Signé,) Tuos., A. TURNE R, Président.

No. 2.-Le Roi contre Jean Bte. Blondin.-Accusation pour Larcin.--
Filée 1 Mirs 1880. Accusé plaid6 'non coupable.- Procès pour 8 couràint.-
Verdict coupable.

Témoins-Pierre Cafetain, Leon Barre.-Vrai Bill.

(Signé,) Tuo-. A. TINER, Président,

No. 8.-Le Roi vs. Michel Blais autrement nommé Michel Perry, et Jean
Marie Turgeon, autrement nommé .Jean M. Desjardins.-Accusation pour
vol-d'une junent.---Filée 2 Mars 1830. Plaidé non coupable. 5 -procès.
Verdict Michel Bais coupable et J. M. Tur n non coupable.

'Ténois-Ignace jiasson, Jarvis M'Cumber, Joseph Thompson;-Vrai Bill.

(Signé,) Tiios. A. Tuuwan, Prsid clnt.

No. O-L~e Roi contre Miche! Biais, autrement nomni Michel Perry, et Jean
Mdarie Turgeon, autrement nommé Jean M. Dssjardins.---Accusation pour
vol de cheval. ilée 2 Mars 1830. Plaidé non cou]pable. 1 Sept. non coupable.

Tié moins-Ignace Giasson, Thomas Sacowhabetso, Josepi Thom1pson.;__
Vraie Bill.

(Signé,) Tuos. A. TULNER, Président.

No. 10.-Le Roi contre J ohn Burbage.- Accusation pour. attentat de vol
de' çertains eflets appartenant notie.Seigneur le Roi. Filée u Mars 1830.
Plaide non 'coupable. ' Jsp 4'-~y~

vming -E L ba en S. Thompson, T. Goslin, Joseph Desany rai

S gn)" Tu TtnNER, Président.

N~o. ) ~ .- Le loi contre P ire Guertin et Timothée Güertin. Accusation
pour arcin iléc 2 Mrs 1830. Plàidé non coupable 5i Mars procès de
PVierre G n. erdict non coupable.

TémoinsR dar asDnald GTVy ichards. Vra Bil.

- ' (Signé,) Tuîos. Ä. TfREnft Pdésidet.



No. 14.-The King vs. Noel Bertrand-Indictment for Larceny.-Filed 2nd
March-Plea not guilty, 27th August.

Witnesses-André Morin, Jean Bte. Piquet, Honor Dubé, Pierre Aimont. -

A true Bill.

(Signed) THos. A. TURNER, Foreman.

No. 27..-.: The King agst. Francis Fornel.- Indictmient for uttering coun-
terfeit money.-Filed 3d March.--Plea not guilty 4th March-trial 6th March,
31st. August, verdict guilty.

Witnesses-Jean Bte. Sicard, - Leprohon, Ambroise Lettoré.-A truc Bill.

(Signed,) Tros. A. TuiRER, Foreman.

No. 2.-The King vs. François Fôurne-.TIndictment for uttering Counter-
feit money.-Filed Sd-March-Plea not guilty 4th March-Trial 6th March.

Wttnesses-Jean Baptiste Sicard, - Leprohon, Ambroise Lettoré. -A true
Bill.

(Signed) Tros. A. TURNER, Foreman.

No. 29.-The King vs. François Fournel- Indictment for uttering 'ounter-
feit moncy.-Filed 3d March-Plea not guilty 4th March-Trial Gth March.

Witnesses-Jean Bte. Sicard, . Leprohoin, Ambroise Lettoré.-A true Bill.

(Signed) Tiios. A. TuiRNEn, Foreman.

No. 35.-The King agst. David Codey- Indictment. for Larceny-Filed
*Ith March-Plea not guilty-trial 5th March-28th August Verdict guilty.

Witnesses- Joseph Jerome dit Latour, Asa Goodenough, Catherine Jianderin.
A true Bill.

(Signed,) THos. A. TurNER, Foreman.

No. 16.-The King vs. Joseph Champagne otherwise called Joseph Godère.
Indictment for Sheep Stealing-Filed 2d March-Pleaguilty.

Witnesses-Alber Bigonisse dit Beaucaire, James Jefflries, Marie Robert, Hu-
bert Desmarais.-A true Bill.

(Signed) T.ios. A.- TuRiR, Foreman.

No. -15.-The King vs. Joseph Champagne otherwise called Joseph Godère.
Indictment for Sheep Stealing.-Filed 2nd March-Plea guilty.

Witnesses-Albert Begonisse dit Beaucaire, James Jefferies, Hubert Desma-
rais.-A true Bill.

(Signed,) Tuos. A. TUiEFt, Foreman.

No.
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No. 14.---Le Roi vs. Noel Bertrand.--Accusation pour Larcin. Filée- 2
.Mars. Plaidé non coupable.

Témoins-André Morin, Jean Bte. Piquet, Honoré Dubé, Pierre A mont.
Vrai Bill.

(Signé) THoS. A. TURNER, Président.

No. 27.-Le Roi contre François Fournel.-Accusation pour. avoir fait
passer de faux argent. Filée 3 Mars. Plaidé non coupable 4 Mars. Procès
6 Mars. 81 Août, Verdict coupable.

Témoins-Jean Bapte. Sicard, - Leprohon, Ambroise Lettoré. Vrai
Bill.

(Signé,) Trios. A. TURNER, Président.

No. 28.-Le Roi vs. François Fournel.- Accusation pour avoir fait passer
de fàtux argent. Filée 3 Mars. Plaidé non coupable 4 Mars. Procès 6 Mars.

Témoins--Jean Bap. Sicard, - Leprohon,. Ambroise Lettoré. Vrai Bill.

(Signé) Tio. A. TURNER, Président.

No. 29. -Le Roi vs. François Fournel.-Accusation pour avoir fait passer de
faux argent. Filée 8 Mars, Plaidé.non coupable, 4 Mars. Procès 6 Mars.

Témoins-Jean Bte. Sicard, - Leprohon, Ambroise Lettoré. Vrai Bill.

(Signé,) Tiros. A. TURNER, Président.

No. 85.-Le Roi contre David Codey.- Accusation pour Larcin, accusé
Plaidé non coupable. Procès le 5 Mars-28 Août.-Verdict coupable.

rémoins-Joseph Jerome dit Latour, Aza Goodenough, Catheine Handerin.

Vrai Bill.

(Signé,) THos. A. TURNER, Président.

-. No. 16.--Le Roi vs. Joseph Champagne autrement nommé Joseph Godère.
'Accusation pour vol de moutons. Filée 2 Mars 1830. Plaidé coupable.

Témoins--Alber Begonisse, Beaucaire, James Jefferies ,Marie Robert, Hubert
Desnarais. Vrai Bill.

(Signé,) THos. A. TURNER, Président.

No. 15..-Le Roi vs. Joseph Champagne autrement appelé Joseph Godère.-
Accusation pour vol de moutons. Filée 2 Mars.' Plaide coupable.

Témoins--Albert Begonisse dit Beaucaire, James Jefferies, Hubert Desmarais,
Vrai Bill.

(Signé,) Tiios. A. TURNER, Président.

No.
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No 7.--The King agst. William Brock- Indictment for an Aassaült and
Battery.-Filed 6th March.

Witness-Patrick M'Intyre.-No Bil.

'(Signed, THOýIAS. A. TuRNER, Foreman.

No. 9.-The King agst. Pierre Millet. and Pierre Lachance.-Indictment
for .Larceny.-oth March.

Witnesses--William Molson, Antoine Guyot, Peter Rénels. Ignoranus.

(Signed,) Tu os. A. TURNER, Foreman.

APPENDIX.

S[X.,X.)

bl6. 5f00.
Uth March, 1822.

DO rION, (en trdvis) by François Gazaille dit St. Germain and Charlotte Me-
neclier his wife, to François Gazaille dit St. Germain, Junr.

(Srd Copy.)

TRANsLATION.

Before the undersgned Notaries Public for the Province of Lower Canada,
resiqg in the DisLrict Wf*Moùtreal.

Came and appeared François Gazaille dit St. Germain, proprietor and cultiva-
tor (notable cultivateur) residing iii tlie Seigniory of Sorel, and l)ame Charlotte
Meneclier, his wifle, widow, by lier firs t marriage witli the late Matthew 3Buckley,
and authorized by her second husband for the purposes oftIse presents.

Who, by these presents have voluntarially déclared and acknowIedged, that
they have made a donation, puré, sim1ple and irrÈvocable; in life timie, (entre tiß,)
froin lence forward and for ever, nd have promisedzand do herebypronise,jointly
and'severally, to give, guarantced to le frec froni aIl impediments, gifts, dowers,
debts, mortgages, or other hinderance generally .hatsoevcr, unto François ca.
zaille, dit St. Germain, tleir son, now of agc deaier, residing in the parish of St.
Denis, now preset, and accepting Donatce for hiimself, his ieirs and rissigns, in
future, to vit: the following household. furniture, anim'als and other iovenbles,
viz: two feather.beds, vith their bedding, a single iron stove of three feet, with
its pipes, another single siove and pipes, a large lookingglass, a small lookinglass,
two chairs, a chest of drawers painted yellow, half a dozen of silver table spoons,
apair oïsilver sugar tongs, a large two pail kettle, anotherditto of one and a halfand
cover, a cast iror tea.kettle, a pair of andirons, a fire shovel and tongs, three brass
candlesticks, two iron hooped liails, two trains and their shafts two carts and their
wheels, a grey horse, a red cow, a complete set of harness, and generally all thé
other moveables that may be found to belong to theni at the time of their death.

The
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'No. 7.---Le Roi contre William Brock.--Accusation pour assaut et batterie.
Filée 6 Mars.

Témoins.--Patrick M'Intyre. Ignoramus.

(Signé,) Tros. A. TURNER, Président.

No:9.--Le Roi contre Pierre Millet et Pierre Lachance.-Accusation pour
Larcin.. Filée 10 Mars.

Té-moins.-.William Molson, Antoine Guy6 t, Peter Renels. Igaoramus.

(Signé,) Tros. A. TURNER, Président.

APPENDICE

No. 5600.]

. . 15 Mars 1822.

DONATION ENTRE-VIFs par François- azaille (it Sint-Gerimain ét Charlotte -Me-
neclier, sa femme, à François G azaille dit St.-Gernain, fils

se. Expédition..

Par devant les notaires publics, pour la province du Bas-Canada, soussignés ré-
sidens dans le district de Montreal:

Furent présens, François Gazaille dit St. Germain, notable, cultivateur, rési-
dent en la seigneurie de Sori, et Dame Charlotte Meneclier,.sa femme, veuve en
premières noces de feu Mlathicu Buckley, de son second mari authorisée à l'effet
des présentes.

Lesquels ont volontairement reconnus et confessés par ces présentes avoir fait
donation pure, simple et irrévocable entrevif3, dès mainiteant et à toujours, et-
ont promis et promettent sous la voi, solidaire et garantie de tousý tro;.bles, tant
douaires, dettes, hypothèques et autres cmi. cleIens géna iemnt quelconq ues,
à Françis.Gazaille dit St. G ermain, le::r ils m:ijr, marchand, résident en la
paroisse de Saint-Denis, présent et acceptant donataire pour lui,'ses loirs et ayant

.cause à l'avenir, savoir : Les meubles de ménages et animaux qui suivent:-deùx
lits de plumes avec leurs draps et couvertures, un po&l de fer simple de trois pieds

si rl i m i -i ri idet son tuveau, un autre poël simplc et tyeau, un grand Miroir, un petit miroir,
deux chaises tournées, un bureau peint en jaune, ;ne demie-deuzaine de cuil-
lères à soupes d'argent, une paire de pince à thé d'argen:, un grand claudroni .de
deux sceaux, un autre ditto d'un demi-sceau et couverel2, un canard de fonte,
une paire de clenest de fer, une pelle et pince à feux, trois cnandelliers'de cui-
vre, deux sceaux flérés, deux traînes. et travailles, deux charettes et leurs roux,
un cheval sous poile gris, une vache sous poile rouge, un harnais complèt, et
généralement tous les autres -meubles de ménages qui se trouveront leurs apparte-

Snir
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The immoveable property given consists in an emplacement (lot) situated in the
Borougli of William Henry, in the parishand Seigniony of Sorel, fronting Queen
street, containing sixty fet, more or less, in front, by seventy-feet five, more or
less, in depth, boanded in front by the said street, with a house and bakery built
thereon, 'adjoining above to the property of'Jolhn Shuters or his heirs, -and be-
low to that of.Joseph Schultz. Also another lot (emplacement) No. 111, situated
in the Borough of William Henry and Seigniory of Sorel, containing sixty-six
feet in front, by one hundred and thirty-two feet in depth, reaching in front to
south Prince's strcet, and in depth to No. 14-6, on one side above in- Prevost
street, and on the other to No. 110, belonging to the widow au"d heirs Cournoyer.
with a house, stable, shed and oven built thereon. Also another lot (emplace-
ment) situated in the said Borough of William He.nry 'and Seigniorv of Sorel,
being No. 146, containing sixty-six -feet in front. by one huntidred and thirty-two
feet in dept, eatending in front to Prevost street, and in depth on one side, to
No. 14-5, on one side, Jean Baptiste Paul Hus, on the other side to No. 110 and
111; withotit any building crected thereon. Also and finally a land oftwo acres
in front, being part of No. 43, situated in the Seigniory of Sorel, by twenty acres,
more or less, in depth, bounded in front to the north by the rivulet Rimbault,
and in depth, on one side above by the acres belonging ta the heirs Buckley, and
on the other to one Dechaine, without any building crectedi thercon ; such-as
the said moveables, animais, emplacements, lands and buildings exist and apfear,
which the said donattce declres that he well knows and is satistied therewith-,
the wlhole belonging to the donatois, by due right. as possessing concessionari'es
by deed of3Mr. Jean Nar:e Mondelet, Notary of the year and date therein speci-
fi'ed ; copy of which titles have been by the said donators put into the hands of the
said donatee their son, which le hereby acknowledgCs.

The present donation is made under condition of performing and paying the
several Seignioral dues -and services due by the holders of- the said lands, under
their concession deeds, frec and exempt from ail arrears of rent. and lor/s e ventes,
bygone, until Martinmaus next. 1\oreover the present donation is made upon con-
dilion that the said donatec Francois Gazaille dit St. Germain, shall, and which
he, by these presents promises and obliges himsclf to perforn, in acquittance of
the donators, pay at their death, to wit, to Marguerite Buckley, wife of' Louis
Roy, one hundred and fbrty-four livres of twenty sols; to Adelaïde Buckley,
vife of Levi Allen, the sum of one hundred and foitv-four livres of twenty sols;
to Pierre Gazaille dit St. Germain, the snm of one husndred and fortyfbur livres
of twenty sols each ; to Jean Baptiste Gazaille dit St. Germain, eighteen livres
of twenty sols, and finaly to Joseph Gazaille dit St. Ge main. eighuteen- livres of
twentv sols; whicl sums being paid to the befbre named parties, shall bc in s.:tis-
faction ofall and every claim they may have against the estate and effècts of the
said Donators. Moreover the said prescnt donation is made to the said Doniatee
-upon condition that lie shall, as he iereby promises and obliges hiimself to do;
lodae, board, keep in firing and liglht, and otherwise maintain the said Donators,
bis Fatier and Mother, along with himself and the same as himîself; anti shaîl and
will perform and shew the-duties, care and respect ivhich a dutifil child owes to
his fath'r and mother, and to prov'ide them with those comforts of which they
may stand in need, both in hea:th and in sickness, as also to procure for them
when necessary, medical aid, and that of the priest; and further, also, upon their
death to cause them to be interred in a decent manner in the cemetry appro:'ri-
ated for the faitl fuil, and masses to be said for each on the days of their obscquies
and on the first anniversaries thereof. And in case of' incormpatability of'dikposi-
tion between the« Donators and the Donatee, the said Donatee is held to proyide
a room properly heated and in good order, for the adcomniodation of the Dòna-
tors, cither in his own house, or in those ofthe children of the Donators, namely,

Jean



I lTs au jour et heures de leurs décès. Les immeubles donnés consistent en un
emplacement situé dans le bourg de William-Henry, paroisse et seigneurie de So-
rel. frontant rue de la Reine ou Qucen-Street, contenant soixante pieds plus ou
moins de front, sur la profondeur de soixante-et-quinze pieds plus ou moins, te.
nant devant à la dite rue, avec une maison et boulangerie dessus construite, tenant
eni haut à Jean Shuters où héritiers Ferguson, d'autre côté en bas à Joseph
Shoultz. Item un autre emplacement, n q il 1, situé dans le bourg de William-
H-enry, seigneurie de Sorel, de la contenance de soixante-six pieds de front sur
cent trente-deux pieds de p:ofondeur, prenant en-devanture à South Prince Street,
rue Sud-du-Prince, en profondeur à n q 146, d'un côté en haut à rue Prevost,
d'autre côté à'n P.· 110, appartenant à la veuve et héritiers Cournoyer, avee Mai-
son, étable, hangard et four dessus construits. Item, un autre emplacement situé
au dit bourg de Williain-Henry, :igneurie susdite, étaut n q 146, contenant
de soixante-six pieds de front sur cent trente-deux pieds de profondeur, tenant
devant à Prevost Street, en profondeur à n q 115, d'un côté à n 9 147, Jean-
Etc. Paul Hus, d'autres côté à n q 110 et 111, sans aucune bâtisse dessus cou-
struite. Item, et finalement imé terre de deux arpens de front, faisant partie d u
n q 43, sise en la se&gneurie de Sorel, sur vingt arpens plus on moins de profon.
deur, prenant par devant au nord au ruisseau Rimbault, en profondeur à ter-
res conc:-dées, d'un côté en haut à l'arpent aprartenant aux héritiers Buckley,
d'autre côté à un Déchaîne, sans bàtisse dessus construite ; telle et ainsi que les
dits meubles, animaux, emplacemens. terres et bâtiniens se poursuivent et
comporte, que]a dit donataire déclare bien connaitre, et lu tout en est satisfait
et content : le tout appartenant aux donatems à juste titre de concessions, pas-

- -pa ItrJa~n--M rie-Mond~ee._notaire, an et date y conteiw, copie desquels
titres les donateurs ont remis au dit donataire, leur fils, dont quitte.

Cette présente donati'n; ainsi faite à la charge des droits et devoirs seignei-
riaux, telle qu'énoncé aux actes de concessionnaires d'icelui terrains, quitte et
nette de tous arrérages de rentes, lods-et-ventes du pass,, jusqu'à la Saint-Martin
prochaine. En outre cette présente donation faite à la charge par le dit dona-
taire François Gazaille dit Saint-Germain, comme il promet et s'oblige de bailler
et payer à l'acquit des donateurs à leurs décès, savoir : de payer à Marguerite
Buckley, femme de Louis Roi, cent qnarante-quatre livres de vingt sols ; de
payer à Adélaïde Buckley, femme de Lévi Alin, la somme de cent quarante-
quatre livres de vingt sois; de payer à Pierre Gazaille dit Saint-Germain, la soin-
me de cent quarante-quatre livres de vingt sols ; de payer à Jean-Baptiste Ga-
zaille dit Saint-Germain, dix-huit livres de vingt sois; et enfin, de payer à Joseph
Gazaille dit Saint-Germain, dix huit livres de vingt sols. L.esquels sommes
ainsi payés au ci-dessus nommés, sera pour toutes pr(ten tions cuils pourront
reclamer dans la succession des donateurs. En outre la d:te 1récnte donation,
ainsi fLite à charges. par le dit donataire, comme il promet et s'oblige de loger,
nourrir, chauffer, éclairer et entretenir les dits donateurs, son père et sa mère,
avec lui et comme lui, d'avoir pour eux les égards,- soins et respects qu'un enfant
soumis doit avoir envers un père et une mère, et de leurs procurer les douceurs
ce donc ils auront besoin en santée et maladie, et de. leurs procurer les secours du
prêtre et chirurgien quand requis, comme aussi sera tenus de les faire inhumer
décemment dans le cimetière parmis les fidèles, avec chacun un service le joui- de
leurs obsèques, et chacun uri service au bout de l'an de leurs décès. Et au cas
d'incompatibilité d'humeur entre les donateurs et donataire, aux dit cas le dit do-
nataire sera tenu de donner une -chambre entretenue chaude et en bonne ordre.
aux dits donateurs, soit dans sa maison ou chez ses enftins, Jean-Baptiste, Jo-
seph ou Pierre Gazaille dit Saint-Germain': comme aussi de leur livrer la pen-
sion viagère qui deviendra payable du -moment de leurs séparation, les articles de
pcnsion suivantes, douze piastres d'Espagne pour payement de leurs menues be-

soins
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Jean Baptiste, Joseph or Pierre Gazaille dit St. Germain, as also to deliver to
them, from ithe moment of their separation, an alimientary allowance, whicl shafL
consist of the foIllowing articles, viz: twelve spanisl dollars to defray small ex-
penses, every vear, together with fbur bushels of whcat, gooc and mnerchantiable
two hundretl pounds of good pork ; one hundred pounids of good beef; half a
bushel of sait, lialf a pound of pepper, eight pounds of green tea, one hundred
pounds of maple sugar; twelve pounds of twist tobacco ; six pounds of candles ;
twelve pounds of soap; ten gallons ofrun , two gallons red wine ; and also to
provide the said Donators a complete suit of clothes of cloth from the store. fromn
hcad to fbot, and equally to provide the said Donatrix, his. muother, with a coin-
plete suit of clothing fromîî hcad to foot, according to their situation il] life. And on
the deaths of eithcr of the Donators, the alimentarv allowance. and annual provi-
sion shail bu reduced to one halit; except as regards firing and light. And fbr
assurance and guarrantee that the cngagemcuts, clauses and conditions contained
in the present donation, shall bc f'ulfilled, the said )onator- by tlhese presents doth
a1Tect, bind and iypothecate in fàvor of the said Donators, and unti l their ducease,
his prope.rty, mioveable and innoveable, and especially and by prefercnce -tlïat
wiich has by these presents been given unto hii, as lcasc holders, 'bailleurs de

,fiimds). And flor the accomplishment of ail that is bcfore written, the said Donators
have transferred to the said Donatee, his heirs, &c. ail thecir righîts of property
whîich they have, or could claim to have, upon any thing which is ireby given;
desirig that he mavy peaceably enjoy the sane, and dispose thiercof' as to hii ma
seem good, in virtue of these presents. And in order to give efïect to these pre-
sents, wliecver it may bc requisite, tic said parties have constituted as their
atornies the bearers lereof', to whon they give power to do so, and to demiand
a record thereof. For thus, &c. pronising, &c. obliging, &c. renounci~ng, Lc.
Done and passel ar William Henry, at the residerice of the DonîaLors, iii the year
one thousand cight lundred and twenty:two, o the fiftecnth day of 3larch, in
the afternoonî. And the said Donator having declared that le could not write,
being thiercunto required, made his usual mark, and his wife, together with the
said Donatee, and us the Notaries, (these presents being. read) have signecd these
presents. Thus signed to the minutes thereof,

Fit.nacors G.izm%xLz.I: -DI Sr. G :ar'.us ><

Cui.uu.ornr: MENLcrJERf,•

Faxcors Gaz.i r.r.I. 1)r Sr. G1MAx.u, Jusit.

-GoE:. Ror.rAnD, Not. Pub).

And by the undersigned, who retains the original thereofin his ollice.

H1Y. CREBASSA,. N. P.

A PPENDIX.



soins chaque année, et vingt-quatre minots de blé loyal et marchand, deux cent
livres de bon lard, cent livrcs de bon bIoeuf, un deii-mninot le sel, une demie-
livre de poivre, huit livres de thé vert, cent livres de sucre du pays, douze li-
vres de tabac à futmer ci torquettc, six livres de chndellCIIes, douze livres de sa-
von, dix galons de ruim, deux galons de vin rouge, dle fburnir au dit donateurs
un habillement complet de draps du magasin, de pieds nci caps, et pareilîcnct
de livrer à la donatrice, sa mère, un hauilcnent complet de pieds en caps, sui-
vaut leur état. Et au ddcès d'undes donateurs la pension et entretien deminuera
de moitié, excepter la chandelle et chaullâge. Et pour siretée et garantie de l'ac-
comliplissement des charges, cluS et conditions mnentionns en cette présente
do:iation, le dit donataire a par ces présentes affecté, obligé et hy% pothèquc CIL
iàveur des donateurs jusqu'à leurs déces, ses biens, imleubles et immeubles, et
par préférence spéciale ce que dessus donnés comme bailleurs de fbnds. Et aIL
moyen de tout ce que dessus, les dits donateurs ont transporté au dit donataire,
ses hoirs,. etc., tous droits de propriété qu'ils ont et peuvent avoir demander ou
prétendre sur ce que dessus donnés, voulant qu'ils en jouissent paisiblement et
en disposent comme il avisera boui étre cri vertu des preseites. Et pour fîire in-
sinuer ces présentes partout ou besoin sera, les dites parties ont constituées leur
procureur le porteur auquel ils donnent pouvoirs de ce faire et d'en requérir ateL:
Car ainsi, etc., promettant, etc., obligeant, etc., renoncant, etc., Fait et passé
à William-HLenry, demùeure des donateurs, ran mil-huit-cent-vingt-deux, le quinl-
z.ime jo.ur de mars, après-midi. Le dit donateur à déclarer ne savoir signer, ie ce
en qui à fait sa marque ordinaire et à sou épouse $gne avec le dit donataire et
nous notaires, (lecture faite,) ainsi signé à la minute des précentes.

FRANÇOTS G A u dit Sr.-Gi.:nam x, -

CIIAntLorrT: Es.tcu Lr:nr,

FanAScois G A zm : dit Sr.-(I:n n. x, Iils,

Gz:o. RO.. ou.A , N. P.

Et du soussigné qui en retient la minuite, ci son gretl.

H-v. CREIl.\SSA,
18mf. N. P.
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APP ENDIX.

No. 615õ7, 21lst Auzguast 1824..

Do Tos.£ntr2evifs) by Autoine Aussant.et Augeiique Ricard to André.
Aussant.

52d Copy.--TRAssATroN.

Before tbe undersigned Notaries Public for the Pro.vince of Lower-Canada,
residing one in the borough of William Henry, and the other in the parish of
Berthier, district of Montreal.

Caine and appeared Antoine Aussant, prdprietor and cultivator, (notable
cultivateur) residing in the seigniory of Sorel, and Angelique Ricard, his wife,
dulv avithorized by him for the purposes of these presents.
. Who, desiring to secure a maintenance to thenselves for the rest of their
lives, and to bestow at the same time a mark of affection- upon Antoine Aussant
their son, being of age, and residing with them, have voluntarily dec)ared &
acknowledged, by these presents, that they have given, grautcd, conveyed and
devised from henceforward and for ever, by donation in lifetime (entre vifr).
pure, simple and irrevocable, without expectation of being.enabled or desirous
of revoking the saine, excepting of right; and in default of-the fulfilment of the
obligation, clauses and conditions hereinafter specified ; and for the better se-
curity of the donation, have promised, and hereby prornised, jointly and seve-
rally one for the otlier, and one for both, to guarantec against all impediments,
gifts, dowers, debts, nortgages, ejectments, entails, (substitutions) and al other
hindrances generally whatsoever, unto the said André Aussant their son, now
present, and accepting donatee for- himiself, his heirs and assigns to-vit :-Ali
the household furniture, clothes, linen, cattle and animais, and generally ail
other rnoveables and goods at pi esent belonging to the donators, and which may
be found to belong to them, on the days and hours cf uheir decease. The cattle
and animals thus given consist of four milch cows, one bull of two years old,.
one yearling bullock, seventeen sheep -old and young, four hogs of eighteen
months,and anold draft horse. The immoveables given consist of a piece of
land sittated and being in the seignory of Sorel, on the suutli side of the river
Richelieu, No. 38, containing four acres in front by twenty acres in depth,
bounded in front by the river Richelieu, in the rear by lands concecled to
Jacques Vandalle, on thesouth west side by unconceded land, and on the north
eastby Jacques Vandalle's, with a house, barn, stable and shed erected thereon,
the whole in good .condition ; also aland of one acre and one perch or cighteen
feet in front, by seventeen acres in depth, being part of No. 4 on the south side
Of the second river du Pot au Beure, adjoining in front the roadi; on one side
the land of Abrahamn See, and on the other« Antoine Aussants, vithout any
building thereon, as the same now exists, which the said donatee declares he is
well acquainted with, as having cultivated the same for the donators ; without
any reserve by the donators than the free use of their household furniture & of a.
horse, harness, and vehicle, according to the season, to go whithcr they like,
the periods of agricultural labour excepted. The said lands hercby given becing
held in the rent roll (censive) of the seigniory of Sorel, and charged with such
quit rents (cens rt rrntes) towards the donain thereof, as arc stated and detail-
ed in the titie deeds, frce fron all arrears of rent and seignoriak rights for all
past timie, and until Martinmas in the present year ; ail. that is above given and
appuîrtenaInces, to be enjoyed, userl & disposed ofb b the said donatee, his heirs.

and
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No. 6157. 21 Août -124.

DoNATION entrevifs par Antoine Aussant et Angelique llicard à André Aussant.
Cme. Expéditioin.

Par devant les Notaires Publics de la Province du Ba-Canada, soussignés, ré-
dens un au Bourg de William Henry, l'iutre ei la paroisse de Berthier, district
de Montréal.

Furent présens, Antoine Aussant, Notable cultivateur, résidant en la Seigneu-
rie de Sorel, et Angelique Ricard sa femme, de lui duenient autorisé à l'effet
qui suit:

Lesquels voulant s'assurer la subsistance pour le reste de leurjours, et désirant
'en même-tems donner des marques de leurs affections à André Aussant leur fils
majeur. résident avec eux, ont volontairement reconnus et confessé par ces pré-
sentes, avoir cédé, quitté, transporté et délaissé dûs maintenant et pour toujours,
par donatioà, entrevifs, pure simple et irrevocable sans espérance de la pouvoir
ni vouloir la revoquer, si non que pour cause de droit et faute d7accomplissement
des charges, clauses et conditions. ci-après spécifiés, et pour plus grande sureté
du dit don ont promis et promettent solidairement un pour l'autre, un d'eux seul
pour le tout,.garantir de tous troubles, dons, douaires, dettes. hypothéques,
évictions, substitutions et tous autres empéchemens généralement quelconques,
au dit André Aussant leur fils, present et acceptant donataire pour lui, ses hoirset
ayant cause, savoir : tous les meubles, hardes, linges, bestiaux et animaux, et autres
meubles et effets généralement qutelconquies qui appartiennent aux dits donateurs
et qui se trouverons leur appartenir au jour ét heure de leur décès. Les bestiaux
et animaux donnés consiste en quatre vaches laitières, une taure de deux ans,
une taure d'un an,.dix-sept moutons vieux et jeune, quatre pores de dix-huit
mois, un vieux cheval de tire. L'immeuble donné consistera en une terre sise

-et situé en-la seigneurie de Sorel au Sud de la Rivière Richelieu, No, 38, conte-
nant quatre arpens de frontsur vingt arpens de profondeur, borné par devant
à la Rivière Richelieu, par derrière à terres concédées à Jacques Vandalle, d'un
côt. au sud-ouest à.terre non concédée, et au nordest à Jacques Vandalle, avec
une naison, grange;- etable et écurie dessus érig s, le tout un bon état ;- item,
un arpent et une perche le-dix-huit pieds de terres de front faisant partie du No.
., au'sud .de la seconde Rtivière du Pt au Beurre, sur dix-sept arpens de pro-

. fondeur,- tenant en deva'nture au chemin, .un côté au sud-ouest à Abraham See,
d'autre côté ià Antoine Aussant sans bâtisse dessus construits, ainsi que le tout
se poursuit et comporte, que le dit donataire déclare bien connaître pour avoir
cultivé y celle pIur les doîuteurs, sans autres réserves par les donateurs que
la libre jouissance de leurs meubles de menages et d'un chevalle attelée à voiture,
suivant les saisons pour aller ou bon leur semblera, le tems des travaux excepter.
Mouvant les dites terres ci-dessus donnés en la censive de la seigneurie de Sorel,
et envers le domatine d'icelle chargée de tels cens et rentes tel que dit et port6
au titre quitte d'arréragcs de rentes et droits seigneuriaux de tout le passé jus-
qu'à la St. àMartin présente année, pour de tous ce que dessus donnée et dépen-
dances, jouir, user et disposer par le dit donataire, ses hoirs et ayant cause,
conformérnent aux charges, clauses et conditions ci-après en pleine propriété
en vertu des préspntes à commencer la jouissance de ce jour. La dite présente
donation ainsi fàite à la charge des droits seigneuriaux à l'avenir et en outre à la

charge



and assigns, under the obligations, clauses and conditions hereinàfter mentiomedin full property im virtue of these presents, the enjoyment thereof to begin fr
this«day. The said present donation being made on condition ofthe paymen &observance ofthe seignorial rights for the future, & besides on condition thatthesaid.donatee, his heirs and assigns, as he by these presents, prnlisesaid bli-ges himself to do, shall keep, lodge, and board his sisters Genevieve, RosalteVeronique and Françoise, Aussant, and Pierre Aussant, until they settle them-selves im life, they working for the interestand profit ofihe said donatee theirbrother, and assisting hini in bis labour ; and upon their settling in life, or sepa-rating froni the said donatee, he shall be bound to give to each of bis sisters, afeather bed, a iattrass, a blanket and a sheet, andone.cow and to give to hisbrother Pierre Aussant one cow, which shall be in compensation oftheirrightof iheritance of the estate of the donators ;-the said donators declaring that An-toine and Mai-ianne Aussant have received their shares in theiriaheritance. And
the said donation is furthernore made upon condition that the said donateeshiall lodge, board and clothe the said donators, bis father and his mother, withhiin, and the same as hinself, provided that the victuals shal be good and whole-some ; and to provide thein with the necessary comforts in sicknëss, andwith theassistance of the priest, and of a medical man whenever they desire it. A nd it isexpréssly agreed upon between the donators andie donatee that in ¢ase of in-compatibidity of disposition between then, in such case the donators reserve tothiemselves the right of nominating an arbitrator, (expert) and one to be nominat-cd by the donatee who shall draw up an linentary deed of what shalibe deemednecessary for the board and maintenance of the donators, until their decéase.And that the said donators shall have the right of consuming anc enjoying theirboard and maintenance wheresoever they lie untif their decease, and that uponpain of the nullity of these presents. And upon their decease, the said donate.shai be bound to cause them to be interred according to his means. And it is alsoexpressly agreed by the, said donatee that he renounces the power of selling, ex-clangmig, or aienatiiog the property so given, except by the consent of ihe dona-tors ; and for the security of the performance of the obligations, Clauses and con-ditions herein mentioned, the said property so given shal reiain Affeted, boundand aortgaged in f'avouriof the donators, as leaseholders (hailleurs defò ds,) to-gether with all the other property of the donatee, withaut any other morrgagP,derogatingfrom that which he has, froni this day lbrward,' eonstituted to securethe fulfilmént of alil that is above written. And in consideration of the tenns andobligations coiitained in these presents, the said donators Io by these presents,transfer to the said donatee, his heirs and assigns, alil the rihts of propert

claims, titles, and causes of action, whi!tlhey.have or can have to, upon, oragaiist that which is herebefore given, until the day of their deâth ; divestithemselves-thereof in favour of toe said donatee, his heirs and assigns. Andiorder to give effect to these preserits, the aid parties have constituted the bearer.thereof to be their Attorney, to whon they give powers to do so, and torequire arecord thereof. For thug, &c oinising&ci obliging, &c. renounicing, &c Doneand passed at the Borough of William , Heiriy, iu the.office.of Ienry Crebas¢,one oft the said Notarie.,ine . the year one thousand eight huindred and twent-four, on the twentieth day ofAugust in the forenoon. Aid the said donators anddoliatee having declared they could not write, being thýreuntW required, haveinade their usual marks, and the iotaries (these presents being read) have signiedthe minute thereof thus :-Antoine Assantx, Angelique Ricard x, André Aus-sant x, George Rolland, N» P. and the andersigned Notary.

One ( iarginal addition is valid, and two Words struck through void.
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charge par le dit donataire, ses dits hoirs et ayant cause, comme il promet et
S'obligent par ces dites présentes de garder, loger et nourir ses seurs Geneviève,
Iozalie, Veronique et Françoise Aussat, et Pierre Aussant son frère, jusqa'à
ce qu'ils se produisent, Cn par eux travaillant pour l'intérét et profit du dona-
taire leur frère, et ce dans ces travaux. Et en se produisant oü sortant d'avec
le dit donataire il sera tenu de donnier chacune de ses souis, un lit de pluine,
une pailliasse, une couverte et un draps, et une vache ; et de donner à son frère
Pierre Aussant une vache qui sera pour leur droit de légitime. En la succession
des donateurs déclarant les donateurs que Antoine et Marianne Aussant ont
rcç:u leurs droits ci leur succession ; et cette dite donation faite aussi à charge
par le dit donataire de loger, nourir et vêtir les dits donateurs son père et sa mère
avec lui, et comme lui, pourvue que la nouriture soit bonne et saine, et de leur
fournir les douceurs nécessaires ci naladie, et 'assistance du protre et chirt.r-
gie quand par eux requis, est expressernent accordée entre le donataire et do-
nateurs qu'au cas d'incomîpabilité d'huimneurs entr'eux, au dit cas, les dits dona-
teurs se îéserve le droit de nommer un expert, et un nommer par le donataire
qui serons autorisés de dresser une acte de pension qui sera nécessaire pour sub-
venir à la nourriture et entretien des qonateurs jusqu'à leur décès, et que les dits
donateurs auront droits de consommer ou ils dsircrons, la nourriture et entre.
tien des donateurs ijusqu'à leur décès, et ce sous peine dé nullité des piréscntes ;
et arrivant le décès des donateurs, le dit donataire sera tenu de les faire inhumer
suivant son moyen. Et aussi est expressément accordé par le dit douataire qu«il
renonce à pouvoir vendre, échanger ou aliéner le dit bien, donner, excepter
qu'avec le consentement des donataires pour sûreté et garantie des charges, elau-
ses et. conditions nentioninés en ces présentes, le dit bien donnée dcmemnrera
a!ïcetée, oblige et hypothequé en Viveur des donateurs comui ne baileurs de fonds,
ainfsi que tous les autres biens du donataire sans qu'une hypothu<¡ue déroge à
l'autre, lesquels il a dès aujourd'hui chargée pour Paccomplisseinent de tous ce
que dessus. Et an moyen des charges et obligation ci ces présentes, les dits
donateurs transportent tous et tels droits de propriété, ons, raisons, actions,
fonds et très-fonds qu'ils ont et peuvent prétendre sur ce que dessus donnés au
jour île leurs décès, s'en démettant en faveur du dit donataire ses hoirs et ayant
cause, ai moyen des présenîtes, et pour faire insinuer ces présentes, les dites
parties ont constitué leur procureur le porteur, auquel ils donnenit pouvoir die
ce laire, et d'en requérir acte, Car ainsi, &c., Promettant, Zc., Obligeant, &c.,
lenonçanit, &c. Fait et passé au Bourg de William lenry, en l'étule de Mtre.
Crebassa, Fuin des dits Notaires, l'an mil huit cent vingt-quatre, le vingtième jour
d'aoû't avant midi, et ont les donateurs et donataire déclaré ne savoir signer, de
ce qui ont fait leur niarques ordinaireet ont les Notaires signé, lecture faite,
Ainsi signé à la minute des présentes Antoine AssaiD x, Angbelique Ilicard x,
Anldr Aussant x, G. Rolland, N. P., et dd Notaire soussigne.

Un renvois en margc est bon, huit motwiayé n

1H. CilEBASSA, s. r.
18M.


